
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 6
III-1. Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structures
6048 S. Hydraulic.  (District III)

Agenda Report No. III-1 16
IV-1. Authorization of the Second, Five-Year Tax Exemption, C
& C Development, LLC.  (District IV)

Agenda Report No. IV-1 18
IV-2. Substantial Amendment to the 2015-2016 Second
Program Year Action Plan.

Agenda Report No. IV-2 20
Substantial Amendment Spreadsheet 23
Substantial Amendment Detail-REVISED100115 24

IV-3. Ordinance Amendment Repealing Section 2.12.1026 of
the Code of the City of Wichita and Creating Chapter 3.70
regarding Cemeteries.

Agenda Report No. IV-3 27
Ordinance No. 50-088 28

IV-4. Memorandum of Understanding and Supplemental
Agreement No. 1 for New Central Library Architectural Services.
(District VI)

Agenda Report No IV-4 31
City Library MOU Wallace Foundation APPVD AS TO
FORM FINAL 33
GLMV Supp  Agreement No  1 APPROVED AS TO
FORM 38

IV-5. McAdams Field Improvements.  (District I)
Agenda Report No. IV-5 and Map 41
Resolution No. 15-319 43

IV-6. Improvements for Meridian Avenue, North of 29th Street
North.  (District VI)

Agenda Report No. IV-6 45
Supporting Documents 46
Resolution No. 15-320 71

IV-7. Design Concept for Improvements to 13th Street, between
119th and 135th Streets West.  (District V)

Agenda Report No. IV-7 74
IV-8. Water Line and Sewer Extensions to Serve Sheridan
Avenue.  (District IV)

Agenda Report No. IV-8 76
Supporting Documents 77
Resolution No. 15-321 93
Resolution No. 15-322 96

IV-9. DER2015-00001- Community Investments Plan 2015-
2035.

Agenda Report No. IV-9 99
Ordinance No. 50-089 101

1



DAB Summary DER 2015-01 103
DER2015-00001  8-20-15 MAPC MIN EXCERPT 105
Plan Doc-MAPC Approved 110

IV-10. Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structure.
(Districts I and III)

Agenda Report No. IV-10 164
Summary Table Spreadsheet 166
Writeups 167

V-1. ZON2015-00026 – City Zone Change from SF-5 Single-
Family Residential to TF-3 Two-Family Residential on Lots 19 –
39 in the Siena Lakes Subdivision Generally Located on the
South Side of West 37th Street North, One-Half Mile West of
Hoover Road.  (District V)

Agenda Report No. V-1 179
Ordinance No. 50-090 181
ZON2015-00026   8-20-15 MAPC MIN EXCERPT 182
Background Information 192

VI-1. Public Hearing – 2016 Annual Agency Plan.
Agenda Report No. VI-1 207
HUD Payments to Influence 209
HUD Compliance with the PHA Plans 210
HUD Civil Rights 212
Consistency with the Consolidated Plan 213
HUD 50077-SL Certification of PHA Plans Consistency
with the Consolidated Plan 214
Disclosure of Lobbying Activities 215
HUD Cert of Drug Free Workplace 217

II-3. Preliminary Estimates.
Agenda Report No. II-3 218

II-4a. Revised Petitions for Improvements to Bellechase Third
Addition.  (District II)

Agenda Report No. II-4a 224
Supporting Documents 225
Resolution No. 15-327 237
Resolution No. 15-328 240

II-5a. Community Events – Prairie Fire Half Marathon.
Agenda Report No. II-5a 243

II-5b. Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon and Fun Run.
Agenda Report No. II-5b 245

II-5c. Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon 5K.  (Districts I
and VI)

Agenda Report No. II-5c 247
II-5d. Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon Set-up.
(District I)

Agenda Report No. II-5d 248
II-6a. Design-Build Agreement for Cowskin Creek, Sewage
Treatment Plant No. 3 Rehabilitation.  (District V)

2



Agenda Report No. II-6a 249
DBA Agreement 250

II-6b. 2015 Biennial Bridge Inspections.
Agenda Report No. II-6b 261
Supporting Documents 262
Resolution No. 15-329 275

II-6c. KDHE Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy
Grant Application.

Agenda Report No. II-6c 277
Agreement 279

II-7a. Change Order No. 4 for K-96 and Hoover Interchange.
(Districts V and VI)

Agenda Report No. II-7a 320
Supporting Documents 322

II-9. Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structure.
(District III)

Agenda Report No. II-9 324
Supporting Documents 326
Resolution Nos 15-330 329

II-10. Lease of City-owned Property at 2220 E. 21st Street.
(District I)

Agenda Report No. II-10 330
Supporting Documents 331
Supporting Documents 341

II-11. Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bond and Refunding
Revenue Bond Sale.

Agenda Report II-11 342
Resolution 15-331 344
Notice of Sale 352

II-12. Buffalo Park Improvements.  (District V)
Agenda Report No. II-12 361
Resolution No. 15-332 364
Buffalo Park Aerial Map 365
Buffalo Park Amenity Rendering 366

II-13. Mobility Management Services.
Agenda Report No. II-13 367
Contract Mobility Management Services 369

II-14. Surplus of City-Owned Property at 1352 N. Minneapolis.
(District I)

Agenda Report No. II-14 392
Supporting Documents 393

II-15. Amending Preliminary Estimate for Improvements to
Serve Southfork Addition. (District III)

Agenda Report No. II-15 398
Amended NTBA 399

II-16. Contract for Indigent Defense Services.

3



Agenda Report No. II-16 403
Contract for Indigent Defense Services 404

II-17. Abatement of Dangerous and Unsafe Structures.
(Districts I, III, IV and V)

Agenda Report No. II-17 and Ordinances 50-091 and
50-092 411

II-18. Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department
Budget Adjustment.

Agenda Report No. II-18 417
II-19. Resolutions Authorizing Congestion Mitigation and Air
Quality (CMAQ) grants from the Federal Transit Administration.

Agenda Report No. II-19 418
CMAQ Bus Purchase 420
CMAQ West Side Bus Imp 421
Resolution No. 15-333 422
Resolution No. 15-334 424
Resolution No. 15-335 426

II-20. Second Reading Ordinances.
Agenda Report No. II-20 428

II-21. *SUB2014-00036 -- Plat of Campbell's Greenhouse
Addition Located East of Broadway, North of MacArthur Road.
(District III)

Agenda Report No. II-21 429
Ordinance No. 50-093 432
Support Docs -SUB2014 36 433

II-22. *DED2015-00007 - Dedication of Access and Utility
Easement Located on the East Side of Greenwich, North of K-
96 Highway. (District II)

Agenda Report No. II-22 435
Supporting Documents 436

II-23. *SUB2015-00016 -- Plat of Monarch Landing Commercial
Addition Located on the Northwest Corner of 21st Street North
and 159th Street East. (District II)

Agenda Report No. II-23 440
Monarch Landing Commercial -support docs -SUB2015
16 443
Ordinance No. 50-094 451
Resolution No. 15-336 452

II-24. *ZON2015-00031 - City Zone Change from Single-Family
Residential to Neighborhood Retail with a Protective Overlay on
Property Located West of Ridge Road on the Northwest Corner
of Maple and Brunswick Streets.  (District V)

Agenda Report No. II-24 456
Ordinance No. 50-095 459
ZON2015-00031   8-20-15 MAPC MIN EXCERPT 461
Memo ZON2015-00031 467

II-25. *Playtime, LLC Agreement - Wichita Dwight D.
Eisenhower National Airport.

4



Agenda Report No. II-25 468
PlayTime Agreement and Proposal 469

II-26. *Tolling Agreement for Mediation.
Agenda Report No. II-26 489
Airport Tolling and Standstill Agreement 490

5



C I T Y  C O U N C I L 
 

C I T Y  O F  W I C H I T A 
K A N S A S 

 
City Council Meeting City Council Chambers 
09:00 a.m. October 6, 2015 455 North Main 

OPENING OF REGULAR MEETING 

-- Call to Order  

-- Invocation  

-- Pledge of Allegiance  

-- Approve the minutes of regular meeting on September 22, 2015   

 
 

AWARDS AND PROCLAMATIONS 

 Proclamations:            
 The Big Read Month           
 60th Anniversary for Grace Baptist Church        
 Manufacturing Month           
 Award:             
 2015 Kansas Public Health Association Policy Makers of the Year Award 

I. PUBLIC AGENDA 

NOTICE: No action will be taken relative to items on this agenda other than referral for information.  Requests to appear will be placed on a “first-
come, first-served” basis.  This portion of the meeting is limited to thirty minutes and shall be subject to a limitation of five minutes for each 
presentation with no extension of time permitted.  No speaker shall be allowed to appear more frequently than once every fourth meeting.  
Members of the public desiring to present matters to the Council on the public agenda must submit a request in writing to the office of the 
city clerk prior to twelve noon on the Tuesday preceding the council meeting.  Matter pertaining to personnel, litigation and violations of 
laws and ordinances are excluded from the agenda.  Rules of decorum as provided in this code will be observed. 

1. Janice Bradley - Thanks to the City Council and the Law Department. 
2. Terry Blair - Transit System. 
3. James Butts - Using the Transit System. 
4. Brian Carduff - Procurement related to public safety. 

 
 

II. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1 THROUGH 27 

NOTICE: Items listed under the “Consent Agendas” will be enacted by one motion with no separate discussion.  If discussion on an item is desired, the 
item will be removed from the “Consent Agendas” and considered separately 

(The Council will be considering the City Council Consent Agenda as well as the Planning, Housing, and Airport Consent 
Agendas.  Please see “ATTACHMENT 1 – CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS” for a listing of all Consent Agenda Items.) 
 
 

***WORKSHOP TO FOLLOW*** 

6



City Council Meeting  Page 2 
October 6, 2015 
 

 
COUNCIL BUSINESS 

III. UNFINISHED COUNCIL BUSINESS 

1. Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structures 6048 S Hydraulic.  (District III)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Close the public hearing, adopt the resolution declaring the building to be a 
dangerous and unsafe structure, and accept the BBCSA recommended actions to 
proceed with condemnation, allowing 10 days to start demolition and 10 days to 
complete removal of the structure.  Any extensions of time granted to repair any 
structure would be contingent on the following: (1) All taxes have been paid to 
date as of October 6, 2015; (2) the structure has been secured as of October 6, 
2015, and will continue to be kept secured; and (3) the premises are mowed and 
free of debris as of October 6, 2015, and will be so maintained during renovation. 
  

 
IV. NEW COUNCIL BUSINESS 

1. Authorization of the Second, Five Year Tax Exemption, C & C Development, LLC.  (District IV) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the second five-year tax exemption.  

2. Substantial Amendment to the 2015-2016 Second Program Year Action Plan. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Close the public hearing, confirm the contents of the substantial amendment to 

the 2015-16 Second Program Year Action Plan, authorize the submission of the 
substantial amendment to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, and authorize the necessary requests for bids/proposals, funding 
agreements, and signatures. 

 
 

3. Ordinance Amendment Repealing Section 2.12.1026 of the Code of the City of Wichita and Creating Chapter 
3.70 regarding Cemeteries. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Place the ordinance on first reading and authorize the necessary signatures.  

4. Memorandum of Understanding and Supplemental Agreement No. 1 for New Central Library Architectural 
Services. (District VI) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the Wichita Public Library 
Foundation and Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with GLMV Architects and 
authorize the necessary signatures.   

5. McAdams Field Improvements.  (District I) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the bonding resolution, authorize initiation of the project and authorize all 
necessary signatures.  

7



City Council Meeting  Page 3 
October 6, 2015 
 

6. Improvements for Meridian Avenue, North of 29th Street North.  (District VI) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the petition and budget, adopt the resolution, and authorize the 
necessary signatures.  

7. Design Concept for Improvements to 13th Street, between 119th and 135th Streets West.  (District V) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the design concept.  

8. Water Line and Sewer Extensions to Serve Sheridan Avenue.  (District IV) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the petitions and budgets, approve hiring Baughman Company, P.A. for 
the design of the improvements, adopt the resolutions, and authorize the 
necessary signatures.  

9. DER2015-00001- Community Investments Plan 2015-2035. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 as the new Wichita-
Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan, including those neighborhood and area 
plans itemized on Attachment “B” to the Resolution of the Wichita-Sedgwick 
County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission dated August 20, 2015, place 
the ordinance on first reading, authorize the necessary signatures, and instruct the 
City Clerk to publish the ordinance after approval on second reading.  

(9:30 a.m. or soon thereafter) 
10. Public Hearing: Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structures. (Districts I and III) 

Property Address Council District 
a. 344 N. Piatt                                                                                 I              
b. 430 N. Bleckley (shared accessory structure)                            I                                                                                            
c. 116 W. Zimmerly (parcel address 1352 S. Water)                    III              
d. 2671 S. Fees                                                                              III  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Close the public hearing, adopt the resolutions declaring the building a dangerous 
and unsafe structure, and accept the BCSA recommended action to proceed with 
condemnation, allowing 10 days to start demolition and 10 days to complete 
removal of the structure.  Any extensions of time granted to repair the structure 
would be contingent on the following: (1) All taxes have been paid to date, as of; 
October 6, 2015 (2) the structure has been secured as of October 6, 2015 and will 
continue to be kept secured; and (3) the premises are mowed and free of debris as 
of October 6, 2015, as will be so maintained during renovation. 

  

8



City Council Meeting  Page 4 
October 6, 2015 
 

 
COUNCIL BUSINESS SUBMITTED BY CITY AUTHORITIES 

PLANNING AGENDA 

NOTICE: Public hearing on planning items is conducted by the MAPC under provisions of State law.  Adopted policy is that additional hearing on 
zoning applications will not be conducted by the City Council unless a statement alleging (1) unfair hearing before the MAPC, or (2) alleging 
new facts or evidence has been filed with the City Clerk by 5p.m. on the Wednesday preceding this meeting.  The Council will determine 
from the written statement whether to return the matter to the MAPC for rehearing. 

 V. NON-CONSENT PLANNING AGENDA 

1. ZON2015-00026 – City Zone Change from SF-5 Single-Family Residential to TF-3 Two-Family Residential on 
Lots 19 – 39 in the Siena Lakes Subdivision Generally Located on the South Side of West 37th Street North, One-
Half Mile West of Hoover Road.  (District V) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Concur with the findings of the MAPC and approve the zoning change subject 
to the conditions enumerated, and adopt the findings of the MAPC and instruct 
the Planning Department to forward the ordinance for first reading when the plat 
is recorded (requires simple majority of 4 votes); 2) ; Return the case to MAPC 
for further review (requires simple majority of 4 votes); or 3) Deny the zoning 
request by making alternative findings, and override the MAPC’s 
recommendation (requires a two-third majority of 5 votes to override the 
MAPC’s recommendation).  

 
HOUSING AGENDA 
NOTICE: The City Council is meeting as the governing body of the Housing Authority for consideration and action on the items on this Agenda, 

pursuant to State law, HUD, and City ordinance.  The meeting of the Authority is deemed called to order at the start of this Agenda and 
adjourned at the conclusion. Carole Trapp Housing Member is also seated with the City Council. 

Carole Trapp Housing Member is also seated with the City Council. 

VI. NON-CONSENT HOUSING AGENDA 

1. Public Hearing – 2016 Annual Agency Plan. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Conduct the public hearing, close the hearing, approve the Wichita Housing 
Authority 2016 Annual Agency Plan, and authorize the necessary signatures to 
certify the Plan for submission to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. 

 

AIRPORT AGENDA 

NOTICE: The City Council is meeting as the governing body of the Airport Authority for consideration and action on items on this Agenda, 
pursuant to State law and City ordinance.  The meeting of the Authority is deemed called to order at the start of this Agenda and 
adjourned at the conclusion. 

VII. NON-CONSENT AIRPORT AGENDA 

 None 

9



City Council Meeting  Page 5 
October 6, 2015 
 
 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA 

VIII. COUNCIL MEMBER AGENDA 

 None 
 
 

IX. COUNCIL MEMBER APPOINTMENTS AND COMMENTS 

1. Board Appointments.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the appointments. 

 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 

10



City Council Meeting  Page 6 
October 6, 2015 
 

 
(ATTACHMENT 1 – CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1 THROUGH 27) 

II. CITY COUNCIL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Report of Board of Bids and Contracts dated September 28 and October 5, 2015. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive and file report; approve the contracts; and  
authorize the necessary signatures.  

2. Applications for Licenses to Retail Cereal Malt Beverages:  
Renewal                 2015       (Consumption on Premises)         
Jose Castaneda-Lumbreras   Calvin’s Hamburger Haven**      1929 South Seneca                            
Renewal                  2015                               (Consumption off Premises)    
Andrea Lazenby                Walmart #5860***                   9831 East Harry      
Andrea Lazenby                Walmart #5990***                   2111 North Amidon      
Andrea Lazenby                Walmart #5991***                   3137 Seneca     
                                           
**General/Restaurant (need 50% or more gross revenue from sale of food)                                           
***Retailer (Grocery stores, convenience stores, etc.)   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve licenses subject to staff review and approval. 

3. Preliminary Estimates:  
a. List of Preliminary Estimates.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive and file. 

4. Petitions for Public Improvements:   
a. Revised Petitions for Improvements to Bellechase Third Addition.  (District II)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the petitions and adopt the resolutions. 

5. Consideration of Street Closures/Uses:  
a. Community Events – Prairie Fire Half Marathon.  
b. Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon and Fun Run.  
c. Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon 5K.  (Districts I and VI)  
d. Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon Set-up.  (District I)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the request subject to; (1) Hiring off-duty certified law enforcement 
officers as required; (2) Obtaining barricades to close the streets in accordance 
with requirements of Police, Fire and Public Works Department; and (3) 
Securing a Certificate of Liability Insurance on file with the Community Events 
Coordinator. 

  

11



City Council Meeting  Page 7 
October 6, 2015 
 

6. Agreements/Contracts:   
a. Design-Build Agreement for Cowskin Creek, Sewage Treatment Plant No. 3 Rehabilitation.  (District V)  
b. 2015 Biennial Bridge Inspections.  
c. KDHE Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy Grant Application.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the agreements/contracts and authorize the necessary signatures. 

7. Change Orders:  
a. Change Order No. 4 for K-96 and Hoover Interchange.  (Districts V and VI)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the change orders and authorize the necessary signatures. 

8. Minutes of Advisory Boards/Commissions:  
      Police and Fire Retirement System, July 22, 2015                                                                                            

Joint Investment Committee, August 6, 2015                                                                                               
Wichita Public Library, August 18, 2015                                                                                                     
Board of Electrical Appeals, August 11, 2015                                                                                         
Deferred Compensation Board, May 21, 2015                                                                                                
Wichita Employees’ Retirement System, July 15, 2015                                                                                 
Board of Park Commissioners, August 10, 2015    

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive and file. 

9. Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structures:  (District III) 

Property Address Council District 
a. 3881 E. Roseberry  III     

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the attached resolutions to schedule public hearings before the City 
Council on November 17, 2015 at 09:30 a.m. or as soon as possible thereafter, to 
consider condemnation of structures deemed dangerous and unsafe per Kansas 
State Statutes and local ordinances. 

10. Lease of City-owned Property at 2220 E. 21st Street.  (District I)   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Approve the lease agreement; 2) approve the budget adjustment; and 3) 
authorize the necessary signatures.  

11. Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bond and Refunding Revenue Bond Sale.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the resolution: 1) authorizing the Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bond 
and Refunding Revenue Bond sale; 2) authorizing preparation of the Notice of 
Bond Sale and Preliminary Official Statement in connection with the bond sale; 
3) approving the distribution to prospective bidders of the Preliminary Official 
Statement; 4) authorizing distribution of the Notice of Sale; 5) authorizing the 
City Manager or his designee  to award the bids subject to the parameters of the 
resolution; and 6) authorizing City staff, in consultation with Bond Counsel and 
the financial advisor, to take such further action as is reasonably required to 
implement the resolution.  

12



City Council Meeting  Page 8 
October 6, 2015 
 

12. Buffalo Park Improvements.  (District V)   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Accept the grant, 2) authorize increased project budget 3) adopt the amended 
bonding resolution, 4) approve acceptance of the lowest bid with approved add 
alternates exceeding the Engineer’s estimate, and 5) authorize all necessary 
signatures.  

13. Mobility Management Services.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the selection of RLS & Associates for Mobility Management Services.  

14. Surplus of City-Owned Property at 1352 N. Minneapolis.  (District I)   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Approve the sale; 2) approve the real estate agreement; and 3) authorize any 
necessary signatures.  

15. Amending Preliminary Estimate for Improvements to Serve Southfork Addition. (District III)   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the amended preliminary estimate and authorize the necessary 
signatures.  

16. Contract for Indigent Defense Services.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the contract and authorize the necessary signatures.  

17. Abatement of Dangerous and Unsafe Structures.  (Districts I, III, IV and V)   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the proposed assessments and place the ordinances on first reading.  

18. Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department Budget Adjustment.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the budget adjustment of $41,000 to the MABCD Nuisance Abatement 
and Weed Mowing budgets.  

19. Resolutions Authorizing Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) grants from the Federal Transit 
Administration.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the resolutions and authorize the necessary signatures.  

20. Second Reading Ordinances: (First Read September 22, 2015 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the Ordinances. 

  

13



City Council Meeting  Page 9 
October 6, 2015 
 

 
II. CONSENT PLANNING AGENDA ITEMS 

NOTICE: Public hearing on planning items is conducted by the MAPC under provisions of State law.  Adopted policy is that additional hearing on 
zoning applications will not be conducted by the City Council unless a statement alleging (1) unfair hearing before the MAPC, or (2) alleging 
new facts or evidence has been filed with the City Clerk by 5p.m. on the Wednesday preceding this meeting.  The Council will determine 
from the written statement whether to return the matter to the MAPC for rehearing. 

21. *SUB2014-00036 -- Plat of Campbell's Greenhouse Addition Located East of Broadway, North of MacArthur 
Road. (District III)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the document and plat, authorize the necessary signatures and place the 
Ordinance on first reading.  Publication of the Ordinance should be withheld 
until the plat is recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

22. *DED2015-00007 - Dedication of Access and Utility Easement Located on the East Side of Greenwich, North of 
K-96 Highway. (District II)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Dedication.  

23. *SUB2015-00016 -- Plat of Monarch Landing Commercial Addition Located on the Northwest Corner of 21st 
Street North and 159th Street East. (District II)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the documents and plat, authorize the necessary signatures, adopt the 
Resolution and place the Ordinance on first reading.  Publication of the 
Ordinance should be withheld until the plat is recorded with the Register of 
Deeds.  

24. *ZON2015-00031 - City Zone Change from Single-Family Residential to Neighborhood Retail with a Protective 
Overlay on Property Located West of Ridge Road on the Northwest Corner of Maple and Brunswick Streets.  
(District V)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Concur with the findings of the MAPC and approve the zoning with the 
provisions of Protective Overlay 300 and place the ordinance on first reading 
(simple majority of four votes required).  

 

 
II. CONSENT HOUSING AGENDA ITEMS  

NOTICE: The City Council is meeting as the governing body of the Housing Authority for consideration and action on the items on this Agenda, 
pursuant to State law, HUD, and City ordinance.  The meeting of the Authority is deemed called to order at the start of this Agenda and 
adjourned at the conclusion.  

Carole Trapp, Housing Member is also seated with the City Council. 
 
 None 
  

14



City Council Meeting  Page 10 
October 6, 2015 
 
 

II. CONSENT AIRPORT AGENDA ITEMS 

NOTICE: The City Council is meeting as the governing body of the Airport Authority for consideration and action on items on this Agenda, pursuant 
to State law and City ordinance.  The meeting of the Authority is deemed called to order at the start of this Agenda and adjourned at the 
conclusion.   

25. *Playtime, LLC Agreement - Wichita Dwight D. Eisenhower National Airport.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the agreement and authorize necessary signatures.   

26. *Tolling Agreement for Mediation.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Tolling Agreement and authorize the Mayor to sign.   

27. *WAA Report of Board of Bids and Contracts dated September 28, 2015.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive and file reports, approve the contracts, and authorize the necessary 
signatures.   

 

15



           
         Agenda Item No. III-1 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:   Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structures 
   6048 S. Hydraulic (District III) 
 
INITIATED BY:  Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department 
 
AGENDA:  Unfinished Business 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations:  Close the public hearing, adopt the resolution declaring the building to be a 
dangerous and unsafe structure, and accept the Board of Building Code Standards and Appeals (BBCSA) 
recommended actions to proceed with condemnation, allowing 10 days to start demolition and 10 days to 
complete removal of the structure.   
 
Background:  On June 9, 2015, the City Council conducted a public hearing to consider condemnation of 
the dangerous and unsafe structure at 6048 S Hydraulic.   
 
At that hearing, prospective buyers requested time to purchase the property and bring it into compliance. 
The City Council voted to defer action and granted 30 days to close the sale of the property and 30 
additional days to make the repairs.  
 
On September 15, 2015, this property was scheduled for review before the City Council.  It was removed 
from the agenda and rescheduled for October 6, 2015.   
 
Analysis:  On August 12, 2015, Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department (MABCD) 
staff inspected the property.  The structure was secure, but no repairs had been made.  MABCD had a 
contractor mow this property on July 10, 2015, at a cost of $140. 
 
A check of Sedgwick County records showed that the ownership of the property has not changed; the 
2012, 2013 and 2014 taxes are delinquent in the amount of $2,591.41, which includes special assessments 
and interest.  There are 2015 special assessments for lot cleanup in the amount of $910.31 and weed 
mowing in the amount of $143.86, both including interest.  There is a 2016 special assessment for weed 
mowing in the amount of $140. 
  
Financial Considerations:  Structures condemned as dangerous buildings are demolished with funds 
from the MABCD Special Revenue Fund contractual services budget, as approved annually by the City 
Council.   This budget is supplemented by an annual allocation of Federal Community Development 
Block Grant funds for demolition of structures located within the designated Neighborhood Reinvestment 
Area. Expenditures for dangerous building condemnation and demolition activities are tracked to ensure 
that City Council Resolution No. R-95-560, which limits MABCD expenditures for non-revenue 
producing condemnation and housing code enforcement activities to twenty percent (20%) of MABCD's 
total annual budgeted Special Revenue Fund expenditures, is followed.  Owners of condemned structures 
demolished by the City are billed for the contractual costs of demolition, plus an additional five hundred 
dollar ($500) administrative fee.  If the property owner fails to pay, these charges are recorded as a special 
property tax assessment against the property, which may be collected upon subsequent sale or transfer of 
the property.  
 
 

16



Legal Considerations:  The owner and interested parties have been informed of the date and time of the 
hearing. 
 
Recommendations/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council close the public hearing, adopt the 
resolution declaring the building to be a dangerous and unsafe structure, and accept the BBCSA 
recommended actions to proceed with condemnation, allowing 10 days to start demolition and 10 days to 
complete removal of the structure.  Any extensions of time granted to repair any structure would be 
contingent on the following: (1) All taxes have been paid to date as of October 6, 2015; (2) the structure 
has been secured as of October 6, 2015, and will continue to be kept secured; and (3) the premises are 
mowed and free of debris as of October 6, 2015, and will be so maintained during renovation. 
 
If any of the above conditions are not met, the MABCD will proceed with demolition action and also 
instruct the City Clerk to have the resolutions published once in the official city paper and advise the 
owner of these findings. 
 
Attachments:  None 
 

17



         Agenda Item No. IV-1 
       

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization of the Second, Five-Year Tax Exemption (C & C Development, 

LLC) (District IV) 
 
INITIATED BY: Office of Urban Development 
 
AGENDA:  New Business 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the second five-year property tax abatement. 
 
Background:  On December 9, 2008, the City Council approved the issuance of Industrial Revenue 
Bonds (IRBs) in the amount of $8,550,000 to finance an expansion for Atlas Aerospace d/b/a Product 
Manufacturing Corporation (Atlas/PMC).  The City Council also approved a 100% five-year tax 
exemption on the IRB-financed property plus a second five-year exemption subject to City Council 
approval.  Atlas/PMC is requesting the approval of the second five-year tax exemption at this time. 
 
Analysis:  Product Manufacturing Company (PMC) was purchased in 2007 by Atlas Aerospace, LLC.  
The sellers, C&C Development, LLC retained ownership of the real estate and entered in to a lease 
agreement for the facilities with Atlas/PMC.  C & C Development acted as the developer of the 2008 
project and is the tenant for this transaction, but the benefit accrues to Atlas/PMC as the subtenant.   
 
Bond proceeds were used to finance the construction of 213,000 square feet of additional manufacturing 
and warehousing space.  The company employed 200 people prior to this expansion and projected the 
addition of 65 new jobs over the next five years at an average wage of $42,664. 
 

Commitment     Performance 
 Create 65 new jobs in five years  Created 86 new jobs 
 Average annual wages of $42,664  Average annual wages over $46,631 
 Construction of 213,000 sf building   Completed 213,000 square foot facility 
 
Financial Considerations:  Under the City’s Economic Development Incentive Policy, based on job 
creation and capital investment, the company qualified for a 100% five-plus-five year tax exemption on 
real property purchased with bond proceeds.  
 
A new cost /benefit analysis, based on updated metrics, was completed by the Center for Economic 
Development and Business Research at Wichita State University with the following ratio of benefits to 
costs: 
   

City of Wichita   1.42 to 1 
City of Wichita Gen Fund 1.33 to 1 

  Sedgwick County  1.24 to 1 
  USD 259   1.16 to 1 
  State of Kansas   11.45 to 1 
 
Legal Considerations:  According to the Lease Agreement in the bond transcript, approval of the second 
five-year tax exemption is at the discretion of the City Council. 
 

18



C & C Development – 2nd Five Year Exemption 
October 6, 2015 
Page 2 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the second five-year tax 
exemption. 
 
Attachments:  None 
 
 
 

19



1 
 

                                                                                                             Agenda Item No. IV-2 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:  Substantial Amendment to the 2015-2016 Second Program Year Action Plan  
   
INITIATED BY:  Housing and Community Services Department 
 
AGENDA:  New Business 
 
 
Recommendation:  Close the public hearing, confirm the contents of the substantial amendment to the 
2015-16 Second Program Year Action Plan, authorize the submission of the substantial amendment to the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and authorize the necessary requests for 
bids/proposals, funding agreements, and signatures. 
 
Background:  Wichita is recognized as an “entitlement” city by the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD).  This is based on a federal formula which considers total population, the 
number of persons below the poverty level, the number of overcrowded housing units, the age of housing 
and the population growth lag.  As such, the City receives Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG), HOME Investment Partnerships and Emergency Solutions Grant funding.  The City is required 
to develop a five-year consolidated plan, and to submit one-year action plans for each of the five years. 
 
On May 5, 2015, the City Council approved the 2015-2016 Second Program Year Annual Action plan for 
the annual allocation of CDBG funds.  Due to the receipt of program income and unexpended funds 
recaptured from prior year activities, there are additional funds available to program. A substantial 
amendment to the 2015-2016 annual action plan was prepared to identify eligible projects to be funded 
with additional unallocated funds.  
 
On September 1, 2015, City Council opened a 30-day comment period for the proposed substantial 
amendment to the 2015-16 Second Program Year Action Plan.  Accordingly, the amendment was 
advertised and distributed for public review.  On September 22, 2015, a City Council workshop was 
conducted concerning the proposed amendment, with an opportunity for public input. 
 
Analysis:   The proposed substantial amendment includes $1,390,000 for park projects, bike path 
extensions, and sidewalks and streets; $280,000 for Housing and Community Service Department 
(HCSD) program enhancements; $31,794 for program administration costs; $460,061 in revolving fund 
transfers; and additions and revisions to language contained in various sections of the action plan to better 
clarify plans and assure compliance with federal regulations.  Following is a summary of the amendment 
which was presented for public comment. 
 
Sidewalk and Street Improvements:   

 Provide $75,000 for sidewalk improvements in a low-income residential area 
 Provide $115,000 for the completion of street improvements 

 
 
 

20



2 
 

Housing and Community Service Department (HCSD) program enhancements: 
 Increase the Home Improvement Loan program by $30,000 to serve 10 income-eligible 

homeowners 
 Provide $50,000 for dangerous building demolition for five HOME-funded projects  
 Provide $100,000 down payment assistance for five income-eligible first-time homebuyers 
 Provide $100,000 for code enforcement and compliance activities 

 
Program Administration technical adjustment: 

 Increase funding for Program Administration by $31,794 for indirect costs 
 
Revolving Fund Transfers: 

 Transfer $150,000 from the Historic Revolving Loan program to be available for CDBG-eligible 
activities, leaving a balance of $131,000 for the Historic Loan program. 

 Transfer $91,183 from Direct Revolving Loan activities for other CDBG-eligible uses and 
eliminate the Direct Revolving Loan program  

 Transfer $218,878 from the Rental Rehab Revolving Loan activities for other CDBG-eligible 
uses and continue the program with $100,000 in remaining funds  

 
Proposed Wichita Housing Authority Park improvements: 

 Provide $250,000 for Wichita Housing Authority Ash Park improvement 
 
Proposed Park improvements: 

 Provide $100,000 for improvements at Fairmount Park 
 
Proposed new Pedestrian and Bike Path Extensions: 

 Provide $400,000 for construction of a Green Street Bikeway 
 Provide $150,000 for a pedestrian crossing at 9th and McLean 
 Provide $300,000 for construction of bikeways on Market and Topeka streets 

 
Technical Language Adjustments: 

 Revise language in the Consultation Process and Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) standards 
 Revise the narrative related to Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing for consistency with new 

rules and guidance 
 Revise the narrative to better describe contract monitoring and risk assessment process for 

consistency with new rules and guidance 
 Revise the narrative to include plans to issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for educational 

activities on fair housing during community development month 
 
During the 30-day comment period, seven written comments were received in support of the proposed 
bicycle and pedestrian plan projects.  No other comments were received. 
 
Subsequent to the preparation and distribution of the Substantial Amendment for comment, staff 
presented a Comprehensive Housing Policy to the City Council.  The Policy and Substantial Amendment 
were presented in a workshop on September 22. Council suggested that a modification of the Substantial 
Amendment could provide maximum flexibility to begin implementation of strategies identified in the 
Comprehensive Housing Policy. 
 
Following those discussions, staff prepared a detailed summary of each substantial amendment item that 
has a budget implication.  The summary is attached and presented to provide a framework to prioritize the 
Substantial Amendment projects as they relate to the proposed Comprehensive Housing Policy and also 
ensure a timely expenditure of funds.  Lower priority projects may be considered for funding in the 
development of the 2016-2017 Annual Action Plan. 
 

21



3 
 

Financial Consideration:  There is no impact to the General Fund as a result of this action. 
 
Legal Consideration:  The Law Department has approved the substantial amendment as to form.   
 
Recommendation/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council close the public hearing, confirm 
the contents of the substantial amendment to the 2015-16 Second Program Year Action Plan, authorize 
the submission of the substantial amendment to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, 
and authorize the necessary requests for bids/proposals, funding agreements, and signatures. 

Attachments:    
Allocation spreadsheet 
Substantial amendment detailed summary 
 

22



Page 1
10/1/2015

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
Capital Projects/Demolition

Public Works & Utilities $75,000 * $75,000 * $0 * $0 $0 *
   -Street or Sidewalk Repair $75,000 * $75,000 * $0 $0
Metropolitan Area Building & Construction Department
   -Demolition and Clearance of Dangerous and Unsafe Buildings

Total - Capital Projects $175,000 $165,000 $0 $0 $0 *

Housing Activities
Neighborhood Clean-ups $50,000 $19,420 $0 $0 $0
Home Improvement Program Services

$369,091 $369,091 $389,000 $389,000 $389,000

   - Home Repair $546,222 $758,984 $753,000 $740,251 * $740,251 *
   - Demolition activities related to HOME $50,000 **
   - Down Payment Assistance $100,000 **
   - Home Improvement Loan Program $30,000 **
   - MABCD Code Enforcement Activities $100,000 **
   - Rental Housing Loan Program $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total - Housing Projects $965,313 $1,147,495 $1,142,000 $1,129,251 * $1,409,251 ***
* This amount includes $44,661 unallocated from prior year funds
**This amount from prior year funds
***This amount includes $324,661 from prior year funds

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
Neighborhood Stabilization

Funds Available for Reallocation $0 $0 $532,020 * $0 $540,000 8

  - DI Glen Dey Park Improvements $50,000
  - DI Sidewalk Replacements $35,000 $75,000
  - DIII Friendship Park Improvements $80,000
  - WHA Ash Park Improvements $0 $250,000
  - Fairmount Park Improvements $0 $100,000
  - DIV Street Paving $367,020 $115,000

$0 $0 $532,020 * $0 $540,000 *
*This amount from prior year unallocated funds

$100,000 $90,000 $0 $0

2015-16 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

2012-13 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

2013-14 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

2014-15 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

2015-16 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

2012-13 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

*This amount from prior year unallocated funds

Total - Neighborhood Initiatives

   - Staff and Administration: Responsible for the application process, 
eligibility determination, inspections, preparation of specifications, 
document preparation, accounts payable functions, internal cost 
estimates, and lead-based paint clearance inspections for all CDBG-
funded Home Repair Program activities, as well as site inspections for 
HOME-funded and ESG-funded housing activities.  Administers 
existing revolving loan programs, including the Historic Revolving Loan 
Program, the Historic Deferred Loan Program, the Home Improvement 
Loan Program, and the Rental Rehabilitation Program. including the 
servicing functions related to over 5,000 loans in the existing loan 
portfolio. 

2013-14 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

2014-15 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

2015-2016  COUNCIL ALLOCATION , Proposed Amendment 10-06-15

2013-14 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

2015-16 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

2014-15 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

2012-13 COUNCIL 
ALLOCATION

2015-16 
AMENDMENT 
PROPOSED

2015-16 
AMENDMENT 
PROPOSED

2015-16 
AMENDMENT 
PROPOSED

$0

23



1 
 

CITY OF WICHITA SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT TO THE 2015‐2016 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 

DETAILED PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 
 

Sidewalk and Street Improvements ‐ This funding will complete existing projects, could be 
completed by May 1, 2016 and are consistent with Neighborhood Stability Strategies. 

PROJECT  AMOUNT  DESCRIPTION  RATIONALE  IMPACT OF DELAY 

Sidewalk 
improvements 

$75,000  This will complete the 
11th Street Sidewalk 
Project from Grove to 
Hillside.  It will provide 
a safe walking surface 
for youth attending 
Spaght Elementary; it 
also supports the 
Habitat for Humanity 
Rock the Block housing 
initiative. 

Housing Policy – 
Availability, Page 
60 
Completion of 
CDBG‐funded 
project 

Cuts short the 
impact of the 
current investment 

Street 
improvements 

$115,000  This will fill a 
construction gap to 
address unanticipated 
drainage issues for 
Dora and Everett 
street improvements 

Completion of 
CDBG‐funded 
project 

Funds will have to 
be identified 
elsewhere to 
address the 
drainage issues. 

HCSD Program Enhancements – This funding will provide additional resources for existing and 
proposed housing strategies.  Depending on program opportunities and participation, these funds 
may be expended by May 1, 2016.  

PROJECT  AMOUNT  DESCRIPTION  RATIONALE  IMPACT OF DELAY 

Increase Home 
Improvement 
Loan program 

$30,000  This will increase 
funding to a program 
which lowers the 
interest rate for home 
owners  seeking 
conventional financing 
for home repairs 

Housing Policy – 
Availability, Page 
60 

Homeowners will 
have to wait longer 
(until the next 
budget year) to 
benefit from the 
interest rate 
reduction. 

Provide funding 
for dangerous 
building 
demolition 

$50,000  Funds will clear land so 
that HOME funding 
can be used to 
construct new housing 

Housing Policy ‐ 
Availability, Page 
60  

Fewer homes will 
be built using only 
HOME funds for 
demolition, 
clearance and re‐
construction. 

Provide down 
payment 
assistance 

$100,000  This will assist five 
additional families to 
address the fact that 
the program runs out 
of money 6‐9 months 
into the program year 

Housing Policy – 
Affordability,  page 
59 
Neighborhood 
Stability, Page 61 

The five families 
who would be 
assisted will not 
receive help during 
the current fiscal 
year. 

24



2 
 

Provide funding 
for code 
enforcement and 
compliance  

$100,000  This will fund a 
position with benefits 
and resources 
necessary to connect 
low income 
homeowners without 
resources, with 
community resources 
to help with repairs 

Housing Policy – 
Availability, Page 
60 

Homeowners who 
need someone to 
help them identify 
resources, will 
have to do so on 
their own and risk 
being taken back to 
court for failure to 
correct the code 
violations. 

Program Administration ‐ This is necessary to meet requirements of the City’s cost allocation plan. 

PROJECT  AMOUNT  DESCRIPTION  RATIONALE  IMPACT OF DELAY 

Increase funding 
to the 20% cap 

$31,794  This will provide 
funding needed to 
meet increased 
indirect costs 

The indirect cost 
rate varies from 
year to year and is 
determined by 
formula applied to 
department 
transactions. 

Another line item 
in program 
administration will 
need to be 
reduced.  Options 
include salaries, 
Fair Housing and 
Environmental 
Reviews. 

Revolving Fund Transfers ‐ This will provide flexibility for the City Council in the future allocation of 
CDBG funds. 

PROJECT  AMOUNT  DESCRIPTION  RATIONALE  IMPACT OF DELAY 

Historic Revolving 
Loan  

$150,000  Demand for program 
has declined 
 

Funds that haven’t 
been accessed 
remain restricted 
for the original use. 
Transfer will make 
funds available for 
other eligible uses. 

Action will have to 
be taken in another 
annual plan or 
substantial 
amendment. 

Direct Revolving 
Loan  

$91,183  Demand for program 
has declined 
 

Funds that haven’t 
been accessed 
remain restricted 
for the original use. 
Transfer will make 
funds available for 
other eligible uses. 

Action will have to 
be taken in another 
annual plan or 
substantial 
amendment. 

Rental Rehab 
Revolving Loan  

$218,878  Demand for program 
has declined 
 

Funds that haven’t 
been accessed 
remain restricted 
for the original use. 
Transfer will make 
funds available for 
other eligible uses. 
 

Action will have to 
be taken in another 
annual plan or 
substantial 
amendment. 

25



3 
 

Proposed Park Improvements – This funding will provide resources to address safety and security 
enhancements in designated parks.  The entire funding may not be fully expended by May 1, 2016.   
This aligns with current and proposed strategies.  

PROJECT  AMOUNT  DESCRIPTION  RATIONALE  IMPACT OF DELAY 

Wichita Housing 
Authority Park 
Improvements 

$250,000  This will fund  
demolition of existing 
park structures cited in 
a recent HUD 
inspection, and 
provide for design and 
re‐construction based 
on neighborhood input 

Compliance – this 
action will resolve 
a HUD finding 
Housing Policy – 
Neighborhood 
Stability, Page 61 

Housing Authority 
will have to 
identify funds in 
the Capital Fund 
and modify the 
Capital Fund 
budget. 

Fairmount Park 
Improvements 

$100,000  This will provide 
support for safety 
enhancements 
identified by 
neighborhood and City 
staff teams 

Housing Policy – 
Neighborhood 
Stability, Page 61 

Improvements will 
be limited to the 
current budget. 

Proposed Pedestrian Bike Path Improvements ‐ These projects would enhance the bike and 
pedestrian network, and serve residents in income‐eligible neighborhoods.  Alternative funding 
sources may be available for implementation of these projects, which are lower priorities in the 
Housing Policy.   

PROJECT  AMOUNT  DESCRIPTION  RATIONALE  IMPACT OF DELAY 

Green Street 
Bikeway 

$400,000  This will construct a 
bikeway from Central 
to Atwater City Hall 
and WSU 

This will speed up 
development of 
this phase of the 
bikeway. 

This phase of the 
project will be 
delayed until 
another funding 
source can be 
identified.  
Currently funded 
phases can 
proceed. 

Pedestrian 
Crossing 

$150,000  This will construct a 
crosswalk at 9th and 
McLean (near a WHA 
high rise) 

This provides safer 
access for area 
residents to 
existing bike and 
walking paths. 

This project will be 
delayed until 
another funding 
source can be 
identified. 

Bikeways on 
Market and 
Topeka 

$300,000  This would provide a 
connection south of 
Kellogg to an existing 
project north of 
Kellogg 

Speed up 
construction of this 
phase of the 
bikeway. 

This phase of the 
project will be 
delayed until 
another funding 
source can be 
identified.  
Currently funded 
phases can 
proceed. 

 

26



                                                                                                             Agenda Item No. IV-3 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance Amendment Repealing Section 2.12.1026 of the Code of the City of 

Wichita and Creating Chapter 3.70 Regarding Cemeteries (All Districts) 
   
INITIATED BY:  Department of Park and Recreation 
 
AGENDA:  New Business 
 
 
Recommendation:   Place the ordinance on first reading. 
  
Background:  Section 2.12.1026 of the city code provides that fees for interment and monument 
placement at City managed cemeteries, Highland and Jamesburg are to be established by resolution. The 
current pricing being assessed is far below the actual cost the City incurs for this service. The City is 
unable to secure a contract for these services due to the limited number of vendors and demand for its 
services. 
 
Analysis:  The amendment creates Chapter 3.70 and repeals Section 2.12.1026 regarding permit 
requirements. Fees will pass through from the vendor to the customer with the addition of a $25 
administrative fee to be deposited into the Cemetery Trust Fund for ongoing maintenance of cemeteries. 
Monument placement fees remain at $50. The amendments apply the ordinances to any cemetery under 
the management and control of the City instead of naming Highland and Jamesburg specifically.  This 
will allow the ordinance to apply to any future cemeteries which come under control of the City without 
further amendment. The proposed ordinance establishes the interment, monument and administrative fees 
and supersedes prior ordinances and/or resolutions.  
 
Financial Consideration:  The $25 administrative fee will generate approximately $1,000 each year to 
be deposited into the Cemetery Trust Fund for ongoing maintenance of cemeteries. 
 
Legal Consideration:  The Law Department has prepared and approved as to form the proposed 
ordinance amendment. 
 
Recommendation/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council place the ordinance on first reading 
and authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachment:   Ordinance 
 

 
 

27



First Published in The Wichita Eagle on ______________ 

           05/28/15 
 

ORDINANCE NO._________ 

AN ORDINANCE CREATING CHAPTER 3.70 OF THE CODE OF THE 
CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, PERTAINING TO PERMIT USE FEES 
FOR CEMETERIES UNDER THE MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL 
OF THE CITY OF WICHITA AND REPEALING THE ORIGINAL OF 
SECTION 2.12.1026 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 
KANSAS.   
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 

KANSAS: 

 SECTION 1.  Section 3.70.010 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

created to read as follows:   

 “Cemetery Interment Permit Required.  It is unlawful for any person, whether as 

principal, officer, agent, servant or employee to inter the remains or cremains of any person in a 

cemetery under the management and control of the City without first having applied for and 

obtained an interment permit from the City Treasurer.” 

SECTION 2.  Section 3.70.020 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

created to read as follows:   

 “Monument Permit Required.  It is unlawful for any person, whether as principal, officer, 

agent, servant or employee to place any monument marker or memorial on a grave site in a 

cemetery under the management and control of the City without first having applied for and 

obtained a monument permit from the City Treasurer.” 

SECTION 3.  Section 3.70.030 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

created to read as follows:    

28



2 
 

“Disinterment Permit Required.  It is unlawful for any person, whether as principal, 

officer, agent, servant or employee to reopen a grave to disinter the remains of any person in a 

cemetery under the management and control of the City without first having applied for and 

obtained a disinterment permit from the City Treasurer.”  

SECTION 4.  Section 3.70.040 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

created to read as follows:   

“Fees.  The fees for interment or disinterment permits shall be in an amount equal to that 

charged to the City by the contractor performing the service of opening and closing a grave or 

reopening and closing a grave.  The fee for a monument permit shall be in the amount of $50.00.  

In addition, an administrative fee of $25.00 shall be charged for any permit issued pursuant to 

this section.   

Fees collected for interment and disinterment permits are to be applied to the expense of 

opening and closing of grave sites and the administrative costs of the City.  The additional 

administrative fees collected are to be deposited into the City’s Cemetery Fund and shall be used 

to maintain, care for and improve the cemeteries under the management and control of the City.”  

SECTION 5.  Section 3.70.050 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

created to read as follows:   

“Penalties.  Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $500.” 

SECTION 6.  The original of Section 2.12.1026 of the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, is hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall also supersede any prior ordinances and/or 

resolutions now in effect pertaining to permit use fees for cemeteries under the management and 

control of the City of Wichita. 

29



3 
 

  SECTION 7.  This ordinance shall be included in the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, and shall be effective upon its passage and publication once in the official city paper.  

PASSED by the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, this ________ day of 

_________________, 2015. 

     
      __________________________________________ 
      Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
  
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jennifer Magaña 
City Attorney and Director of Law 
 

 

 

30



1 
 

     Agenda Item No.  IV-4 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
      
TO:   Mayor and City Council 

 
SUBJECT:   Memorandum of Understanding and Supplemental Agreement No.1 for New  
   Central Library Architectural Services (District VI) 

   
INITIATED BY: Wichita Public Library  
 
AGENDA:  New Business 
 
 

Recommendation:  Approve the Memorandum of Understanding and Supplemental Agreement No. 1. 
 
Background:  On May 13, 2014, the City Council approved an agreement with GLMV Architects (GLMV) 
for architectural, engineering and special consultant services for a proposed new Central Library. At that 
time, the City Council authorized completion of schematic design and preliminary design development with 
remaining agreement phases requiring additional City Council authorization prior to implementation. On 
January 13, 2015, the City Council approved a funding agreement with the Wichita Public Library 
Foundation (Library Foundation) and authorized completion of design and construction documents for the 
proposed new facility as outlined in the GLMV services agreement. 
 
As part of a capital campaign to support enhancement of the proposed new library, the Library Foundation 
has obtained a $3,000,000 pledge from the Dwane L. and Velma Lunt Wallace Charitable Foundation 
restricted for expansion of the Children’s and Research Pavilions of the proposed new building. This gift is 
part of a larger $8,000,000 campaign which has raised more than $4,400,000 to date in gifts and pledges. 
 
Analysis: A proposed Memorandum of Understanding between the City and the Library Foundation 
outlines the purpose of the $3,000,000 gift and terms of payment by the Foundation to the City. 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 2014 GLMV agreement authorizes design work and construction 
documents for the expanded spaces in the Children’s and Research Pavilions of the proposed facility.  
 
The gift will allow the proposed new facility to be expanded approximately 10,000 square feet to be divided 
equally between the first and second floors. All costs related to the expansion, from design and construction 
documents through the purchase of furnishings and fixtures, will be funded by the pledge. 
 
Expanding the Children’s Pavilion will enable the Library to better serve larger groups of children and their 
families through additional technology and interactive learning centers supporting school readiness, literacy 
development and STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Art and Math) learning activities. Pavilion 
features, furnishings and programming will incorporate seven styles of learning including: (1) verbal – use 
of speech and words; (2) aural – use of sound and music; (3) visual – use of pictures and images; (4) physical 
– use of touch; (5) logical – use of reasoning; (6) solitary – use of self-study; and (7) social – use of group 
study.  Incorporation of the seven styles will ensure that every child’s most successful learning methods 
can be fulfilled by the Children’s Pavilion.  
 
Expanding the Children’s Pavilion will help the Library achieve its goal of creating young readers through 
support of the following community impacts:  

31



2 
 

 
1. Increased reading and school readiness for pre-school children; 
2. Increased rates of grade level reading among elementary aged students; and  
3. Reduced summer learning loss by involving children in robust summer reading programs and 

activities within the Children’s Pavilion.   
Each of these impacts is directly related to student achievement and academic success. 
 
Expanding the Research Pavilion will enable the Library to grow and better display what is already the 
largest public library collection of genealogy and regional historical reference materials in Kansas.  In recent 
years, interest in family history research has grown to one of the most popular hobbies in the United States. 
Local evidence would seem to support this, as researchers from a majority of U.S. states visit Wichita’s 
Central Library each year to do genealogy research.  
 
Also housed in this Research Pavilion will be one of the nation’s largest public library stereoscope 
collections, over 7,000 photographs of Wichita from its earliest days to the present, silver from the U.S.S. 
Wichita, and numerous smaller collections of historical records and artifacts from the City of Wichita and 
area civic organizations.  Expansion of the Research Pavilion will allow for the creation of a rare materials 
vault to ensure that these unique materials are maintained in appropriate archival conditions. The added 
space will also include a new area where digitization of local records can be completed as part of a long-
term plan to improve accessibility to these research materials. 
 
Expanding the Research Pavilion will impact the community in these ways:  

1. Increased opportunities for Wichitans to complete family history research;  
2. Improved opportunities for Wichita’s history to be shared through displays from the Library’s 

historical collections; 
3. Larger research collections to attract researchers from across the nation, contributing to area tourism 

initiatives. 
 
Financial Considerations: Payment to GLMV for services to be provided through Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 is not to exceed $200,000 in architectural and engineering fees, including reimbursable 
expenses.  The Supplemental Agreement also authorizes fees not to exceed $63,000 for services during bid 
and construction phases if the City moves forward with building construction.  The Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City and Library Foundation affirms that the Library Foundation will provide 
reimbursement for the $200,000 upon completion of construction documents. All costs for construction and 
furnishing of the expanded space, including the $63,000 in fees will be funded by the remaining $2,800,000 
of pledged funds to be reimbursed to the City by the Library Foundation beginning in 2017. 
 
The 2015-2024 Adopted Capital Improvement Program includes $30,000,000 in 2016-2017 for this project.  
 
Legal Considerations: The Law Department has reviewed and approved the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Library Foundation and the corresponding Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with 
GLMV Architects as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Action: It is recommended that the City Council approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Wichita Public Library Foundation and Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with 
GLMV Architects and authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments: Memorandum of Understanding and Supplemental Agreement No. 1 

32



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
 
 

 THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) is entered into on this 

_____________ between the WICHITA PUBLIC LIBRARY FOUNDATION, a Kansas Not-

for-Profit Corporation (Foundation) and the CITY OF WICHITA, a Kansas Municipal 

Corporation (City) regarding the construction of a new central library facility located at the 

intersection of Sycamore and West Second Street in Wichita, Kansas. 

 WHEREAS, the Foundation has initiated a fundraising campaign to procure funding for 

enhancement of the new central library facility; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City and the Foundation to work together in 

cooperation and partnership with each other toward the completion of the new central library 

facility; and 

 WHEREAS, the Foundation has been successful in obtaining a three million dollar 

($3,000,000) pledge to be used to expand the Children’s and Research (Special Collections) 

Pavilion areas of the new central library facility. 

AGREEMENT 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for the reasons and consideration of the conditions, covenants and 

agreements set forth below, Foundation and the City agree as follows: 

1. Relationship between the Parties.  The parties agree that the relationship of the 

parties is between two separate and independent entities. There is not a joint venture, partnership, 

employer/employee or principle/agent relationship. 

2. Project Financing.  The parties agree that all direct costs associated with the 

preparation of design work and construction drawings for the expansion of the Children’s and 

33



2 
 

Research Pavilion areas of the new central library facility will be funded by the City from CIP 

funds, and that the Foundation will reimburse the City on a schedule set forth in this document. 

3. Scope of Agreement.   

City’s Responsibilities: 

a. City agrees to provide for the payment of design work and preparation of 

construction documents for the new central library facility from Capital 

Improvement Plan funding already initiated for that purpose.  This work is to be 

completed by the design team already contracted for that purpose. 

b. City agrees to provide for the payment of additional design work and 

preparation of construction documents as needed for the expanded areas of the 

new central library facility not included in the original plan, and funded by the 

three million dollar ($3,000,000) pledge obtained by the Foundation. The parties 

agree that reimbursement to the City by the Foundation for the additional design 

work and documentation preparation described in section 4. b. is an absolute 

obligation.  This pledge payment for additional design work and preparation of 

construction documents is not contingent upon the City Council vote on 

construction funding.   

c. City agrees to allow the Foundation the right to review and verify all 

financial statements, bills and invoices regarding the design work and preparation 

of construction drawings for the new central library facility. 

d. If City Council votes to proceed with construction of the new central 

library, City agrees to include the additional space to the building as is funded by 

the three million dollar ($3,000,000) gift. 

34



3 
 

 

 

Foundation’s Responsibilities: 

a. The Foundation agrees to diligently work with donor to ensure that pledge 

payments are received on schedule over the term of the gift agreement. 

b. The Foundation agrees to provide the City reimbursement of $200,000 for 

costs related to additional design work and construction documents completed for 

the expanded areas of the new Library.  Payment of this pledge is due upon 

completion of these documents. 

c. If City Council votes to proceed with construction of the new central 

library, the Foundation agrees to provide the City reimbursement from pledged 

funds in the additional amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) no 

later than June 30, 2017. The Foundation will make subsequent payments to the 

City in the amount of three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) per year for a 

period of nine additional years on an annual basis through June 30, 2026.  

d. The Foundation may make advance payments toward this cumulative 

pledge obligation as funds may be available. Credit for prepayment shall be given 

without penalty.  Payments in arrears are not authorized.  

4. Dispute Resolution and Governing Law.  The parties agree to undertake a 

mediated resolution of any dispute between the parties prior to utilizing any other remedies that 

are available at law.  The law of the State of Kansas shall govern this Agreement, and venue 

shall lie in the Eighteenth Judicial District Court, Sedgwick County, Kansas. 

35



4 
 

5. Indemnification.  To the extent allowed by the Kansas Tort Claims Act, the 

parties each agree to indemnify and hold harmless the other, its governing board or body, 

officers, agents and employees against any and all claims, damage, liability, injury, expense, 

demands, causes of action, or judgments arising out of or resulting from the negligent acts of its 

officers, agents or employees. In the event such loss is proximately caused by the acts of one or 

both of the parties and their officers, agents or employees, each shall be responsible for its 

proportionate share of claimant’s damages.   

6. Assignment and novation.  The parties agree that this MOU may be assigned with 

the prior approval of both parties hereto, but not otherwise, and that such assignment shall 

relieve assigning party of all responsibility and liability hereunder for future acts pursuant hereto. 

7. Complete Agreement.  The parties agree that this MOU constitutes the entire 

agreement of the parties and that no prior agreement or representations, oral or written, shall be 

binding or of any effect regarding future phases of the new central library facility project. 

Further, this MOU may not be amended, modified, altered or enlarged except in a writing signed 

by the duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto, their successors or assigns. 

8. Agreement Binding.  The parties agree that this MOU shall be binding upon the 

successors and legal representatives of the parties hereto. 

9. Notices.  All notices with respect to this MOU shall be given by first-class mail or 

hand-delivery to the parties as follows: 

City     Foundation 

Robert L. Layton   Don Barry 
City Manager    President 
City Hall – 13th Floor   Wichita Public Library Foundation 
455 N. Main    223 S. Main 
Wichita, Kansas  67202  Wichita, Kansas  67202 

 

36



5 
 

10. Severability.  If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this MOU is ruled 

invalid, void or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, this MOU will nevertheless 

remain in full force and effect as to all remaining terms, provisions, covenants and conditions 

hereof. 

11. Disposition of Improvements to Structure and Use of Structure.  All real estate 

improvements developed though use of the design and construction documents described herein 

and made a part of this project, and all personal property described or forecast as part of such 

documents that may be later incorporated into the project shall be and remain the property of the 

City of Wichita. 

12. Non-discrimination.  The parties shall comply with all applicable requirements of 

the City of Wichita Revised Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment /Affirmative Action 

Program Requirements Statement for Contracts or Agreements incorporated herein by reference. 

13. Cash Basis and Budget Laws.  This MOU is subject to the provisions of the Cash 

Basis Law (K.S.A. 10-1112 and 10-1113) and the Budget Law (K.S.A. 79-2935) of the State of 

Kansas, and shall be construed and interpreted in such a manner as to ensure the parties shall at 

all times remain in conformity with such laws. 

    CITY OF WICHITA        WICHITA PUBLIC LIBRARY FOUNDATION 

 

____________________________  ______________________________ 
Jeff Longwell, Mayor    Don Barry, President 
 
 
 

 Approved as to Form:    ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________                _____________________________ 
Jennifer Magana, City Attorney and   Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
Director of Law 

37



 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1  
CONTRACT FOR ARCHITECTURAL, ENGINEERING  

AND SPECIAL ARCHITECT SERVICES FOR  
NEW WICHITA PUBLIC LIBRARY FACILITY 

 
THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT No. 1, made and entered into this 6th day of October, 
2015, 
 
BY AND BETWEEN              THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS,  
      A Municipal Corporation, hereinafter 
      referred to as "CITY" 
 
AND                          GLMV ARCHITECTURE, INC. 

hereinafter referred to as 
"ARCHITECT" 

 
 WHEREAS, the CITY and ARCHITECT entered into an Agreement, dated May 13, 2014, 
“Agreement for Professional Services for Architectural, Engineering and Special Consultant 
Services for New Wichita Public Library Facility”, hereinafter referred to as the “AGREEMENT”; 
and  

 WHEREAS, the Wichita Public Library Foundation, hereinafter referred to as 
“FOUNDATION” has been charged with fundraising to assist with a margin of excellence for the 
construction and furnishing of the new Wichita Public Library Facility currently being designed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the FOUNDATION has been successful in soliciting a donation of $3,000,000 
to expand the size of the Children’s and Research Pavilions of the proposed new Library Facility; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Memorandum of Understanding has been established between the CITY and 
FOUNDATION for purposes of providing payment from FOUNDATION to CITY for expansion 
of this space; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to amend the AGREEMENT to include additional services 
related to the SCOPE OF SERVICES as provided for in the ADDITIONAL SERVICES section of 
EXHIBIT A of said AGREEMENT; the amended agreement is hereinafter referred to as 
“SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT No. 1”. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows:  
  

1. The AGREEMENT is amended to include the following supplemental provisions:  
  

38



2 
 

A.   SCOPE OF SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES:  
 

CITY authorizes ARCHITECT to complete design work and construction 
documents for a building which includes expanded space approximating a total of 
10,000 s.f. in the Children’s and Research Pavilions. The cost of the expanded space, 
inclusive of Architectural and Engineering Fees including Reimbursable Expenses, 
construction, fabrication, furniture, furnishings and equipment (FF&E), shall not 
exceed $3,000,000 which shall increase the overall project budget identified in the 
SCOPE OF SERVICES in EXHIBIT A to $33,000,000.  The Architectural and 
Engineering Fees plus Reimbursable Expenses component of this increased SCOPE 
OF SERVICES shall not exceed $200,000. 
 

B.  PAYMENT FOR SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES:  
  

For all professional services as identified in SCOPE OF SUPPLEMENTAL 
SERVICES above, CITY, through a separate agreement with the FOUNDATION 
has arranged for payment of the increase in the Architectural and Engineering Fees, 
including Reimbursable Expenses as outlined in Parts B and C, Construction 
Documents Phase of the initial agreement.  The Supplemental Services shall not 
exceed $200,000 dollars.  
 
For all professional services as identified in SCOPE OF SUPPLEMENTAL 
SERVICES above, CITY, through a separate agreement with the FOUNDATION, 
will arrange for an increase in the Architectural and Engineering Fees, including 
Reimbursable Expenses as outlined in Part D, Bid and Construction Phase of the 
initial agreement, if City elects to proceed with Part D.  The Supplemental Services, if 
needed, shall not exceed $63,000 dollars.  
 
Charges authorized in the changes to the aforementioned sections will be funded 
through a $3,000,000 funding commitment of FOUNDATION on terms outlined in a 
Memorandum of Understanding between FOUNDATION and CITY. 

 
C.     TIME OF COMPLETION OF SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES:  

 
ARCHITECT agrees to provide its services in support of and in coordination with 
the project schedule and to not unnecessarily hamper or delay the progress of the 
project when performing duties as instructed/requested by the CITY and/or the 
Project Steering Committee. 
 
ARCHITECT is currently authorized to complete work through Part C of the 
original agreement. Activity on Part D, Bid and Construction Phase shall not begin 
without explicit approval of CITY. 
 

  

39



3 
 

ARCHITECT shall not be eligible for payments under services for Bid and 
Construction, Part D, Section C of the original agreement and no such work is 
authorized by this supplemental agreement. Such authorization will only be granted 
by a separate notice to proceed document that is specific to Part D of the original 
agreement. 

 
2. CITY, either directly or through the Project Committee, agrees to cooperate with 

ARCHITECT in considering recommendations, documents, drawings and data submitted 
and to make necessary decisions promptly to facilitate the progress of the project in 
compliance with the Project Schedule, and CITY agrees to furnish promptly to 
ARCHITECT upon written request any approvals and instructions required to be given by 
CITY to ARCHITECT under the terms of the AGREEMENT. This section shall not be 
interpreted to allow ARCHITECT to direct the speed at which the governing body of CITY 
makes the policy and financial decisions necessary to commit to Part D of the original 
agreement, or the ultimate result of those decisions by the governing body. 

 
3. In all other respects, the terms and provisions of the May 13, 2014 Agreement, between the 

parties hereto shall remain in force and effect as the same were originally approved by the 
parties.  

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this SUPPLEMENTAL 
AGREEMENT the day and year first above written. 
 
       CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Jeff Longwell 
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
   
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Karen Sublett      Jennifer Magana   
City Clerk      City Attorney and Director of Law  
  
        
 
ATTEST:       GLMV ARCHITECTURE, INC.     
 
_____________________________                       by______________________________   
Angela Long            Tom P. Montgomery, AIA, Vice President  

40



 

Agenda Item No.  IV-5 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

 October 6, 2015 
 
 

 
TO:     Mayor and City Council Members    
    
SUBJECT:   McAdams Field Improvements (District I) 
  
INITIATED BY:  Department of Park and Recreation 
 
AGENDA:   New Business 
 
 
Recommendations: Adopt the bonding resolution and authorize initiation of the project. 
 
Background:  League 42, a grassroots effort to give any child the chance to play baseball in Wichita, was 
formed in 2013 and continues to grow and gain support for its league at McAdams Park.  Last year the 
league had 16 teams with 220 players. The size of League 42 has almost doubled since then with the program 
hosting 29 teams of more than 400 players who range in age from 5 to 14.  Players are provided a glove, a 
bat, baseballs, helmets and catcher’s gear.  Clinics and field trips are also offered to further engage and 
educate the youth.  Thanks to generous donors and volunteers, seasonal fees are able to be capped at $30 per 
family. This allows all interested youth the ability to participate.  
 
It is anticipated that League 42 will continue to grow in future years as more families become familiar with 
the program.  McAdams Park was chosen by League 42 because of its existing ball fields, central location 
and proximity to youth who would benefit from the program. 
 
Analysis:    McAdams Park currently has two baseball fields and a small concession/restroom building. 
These facilities are more than 30 years old and in need of renovation.  League 42 is also rapidly outgrowing 
the existing site due to the continued growth of the program.  Additional fields, parking, restrooms and 
concession facilities will be necessary to accommodate the growing number of teams and their families.   
 
The 2015-2024 Adopted Capital Improvement Program includes funding over several years to renovate and 
expand the facilities at McAdams Park.  A preliminary plan has been prepared that proposes two new 
baseball diamonds along with additional parking, restroom and concession facilities adjacent to the existing 
ball fields. 
 
Based on discussion between the City and League 42, the third baseball field is the top priority.  League 42 
requests that the field be constructed of artificial turf.  The artificial turf will reduce weather delays and 
provide a quality field of play.  It will help to promote continued participation, as well as public and private 
investment in the League 42 program.  The new field will allow more teams to play simultaneously, relieving 
scheduling issues.   
 
It will be followed by the restroom/concession building and other improvements as funding allows. 
 
Financial Considerations: The 2015-2024 Adopted Capital Improvement Program contains $500,000 in 
2016 for McAdams Fields improvements.  The funding source for this project is general obligation bonds.    
 
Legal Considerations: The Law Department has reviewed and approved the bonding resolution as to form. 
 

41



 

Recommendation/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council 1) adopt the bonding resolution, 2) 
authorize initiation of the project and 3) authorize all necessary signatures.  
 
Attachments:  Site plan, bonding resolution. 
 

 

42



 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-319 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 
BONDS OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS TO PAY THE COSTS OF PUBLIC 
PARK IMPROVEMENTS. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wichita, Kansas (the “City”) is a municipal corporation, duly created, 
organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City has heretofore, pursuant to 
K.S.A. 13-1346, created the Wichita Board of Park Commissioners (the “Board”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body is authorized, pursuant to K.S.A. 13-1024c, as amended by 
Charter Ordinance No. 156 of the City (the “Act”) to issue general obligation bonds of the City without an 
election for the purpose of paying for the construction, purchase or improvement of any public 
improvement, including the land necessary therefore, and for the purpose of rebuilding, adding to or 
extending the same as the necessities of the City may require and for the purpose of paying for certain 
personal property therefore; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines that it is necessary and advisable 
to make certain public improvements described as follows: 

Labor, material, equipment and expenditures necessary for the design and construction of a baseball field 
at McAdams Park (the “Project”) and a restroom/concession facility, a fourth field, lighting and parking as 
funding allows for the use of the Board and/or City and to provide for the payment of all or a portion of the 
costs thereof by the issuance of general obligation bonds of the City pursuant to the Act. 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  Project Authorization.   It is hereby authorized, ordered and directed that the Project 
be acquired and/or constructed at an estimated cost of $500,000 in accordance with specifications prepared 
or approved by the City of Wichita. 
 
 Section 2.  Project Financing.  All or a portion of the costs of the Project, interest on financing 
and administrative and financing costs shall be financed with the proceeds of general obligation bonds of 
the City (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds may be issued to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date 
which is 60 days before the date of adoption of this Resolution, pursuant to Treasury Regulation §1.150-2. 
 
 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
adoption by the Governing Body. 
 
 
 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
  

43



 

 

(SEAL)              
Jeff Longwell, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      

Jennifer Magana, Director of Law 
 
 

44



Agenda Item No. IV-6 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

 October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:    Mayor and City Council    
    
SUBJECT:   Improvements for Meridian Avenue, North of 29th Street North (District VI) 

INITIATED BY:  Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:   New Business 
 
 
Recommendations: Approve the petition and budget, and adopt the resolution. 
 
Background: Meridian Avenue, from 29th Street North to just north of Valley Park Street, is currently an 
unpaved road. A petition signed by 56.3% of the resident owners, representing 33.1% of the improvement 
district area, was submitted in support of proposed pavement and drainage improvements. The petition is 
valid per Kansas Statute 12-6a01.  
 
On September 16, 2015, the District VI Advisory Board sponsored a neighborhood hearing on the 
proposed improvements and voted unanimously in favor of the project. 
 
Analysis: To meet residential standards, the proposed improvements consist of paving Meridian Avenue 
from the existing pavement at 29th Street North to just north of Valley Park Street. The project also 
includes drainage improvements where necessary.  
 
Financial Considerations: The estimated cost of the improvements is $120,000, with 85.1% of the final 
cost being assessed to the improvement district on a square foot basis, over 15 years. The remaining 
14.9% will be funded by the City at-large for intersection improvements. The estimate does not include 
financing costs that will be incurred during the design, construction, or bonding phases of the project. 
 
Legal Considerations: The petition and resolution have been reviewed and approved as to form by the 
Law Department.  
 
Recommendations/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council approve the petition and budget, 
adopt the resolution, and authorize the necessary signatures.  
 
Attachments: Petition, resolution, map, budget sheet and citizen comment cards.  

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



.. 

City Council 
October 6, 2015 

Pavement Improvements to Meridian Avenue at 29th 

ADDRESS: ~\"1-~ 1\) . M~r-:.2>'-r-..>A.- (llJV~ 
w-c.v.., ...,....._' ~c;l vi L.ul-1 

PHONE: 1 Sl~- l?<:"'-'- U'Z1 

EMAIL: .)\:-..q_v\,1 @ ¥:·v""'c.. · eJ u 

Comment(s): 

h , . too...i) c;-(4--..Q..II\-

CitY OF 

WI CHI .I A 

~ 

--b ;llo!...: 
) 

'5f'IJ...t f9\ / a r}b e:ld-5 
I 

Engineering Division 

City Hall • Seventh Floor • 455 North Main • Wichita, Kansas 67202-1606 

316.268.4501 www. wichita.gov 

66



J 

.. 

NAME: 

City Council 
October 6, 2015 

Pavement Improvements to Meridian Avenue at 29th 

PHONE:(_pl ~_) 9C13- /l 03 
EMAIL: 

Comment(s): 

WICHITA 

- ' CeeJ i--h+Y+-- }h, S~-1: ~c:;.bauJcl. k f?A11eoP 
I I 

k{!_tu(~ o-f 41! lAP. /b-1-:holer/ !±n~J ~+ 

~k~ :>±=~enJ 
C!!>±~ f<.oo..J L!)~o:ce. d,.,...--hJ (ne.ds (>o.,v£ lfllfil+
Yo\1 bW'Q.. It- b~ t> •fs A-(\ J. u new n &~ 

~ :~~J"hb£~~ ~o:~:s==~~~£n:b 

Engineering Division 

City Hall • Seventh Floor • 455 North Main • Wichita, Kansas 67202-1606 

316.268.4501 www. wichita.gov 

67



.. 

City Council 
October 6, 2015 

Pavement Improvements to Meridian Avenue at 29th 

NAME: 8 fwe c ~d_Q~ 
ADDRESS: 3 ( C( 7 /l) M (A J J ) CvV\._ 

w 1 ct..~ ~CA._ {::s- · b 7;;ot/ 
PHONE: 3 ( cp ~/ Cf 3 7~ 5 
EMAIL: 

Comment{s): 

CITY OF 

WI C H IJ R 

( 3 o t L{ y eo..('s.) If~ /AC>s{- j DoJ . B(qcfcfop 

ca rhi {e 

4 e= 

o.... "el'y we fcc v<A c.d i r1 yaro, e ~a e'*"[. A IAJ 
+\ ey oJc:. qj '} J. f_ ,-N t£ e f c> ± h., /e~; i"' 

P (s- j sti iA:J edf k; lc:rc k *'b p D''\ 

Engineering Division 

City Hall • Seventh Floor • 455 North Main • Wichita, Kansas 67202-1606 

316.268.4501 www. wichita.gov 

68



.. 

City Council 
October 6, 2015 

Pavement Improvements to Meridian Avenue at 29th 

NAME0uc_q Ue_ C.-la.r l 
ADDRESS: I 

3iSg n.-meJ7cJI{UJ 

PHONE: '7 3 4- t 3tf {J 
EMAIL: 

C I T Y 0 F 

WICHITA 

Comment(s): 

not {-h£A tn2.Utl-aJIJed , . !1u_3 hdcs 

Engineering Division 

City Hall • Seventh Floor • 455 North Main • Wichita . Kansas 67202-1606 

316.268.4501 www.wichita.gov 

69



City Council 
October 6, 2015 

Pavement Improvements to Meridian Avenue at 29th 

NAME: Janice and Paul Harding 

ADDRESS: 

PHONE: 

EMAIL: hardingpr@sbcglobal.net 

Comment(s): 

WICHITA 

We have a son who is a boy scout with Troop 420 sponsored by Pleasant Valley Lions Club. He has his meetings at 
the scout house on 29th and Meridian. We were shocked to hear about the assessment the Lions Club would be 
charged for the paving of the I block area across from the scout house. We would hate to lose our meeting place 
because the Lions Club could not afford to pay the excessive assessment that they would be charged. 

Since its inception in 1958, the troop has been committed to providing a quality scouting experience, which has 
produced over 70 Eagle Scouts. Our older son received his Eagle Scout award in 200 I with Troop 420. He is 
presently working a Wesley Hospital as a pharmacist. Our youngest son has completed his eagle project this past 
summer and is working toward attaining his Eagle rank. The scout house provides an excellent meeting place for the 
youth in our community and we would hate to lose it. 

We would like you to reconsider how you are funding this paving project so that the Pleasant Valley Lions club 
can still afford to sponsor the boy scouts at the scout house. The boy scouts coming out of Troop 420 have a positive 
impact on our community. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Janice and Paul Harding 

Engineering Division 

City Hall • Seventh Floor • 455 North Main • Wichita, Kansas 67202-1606 

316.268.4501 www.wichita.gov 70



1 
 

766345 
 

(Published in the Wichita Eagle, on October 9, 2015) 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-320 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 
CERTAIN INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS (PAVING 
IMPROVEMENTS – VALLEY PARK AND PIERPOINT ACRES 
ADDITIONS/NORTH OF 29TH STREET, EAST OF I-235) (472-85239) 
 

 WHEREAS, a petition (the “Petition”) was filed with the City Clerk of the City of Wichita, Kansas 
(the "City") proposing certain internal improvements; and said Petition sets forth:  (a) the general nature of 
the proposed improvements; (b) the estimated or probable cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent 
of the proposed improvement district to be assessed for the cost of the proposed improvements; (d) the 
proposed method of assessment; (e) the proposed apportionment of the cost between the improvement district 
and the City at large; and (f) a request that such improvements be made without notice and hearing as required 
by K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq., (the "Act"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City hereby finds and determines that 
said Petition was signed by a majority of the resident owners of record of the property, a majority of 
resident owners of record of more than one-half of the area, and/or a majority of the owners of record 
of more than one-half of the area liable for assessment for the proposed improvements, and is therefore 
sufficient in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS: 
 
 Section 1.  Findings of Advisability.  The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that: 
 
 (a) It is advisable to make the following improvements: 
 
  Construction of pavement on Meridian Avenue from the north side of 29th Street to the south 
property line of Lot 41, Block 1, Valley Park Addition, with drainage to be installed where necessary (the 
"Improvements"). 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

71



2 
 

(b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is One Hundred Twenty Thousand 
Dollars ($120,000), exclusive of interest on financing and administrative and financing costs; said estimated 
amount to be increased at the pro rata rate of 1 percent per month from and after the date of submission of the 
Petition to the City.  If, at the time the City Engineer bids or is ready to bid the Improvements for construction 
it appears that the final cost will be more than 10% over the project cost estimate set forth above, a new 
petition with an increased estimated costs must be circulated and submitted. If expenses have been incurred 
for the Improvements and construction has not started within two years of the initial design contract, the 
Improvements will be deemed abandoned and expenses incurred to date will be assessed against property in 
the Improvements District defined below in accordance with the provisions hereof.   
 
 (c) The extent of the improvement district (the "Improvement District") to be assessed for the 
cost of the Improvements is: 
 

UNPLATTED TRACT IN S31-T26S-R1E 
That part of an Unplatted Tract, described as: Commencing at the SW corner of SW 1/4, SEC 31, TWP 
26S, R1E, thence east parallel to the south line of said Section, 30 feet; thence north parallel to the west 
line of said Section, 30 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence north parallel to the west line of said Section, 
256 feet; thence east parallel to the south line of said Section, 52.01 feet; to a point on a curve to the left 
having a radius of 469.4 feet, more or less, an arc length of 290.29 feet to a point 84.08 feet north of the 
south line of said SW 1/4; thence south parallel to the west line of said Section, 54.08 feet; thence west 
parallel to the south line of said Section, 252 feet to the Point of Beginning. (A-44-UP). 
 

PIERPOINT ACRES ADDITION 
That part of Lot 1, Block 1, of Pierpoint Acres Addition together with the vacated rights-of-way of 29th 
Street adjacent on the south, Highway K-96 adjacent on the southwest, and Meridian Street adjacent on the 
west described as: Commencing at SW corner of SW 1/4, SEC 31, TWP 26S, R1E; thence east parallel to 
the south line of said Section, 82.01 feet; thence north parallel to the west line of said Section, 286 feet to 
the Point of Beginning; thence east parallel to the south line of said Section, 199.99 feet; thence south 
parallel to the west line of said Section, 201.92 feet; thence on a curve to the right having a radius of 469.4 
feet, more or less, an arc length of 290.29 feet to the Point of Beginning.  
 

VALLEY PARK ADDITION 
Lots 1 through 3, Block 2, INCLUSIVE 

E ½ of Lot 4, Block 2 
E ½ of Lot 11, Block 2 

Lots 12 through 14, Block 2, INCLUSIVE 
 
 (d) The method of assessment is: equally per square foot.   
 
In the event that the driveway approaches and curb cuts are not included within the scope of the Improvements 
and the estimated cost thereof as set forth in subsection (b) above, the costs of such driveway approaches and 
curb cuts so constructed shall be directly assessed to the property benefitted thereby in addition to the 
assessments levied for the Improvements.  
 
 (e) The apportionment of the cost of the Improvements, between the Improvement District and 
the City at large, is:  85.1% to be assessed against the Improvement District and 14.9% to be paid by the City-
at-large. 
 
 (f) The payment of assessments to be imposed hereunder may be indefinitely deferred against 
those property owners eligible for deferral pursuant to the City’s Special Assessment Deferral Program. 
 

72



3 
 

 Section 2.  Authorization of Improvements.  The Improvements are hereby authorized and ordered 
to be made in accordance with the findings of the Governing Body as set forth in Section 1 of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 3.  Plans and Specifications.  The City Engineer shall prepare plans and specifications for 
said Improvements and a preliminary estimate of cost therefore, which plans, specifications and estimate shall 
be presented to the Governing Body for its approval. 
 
 Section 4.  Bond Authority; Reimbursement.  The Act provides for the Improvements to be paid 
by the issuance of general obligation bonds or special obligation bonds of the City (the "Bonds").  The Bonds 
may be issued to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date which is 60 days before the date of this 
Resolution, pursuant to Treasury Regulation § 1.150-2. 
 
 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  This Resolution shall 
be published one time in the official City newspaper, and shall also be filed of record in the office of the 
Register of Deeds of Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 
 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Jennifer Magaña, City Attorney and Director of Law  

73



 
 

 
Agenda Item No. IV-7 

 
 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: Design Concept for Improvements to 13th Street, between 119th and 135th Streets 

West (District V) 
   
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:  New Business 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve the design concept. 
 
Background: On May 4, 2004, the City Council approved an agreement with Schwab-Eaton, P.A., for 
the design of paving improvements to 13th Street North, between 119th and 135th Streets West. The project 
was placed on hold in 2006 due to a lack of funding. The project was restarted in 2012 in an attempt to 
capture federal funding, which was ultimately denied.  
 
The condition of 13th Street and the fact that the project was previously reviewed by the Kansas 
Department of Transportation make it a possible candidate to receive future de-obligated federal funds 
that are typically available each year through the Wichita Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(WAMPO). Staff proposes reviving the project with a revised design concept and attempting to capture 
the federal funds for construction. On August 10, 2015, the District V Advisory Board voted unanimously 
in favor of the proposed revised design concept.  
 
Analysis: The project was originally designed as a five-lane roadway. In December 2013, City staff      
re-evaluated the design based on projected traffic volumes, area growth, construction costs and schedules, 
and determined that a three-lane roadway would be sufficient.  
 
The section of 13th Street between 119th and 135th Streets West is currently a two-lane, asphalt mat road 
with bar ditches on each side for drainage. The proposed design is for a three-lane roadway with one 
through lane in each direction and a center two-way left turn lane, as well as curb and gutter and drainage 
improvements. A multi-use path, west of the Cowskin Creek, and sidewalks will also be part of the 
improvements. One lane of east-bound traffic will be carried throughout construction. Construction is 
proposed to start in the spring of 2019 and be completed in early 2020, if federal funding is not made 
available sooner. 
 
Financial Considerations: On December 14, 2004, the City Council approved a budget of $2,100,000, 
with $1,100,000 in federal aid, a $300,000 contribution from Sedgwick County, and $700,000 in general 
obligation (GO) at-large bond funding. Since that time, both the federal aid and Sedgwick County’s 
contribution have been retracted, leaving $700,000 in GO bond funding for this project. An amending 
ordinance was approved by the City Council on April 7, 2015, to correct the budget reflecting the 
$700,000 remaining.  
 
The Adopted 2015-2024 Capital Improvement Program includes $4,000,000 in GO at-large bond funding 
for construction in 2019. If the proposed design concept is approved, this project would become a 
possible candidate for any de-obligated WAMPO funding. This could potentially accelerate the GO at-
large funding share from 2019, but also significantly reduce any potential City GO at-large costs by 
utilizing federal funds. After design is completed, if de-obligated federal funding is not forthcoming, staff 

74



 
 

would anticipate initiation of construction in 2019, utilizing the programmed GO at-large funding. The 
project will be returned to the City Council at a later date for approval of the construction funding. 
 
Legal Considerations: This item has been reviewed and approved by the Law Department.  
 
Recommendation/Action: It is recommended that the City Council approve the design concept. 
 
Attachments: None. 

75



Agenda Item No. IV-8 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

 October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:    Mayor and City Council    
    
SUBJECT:   Water Line and Sewer Extensions to Serve Sheridan Avenue (District IV) 

INITIATED BY:  Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:   New Business 
 
 
Recommendations: Approve the petitions and budgets, approve hiring Baughman Company, P.A. for the 
design of the proposed improvements, and adopt the resolutions. 
 
Background: Sheridan Avenue is currently a partially paved street, unserved by water and sewer in the 
industrial area north of Pawnee Avenue, east of West Street. A petition signed by 100% of the resident 
owners, representing 37.3% of the improvement district area, was submitted in support of the proposed 
water line extension improvements. A petition signed by 100% of the resident owners, representing 100% 
of the improvement district area, was submitted in support of the proposed sewer line extension 
improvements. The petitions are valid per Kansas Statute 12-6a01. 
 
Analysis: The proposed improvements consist of extending a waterline from Pawnee Avenue, north to 
the cul-de-sac and a sewer lateral from the existing main to serve the properties on the east. 
 
On September 14, 2015, the District IV Advisory Board sponsored a neighborhood hearing on the 
proposed waterline improvements and voted unanimously in favor of the extension project.  
 
On July 7, 2015, the City Council approved a petition for paving improvements to Sheridan Avenue. On 
August 3, 2015, the City entered into a contract with Baughman Company, P.A., for the design of the 
paving improvements. Due to the timing of the petition submittals and the previous design contract with 
Baughman Company, P.A. for paving improvements, staff recommends the City Council approve hiring 
Baughman Company, P.A. to complete the design of the water and sewer improvements to serve Sheridan 
Avenue. 
 
Financial Considerations: The estimated cost of the water line extension is $105,000, with 100% of the 
final cost being assessed to the improvement district on a front foot basis, over 15 years. The estimated 
cost of the sewer line extension is $82,000, with 100% of the final cost being assessed to the 
improvement district on a square foot basis, over 15 years. The estimate does not include financing costs 
that will be incurred during the design, construction, or bonding phases of the project. 
 
Legal Considerations: The petitions and resolutions have been reviewed and approved as to form by the 
Law Department.  
 
Recommendations/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council approve the petitions and budgets, 
approve hiring Baughman Company, P.A. for the design of the improvements, adopt the resolutions, and 
authorize the necessary signatures.  
 
Attachments: Petitions, resolutions, maps, and budget sheets.  

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



744401 

(Published in the Wichita Eagle, on------------' 

RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 
CERTAIN INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF WICIDTA, KANSAS; 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS (LATERAL 278, 
SANITARY SEWER NO. 22- SOUTHWEST INDUSTRIAL ADDITION/NORTH 
OF PAWNEE, EAST OF WEST STREET) ( 468-85066). 

WHEREAS, a petition (the "Petition") was filed with the City Clerk ofthe City of Wichita, Kansas 
(the "City") proposing certain internal improvements; and said Petition sets forth : (a) the general nature of 
the proposed improvements; (b) the estimated or probable cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent 
of the proposed improvement district to be assessed for the cost of the proposed improvements; (d) the 
proposed method of assessment; (e) the proposed apportionment of the cost between the improvement district 
and the City at large; and (f) a request that such improvements be made without notice and hearing as required 
by K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq. ,(the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "Governing Body") of the City hereby finds and determines that 
said Petition was signed by a majority of the resident owners of record of the property, a majority of 
resident owners of record of more than one-half of the area and/or a majority of the owners of record 
of more than one-half of the area liable for assessment for the proposed improvements, and is therefore 
sufficient in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICIDTA, KANSAS: 

Section 1. Findings of Advisability. The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that: 

(a) It is advisable to make the following improvements: 

Construction of a lateral sanitary sewer (Lateral 278, Sanitary Sewer No. 22), including 
necessary sewer mams and appurtenances to serve the Improvement District defined below (the 
"Improvements"). 

(b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is Eighty-Two Thousand Dollars 
($82,000), exclusive of interest on financing and administrative and financing costs; said estimated amount 
to be increased at the pro rata rate of 1 percent per month from and after the date of submission of the Petition 
to the City. If, at the time the City Engineer bids or is ready to bid the Improvements for construction it appears 
that the final cost will be more than 1 0% over the project cost estimate set forth above, a new petition with an 
increased estimated costs must be circulated and submitted. If expenses have been incurred for the 
Improvements and construction has not started within two years of the initial design contract, the 
Improvements will be deemed abandoned and expenses incurred to date will be assessed against property in 
the Improvements District defined below in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

1 

87



88



89



735537 

(Published in the Wichita Eagle, on-------------' 

RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 
CERTAIN INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS (WATER 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM- SOUTHWEST INDUSTRIAL ADDITION/NORTH OF 
PAWNEE, EAST OF WEST STREET) (448-90691). 

WHEREAS, a petition (the "Petition") was filed with the City Clerk of the City of Wichita, Kansas 
(the "City") proposing certain internal improvements; and said Petition sets forth: (a) the general nature of 
the proposed improvements; (b) the estimated or probable cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent 
of the proposed improvement district to be assessed for the cost of the proposed improvements; (d) the 
proposed method of assessment; (e) the proposed apportionment of the cost between the improvement district 
and the City at large; and (f) a request that such improvements be made without notice and hearing as required 
by K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq. ,(the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "Governing Body") of the City hereby fmds and detennines that 
said Petition was signed by a majority of the resident owners of record of the property, a majority of 
resident owners of record of more than one-half of the area and/or a majority of the owners of record 
of more than one-half of the area liable for assessment for the proposed improvements, and is therefore 
sufficient in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICIDTA, KANSAS: 

Section 1. Findings of Advisability. The Governing Body hereby finds and detennines that: 

(a) It is advisable to make the following improvements: 

Construction of a water distribution system, including necessary water mains, pipes, 
valves, hydrants, and appurtenances to serve the Improvement District defined below (the "Improvements"). 

(b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is One Hundred Five Thousand 
Dollars ($105,000), exclusive of interest on financing and administrative and financing costs; said estimated 
amount to be increased at the pro rata rate of I percent per month from and after the date of submission of the 
Petition to the City. If, at the time the City Engineer bids or is ready to bid the Improvements for construction 
it appears that the final cost will be more than 1 0% over the project cost estimate set forth above, a new 
petition with an increased estimated costs must be circulated and submitted. If expenses have been incurred 
for the Improvements and construction has not started within two years of the initial design contract, the 
Improvements will be deemed abandoned and expenses incurred to date will be assessed against property in 
the Improvements District defined below in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

(c) The extent of the improvement district (the "Improvement District") to be assessed for the 
cost of the Improvements is: 

1 

90



91



92



1 
 

744401 
 

(Published in the Wichita Eagle, on October 9, 2015) 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-321 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 
CERTAIN INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS (LATERAL 278, 
SANITARY SEWER NO. 22 – SOUTHWEST INDUSTRIAL ADDITION/NORTH 
OF PAWNEE, EAST OF WEST STREET) (468-85066). 
 

 WHEREAS, a petition (the “Petition”) was filed with the City Clerk of the City of Wichita, Kansas 
(the "City") proposing certain internal improvements; and said Petition sets forth:  (a) the general nature of 
the proposed improvements; (b) the estimated or probable cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent 
of the proposed improvement district to be assessed for the cost of the proposed improvements; (d) the 
proposed method of assessment; (e) the proposed apportionment of the cost between the improvement district 
and the City at large; and (f) a request that such improvements be made without notice and hearing as required 
by K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq.,(the "Act"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City hereby finds and determines that 
said Petition was signed by a majority of the resident owners of record of the property, a majority of 
resident owners of record of more than one-half of the area and/or a majority of the owners of record 
of more than one-half of the area liable for assessment for the proposed improvements, and is therefore 
sufficient in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS: 
 
 Section 1.  Findings of Advisability.  The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that: 
 
 (a) It is advisable to make the following improvements: 
 
  Construction of a lateral sanitary sewer (Lateral 278, Sanitary Sewer No. 22), including 
necessary sewer mains and appurtenances to serve the Improvement District defined below (the 
"Improvements"). 
 
 (b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is Eighty-Two Thousand Dollars 
($82,000), exclusive of interest on financing and administrative and financing costs; said estimated amount 
to be increased at the pro rata rate of 1 percent per month from and after the date of submission of the Petition 
to the City. If, at the time the City Engineer bids or is ready to bid the Improvements for construction it appears 
that the final cost will be more than 10% over the project cost estimate set forth above, a new petition with an 
increased estimated costs must be circulated and submitted. If expenses have been incurred for the 
Improvements and construction has not started within two years of the initial design contract, the 
Improvements will be deemed abandoned and expenses incurred to date will be assessed against property in 
the Improvements District defined below in accordance with the provisions hereof.   
 

93



2 
 

 (c) The extent of the improvement district (the "Improvement District") to be assessed for the 
cost of the Improvements is: 
 

SOUTHWEST INDUSTRIAL ADDITION 
LOT 1 BLOCK 6 

LOT 2 BLOCK 6 AND ½ VAC ST ADJ ON S 
LOT 1 BLOCK 7 AND ½ VAC ST ADJ ON N 

LOT 2 BLOCK 7 
LOT 3 BLOCK 7  

 
 (d) The method of assessment is:  equally per square foot.   
 
In the event all or part of the lots are parcels in the proposed Improvement District are reconfigured before or 
after assessments have been levied, the assessments against the replatted area shall be recalculated on a square 
foot basis.  
 
 (e) The apportionment of the cost of the Improvements, between the Improvement District and 
the City at large, is:  100% to be assessed against the Improvement District and 0% to be paid by the City-at-
large. 
 
 (f) The payment of assessments to be imposed hereunder may be indefinitely deferred against 
those property owners eligible for deferral pursuant to the City’s Special Assessment Deferral Program. 
 
 Section 2.  Authorization of Improvements.  The Improvements are hereby authorized and ordered 
to be made in accordance with the findings of the Governing Body as set forth in Section 1 of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 3.  Plans and Specifications.  The City Engineer shall prepare plans and specifications for 
said Improvements and a preliminary estimate of cost therefore, which plans, specifications and estimate shall 
be presented to the Governing Body for its approval. 
 
 Section 4.  Bond Authority; Reimbursement.  The Act provides for the Improvements to be paid 
by the issuance of general obligation bonds or special obligation bonds of the City (the "Bonds").  The Bonds 
may be issued to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date which is 60 days before the date of this 
Resolution, pursuant to Treasury Regulation § 1.150-2. 
 
 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  This Resolution shall 
be published one time in the official City newspaper, and shall also be filed of record in the office of the 
Register of Deeds of Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

94



3 
 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Jennifer Magaña, City Attorney and Director of Law  

95



1 
 

735537 
 

(Published in the Wichita Eagle, on October 9, 2015) 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-322 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 
CERTAIN INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS (WATER 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM – SOUTHWEST INDUSTRIAL ADDITION/NORTH OF 
PAWNEE, EAST OF WEST STREET) (448-90691). 
 

 WHEREAS, a petition (the “Petition”) was filed with the City Clerk of the City of Wichita, Kansas 
(the "City") proposing certain internal improvements; and said Petition sets forth:  (a) the general nature of 
the proposed improvements; (b) the estimated or probable cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent 
of the proposed improvement district to be assessed for the cost of the proposed improvements; (d) the 
proposed method of assessment; (e) the proposed apportionment of the cost between the improvement district 
and the City at large; and (f) a request that such improvements be made without notice and hearing as required 
by K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq.,(the "Act"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City hereby finds and determines that 
said Petition was signed by a majority of the resident owners of record of the property, a majority of 
resident owners of record of more than one-half of the area and/or a majority of the owners of record 
of more than one-half of the area liable for assessment for the proposed improvements, and is therefore 
sufficient in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS: 
 
 Section 1.  Findings of Advisability.  The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that: 
 
 (a) It is advisable to make the following improvements: 
 
  Construction of a water distribution system, including necessary water mains, pipes, 
valves, hydrants, and appurtenances to serve the Improvement District defined below (the "Improvements"). 
 
 (b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is One Hundred Five Thousand 
Dollars ($105,000), exclusive of interest on financing and administrative and financing costs; said estimated 
amount to be increased at the pro rata rate of 1 percent per month from and after the date of submission of the 
Petition to the City. If, at the time the City Engineer bids or is ready to bid the Improvements for construction 
it appears that the final cost will be more than 10% over the project cost estimate set forth above, a new 
petition with an increased estimated costs must be circulated and submitted. If expenses have been incurred 
for the Improvements and construction has not started within two years of the initial design contract, the 
Improvements will be deemed abandoned and expenses incurred to date will be assessed against property in 
the Improvements District defined below in accordance with the provisions hereof.   
 
 (c) The extent of the improvement district (the "Improvement District") to be assessed for the 
cost of the Improvements is: 

96



2 
 

UNPLATTED TRACT IN SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 27S, RANGE 1E 
E ½ SW ¼ S OF AT&SF RR EXC W 400 FT & EXC S 650 FT 

 
SOUTHWEST INDUSTRIAL ADDITION 

LOT 1 BLOCK 6  
LOT 2 BLOCK 6 AND ½ VAC ST ADJ ON S 
LOT 1 BLOCK 7 AND ½ VAC ST ADJ ON N 

LOT 2 BLOCK 7 
LOT 3 BLOCK 7  

 
 (d) The method of assessment is:  equally per front foot.   
 
In the event all or part of the lots are parcels in the proposed Improvement District are reconfigured before or 
after assessments have been levied, the assessments against the replatted area shall be recalculated on a square 
foot basis.  
 
 (e) The apportionment of the cost of the Improvements, between the Improvement District and 
the City at large, is:  100% to be assessed against the Improvement District and 0% to be paid by the City-at-
large. 
 
 (f) The payment of assessments to be imposed hereunder may be indefinitely deferred against 
those property owners eligible for deferral pursuant to the City’s Special Assessment Deferral Program. 
 
 Section 2.  Authorization of Improvements.  The Improvements are hereby authorized and ordered 
to be made in accordance with the findings of the Governing Body as set forth in Section 1 of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 3.  Plans and Specifications.  The City Engineer shall prepare plans and specifications for 
said Improvements and a preliminary estimate of cost therefore, which plans, specifications and estimate shall 
be presented to the Governing Body for its approval. 
 
 Section 4.  Bond Authority; Reimbursement.  The Act provides for the Improvements to be paid 
by the issuance of general obligation bonds or special obligation bonds of the City (the "Bonds").  The Bonds 
may be issued to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date which is 60 days before the date of this 
Resolution, pursuant to Treasury Regulation § 1.150-2. 
 
 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  This Resolution shall 
be published one time in the official City newspaper, and shall also be filed of record in the office of the 
Register of Deeds of Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

97



3 
 

 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Jennifer Magaña, City Attorney and Director of Law  

98



1 
 

                                                                                                             Agenda Item No. IV-9 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:  DER2015-00001- Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 (All Districts) 
   
INITIATED BY:  Metropolitan Area Planning Department 
 
AGENDA:  New Business 
 
 
Recommendation:   Adopt the Community Investments Plan 2015-2035. 
  
Background:  In 2011, the City of Wichita and Sedgwick County initiated a process to develop the 
Community Investments Plan to replace the current joint City and County Comprehensive Plan which 
dates back to 1993. A more current and relevant plan is needed to provide a policy framework and set 
priorities to guide future public investments in municipal buildings and infrastructure out to the year 
2035.  
 
In 2012, the City and County partnered with WSU to undertake a comprehensive assessment of all City 
and County infrastructure and facilities. A Plan Steering Committee was also jointly appointed by the 
Wichita and Sedgwick County Managers in late 2012 to begin the development of a new joint 
comprehensive plan. Seven of the Steering Committee members are also members of the Metropolitan 
Area Planning Commission (MAPC). 
 
During 2013 and 2014, the Steering Committee developed and evaluated three possible long-term growth 
scenarios for Wichita. Following an extensive community engagement process in the spring and summer 
of 2014, a preferred growth scenario was selected by the Committee to serve as the basis for the 
development of the new comprehensive plan. 
 
In March 2015, the Steering Committee released the draft Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 for 
public review and feedback. The Planning Department organized four public open house events and 
provided over 40 presentations (April through June) to over 700 people. Feedback was also received 
through the Activate Wichita website. The Steering Committee met in late June to finalize changes to the 
draft Plan based upon feedback received from the community engagement process and two workshops 
held with the Wichita City Council in April and June. Also in late June and early July, staff briefed the 
members of the Sedgwick County Board of Commissioners on the draft Plan. 
 
Notice of a public hearing date of August 20, 2015, for the MAPC to consider the proposed adoption of 
the final draft Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 as the new Comprehensive Plan for Wichita-
Sedgwick County was published in the official City and County newspaper on July 30, 2015. In early 
August 2015, staff presented the final draft of the Community Investments Plan to the six District 
Advisory Boards (DAB’s) for the City of Wichita. All six DAB’s voted unanimously to recommend that 
the Plan be adopted as the new comprehensive plan for Wichita and Sedgwick County. At the public 
hearing held on August 20, 2015, the MAPC unanimously approved a resolution adopting the Community 
Investments Plan 2015-2035 as the new Comprehensive Plan for Wichita-Sedgwick County. Existing 
adopted neighborhood and area plans were also adopted as elements of the new Plan. 
 
On September 22, 2015, MAPD staff briefed the Sedgwick County Board of Commissioners on the 
adopted Plan. This Plan does not take effect until it is approved by the governing bodies of the City of 

99



2 
 

Wichita and Sedgwick County. The Plan is going before the Board of Sedgwick County Commissioners 
at the October 7, 2015 meeting with a recommendation for approval. 
 
Analysis: The attached Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 adopted by the MAPC is recommended 
to the Wichita City Council for approval as the new joint comprehensive plan for Wichita-Sedgwick 
County. It is a high-level policy plan that provides guidance for future Wichita growth, sets overall 
community investment priorities, and provides a decision-making framework to guide future public 
infrastructure investment decisions. 
 
The following is a listing of new and/or significantly different elements of the Plan compared with the 
existing adopted comprehensive plan: 

o A new Plan Vision Statement along with seven Core Community Values and five overarching 
Plan Guiding Principles to help set high-level context and guidance for future land use 
development and investment in public infrastructure; 

o A new focus on future public infrastructure investment priorities; 
o A new 2035 Urban Growth Areas Map and a 2035 Wichita Future Growth Concept Map; 
o A new Wichita Urban Infill Strategy to support and facilitate greater levels of infill and 

redevelopment in Wichita’s mature urban areas - to meet market demand and capitalize on the 
City’s existing infrastructure investments;  

o A Plan Elements section containing 10 goals and 46 strategies that set overall infrastructure 
investment priorities across the categories of: Funding and Financing; Transportation; Water, 
Sewer and Stormwater; Arts, Culture and Recreation; and Public Safety; 

o A three-level Infrastructure Investment Decision-making Framework to systematically guide 
future public project spending decisions in a manner that supports community priorities, reflects 
willingness to pay, and is coordinated with market-driven growth. 

 
Financial Considerations:  Adopting the Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 involves no 
commitment of funding for the City of Wichita. Any City of Wichita funding of projects identified in the 
Plan will require future City Council action. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The MAPC, in accordance with Kansas state statutes, published the required 
public hearing notice in the official City and County newspaper on July 30, 2015, held a public hearing 
for the proposed Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 and approved a resolution adopting the 
Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 as the new Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan on 
August 20, 2015. The adopting ordinance has been reviewed and approved as to form by the Law 
Department. 
 
Recommendation/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the Community 
Investments Plan 2015-2035 as the new Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan, including those 
neighborhood and area plans itemized on Attachment “B” to the Resolution of the Wichita-Sedgwick 
County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission dated August 20, 2015, place the ordinance on first 
reading, authorize the necessary signatures, and instruct the City Clerk to publish the ordinance after 
approval on second reading. 
 
Attachments: Certification of Adoption of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan 
 Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 (including MAPC Resolution) 
 Community Investments Plan Appendix 
 MAPC Minutes 
 Ordinance 
 DAB memo 

100



 

OCA150004  
 

PUBLISHED IN THE WICHITA EAGLE ON OCTOBER 16, 2015 
ORDINANCE NO. 50-089 

 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE COMMUNITY INVESTMENTS PLAN 
2015-2035 AS THE NEW WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted by the statutes of the State of Kansas, in 
K.S.A. 12-747 et seq., the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission 
developed a Comprehensive Plan, adopted by the City of Wichita and Sedgwick County in 1993, 
and amended in 1996, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 
2011; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan may be amended or a new Comprehensive Plan 
developed and adopted to ensure it reflects timely and relevant information and the needs of the 
community; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Wichita and Sedgwick County in collaboration with the Wichita-
Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission, did initiate the development of a 
new Comprehensive Plan in 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, before the adoption of any Comprehensive Plan or amendment thereto, the 
Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission is required by K.S.A. 12-
747 et seq. to hold a public hearing; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission did 
give notice by publication in the official City and County newspaper on July 30, 2015, of a 
public hearing to consider the adoption of a new Comprehensive Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission, on 
August 20, 2015, did hold a public hearing at which a quorum was present, and did hear all 
comments and testimony relating to the said adoption of a new Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission, on 

August 20, 2015, did approve a Resolution adopting the Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 
as the new Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan, and also adopting those 
neighborhood and area plans itemized on Attachment “B” of said Resolution as elements of the 
Community Investments Plan 2015-2035, which Resolution has been submitted to the Wichita 
City Council and the Board of County Commissioners of Sedgwick County for consideration. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS: 

 
SECTION 1.  The City of Wichita hereby approves the Community Investments Plan 

101



2015-2035 as the new Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan, including those 
neighborhood and area plans itemized on Attachment “B” to the Resolution of the Wichita-
Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission dated August 20, 2015.  

 
SECTION 2. Notice of this action shall be transmitted to the Sedgwick County Board of 

County Commissioners and to all other taxing subdivisions in the planning area that request a 
copy of the plan. 

 
SECTION 3. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after this 

adoption by the Governing Body and publication in the official City newspaper.  
 

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, this date 

October 13, 2015. 

 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Jeff Longwell, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jennifer Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law 

102



DAB Summary 
DER2015-01 Community Investment Plan 

 
 
DAB I: The Plan was presented at the District I Advisory Board meeting on August 3, 2015. 
DAB Members had the following questions and concerns: 

 They were curious as to how the County Commission will receive the Plan. Staff said 
they will be meeting with them on August. 18th.   

The action from the Board was to recommend that MAPC approve the plan. The 
motion passed 6-0. 

 
DAB II: The Plan was presented at the District II Advisory Board on August 10, 2015.  
DAB Members had the following questions and concerns: 

 Are there any plans for acquiring funding for these projects? A: The City is looking at 
different options and ways to do the projects.  

 The $9.5 billion is such a huge gap, it’s difficult to even comprehend. A: You have to 
consider that for more than 20 years maintenance was under-funded. 

 This plan makes me nervous, especially with what’s going on at the County right now. 
I’m afraid that Arts and Culture will be eliminated due to infrastructure needs. I would 
contend that Arts and Culture is just as important to a community as infrastructure.  

The action from the Board was to recommend that the MAPC adopt the final draft 
Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 as the new joint comprehensive plan for 
Wichita-Sedgwick County. The motion passed 8-0 with one DAB member requesting 
that the concerns about Arts and Cultural funding be noted. 

 
DAB III:  The Plan was presented at the District III Advisory Board on August 5, 2015. 
DAB Members had the following questions and concerns:  

 One DAB member stated that he believes that the City really needs to focus on salvaging 
and saving neighborhoods, possibly using public/private partnerships for the areas where 
it is an entire block of blighted houses. He felt that neighborhoods were getting 
progressively worse.  

 Another DAB member stated that she felt that it was a very well developed plan. 
The action from the Board was a motion to recommend that the MAPC approve the 
plan. The motion passed 10-0. 

 
DAB IV: The Plan was presented at the District IV Advisory Board on August 3, 2015. 
 DAB Members had the following questions and concerns: 

 The DAB members collectively wanted to know what the chances were that the County 
would cooperate on the plan. Staff’s response was that there is no guarantee, but they feel 
that this plan provided a better framework to address previous County concerns. 

The action from the Board was a motion to recommend that the MAPC approve the 
plan. The motion passed 8-0. 

 
  

103



DAB V: The Plan was presented at the District V Advisory Board on August 10, 2015. 
DAB Members had the following questions and concerns: 

 One DAB member wanted to know if infill development meant the City buying land from 
people or developers buying property, the answer given was that infill development 
referred to methods to make infill opportunities for developers easier through financing, 
code issues, and public/private partnerships.  

 Another DAB member wanted to know how much the City can depend on the County to 
partner on the plan, the answer given was that it’s a wait and see situation but that the 
City and County have partnered for almost 60 years. It was also noted that the County 
had involvement in the process including Commissioner Ranzou sitting on the steering 
committee. 

The action from the Board was a motion to recommend that the MAPC approve the 
plan. The motion passed 9-0. 

 
DAB VI: The Plan was presented at the District VI Advisory Board on August 3, 2015. 
DAB Members had the following questions and concerns: 

 One DAB member asked whether the focus on infrastructure and infill was expected to 
have an effect on the value of land and community demographics. The response provided 
stated that across the nation, more residents are locating in urban centers and that as 
downtown areas improve, the value of land naturally increases, as well. As for the 
demographics, a lot of factors contribute to a community’s demographics and therefore 
changes could not be predicted from the plan alone. 

 Another DAB member asked if incentives were provided to encourage developers to 
build on empty lots in the city’s center? The response stated that yes, there were 
incentives, such as tax credits and incentives for rehabilitating existing buildings. 

 A third DAB member inquired about the potential for increased retail in the downtown 
area. The response provided stated that business is market driven and as more people 
move into the city’s center, there could be a sufficient market for certain types of retail in 
the future. No special incentives are being provided to attract these business above and 
beyond what is already being provided. 

 A fourth DAB member inquired about the plan’s approach to the transit system. The 
member was reminded that the plan is establishes general guidelines and priorities, but 
that the City Council and departments would need to develop concrete strategies for 
addressing specific initiatives and needs. 

The action from the Board was a motion to recommend that the MAPC approve the 
plan. The motion passed 6-0. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

104



Page 1 of 5 
 

EXCERPT MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 20, 2015 WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING 

 
Case No.:  DER2015-00001  -  Public hearing to consider adoption of the Final Draft 
Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 as the new Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive 
Plan, and as supplemented by current elements adopted by amendment to the existing 
comprehensive plan.  
 

Background:  In 2011, the City of Wichita and Sedgwick County initiated a process to develop the 
Community Investments Plan to replace the current joint City and County Comprehensive Plan which 
dates back to 1993. A more current and relevant plan is needed to provide a policy framework and set 
priorities to guide future public investments out to the year 2035 in municipal buildings and infrastructure 
(e.g. libraries, public safety buildings, streets, bridges, parks, water supply, sanitary and storm sewer, 
culture, and recreation, etc.).  
 
In 2012, the City and County partnered with WSU to undertake a comprehensive assessment of all City 
and County infrastructure and facilities. A Plan Steering Committee was also jointly appointed by the 
Wichita and Sedgwick County Managers in late 2012 to begin the development of a new comprehensive 
plan. Seven of the 18-member Steering Committee are also members of the MAPC. 
 
During 2013 and 2014, the Steering Committee developed and evaluated three possible long-term growth 
scenarios for Wichita. Following an extensive community engagement process in the spring and summer 
of 2014, a preferred growth scenario was selected by the Committee to serve as the basis for the 
development of the new comprehensive plan. 
 
On January 22, 2015, the MAPC received a briefing and update on the development of the working draft 
plan. In March 2015, the Steering Committee released the draft Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 
for public review and feedback. The Planning Department organized four public open house events and 
provided over 40 presentations (April through June) to over 700 people on the draft Plan. Feedback was 
also received through the Activate Wichita website. The Steering Committee met on June 24, 2015 to 
finalize changes to the draft Plan based upon feedback received from the community engagement process 
and two workshops held with the Wichita City Council in April and June. In late June and early July, staff 
briefed the members of the Sedgwick County Board of Commissioners on the contents of the draft Plan. 
 
On July 16th, the Advance Plans Committee passed a motion recommending that the MAPC set a public 
hearing date to consider the proposed adoption of the final draft Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 
as the new Comprehensive Plan for Wichita-Sedgwick County. 
In early August 2015, staff presented the final draft of the Community Investments Plan to the six District 
Advisory Boards (DAB’s) for the City of Wichita. All six DAB’s voted unanimously to recommend that 
the Plan be adopted as the new comprehensive plan for Wichita and Sedgwick County. 
 
Analysis: The final draft Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 is recommended to the MAPC by the 
Plan Steering Committee for adoption as the new joint comprehensive plan for Wichita-Sedgwick 
County. It is a high-level policy plan that provides guidance for future Wichita growth, sets overall 
community investment priorities, and provides a decision-making framework to guide future public 
infrastructure investment decisions. 
 
PLAN SUMMARY- What’s new and/or significantly different compared with our existing 
comprehensive plan… 

o A new Plan Vision Statement along with seven Core Community Values and five 
overarching Plan Guiding Principles to help set ‘high-level’ context and guidance for 
future land use development and investment in public infrastructure. 

o A new focus on future public infrastructure investment priorities. 

105



Page 2 of 5 
 

o A new 2035 Urban Growth Areas Map and a 2035 Wichita Future Growth Concept Map. 
o A new Wichita Urban Infill Strategy to support and facilitate greater levels of infill and 

redevelopment in Wichita’s mature urban areas - to meet market demand and capitalize 
on the City’s existing infrastructure investments.  

o A Plan Elements section containing 10 goals and 46 strategies that set overall 
infrastructure investment priorities across the categories of: Funding and Financing; 
Transportation; Water, Sewer and Stormwater; Arts, Culture and Recreation; and Public 
Safety. 

o A three-level Infrastructure Investment Decision-making Framework to systematically 
guide future public project spending decisions in a manner that supports community 
priorities, reflects willingness to pay, and is coordinated with market-driven growth. 

 
Recommended Action:  That the Metropolitan Area Planning Commission adopt the resolution adopting 
the final draft Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 dated July 1, 2015 as the new Comprehensive 
Plan for Wichita-Sedgwick County (Attachment A), and also adopting those neighborhood and area plan 
itemized on Attachment B as elements of the Community Investments Plan 2015-2035. Notice of this 
action shall be transmitted to the City Council of the City of Wichita and to the Sedgwick County Board 
of County Commissioners for their consideration and adoption. 
  
Attachments:  

1. Resolution. 
2. Attachments A - Final Draft Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 dated July 1, 

2015.       This link will provide electronic access to the Plan document: 
 

http://www.wichita.gov/Government/Departments/Planning/Pages/Comprehensive.as
px 

 
3. Attachment B - Listing of neighborhood and area plans adopted as elements of the 

Final Draft Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 dated July 1, 2015. 
 
DAVE BARBER, Planning Staff presented the Staff Report.  He recognized Cindy Miles, Co-Chair 
of the Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee.  He gave a brief overview of the Plan starting 
with a pie chart depicting where CIP dollars come from and another pie chart depicting where 
CIP dollars are spent.  He reviewed the engagement process and meetings held with various 
groups and stakeholders and how the Plan was developed including the Plan Vision Statement 
and guiding principles.   He reviewed the seven (7) Core Community Values for framework of 
the Plan and the five (5) Guiding Principles.   
 
BARBER reviewed future land use policies and commented that adopted neighborhood plans 
will be included because they provide additional policy guidance and more detail.  He referred to 
the 2035 Urban Growth Areas Map for each city in Sedgwick County.  He said the map was 
developed after a discussion with each city regarding future development and infrastructure 
needs, and it updates the current map developed in 2005.    He referred to the Wichita Future 
Growth Concept Map which he indicated was very generalized and conceptual.   He mentioned 
that the two (2) growth categories depicted on the map include new residential growth areas and 
new employment areas which will help the City better anticipate and plan for public  
infrastructure that will support market driven development.  He mentioned population growth 
rates and job growth rates over the next 20 years.  He said those are aggressive projections but 
the Plan Steering Committee felt like the community needed to aspire towards accelerated 

106



Page 3 of 5 
 

growth if the community is going to be successful over the next 20 years.   He also referred to 
the “established central area of the community” bounded by Ridge Road on the west, 29th Street 
on the north, Rock Road on the east and Pawnee Avenue on the south.   He said it is projected 
that over the next 20 years, 12% of the City’s growth will occur in this area.  He mentioned the 
four (4) key strategies of the Urban Infill Strategy.   
 
WARREN asked about projections for additional multi-family.   
 
BARBER said the Plan does not specifically identify multi-family; however, staff believes the 
majority of development will be multi-family residential.  He said as community demographics 
change there will probably be more rental properties and multi-family development.  He said by 
the year 2025-2030, half of all households will only have one person living in them. 
 
RICHARDSON asked about Plan integration with the Transit Authority. 
 
BARBER commented that the development that is being forecast in this Plan will probably not 
happen without transit improvements.  He said the Transit Plan has not been finalized because 
they are adding routes to enhance service.  He said the short answer would be yes. 
 
BARBER continued reviewing Locational Guidelines and the Wichita Urban Infill Strategy.  He 
said the Plan identified four (4) barriers to accelerated infill including neighborhood opposition, 
regulatory barriers, old infrastructure, and land assembly and financing issues.  He said strategies 
were developed to help solve those barriers.   
 
MCKAY asked about enlarging the growth pattern area on the map and referenced testimony the 
Steering Committee received from developers.  He said infill inside that area is a lot more 
expensive than on the fringes. 
 
WARREN (Out @3:30 p.m.) 
 
BARBER said although this is not a hard line in the sand, it is the key target area for now.   
However, he added that there will be other infill opportunities outside of this area.  He said staff 
will review and amend the Plan on an annual basis and make adjustments based on the market.  
He said the Plan is intended to be dynamic and flexible as the City moves forward.     
 
RICHARDSON commented that transit would make those areas attractive as infill.  He said it 
does not appear to him that transit is being coordinated with where development could occur in 
the future. 
BARBER commented that two pieces of the Plan talk about transit and added that public 
investment in transit is a medium investment item, not a low priority.  He referenced Page 31 of 
the Plan and quoted a general statement about transit.   
 
RICHARDSON said transit can be key and mentioned that in Washington, DC and other cities 
being near the Metro is a key point for property values because you can’t move the Metro.  He 
said here, it seems like Transit moves the routes every six (6) months which does not encourage 
development.  He said Wichita needs to think about how they can encourage that to help 
development in the future.   
 
BARBER commented that was a good point. 

107



Page 4 of 5 
 

 
BARBER continued the presentation by mentioning the ten (10) goals and 46 strategies 
scattered among the five (5) Plan chapters that were developed to set policy guidance for public 
infrastructure spending and investment.  He said the categories were funding and financing; 
transportation; water, sewer and stormwater; arts, culture and recreation; and public safety.  He 
reviewed each category, the priority of the category and the goals and strategies for each.   
 
BARBER reviewed Plan Implementation including a list of proposed projects and costs 
allocated by the three (3) categories which were maintain and replace; enhance and expand.   He 
said there is a gap of approximately $9.5 billion between project costs versus forecasted 
revenues.  To address this issue he said the Plan included Infrastructure Investment Decision 
Making Framework which was a three level systematic analysis to evaluating projects by merit 
and detail, funding and relation to the CIP Program. 
 
BARBER concluded by mentioning addition of a commitment to monitoring, reviewing and 
amending the Plan to keep it current and relevant.   He briefly summarized what was new in the 
Plan including the vision statement, the seven (7) core community values and five (5) guiding 
principles, a Plan that is strongly focused on public infrastructure priorities, updated Urban 
Growth Area Map, updated Wichita Growth Concept Map, new urban infill strategy, plan 
elements to set priorities and infrastructure spending, three level investment decision marking 
framework and a commitment to keeping the Plan relevant and current.  
 
BARBER said the Plan received unanimous approval from all six (6) District Advisory Boards, 
and staff plans to present the Plan to both the City Council and County Commission in early 
October for final approval. 
 
CINDY MILES, 1506 EAST 59th STREET SOUTH, WICHITA, KANSAS said this has been 
an extensive process for this Committee and feels they have done their research, listened to a lot 
of input from professionals, city staff and people in the community.  She said she thinks it is a 
good plan.  She said she wanted to tell everyone present who served on the committee for the 
past 2 ½ years how much she appreciates the work they did on the Plan.  She urged the 
Commission to support the Plan and make sure that in the future the Plan is used as a tool not put 
on a shelf.   
 
JOHN STEVENS, 3125 EAST BOSTON said he spent a lot of time with members of the 
Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee watching them agonize over what to put in and take 
out to balance the Plan the best way they could.  He referenced his work in the gas and oil 
industry and commented that the maps they used were mostly “hope sheets”.  He said he didn’t 
want to call this Plan a hope sheet because there was a lot more science used in development of 
this Plan.   He said the Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee were dedicated and staff did a 
wonderful job.  He said this is not a perfect plan but it makes you think about where we are 
going in the future.  He said he thinks it’s an important process to do as much planning as you 
can and, he urged the Commission to vote yes on the Plan.   
 
J. JOHNSON thanked Cindy Miles for going above and beyond as Co-Chair of the Steering 
Committee and the extra time and effort she put in going out into the community to make 
presentations on the Plan.     
 

108



Page 5 of 5 
 

DENNIS commented that the Plan has been before the Advance Plans Committee several times.  
He wanted to echo Commissioner Johnson’s comments and added that he thinks staff has done 
tremendous job, and he appreciates all the hard work.   
 
FOSTER said he also wanted to commend staff.  He said as a Committee member he wanted to 
recognize the input and effort staff made to go out and seek input from the community.  He said 
he thinks the plan is well done graphically and is easy to read, and it represents the community at 
this point in time very well. 
 
MILLER STEVENS said as a member of the Committee she was always encouraged by the 
work everyone did on the Plan.  She said she believes it is a good document to move forward 
with and encouraged everyone to support the Plan.     
 

MOTION:   To adopt the resolution adopting the final draft Community 
Investments Plan 2015-2035 dated July 1, 2015 as the new Comprehensive Plan 
for Wichita-Sedgwick County, and also adopting those neighborhood and area 
plans itemized on Attachment B as elements of the Community Investments Plan 
2015-2035. 
 
J. JOHNSON moved, FOSTER seconded the motion, and it carried (10-0). 

 --------------------------------------------- 
 

109



110



111



...a framework for the future, 2015-2035
A New Comprehensive Plan for Wichita-Sedgwick County

CommunityInvestmentsPlanPlan
...a framework for the future, 2015-2035
A New Comprehensive Plan for Wichita-Sedgwick County
Adopted by the Wichita-Sedgwick County Planning Commission on August 20, 2015

112



Page iv

113



114



115



ATTACHMENT “B”

The following Neighborhood and Area Plans and amendments thereto are hereby adopted as elements 
of the Community Investments Plan 2015-2035, dated July 1, 2015:

  Adopted by Sedgwick 
 Adopted by  County Board of 
 Wichita City Council      Commissioners  
      
Center City Neighborhood Revitalization Plan February 15, 2000 February 9, 2000
 Ord. No. 44-495 Res. No. 19-00

Hilltop Neighborhood Revitalization Plan August 22, 2000 August 16, 2000
 Ord. No. 44-701 Res. No. 143-00

Delano Neighborhood Revitalization Plan March 20, 2001  March 7, 2001
 Ord. No. 44-896 Res. No. 35-01

Oaklawn/Sunview Neighborhood Revitalization Plan April 9, 2002  March 20, 2002
 Ord. No. 45-299 Res. No. 37-02

South Wichita-Haysville Area Plan April 2, 2002  March 20, 2002
 Ord. No. 45-248 Res. No. 36-02

McAdams Neighborhood Plan June 3, 2003  May 14, 2003
 Ord. No. 45-726 Res. No. 114-03

Midtown Neighborhood Revitalization Plan May 18, 2004  May 19, 2004
 Ord. No. 46-179 Res. No. 87-04

21st Street North Corridor Revitalization Plan January 4, 2005  December 22, 2004 
 Ord. No. 46-434 Res. No. 233-04

Urban Fringe Development Standards for Wichita December 14, 2004 December 15, 2004
and Sedgwick County Endorsed  Endorsed

Central Northeast Area Plan Update September 22, 2005 September 14, 2005 
 Ord. No. 46-657 Res. No. 158-05

South Central Neighborhood Plan May 16, 2006  May 10, 2006
 Ord. No. 47-033 Res. No. 72-06

K-96 Corridor Economic Development Plan November 21, 2006 November 15, 2006 
 Ord. No. 47-304 Res. No. 166-06

47th to 55th Street South Joint Area Plan June 17, 2008  June 18, 2008
 Ord. No. 47-914 Res. No. 94-08

Wichita Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan January 6, 2009  December 17, 2008 
 Ord. No. 48-153 Res. No. 192-08

Derby-Mulvane Joint Area Plan September 21, 2010 September 8, 2010 
 Ord. No. 48-832 Res. No. 155-10

Project Downtown - The Master Plan for Wichita December 14, 2010 February 23, 2011 
 Ord. No. 48-919 Res. No. 29-11

116



117



Table of Contents    Page ix

CommunityInvestmentsPlanPlan
…a framework for the future, 2015-2035
A New Comprehensive Plan for Wichita-Sedgwick County

Table of Contents

Plan Introduction and Overview .............................................................................................1

Plan Vision, Community Values and Guiding Principles .......................................9

Future Land Use Policies ..............................................................................................................15

2035 Urban Growth Areas Map .............................................................................................19

2035 Wichita Future Growth Concept Map ......................................................................20

Locational Guidelines ...................................................................................................................22

Wichita Urban Infill Strategy ....................................................................................................25

Plan Elements .......................................................................................................................................27

Funding and Financing ...............................................................................................................29

Transportation .................................................................................................................................30

Water, Sewer & Stormwater .....................................................................................................31

Arts, Culture and Recreation  ...................................................................................................33

Public Safety  ....................................................................................................................................34

Priority Enhancement Areas for Wichita Public Infrastructure Projects Map .....35

Plan Implementation ......................................................................................................................37

Part 1. Infrastructure Investment Decision-making Framework ...............................39

Part 2. Plan Monitoring, Review and Amendment  ........................................................42

118



Page x Plan Steering Committee Members

Plan Steering Committee Members

Name  Representing

Mitch Coffman  Sedgwick County Board of Commissioners

Richard Ranzau  Sedgwick County Board of Commissioners

James Roseboro  Wichita City Council

Gary Schmitt  Wichita City Council

David Foster  Metropolitan Area Planning Commission

Matt Goolsby  Metropolitan Area Planning Commission

Joe Johnson   Metropolitan Area Planning Commission

John McKay  Metropolitan Area Planning Commission

Mitch Mitchell  Metropolitan Area Planning Commission

Bill Ramsey  Metropolitan Area Planning Commission

Debra Miller Stevens  Metropolitan Area Planning Commission

Ken Lee  Sedgwick County Association of Cities

Randy Oliver  Sedgwick County Association of Cities

Stacy Christie  Community-at-Large

Susan Estes (Co-Chair)  Community-at-Large

Bryan Frye  Community-at-Large

Julie Hedrick  Community-at-Large

Cindy Miles (Co-Chair)  Community-at-Large

Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Department
Staff Support

John Schlegel, Planning Director

Dave Barber, Advanced Plans Manager

Scott Knebel, Downtown Revitalization Manager

Stephen Banks, Senior Planner

Jess McNeely, Senior Planner

Scott Wadle, Senior Planner

Ashley Jones, Planning Aide

Jim Schiffelbein, Planning Aide

119



Plan Introduction & Overview    Page 1

Plan Introduction 
and Overview

120



Page 2 Plan Introduction & Overview

Th is page intentionally blank.

121



Plan Introduction & Overview    Page 3

Setting Our Public Infrastructure Invest-
ment Priorities

 ▪ Over many decades, investment in public infrastructure 

has shaped our community’s economy and quality of life. 

Th is investment has also infl uenced private investment 

decisions in Wichita and Sedgwick County. 

 ▪ Current and future generations in Wichita and Sedgwick 

County will live with the infrastructure investment deci-

sions we make today, just as we live with those decisions of 

past generations. 

 ▪ Th e primary public infrastructure investment challenges 

our community faces over the next 20 years are determin-

ing:

 > How best for the City of Wichita to grow

 > How much and where best to spend or not spend 

in terms of future City and County public infra-

structure and facility investment

 > How to close the long-term gap between our future 

investment needs and wants and our projected 

revenues (ability to pay)

 ▪ Th e following graphic illustrates three key inter-related 

elements that ultimately shape our public infrastructure 

and facility investment decisions.

Plan Introduction

Why This Plan

 ▪ Th e State of Kansas requires cities and counties to 

have a comprehensive plan in order to exercise autho-

rized development reviews, and to guide spending deci-

sions on public infrastructure and facilities.

 ▪ Th e current joint comprehensive plan for Wichita and 

Sedgwick County dates back to 1993. A new plan is need-

ed in an era of diminishing revenues and fi scal constraint.

 ▪ A new joint comprehensive plan is needed to guide 

the future growth, development and public infrastructure 

investment decisions of Wichita and Sedgwick County 

(our community) over the next 20 years. Accordingly, 

this new plan is called the Community Investments Plan 

… a framework for the future. 

 ▪ Th is Plan will better guide the long-term capital im-

provement programs for Wichita and Sedgwick County 

in the overall Plan context of:

 > Promoting economic growth and job creation

 > Advancing community quality of life and safety

 > Creating a community that will attract and re-

tain future generations

Community Investment Plan Development – Key Interrelated Elements

122



Plan Introduction & OverviewPage 4   

Developing the Plan

This Plan has been developed by an 18-member Plan 

Steering Committee jointly appointed by the City and 

County, with technical support provided by staff  from the 

Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning 

Department, the City of Wichita and Sedgwick County. Th e 

Plan is refl ective of the following considerations:

Existing Infrastructure Conditions Assessment (see Appen-
dix for details)

 ▪ A comprehensive assessment of all Wichita and Sedg-

wick County infrastructure and facilities in 2011-12 

revealed that 38% of Wichita’s infrastructure is in a 

‘defi cient/fair’ condition (about 11% of the County’s 

infrastructure is in a ‘defi cient/fair’ condition).

 ▪ Costs of bringing existing defi cient Wichita infrastruc-

ture (primarily local streets, aging water and sewer 

lines) up to standards is estimated at an additional $45-

55 million annually. 

 ▪ Ongoing existing infrastructure replacement costs are 

estimated to require an additional $102 million annual-

ly for Wichita.

 ▪ Th is situation is due in part to decades of under-invest-

ment in maintaining Wichita’s local road, water and 

sewer infrastructure.

People Housing Jobs

T
H
O
U
S
A
N
D
S

20

60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200

40

Total
Sedgwick
County

Wichita
Total
Sedgwick
County

Wichita
Total
Sedgwick
County

Wichita

0
10

30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

20

0

106,107

10

30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

20

0

64,058

166,869

101,458

71,468

49,900

97,093

66,067

41,003
31,200

63,815

51,271

BASELINE-.83% ACCELERATED-1.25%

Plaan

eevelopedd byby an 18-member Plan 

oiintly appointed bby hthe City a dnd 

l ssupport provided by staff  from the 

untty y Metropolitan Area Planning 

of Wichita andd SeSedgdgwiwickck CCouountntyy. ThThee 

e following considerations:

2012-2035 Projected Additional Growth

BASELINE* ACCELERATED* BASELINE* ACCELERATED*

* Totals are associated with the overall Sedgwick County population growth rates

(Overall Sedgwick County population 

growth rates)

Community Trends and Challenges Ahead

(see Appendix for details)

 ▪ Our infrastructure investment decisions and future 

growth will be infl uenced by the following fi scal/eco-

nomic shift s:

 > Diminishing state and federal funding for local infra-

structure;

 > Slowing locally generated revenues for Wichita and 

Sedgwick County;

 > Rising costs of maintaining existing infrastructure 

and facilities; and,

 > Slowing new job creation and employment growth 

rates.

Population and Employment Growth Projections: 2012 to 

2035 (see Appendix for details)

Th is Plan has been developed with a baseline growth rate 
(0.83%) and an accelerated growth rate (1.25%) for annual 

population growth and associated employment growth pro-

jections in Wichita and Sedgwick County. Th e accelerated 

growth rate is refl ected in the 2035 Urban Growth Areas 
Map and the 2035 Wichita Future Growth Concept Map. 

123



Preferred Wichita 2035 Growth Scenario Development (see 
Appendix for details)

 ▪ Th ree 2035 growth scenarios were developed for 

Wichita to illustrate a range of possible growth patterns 

and associated infrastructure investment impacts. Th ese 

scenarios were called Current Trends; Constrained Sub-
urban Growth; and Suburban and Infi ll Growth Mix.

 ▪ Growth and development patterns depicted in the 

Suburban and Infi ll Growth Mix scenario refl ected a 

more constrained suburban growth pattern combined 

with increased urban infi ll growth in Wichita’s mature 

urban neighborhoods (the Established Central Area). 

Th is scenario required the least amount of expansion to 

Wichita’s existing system of infrastructure, and placed 

greater investment priority on maintaining our existing 

infrastructure and transit system. Th is scenario became 

the basis for the development of the 2035 Wichita Fu-
ture Growth Concept Map.

 ▪ Th ere is currently a $9-10 billion gap over the next 20 

years between Wichita’s planned future infrastructure 

and facility expenditures and its projected revenues. 

Diff erent growth scenarios alone won’t close this gap … 

a combination of new revenues, shift ing project priori-

ties and reducing project expenditures will be necessary.

Listening to the Community (see Appendix for details)

 ▪ Most City and County residents may not be aware of 

the current condition of our public assets, nor may they 

be aware of current City and County spending plans for 

the maintenance and expansion of these assets. During 

the development of this Plan, ongoing eff orts have been 

made to better inform and educate the community on 

these important issues.

 ▪ Public outreach initiatives have included a com-
munity-wide survey, eight informal public open house 
meetings, nine community discussion meetings and over 
40 presentations to community/neighborhood groups, 

business organizations and service clubs. Th e web-

based Activate Wichita engagement tool has also been 

utilized.

Plan Overview
Within the broader context of the 2035 Plan Vision State-

ment, Plan Guiding Policy Principles and the Future Land 

Use Policies, this Plan provides an Infrastructure Invest-

ment Decision-making Framework to guide future public 

investment decisions that best refl ect our community’s 

highest priority needs and wants, and “willingness to 

spend” on public infrastructure. Th is Plan is comprised of 

the following components:

1. 2035 Plan Vision Statement 

and Core Community Values 

A general statement describing 

what we envision our commu-

nity will be 20 years from now 

in terms of employment and 

quality of life opportunities:

“Building on our rich aviation and 
entrepreneurial heritage, Wichita-
Sedgwick County is a global center 
of advanced manufacturing and 
high-tech industry and a premier 
service, education, health and retail 
center for South Central Kansas. 
People feel safe and enjoy affordable 
housing choices in diverse, vibrant 
neighborhoods offering unique 
quality living environments and 
active, healthy lifestyles with access 
to arts, culture and recreation.”

Plan Introduction & Overview    Page 5

124



Plan Introduction & OverviewPage 6   

Seven core community values also collectively defi ne our 

community approach and beliefs for the purposes of this 

Plan:

 ▪ Common-sense Approach

 ▪ Fiscal Responsibility

 ▪ Growth-oriented

 ▪ Inclusiveness and Connectivity

 ▪ Cultural Richness

 ▪ Vibrant Neighborhoods

 ▪ Quality Design

2. Plan Guiding Policy Principles 

Five overarching themes and aspirations for our commu-

nity’s future. Th ey help set relative priorities at the broad-

est and highest levels for future public infrastructure and 

facility investment decisions:

1. Support an Innovative, Vibrant and 
Diverse Economy

2. Invest in the Quality of Our 
Community Life

3. Take Better Care of What We Already 
Have

4. Make Strategic, Valued-added 
Investment Decisions

5. Provide for Balanced Growth but 
with Added Focus on Our Established 
Neighborhoods

3. Future Land Use Policies

2035 Urban Growth Areas Map - Depicts the anticipated 

growth pattern and extension of city limits for the cities of 

Sedgwick County.

2035 Wichita Future Growth Concept Map - Depicts the 

preferred 2035 growth concept for Wichita based on pro-

jected population/employment growth rates.

Locational Guidelines - Encourages compatible and appro-

priate future land use change in Wichita and unincorporat-

ed Sedgwick County.

Wichita Urban Infi ll Strategy - Encourages appropriate 

infi ll development in Wichita’s Established Central Area.

Neighborhood and area plans adopted as elements of the 

Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan will pro-

vide additional land use policy guidance as applicable. 

4. Plan Elements 

A set of Plan Goals and Strategies to guide public infra-

structure and facility investment decisions pertaining to 

each of the following Plan elements:

Funding and Financing - Guidance on how we should best 

fund and fi nance our public infrastructure and facilities.

Transportation - Guidance on how we should best invest in 

our transportation infrastructure and facilities.

Water, Sewer and Stormwater - Guidance on how we 

should best invest in our water, sewer and stormwater 

infrastructure and facilities.

Arts, Culture and Recreation - Guidance on how we should 

best invest in our arts, culture and recreation facilities.

Public Safety - Guidance on how we should best invest in 

our public safety facilities.

Priority Enhancement Areas for Wichita Public Infrastruc-

ture Projects Map - Guidance on priority areas for aesthetic 

enhancements to planned City of Wichita public improve-

ments.

5. Plan Implementation

Part 1. Infrastructure Investment Decision-making 

Framework 

Th is framework is intended to help close the long-term 

cost/revenue gap between our currently planned future 

infrastructure expenditures and our projected revenues. 

Th ree diff erent levels of evaluation are recommended for 

both new and replacement infrastructure projects. Th is 

encourages best practices for public infrastructure invest-

ment decision-makers.  It also enables strategic invest-

ment decision-making by aligning funding priorities with 

community priorities as refl ected in the 2035 Plan Vision 

Statement, Core Community Values and Plan Guiding 

Policy Principles.

125



Part 2. Plan Monitoring, Review and Amendment 

An ongoing, systematic approach to monitor community 

change, and review and amend the Plan so that it remains 

relevant and appropriate for our community.

Plan Appendix

Under separate documentation, the Plan Appendix con-

tains important and relevant background information listed 

below that has been helpful in shaping the development of 

this Plan:

 ▪ Wichita 2035 Growth Scenarios

 ▪ Community Trends & Challenges Ahead

 ▪ Existing Conditions & Community Infrastructure 
Assessment

 ▪ Community Engagement

Plan Introduction & Overview    Page 7

126



Page 8 Plan Introduction & Overview

Th is page intentionally blank.

127



Plan Vision, Community Values & Guiding Principles    Page 9

Plan Vision, 
Community Values 

and Guiding Principles

128



Page 10 Plan Vision, Community Values & Guiding Principles

Th is page intentionally blank.

129



Plan Vision, Community Values & Guiding Principles    Page 11

 ▪ Growth-oriented – innovate; re-invent; diversify; entre-

preneurial; positive ‘can-do’ attitude; the future holds 

hope and promise.

 ▪ Inclusiveness and Connectivity – easy to get around; 

social and technological accessibility.

 ▪ Cultural Richness – visual and performing arts; educa-

tional achievement; diversity of cuisine; strong commu-

nity events and celebrations; philanthropy; community 

service; value racial diversity; community pride and 

heritage.

 ▪ Vibrant Neighborhoods – care about neighbors, value 

condition of property, take pride in quality of place and 

where we live.

 ▪ Quality Design – value public art, attractive and sustain-

able design, and community aesthetics.

Plan Guiding Policy Principles
Th e following Plan Guiding Policy Principles:

 ▪ Represent the overarching themes, aspirations and ac-

tions for our community’s future,

 ▪ Refl ect the 2035 plan vision statement and our core com-

munity values,

 ▪ Guide future land use policies and the plan element goals 

and strategies, 

 ▪ Help set relative priorities at the broadest and highest 

levels for future investment decisions and funding/ex-

penditure reductions.

1. Support an Innovative, 
Vibrant and Diverse Economy

Without good jobs and opportunities for 
all to prosper, our vision and aspirations 
as a community cannot be achieved.

Core Community Value Elements

Common-sense Approach:  Promote an environment of low 

taxes and reasonable regulation

2035 Plan Vision Statement
Th e 2035 Plan Vision Statement below describes what kind 

of future we want to help make for our community over the 

next twenty years based on our public infrastructure and 

facility investment decisions. 

 “Building on our rich aviation and 
entrepreneurial heritage, Wichita- 
Sedgwick County is a global center 
of advanced manufacturing and 
high-tech industry and a premier 
service, education, health and retail 
center for South Central Kansas.  
People feel safe and enjoy afford-
able housing choices in diverse, 
vibrant neighborhoods offering 
unique quality living environments 
and active, healthy lifestyles with 
access to arts, culture and recre-
ation.”

Core Community Values
Listed below are important Core Community Values that 

defi ne our community approach and beliefs for the purpos-

es of this Plan. Th ese core values collectively provide the 

context in which the Plan Guiding Policy Principles will be 

accomplished:

 ▪ Common-sense Approach – pragmatic; market-driven; 

competitive; low tax burden; appropriate/simplifi ed 

regulations only as necessary; strong belief in personal 

rights and property rights.

 ▪ Fiscal Responsibility – don’t spend more than you have; 

spend and invest wisely; take care of what you have; 

build on what you have; maximize ‘return-on-invest-

ment’.

130



Fiscal Responsibility:  Target economic development in-

vestments in areas with the greatest public return

Growth-oriented:  Focus on innovation and diversifi ca-

tion for start-ups, entrepreneurship and growing existing 

businesses

Inclusiveness and Connectivity:  Improve transportation 

connections to businesses for employees and customers of 

all incomes and abilities

Cultural Richness:  Encourage a culture of corporate 

philanthropy and encourage culturally-diverse business 

areas

Vibrant Neighborhoods:  Support neighborhood-scale 

business development

Quality Design:  Utilize aesthetic and cohesive treatments 

in major business areas to encourage compatibility with 

adjacent businesses and residential areas

2. Invest in the Quality of Our 
Community Life

Quality of life is important to both cur-
rent and future residents of our com-
munity and is essential to support job 
growth and a strong economy.

Core Community Value Elements

Common-sense Approach:  Ensure that basic services are 

delivered effi  ciently and eff ectively

Fiscal Responsibility:  Make strategic investments in public 

resources and facilities that will benefi t current and future 

residents

Growth-oriented:  Foster quality of life amenities that 

attract and retain talented workers

Inclusiveness and Connectivity:  Provide equitable access to 

arts, culture and recreation

Cultural Richness:  Support broad-based diversity in quality 

of life opportunities, events and facilities

Vibrant Neighborhoods: Provide safe, active and healthy 

living environments in all neighborhoods

Quality Design:  Make strategic investments in iconic facili-

ties that create a community of distinction

3. Take Better Care of What We 
Already Have

Maintaining and preserving existing 
infrastructure and community facilities 
is a high priority for citizens, supports 
economic growth and quality of life/
place, and makes sound fiscal sense.

Core Community Value Elements

Common-sense Approach:  Invest in maintenance 

fi rst 

Fiscal Responsibility:  Establish long-term maintenance 

programs based on asset life-cycle

Growth-oriented:  Leverage maintenance investments to 

promote infi ll development

Inclusiveness and Connectivity:  Take a systems and 

networks-based approach

Cultural Richness:  Re-invest in public facilities and 

infrastructure throughout our community

Vibrant Neighborhoods:  Invest in existing neigh-

borhood stability, redevelopment and growth

Quality Design:  Consider life-cycle costs

Page 12 Plan Vision, Community Values & Guiding Principles

131



4.  Make Strategic, Valued-
added Investment Decisions

Our limited public resources must be 
focused on infrastructure and commu-
nity facility investments that best sup-
port the vision for our future. Priority 
will be given to projects that support 
economic growth and job diversifica-
tion, are multi-purposed and have mul-
tiple impacts for the greatest benefit to 
our community.

Core Community Value Elements

Common-sense Approach:  Use the comprehensive plan to 

guide capital improvement programming

Fiscal Responsibility:  Ensure that our investments are 

scale-appropriate and maximize economic and social re-

turns that are measurable

Growth-oriented:  Tie major infrastructure investments to 

economic development

Inclusiveness and Connectivity: Focus major transportation 

investments on critical community-wide connections

Cultural Richness:  Make strategic long-term investments 

in cultural facilities

Vibrant Neighborhoods:  Use multi-faceted and strategic 

approaches

Quality Design:  Use 

context-sensitive de-

sign for infrastructure 

projects

5.  Provide for Balanced 
Growth but with Added Focus 
on Our Established Neighbor-
hoods

Growth can be expected to occur in 
all parts of our community and should 
be supported.  Established neighbor-
hoods will receive more attention than 
has been given in previous comprehen-
sive plans in order to promote growth 
and maintain vibrancy/quality of place.

Core Community Value Elements

Common-sense Approach:  Target areas of greatest oppor-

tunity

Fiscal Responsibility:  Establish a funding mechanism 

for the additional maintenance costs of existing and new 

infrastructure

Growth-oriented:  Support growth in all areas of our com-

munity

Inclusiveness and Connectivity:  Promote physical, social 

and economic accessibility and connectivity for all

Cultural Richness:  Enhance existing cultural facilities

Vibrant Neighborhoods:  Focus growth in established 

neighborhoods and encourage infi ll development programs

Quality Design:  

Support infi ll project 

designs that enhance 

value in existing 

neighborhoods

Plan Vision, Community Values & Guiding Principles    Page 13

132



Page 14  

Th is page intentionally blank.

Plan Vision, Community Values & Guiding Principles

133



Future Land Use Policies    Page 15

Future Land
Use Policies

134



Page 16 Future Land Use Policies

Th is page intentionally blank.

135



Future Land Use Policies    Page 17

Future Land Use Policies  
Introduction

Th e purpose of the Future Land Use Policies is to encour-

age orderly growth that meets future market demand while 

considering impacts to taxpayers, developers, the environ-

ment, and the community as a whole.  Th ese policies refl ect 

the 2035 Plan Vision Statement, Core Community Values, 

and Plan Guiding Policy Principles and guide future land 

use through the ongoing comprehensive planning process.

Th e Future Land Use Policies are comprised of the follow-

ing four components which are described in this section of 

the Plan:

1. 2035 Urban Growth Areas Map  

Depicts anticipated long-term growth patterns for the 

cities of Sedgwick County. Th ese areas are not pre-

scriptive or binding in nature but serve as a reasonable 

indication as to where the future effi  cient and fi scally 

responsible extension of public infrastructure, services, 

and corporate limits could occur by 2035.

2. 2035 Wichita Future Growth Concept Map 

Depicts the preferred 2035 future growth concept for 

Wichita. Th is concept is based upon projected popu-

lation and employment growth rates, refl ects the Plan 

Guiding Policy Principles, and strategically guides 

future public investment that supports the 

growth of Wichita.

3. Locational Guidelines

Provide a framework for decision-mak-

ing regarding land use changes so as to: 

encourage patterns of development that 

effi  ciently and eff ectively use land, pub-

lic infrastructure, and services; strive for 

compatibility among various land uses; 

and, promote quality of place through 

design.

4. Wichita Urban Infi ll Strategy

Focuses on Wichita’s Established Cen-

tral Area (comprised of the downtown 

core and the mature neighborhoods 

surrounding it in a roughly three mile radius) 

and ‘areas of opportunity’ within it that have the most 

vacant/underutilized parcels where infi ll development 

can reverse patterns of abandonment and decline.  Th e 

strategy provides a framework for addressing:  regula-

tory barriers; infrastructure in need of modernization; 

neighborhood concerns about diff erent housing types 

or incompatible uses; diffi  culties with land assembly and 

fi nancing; and, preserving areas of stability.

Th ese four components constitute the Future Land Use 

Policies. To ensure needed fl exibility in the application of 

the Future Land Use Policies, it is important to continue to 

modify land use implementation tools such as the zoning 

and subdivision regulations to maintain consistency with 

the Plan as it is amended in the future.

Adopted Neighborhood and Area Plans

Neighborhood and area plans adopted as elements of the 

Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan will pro-

vide additional land use policy guidance as applicable, to 

supplement the overall guidance provided by the Future 

Land Use Policies.

136



Page 18 Future Land Use Policies

1.  2035 Urban Growth Areas Map 
(Refer to fold-out map on page 19)

2.  2035 Wichita Future Growth Concept 
Map 
(Refer to fold-out map on page 20) Th e 2035 Wichita 
Future Growth Concept Map visually portrays the goals 

and policies of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehen-

sive Plan. It generally illustrates anticipated development 

patterns and provides a generalized guide to future land 

use, development and rezoning decisions within the City 

of Wichita and its 2035 urban growth area.  Th e categories 

shown are intended to provide a generalized guide to land 

use based upon functional use classifi cations, rather than 

by type of facility or type of ownership. Th e small-scale 

nature of the map does not allow for detailed assessment on 

an individual parcel basis. Suitability of future development 

at the site-specifi c, facility level needs to be determined 

based upon existing land uses and zoning, along with the 

Locational Guidelines and Wichita Urban Infi ll Strategy, 

as applicable. Development proposals that do not exactly 

match these guides but refl ect market place demand should 

be given reasonable consideration, if they do not present 

extraordinary new public infrastructure or service burdens 

on the community.

Established Central Area:  Comprised of the downtown 

core and the mature neighborhoods surrounding it in a 

roughly three mile radius, the Established Central Area is 

the focus area for the Wichita Urban Infi ll Strategy.

New Residential:  Encompasses areas of land that likely will 

be developed or redeveloped by 2035 with uses predomi-

nately found in the Residential category.  Pockets of Major 

Institutional and Commercial uses likely will be developed 

within this area as well, based upon market-driven location 

factors.  In certain areas, especially those in proximity to 

existing industrial uses, highways, rail lines, and airports, 

pockets of Industrial Uses likely will be developed.

New Employment:  Encompasses areas that likely will be 

developed or redeveloped by 2035 with uses that consti-

tute centers or concentrations of employment primarily in 

manufacturing, warehousing, distribution, construction, 

research, technology, business services, or corporate of-

fi ces.  Major shopping centers and offi  ce parks likely will 

be developed within this area as well, based upon market 

driven location factors.  In certain areas, especially those in 

proximity to existing residential uses, higher density hous-

ing and convenience retail centers likely will be developed.  

In areas where the uses are already established, pockets of 

industrial uses associated with extraction, processing or 

refi nement of natural resources or recycling of waste mate-

rials likely will be developed.

New Residential/Employment Mix:  Encompasses areas of 

land that likely will be developed or redeveloped by 2035 

with uses predominately of a mixed nature.  Due to the 

proximity of higher intensity businesses uses, residential 

housing types within this area likely will be higher density.  

Due to the proximity of residential uses, employment uses 

likely will have limited negative impacts associated with 

noise, hazardous emissions, visual blight, and odor.

137



The 2035 Urban Growth Areas Map visually portrays the antic-
ipated growth patterns for the cities of Sedgwick County. Mu-
nicipal growth patterns that do not exactly match this guide but 
refl ect marketplace demands should be given reasonable consid-
eration, if they do not present extraordinary new public service 
burdens on the community. It is also important to note that the 
2035 urban growth areas depicted are not prescriptive or binding 
in nature. Th ey serve only as a reasonable indication as to where 
the future effi  cient extension of public municipal services and 
corporate limits could occur by the year 2035.  

Small City Urban Growth Areas:  Generally located adjacent to 
existing municipal boundaries, these areas indicate the likely di-
rection and magnitude of growth these communities can expect 
to experience out to the year 2035.  Determination of growth 
direction and amount is based upon municipal political consider-
ations, anticipated municipal population growth, effi  cient pat-
terns of municipal growth, current infrastructure limitations, cost 
eff ective delivery of future municipal services and environmental 
factors.

Wichita Urban Growth Area:  Areas adjacent to Wichita that are 
primarily undeveloped but have the potential to be developed 
by the year 2035, based upon Wichita population growth projec-
tions and current market trends. Th is is the area in which City 
expansion and extension of municipal services and infrastruc-
ture should be focused.  Determination of growth direction and 
amount is based upon municipal political considerations, antic-
ipated population growth, effi  cient patterns of growth, current 
infrastructure limitations, cost eff ective delivery of future munici-
pal services and environmental factors.

Established Central Area:  Comprised of the downtown core 
and the mature neighborhoods surrounding it in a roughly three 
mile radius, the Established Central Area is the focus area for the 
Wichita Urban Infi ll Strategy.

K-96 Special Uses Corridor:  Encompasses areas identifi ed in the 
K-96 Corridor Economic Development Plan that require special 
land use controls in order to ensure appropriate patterns of 
commercial redevelopment within the K-96 corridor. Th e K-96 
Corridor Economic Development Plan should be consulted for 
more specifi c future land use direction.

Industrial and Improvement Districts and Sedgwick County 

Park:  Encompasses areas within the Wichita Urban Growth Area 
where various legal agreements have been established to restrict 
Wichita city limits expansion and provide for shared delivery of 
municipal services by the City of Wichita, Sedgwick County, and 
townships.

Rural:  Th is category encompasses land outside the 2035 urban 
growth areas for Wichita and the small cities. Agricultural uses, 
rural-based businesses, and larger lot residential exurban subdi-
visions likely will be developed in this area.  Such development 
should occur in accordance with the Urban Fringe Development 
Standards for Wichita and Sedgwick County.

2035 Urban Growth Areas Map
(This map is not reflective of any Zoning Areas of Influence in Sedgwick County)

138



Future Land Use Policies

2035 Wichita
Future Growth
Concept Map

139



Future Land Use Policies    Page 21

Residential:  Encompasses areas that refl ect the full di-

versity of residential development densities and types 

typically found in a large urban municipality.  Th e range 

of housing densities and types includes, but is not limited 

to, single-family detached homes, semi-detached homes, 

zero lot line units, patio homes, duplexes, townhouses, 

apartments and multi-family units, condominiums, mobile 

home parks, and special residential accommodations for 

the elderly (assisted living, congregate care and nursing 

homes).  Elementary and middle schools, churches, play-

grounds, small parks and other similar residen-

tial-serving uses are located in these areas.

Commercial:  Encompasses areas that refl ect the 

full diversity of commercial development inten-

sities and types typically found in a large urban 

municipality.  Convenience retail, restaurants, 

small offi  ces, and personal service uses are locat-

ed in close proximity to, and potentially mixed 

with, Residential Uses.  Major destination areas 

(centers and corridors) containing concentrations 

of commercial and offi  ce uses that have regional 

market areas and generate high volumes of traffi  c 

are located in close proximity to major arterials 

or highways and typically are buff ered from lower 

density residential areas by higher density hous-

ing types.

Industrial:  Encompasses areas that refl ect the 

full diversity of industrial development intensities 

and types typically found in a large urban municipality.  

Centers or concentrations of manufacturing, warehousing, 

distribution, construction, research, and technology are 

located in close proximity to highways and airports and 

may have rail service.  Industrial uses associated with the 

extraction, processing or refi nement of natural resources 

or recycling of waste materials typically are located along 

rail lines.  Businesses with negative impacts associated with 

noise, hazardous emissions, visual blight, and odor typical-

ly are buff ered from Residential Uses by Commercial Uses.

Major Air Transportation & Military:  Encompasses areas 

that are developed with airports, airfi elds, and military in-

stallations.  Th e areas surrounding these areas, particularly 

immediately in proximity to areas used for take-off  and 

approach to runways, should be protected from encroach-

ment by uses that are negatively impacted by high levels of 

noise.

Parks and Open Space:  Includes major parks, golf courses, 

public open space, private development reserves and rec-

reational facilities/corridors (including fl oodplain, natural 

drainage channels, easements, abandoned railway corri-

dors, etc.).  More detailed maps and policies are contained 

in the Wichita Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan.

Agricultural or Vacant:  Encompasses areas that are unde-

veloped or used for agricultural production.  Agricultural 

land is an important natural resource. Pockets of low-den-

sity residential uses without the full range of municipal 

services likely will be developed in areas of the urban fringe 

that primarily are used for agriculture.  Such development 

should occur in accordance with the Urban Fringe Devel-
opment Standards for Wichita and Sedgwick County and 

should be developed in a manner that facilitates future con-

nection to municipal services when they become available.

Major Institutional:  Includes institutional facilities of a 

signifi cant size and scale of operation and could include a 

range of such uses as government facilities, libraries, high 

schools, colleges, universities, cemeteries, and hospitals.

140



Page 22 Future Land Use Policies

Neighborhood/Area Plan:  Adopted neighborhood and 

area plans have been designated on the map.  Th ese plans 

should be consulted for specifi c future land use direction.

3. Locational Guidelines

Th e Locational Guidelines provide a decision-making 

framework regarding land use changes.  Th is deci-

sion-making framework is comprised of three key ele-

ments - Development Pattern, Land Use Compatibility, 

and Design. Th ese elements encourage 

patterns of development that effi  -

ciently and eff ectively use land, public 

infrastructure, and services; strive for 

compatibility among various land uses; 

and, promote quality of place through 

design.  Within each of these elements, 

guidance is provided according to the 

following geographic areas: 

1. General (applicable throughout the entire Plan area)

2. Established Central Area (specifi c to the downtown core 

and the mature neighborhoods surrounding it in a roughly 

three mile radius)

3. Outside Established Central Area (specifi c to the remain-

ing incorporated areas of Wichita outside the Established 
Central Area, and also including Wichita’s 2035 Urban 

Growth Area)

4. Rural Area (specifi c to the unincorporated areas of 

Sedgwick County located outside the 2035 Urban Growth 

Areas)

Th ese Locational Guidelines should be used with a sense of 

fl exibility supplemented by guidance contained in neigh-

borhood and area plans adopted as elements of this Plan; 

small city comprehensive plans; and other state-of-the-art 

planning principles and practices as circumstances warrant.

Development Pattern

1. General

a. Development should occur where necessary support-

ing infrastructure and services exist or are planned for 

extension concurrently with the development.

b. Discourage development from 

occurring in aquifer recharge, fl ood 

prone, high ground water, wetland, 

and unsuitable soil areas.

c. Major commercial and employment 

centers should be located at inter-

sections of arterial streets and along 

highways and commercial corridors.

d. Industrial uses should be located 

in areas with good access to highways, rail lines, and 

airports.

e. Higher-density residential uses and neighbor-

hood-serving retail and offi  ce uses should buff er lower- 

density residential uses from major commercial and 

employments centers and industrial uses.

f. Primary outdoor sales uses should be located along 

highway corridors or in areas where the uses have 

already been established.

g. Support expansion of existing uses to adjacent areas.

h. Development near primary and secondary gateways 

identifi ed on the Priority Enhancement Areas for 
Wichita Public Infrastructure Projects Map should be 

oriented primarily towards destination retail (such as: 

regional shopping centers, entertainment complexes, 

national retailers with limited locations) and hospital-

ity.

2. Established Central Area

a. Encourage infi ll development that maximizes public 

investment in existing and planned infrastructure and 

services.

b. Promote mixed-use redevelopment of existing com-

mercial centers and along arterial streets.

c. Promote downtown as the region’s preeminent walk-

“...strive for compatibility 
among various land uses; and, 

promote 

quality of place 

through design...”

141



Future Land Use Policies    Page 23

able, mixed-use development area 

with a focus on offi  ce, retail, hospitality, government 

services, high-density residential, and entertainment, 

cultural, and civic facilities and activities.

3.   Outside Established Central Area

a. Strip commercial development along arterials should 

be discouraged except along established commercial 

corridors and highways.

b. Major commercial development should be guided to 

the intersection of two arterial streets.

c. Small, neighborhood-serving retail and offi  ces uses 

and high-density residential uses not located at arteri-

al intersections should be limited to the intersection of 

an arterial and a collector street.

d. Low-density residential uses should be buff ered from 

commercial and industrial areas by 

open space, water bodies, changes in 

topography, or major barriers such 

as arterial streets or highways.

e. New development areas separated 

from existing developed areas by 

major barriers (such as:  highways, 

railroads, waterways, and airports) 

or by signifi cant open space or 

undeveloped areas should be dis-

couraged unless the scale of the 

development is suffi  cient to support 

the cost of extending infrastructure 

and services in a manner that sup-

ports additional development 

on surrounding sites.

f. New development in areas 

where city growth areas 

abut should be coordinated 

among the aff ected cities, 

particularly as it relates to 

street connectivity and land 

use compatibility.

4.  Rural Area

a. Outside the 2035 Urban 

Growth Areas, commercial/indus-

trial development should be limited to 

the following: agricultural-oriented uses; rural home 

occupations; natural resource dependent; convenience 

services; highway-oriented services at interchange areas; 

or uses that need signifi cant buff ering from residential 

areas (to mitigate nuisance or hazard impacts).

b. Urban-density development is discouraged from locating 

in rural areas, and rural-density development should be 

located in accordance to the Urban Fringe Development 
Standards for Wichita and Sedgwick County.

Land Use Compatibility

1. General

a. Higher-intensity development should be discouraged 

from locating in areas of existing lower-intensity devel-

opment, particularly established low-density residen-

tial areas.

b. Industrial and major commercial land 

uses that generate pollution, odor, 

noise, light, safety hazards, and high 

levels of traffi  c should be located away 

from residential areas and developed 

with screening, buff ering, and site 

design features suffi  cient to mitigate 

adverse impacts.

c. Residential development should not 

encroach upon existing or planned 

heavy industry, airfi elds, and military 

installations.

d. Manufactured home parks (as dis-

tinguished from manufactured home 

subdivisions) should be located on large 

142



Page 24 Future Land Use Policies

tracts and buff ered from lower-density residential ar-

eas by physical barriers (e.g., freeways, drainage ways, 

railway, etc.).

2. Established Central Area

a. Neighborhood-serving retail and offi  ce uses and 

high-density residential uses can be appropriate along 

arterial streets on small infi ll sites near residential uses 

or through conversions of residential structures if 

appropriate site design features that limit traffi  c, noise, 

lighting, and adverse impacts on surrounding residen-

tial are provided and the scale of the development is 

appropriate for its context.

b. Accessory dwelling units, duplexes, and small-scale 

multi-family developments can be appropriate in ex-

isting residential areas if appropriate site design limits 

adverse impacts on surrounding residential uses, the 

design of the buildings is compatible with existing 

residences, and the scale of the development is com-

patible with the intensity of the surrounding area.

3. Outside Established Central Area

a. Except in mixed-use developments, residential and 

non-residential development areas generally should 

be separate and distinct with appropriate screening 

and buff ering to ensure compatibility among land uses 

while maintaining connectivity among uses.

b. Mixed-use develop-

ments should provide 

appropriate screening 

and buff ering to en-

sure compatibility with 

surrounding lower-in-

tensity land uses while 

maintaining connectivi-

ty among uses.

4. Rural Area

a. Discourage encroachment of land uses such as residen-

tial and recreation that would be negatively impacted 

by noise, dust, odor, light, and other impacts of agricul-

tural operations into primarily agricultural areas out-

side the 2035 Urban Growth Areas.

b. Industrial and commercial uses located in rural areas 

should be separate and distinct from lower-intensity 

lands uses and should provide appropriate screening 

and buff ering to ensure compatibility among land uses.

Design
1. General

a. Commercial centers, 

offi  ce parks, and 

mixed-use develop-

ments should be de-

signed with shared 

internal vehicular 

and pedestrian cir-

culation, combined 

signage, coordinated 

landscaping and 

building design, and combined ingress/egress locations.

b. Ingress/egress locations to non-residential uses gen-

erally should not access residential streets unless such 

access will not negatively impact nearby residential ar-

eas, except that industrial traffi  c should not feed directly 

into local streets in residential areas.

c. Driveways and intersections along major thoroughfares 

should be limited to maintain safe and effi  cient mobil-

ity.  Medians should be used when appropriate to limit 

turning confl icts, particularly near arterial intersections.  

Pedestrian crossings of arterial streets should be provid-

ed between arterial intersections.

d. Except in mixed-use development areas, non-residential 

uses should provide appropriate screening and buff ering 

from residential uses.

e. Non-residential uses should have site design features 

that limit traffi  c, noise, lighting, and adversely impacts 

on surrounding residential land uses.

f. Major commercial and employment centers and institu-

tional and government services should be designed to 

accommodate convenient transit service, particularly 

for those with mobility challenges.

g. Building entrances should be oriented to the street or 

internal circulation drives that connect to the street and 

designated pedestrian connections should be provided 

from building entrances to the street.

h. Development abutting the targeted arterials, Kellogg 

freeway, gateways, and landmarks identifi ed on the 

, 

-

d 

143



Future Land Use Policies    Page 25

Priority Enhancement Areas for Wichita Infrastructure 
Projects Map should consider the inclusion of site design 

features that increase the sense of quality of life through 

emphasis of visual character and aesthetic improve-

ments.

2. Established Central Area

a. Support development of a variety of lot sizes and hous-

ing types.

b. Buildings are encouraged to be located close to the 

street with parking areas located beside or behind 

buildings.

c. Commercial and mixed-used developments are en-

couraged to have building entrances, transparent 

facades, and outdoor patios adjacent to the sidewalk.

3. Outside Established Central Area

a. Low-density residential lots should not front directly 

onto arterial streets.

b. Layout of blocks within neighborhoods should pro-

mote direct pedestrian connectivity within in the 

neighborhood and to adjacent neighborhoods and 

surrounding commercial centers and institutional 

uses.

4. Rural Area 
a. Layout of blocks that provide a single point of access to 

a neighborhood should be discouraged.

4. Wichita Urban Infill Strategy

Infi ll refers to developing vacant or underutilized land in 

existing developed areas.  By absorbing growth in existing 

developed areas, residential and employment-based infi ll 

development can reduce growth pressure on rural areas; 

provide for effi  cient use of land; utilize existing infrastruc-

ture and services; and improve the quality of life in areas 

experiencing abandonment and decline.  However, infi ll 

development can be inhibited by regulatory barriers, infra-

structure in need of modernization, neighborhood con-

cerns about diff erent housing types or incompatible uses, 

and diffi  culties with land assembly and fi nancing.

Th e Wichita Urban Infi ll Strategy is focused on the Estab-

lished Central Area – comprised of the downtown core 

and the mature neighborhoods surrounding it in a roughly 

three mile radius (see 2035 Wichita Future Growth Concept 

Map). Increased levels of residential infi ll/redevelopment 

throughout the Established Central Area will represent 12% 

of total new dwelling units forecasted for Wichita by 2035 

(a threefold increase from current trends).  

Th e strategy focuses on ‘areas of opportunity’ that have the 

most vacant and underutilized parcels where infi ll devel-

opment can reverse patterns of abandonment and decline.  

Th e strategy also is intended to preserve ‘areas of stability’ 

where few vacant and underutilized parcels exist and a pat-

tern of continued reinvestment is evident. Neighborhood 

and area plans adopted as elements of the Wichita-Sedg-

wick County Comprehensive Plan will provide additional 

land use policy guidance as applicable.

Areas of Opportunity

Defi ning Characteristics:  Areas of opportunity are areas in 

the community where focused eff orts on infi ll development 

can have the most success.  Th e defi ning characteristics of 

areas of opportunity are generally higher than average and 

increasing:

 ▪ Vacant parcels

 ▪ Vacancy rates

 ▪ Renter-occupied 

 dwelling units

 ▪ Structures in fair or 

 worse condition

 ▪ Nuisance complaints

 ▪ Building demolitions

 ▪ Infrastructure below 

 standard

144



Page 26 Future Land Use Policies

walkable, urban-scale infi ll projects, regulatory changes are 

required.

Strategy:  Amend development regulations to better en-

courage by-right infi ll development projects.

Infrastructure Modernization

Issue:  Many of the areas where the opportunity for infi ll 

development exist are also the areas with the most sub-

standard infrastructure.  While infrastructure may be in 

place, it oft en cannot support additional development, and 

the layout and design of the infrastructure oft en must be 

changed to support the confi guration of infi ll.

Strategy:  Develop and implement a long-range plan for 

major infrastructure maintenance projects that focuses in-

frastructure investment in areas of opportunity in a manner 

supportive of infi ll development eff orts.

Land Assembly and Financing

Issue:  Profi table infi ll development opportunities are 

diffi  cult to fi nd.  Once an area experiences a few successful 

projects, the remaining available land oft en increases in val-

ue beyond a level at which additional projects can be profi t-

able.  Additionally, infi ll development projects oft en do not 

qualify for conventional fi nancing because the appraised 

value of project is less than the cost of development.

Strategy:  Establish a public-private relationship to support 

infi ll development through market research, design assis-

tance, and fi nancing opportunities.

Guiding Principle:  Larger-scale, multi-property infi ll proj-

ects should be guided to areas of opportunity to maximize 

public investment in existing and planned infrastructure 

and services.

Areas of Stability

Defi ning Characteristics: Areas of stability are areas in the 

community where infi ll development opportunities are lim-

ited by the lack of available land.  Areas of stability have few 

vacant parcels and higher than average occupancy rates.  A 

majority of the structures are in average or better condition 

and owner-occupied.  Th ere are few nuisance complaints 

and building demolitions, and much of the infrastructure is 

at or above standard.

Guiding Principle:  Infi ll development should be limited to 

projects on individual or small sites with a scale of devel-

opment appropriate for its context.  Infi ll projects should 

complement existing neighborhood development and 

incorporate site design features that limit traffi  c, noise, 

lighting, and adverse impacts on surrounding properties.

Neighborhood Concerns

Issue:  Infi ll development changes a neighborhood.  While 

redevelopment projects can be of the appropriate scale 

and have the necessary design features to mitigate adverse 

impacts on surrounding properties, current processes make 

it diffi  cult for neighborhoods to visualize the proposed 

changes and have meaningful input into project design.

Strategy:  Establish a participatory neighborhood planning 

program to prepare neighborhood design guidelines for 

areas of opportunity prior to construction of large-scale, 

multi-property infi ll projects. Also develop basic infi ll de-

velopment guidelines that would be applicable throughout 

the Established Central Area.

Regulatory Issues

Issue:  Our traditional development regulations are geared 

toward suburban-scale, auto-oriented development re-

quirements (such as:  parking, setbacks, density, landscap-

ing, screening, etc.). To promote greater levels of more 

“...infi ll development projects

oft en do not qualify for 

conventional fi nancing

because the appraised value 

of a project is less than

the cost of development...”

145



Plan Elements    Page 27

Plan Elements

146



Page 28 Plan Elements

Th is page intentionally blank.

147



Plan Elements    Page 29

Plan Element- 
Funding and Financing 
Plan Context & Perspective - According to Kansas statutes, 

a specifi c requirement of a city and county comprehen-

sive plan is to identify major sources and expenditures of 

public revenue including long range fi nancial plans for the 

fi nancing of public facilities and capital improvements. 

For the purposes of this Plan, the term ‘funding’ is used to 

describe the various sources of revenue available for spend-

ing/investing. Th e term ‘fi nancing’ is used to describe the 

various means by which funding is 

leveraged, combined and utilized for 

spending/investing purposes.

One of the Core Community Values 

of this Plan is fi scal responsibility. 

Th is value embodies the following 

principles … don’t spend more than you have; spend and 

invest wisely; take care of what you have; and maximize the 

‘return-on-investment’. 

Presently, there is an estimated $9-10 billion gap over the 

next 20 years between Wichita’s planned future infrastruc-

ture and facility expenditures and its projected revenues. A 

key challenge of this Plan is how to close that gap over the 

long-term. Our choices are essentially increasing revenues 

(through taxes and fees), decreasing expenditures (utilizing 

alternate approaches or standards; reducing scope and scale 

of projects; deferring or eliminating projects), and learning 

to live within the funding and fi nancing resources available 

to local government.

From a public infrastructure funding and fi nancing per-

spective, the preferred option of closing the projected 

expenditure and revenue gap over the long term is to better 

align expenditures with available funding and fi nancing 

resources. While opportunities to increase revenues may 

present themselves in the future, there are more opportuni-

ties to improve how budget allocations are made for capital 

improvements.

Our Funding and Financing Goals & Strategies

Goal 1 - Close the long-term cost/revenue gap between 

our planned future infrastructure and facility expendi-

tures and our projected revenues.

Strategies: 

A. Strategically leverage public and private funding 

where possible.

B. Decrease project costs through a combination of 

reduced or alternate project approaches or standards; 

reduced project scale and scope; and, project deferral 

or elimination.

C. Identify long-term maintenance and 

replacement costs for all capital im-

provement program projects. Include 

ongoing maintenance and operations 

budgets as part of the overall project 

cost. 

D. Align infrastructure and facility funding to refl ect 

the maintenance and replacement costs associated 

with that infrastructure or facility.

Goal 2 - Maintain a responsible and appropriate taxing 

level to address our community’s needs.

Strategies: 

A. Align utility fees, user fees and taxes to refl ect the 

cost of providing facilities and services at standards 

acceptable to our community.

B. Align our public infrastructure and facility invest-

ments with the willingness of our community to pay 

for them.

Goal 3- Establish funding priorities which refl ect commu-

nity priorities.

Strategies: 

A. Fund public infrastructure and facilities based upon 

the following overall ranking of spending and invest-

ment priorities:

1. Maintain and replace what we currently have;

2. Make enhancements to what we currently have;

3. Expand our current system of infrastructure and 

facility assets.

B. Focus funding on infrastructure and facilities that 

“...better align expenditures 

with available funding and 

fi nancing resources...”

“...there is an estimated $9-10 billion gap 
over the next 20 years between 

Wichita’s planned future infrastructure 
and facility expenditures and its 

projected revenues...”

148



Page 30 Plan Elements

will advance our community quality of life, create 

a place that will retain future generations, and pro-

mote economic growth and job cre-

ation.

C. Focus funding on infrastructure and 

facilities that will maintain vibrancy, 

promote growth and secure quality of 

place in the Established Central Area of 

Wichita.

D. Review existing public infrastructure 

and facility assets to determine those 

assets which should no longer be re-

tained by the City or County due to duplication/

redundancies with private sector facilities, functional 

obsolescence, and/or changing community invest-

ment priorities. 

Plan Element -
Transportation
Plan Context & Perspective - Th e realization of the 2035 

Plan Vision Statement is dependent upon our community 

having a safe, reliable and well-connected transportation 

system that strategically supports 

economic growth and community 

quality of life. Th e term “trans-

portation” refers to the movement 

of goods, people and information.

Our transportation infrastructure 

constitutes a basic yet essential, 

community-sustaining invest-

ment.

Wichita’s freeway and bridge 

infrastructure are in good condi-

tion overall with adequate system 

capacity. Th e County’s road and bridge infrastructure are 

in very good repair and condition. However, decades of 

under-investment and deferred maintenance 

in Wichita’s local road system has required 

the City to develop an enhanced maintenance 

strategy for its local road infrastructure. Ad-

ditional expenditures are needed to maintain 

Wichita’s local road system.  

Decades of under-investment in Wichita’s 

long-established public transit system have 

resulted in minimal service levels, low rider-

ship and future fi nancial instability. Additional 

investment in Wichita’s public transit system 

would be needed in order to achieve the system’s fi nancial 

stability and retain public transit service.

For Wichita, the level of investment priority over the next 

20 years varies across the major transportation infrastruc-

ture categories as follows:

Low priority - new bypasses

Low-medium priority - freeway enhancements

Medium-high priority - public transit

Very high priority - local streets and bridges

Our Transportation Goals & Strategies

Goal 1 - Preserve and maintain a safe, cost-eff ective and 

reliable transportation system that strategically supports 

the economic growth, vitality and quality of life aspira-

tions of our community.

Strategies: 

A. Develop and implement a transportation asset man-

agement system that eff ectively uses available funds.

B. Make transportation infrastructure investments, 

particularly integrated transportation technology 

enhancements, that support and refl ect Wichita’s 

2035 Future Growth Concept and Urban 

Infi ll Strategy.

C. Allocate additional funding for 

the long-term maintenance and 

replacement of Wichita’s existing 

local road and bridge infrastruc-

ture.

having a safe, reliable and 

s

e

q

p

o

O

cc

cccc

mmmmm

WWWWWWWW

iininiiininiinnii

ttttttttttttttt

“...additional 

expenditures 

are needed to 

maintain

Wichita’s local 

road system...”

149



Plan Elements    Page 31

D. Invest in new or existing transportation infrastructure 

that directly supports additional job growth, especially 

of an advanced manufacturing or high-tech nature.

Goal 2 - Improve and increase the movement of goods, 

people and information with better connectivity and mo-

bility options in our community.

Strategies: 

A. Develop and implement a communi-

ty-wide, public and/or private broad-

band infrastructure and high-speed 

internet access plan to support future 

job and employment growth. 

B. Develop and implement a long-term 

public transit system plan that refl ects 

the needs of our community.

C. Improve our community connectiv-

ity and safety through the implementation of Wichita’s 
Bicycle Master Plan and Pedestrian Master Plan, and 

promoting linkages to surrounding cities in the County.

D. Coordinate and integrate local transportation infrastruc-

ture plans with the Wichita Area Metropolitan Area 

Organization (WAMPO) long-range regional transpor-

tation infrastructure plan.

Plan Element - 

Water, Sewer & Stormwater
Plan Context & Perspective - Th e realization of the 2035 

Plan Vision Statement is predicated upon our community 

securing a long-term water supply, and having well-main-

tained water treatment/distribution, sewer collection/treat-

ment and stormwater/fl ood management systems. Th ese 

constitute essential, community-sustaining services. Th ey 

represent a basic yet essential public investment that sup-

ports future job growth and a strong economy.

Decades of under-investment and deferred maintenance 

in Wichita’s water, sewer and stormwater infrastructure 

requires the City to be aggressive in protecting what assets 

it already has (especially replacing aging 

pipe infrastructure) and making future 

water and sewer facility enhancements to 

meet required treatment and discharge 

standards. Additional investment in our 

community water, sewer and stormwater 

infrastructure and facilities is necessary 

… securing a long-term water supply is 

critical to the future of our community.

Th e funding/fi nancing, maintenance, re-

placement and enhancement of our public water, sewer and 

stormwater infrastructure and facilities is a high-very high 
investment need for our community over the long term. 

Our Water, Sewer and Stormwater Goals & Strategies

Goal 1 - Provide a well-maintained long-term water sup-

ply, treatment and distribution system that supports the 

economic growth, vitality and quality of life aspirations of 

our community.

Strategies: 

A. Develop and implement Wichita’s long-term water 

supply, treatment and distribution plans to refl ect and 

accommodate Wichita’s 2035 Future Growth Concept 

and Urban Infi ll Strategy (including long-term popula-

tion and employment growth projections).

B. Develop and implement a Wichita water supply funding/

fi nancing plan that enables our community to make 

those investments necessary to secure an aff ordable, 

long-term water supply.

C. Develop and implement a Wichita water funding/fi nanc-

ing plan that identifi es appropriate water rate adjust-

ments necessary to properly maintain Wichita’s water 

infrastructure over the long-term.

“…securing a 

long-term 
water supply

 is critical to 
the future of 

our community...”

tation infrastructure plan.

Plan Element -

150



Page 32 Plan Elements

D. Place a very high in-

vestment priority on 

properly maintaining and 

replacing Wichita’s aging, 

existing water distribu-

tion system.

E. Develop and implement 

a Wichita water conser-

vation and drought-re-

sponse plan that is rele-

vant to our community’s 

need and supported by 

our community.

F. Create a task force com-

prised of appropriate 

representatives from the 

City of Wichita and other 

aff ected cities,  the local 

land development community, and the rural water 

districts to identify workable long-term solutions to 

compensatory and logistical issues associated with 

continued urban growth and development within the 

rural water districts in Sedgwick County.

Goal 2 - Provide a well-maintained Wichita sanitary sewer 

treatment and collection system that supports the 

economic growth, vitality and quality of life aspira-

tions of our community.

Strategies: 

A. Develop and implement Wichita’s long-term sewer 

collection and treatment plans to refl ect and accom-

modate Wichita’s 2035 Future Growth Concept and 

Urban Infi ll Strategy (including long-term population 

and employment growth projections).

B. Develop and implement a Wichita sewer funding/

fi nancing plan that identifi es appropriate sewer rate 

adjustments necessary to properly maintain Wichita’s 

sewer infrastructure over the long-term.

C. Place a very high investment priority on properly 

maintaining and replacing Wichita’s aging, existing 

sewer collection system.

D. Invest to ensure that Wichita’s sewer collection and 

treatment infrastructure and facilities meet required 

standards and long-term community needs.

E. Ensure that appropriate local regulations are in place 

that provide for the compatible, long-term co-exis-

tence of city water and sewer infrastructure systems 

with self-contained, independent sewer collection and 

water distribution systems.

Goal 3 - Provide a well-maintained stormwater manage-

ment system and approach that adequately serves 

and protects our community while meeting state and 

federal mandates.

Strategies: 

A. Develop and implement long-term stormwater man-

agement plans that refl ect and accommodate Wichita’s 

2035 Future Growth Concept and Urban Infi ll Strategy 

(including long-term population and employment 

growth projections), and address countywide storm-

water and fl ooding issues.

B. Develop and implement a countywide stormwater 

funding/fi nancing plan that will raise suffi  cient reve-

nues needed to plan and construct stormwater project 

improvements with regional, countywide or multi-ju-

risdiction benefi ts.

C. Develop and implement a Wichita stormwater fund-

ing/fi nancing plan that determines appropriate ERU 

(equivalent residential unit) rate adjustments neces-

sary to properly fund the maintenance and repair of 

Wichita’s stormwater infrastructure over the long-

term.

“…invest in  

maintaining and 
replacing 

our aging water and 

sewer distribution 

systems...”

151



Plan Elements    Page 33

D. Make the investments necessary to properly maintain 

and replace our existing stormwater infrastructure and 

facilities.

E. Maintain and implement stormwater management stan-

dards that meet mandated requirements but do not place 

undue burdens on development or redevelopment.

F. Integrate park and open space improvements where 

appropriate and cost-eff ective as part of stormwater man-

agement system infrastructure improvements.

Plan Element - 

Arts, Culture and Recreation 
Plan Context & Perspective - Having a “quality living en-

vironment and active, healthy lifestyles with access to arts, 

culture and recreation” is specifi cally referenced in the 2035 

Plan Vision Statement. One of the fi ve Plan Guiding Policy 

Principles is to Invest in the Quality of Our 

Community Life.  It is evident that commu-

nity quality of life investments are import-

ant to residents of our community and are 

an essential means of supporting future job 

growth and a strong economy. 

Arts, culture and recreation quality of life 

investments refer to capital, maintenance 

and operational spending in the general 

categories of parks and open space; recreation facilities; 

libraries; and, arts, culture and entertainment. From a 

public infrastructure perspective, appropriately funding, 

maintaining and expanding our arts, culture and recreation 

quality of life investments is an overall medium-high priori-
ty investment need for our community over the long term. 

Our Arts, Culture and Recreation Goals & Strategies

Goal 1 - Improve quality of life and healthy lifestyles for 

all through an accessible system of premier arts, culture, 

library, recreation and open space facilities.

Strategies: 

A. Review and update the Wichita Parks, Recreation and 
Open Space Plan to ensure that future planned parks/

open space and recreation facility investments (capital, 

maintenance, operations) strategically integrate with 

County regional parks and open space investments, and 

remain consistent with our community priorities and 

willingness to pay.

B. Develop and implement 

a joint City/County 

integrated cultural arts/

quality of life facilities 

investment plan to 

achieve better planning, 

coordination, integra-

tion and maximization 

of City and County quality of life community invest-

ments.

C. Utilize relationships with private and not-for-profi t 

organizations and secure dedicated funding sources for 

the construction, maintenance and operation of our 

quality of life investments (includes park/open space, 

recreation, library and cultural arts 

facilities).

D. Employ best management practices/

systems to properly maintain our 

existing quality of life facilities.

E. Review and update the Wichita Public 

Library System Master Plan to en-

sure our city-wide system of library 

facilities and associated technologies 

remain relevant to the evolving library needs of our 

community.

F. Develop and implement a “built environment” strategic 

plan that better promotes healthy community lifestyles, 

neighborhood and community connectivity, resource 

conservation, protecting the City’s urban forest in public 

spaces, and multiple-use integration of our parks, open 

space and stormwater management systems.

G. Establish a task force to identify opportunity areas and 

regulatory adjustments necessary to support agri-tour-

ism in the unincorporated areas of Sedgwick County.

“...quality of life 
investments are 

important to
residents of our 

community...”

152



Page 34 Plan Elements

Plan Element - 

Public Safety 
Plan Context & Perspective - Having a “safe community” 

is specifi cally referenced in the 2035 Plan Vision Statement. 

From a public infrastructure perspective, appropriately 

maintaining and expanding our fi re, police and EMS facil-

ities is a high priority investment need for our community 

over the long term. 

Our Public Safety Goals & Strategies

Goal 1 - Provide effi  cient and eff ective police, fi re and 

EMS public safety service facilities that meet current and 

future community needs.

Strategies: 

A. Identify opportunities for collaborative partnerships, 

joint-funding and joint-use agreements, and sharing 

of facilities between public safety government agen-

cies.

B. Evaluate the merits of City/County public safety ser-

vices consolidation as an option to provide for more 

coordinated and cost-eff ective public safety facility 

operations and service delivery.

C. Ensure that service and facility planning for police, fi re 

and EMS service delivery addresses current and future 

community needs, adapts to future patterns of growth, 

and supports neighborhood-based safety initiatives 

within the City of Wichita.

D. Establish performance measures that evaluate func-

tional relevancy, need and eff ective utilization of our 

public safety service facilities.

“...maintaining and 

expanding our fi re, 
police, and EMS facilities 

is a 
high priority 

investment need...”

153



DRAFT  November, 2014

Intent and Purpose:  

Th is map replaces the 1993 Visual Form map and is 

intended to foster eff orts to improve community percep-

tion and increase the sense of quality of life in Wichita 

through emphasis of the visual character of public facili-

ties and open spaces.

Its purpose is to help the City with prioritizing City of 

Wichita public works projects along specifi ed corridors, 

at gateways, and at other selected locations for aesthetic 

improvements including landscaping, public art, and 

other visual enhancements to public facilites and rights-

of-way. 

Priority 
Enhancement Areas 
for Wichita Public

Infrastructure 
Projects

154



155



Plan Implementation    Page 37

Plan Implementation

156



Page 38 Plan Implementation

Th is page intentionally blank.

157



Plan Implementation    Page 39

Plan Implementation
Part 1. Infrastructure Investment Decision-making Framework

Plan Context & Perspective - Th e infrastructure investment decision-making framework is a tool to systemat-

ically guide future public spending in a manner that supports community priorities, refl ects willingness to pay, 

and is coordinated with market-driven growth. Th is framework is also intended to help close the gap over the 

next 20 years between our forecasted revenues and the costs of our proposed capital project needs and wants 

associated with the 2035 Wichita Future Growth Concept.  Th e forecasted revenues and proposed capital proj-

ect costs have been aggregated and summarized below for planning-level purposes:

Project Costs

 ▪ Maintaining and replacing existing infrastructure $4.9 billion

 ▪ Making enhancements to what we currently have $6.4 billion

 ▪ Expanding our current system of infrastructure & facilities $2.1 billion

                                                                                                                 Total    $13.4 billion

Forecasted Revenues Total       $3.9 billion

  Projected Gap   $9.5 billion

Th e infrastructure investment decision-making framework is comprised of various components, criteria and 

considerations.  Th is framework is intended to encourage long-term continuity and best practices for de-

cision-makers as they implement the Guiding Principles, Goals and Strategies set forth in this Plan, for the 

intent of …

 ▪ Promoting economic growth and job creation

 ▪ Advancing community quality of life and safety

 ▪ Creating a community that will attract and retain future generations

For the purposes of this Plan, the term ‘spending/investing’ is used to describe where and for what purposes 

funding and fi nancing will be utilized. Th e term ‘decision-making’ is the process of deciding how to spend/

invest.

Th e Framework … 

Th e components and accompanying criteria listed below represent diff erent levels of evaluation for both new 

and replacement infrastructure and facility projects. Th ere will be interplay between these three levels of eval-

uation during the project decision-making process.

Level 1 Evaluation - Detailed Project Analysis 
(determining individual project merits)

 ▪ To what extent is this project right for our community in terms of:

a) Scope and scale (cost eff ectiveness)

b) Timing

 ▪ Is this project recommended in a plan approved or endorsed by the City Council or the County Board of 

Commissioners?

 ▪ To what extent does this project build upon prior investments or generate multiple benefi ts to our community?

158



Page 40 Plan Implementation

 ▪ Is there a legal mandate or requirement to do this project?

 ▪ To what extent does this project reduce or off set costs to the community?

 ▪ Project economic and quality of life assessments – will this project:

a) Increase wealth for our local economy

b) Generate job growth for our community

c) Secure or protect important natural resources (soil, water and air quality)

d) Retain current residents and attract future residents - help create a community that is desirable and 

attractive to future generations

 ▪ Is this a project that impacts infrastructure or facility assets that should no longer be retained by the City or 

County due to duplication/redundancies with private sector facilities, functional obsolescence, and/or chang-

ing community investment priorities?

 ▪ Project funding and fi nancing assessments:

a) How will this project be funded and fi nanced

b) Is this project identifi ed for funding in the Capital Improvement Program for Wichita or Sedgwick 

County

c) What is the project’s impact on the City of Wichita or Sedgwick County budget

d) Have suffi  cient operating and maintenance funds been secured for this project once construction is 

completed

e) Has a benefi t/cost or ‘return-on-investment’ analysis been done for this project

f) What are the ‘trade-off s’ if this project is approved (e.g. what other projects do not get built, or are 

deferred or reduced in scope)

Level 2 Evaluation - Project Selection & Funding 
(determining project priorities)

 ▪ To what extent is this project consistent with the fi ve Plan Guiding Policy Principles:

1. Support an Innovative, Vibrant and Diverse Economy

2. Invest in the Quality of Our Community Life

3. Take Better Care of What We Already Have

4. Make Strategic, Value-added Investment Decisions

5. Provide for Balanced Growth but with Added Focus on Existing Neighborhoods

 ▪ What is the priority of this project in relation to the ‘Infrastructure & Facility Investment Category Priorities’:

Priority 1 - Maintain and replace what we currently have

Priority 2 - Make enhancements to what we currently have

Priority 3 - Expand our current system of infrastructure and facility assets

159



Plan Implementation    Page 41

 ▪ To what extent is this project consistent with the Plan Element Goals for:

* Public Safety

* Transportation

* Water, Sewer, Stormwater

* Arts, Culture, Recreation

* Funding and Financing

 ▪ Does this project allocate funding to those categories of infrastructure that have the highest need for addi-

tional investment?

Level 3 Evaluation - Capital Improvement Programming
(appropriate project timing, phasing & sequencing)

 ▪ To what extent do the capital projects programmed for Wichita or Sedgwick County refl ect the project initi-

ation and completion sequencing principles of: ‘plan’, ‘design’, ‘fund/fi nance’, ‘construct’?

 ▪ To what extent are the capital projects programmed for funding over the next three to fi ve years properly 

and logically timed, coordinated and integrated (geographically and fi scally)?

 ▪ To what extent are the capital projects programmed for funding critically and strategically timed and syn-

chronized with external mandates and/or external funding and fi nancing considerations?

 ▪ To what extent are the capital projects coordinated with market-driven development?

160



Page 42 Plan Implementation

Part 2. Plan Monitoring, Review and 
Amendment 

Plan Context & Perspective - In a new era of social and 

economic uncertainty, it is imperative that a systematic and 

ongoing approach be developed to monitor change and to 

review and evaluate this Plan. Th is will allow the Plan to be 

adjusted and updated annually as necessary so as to remain 

relevant and appropriate for our community. Th e ultimate 

measure of the Plan’s success is whether it helps our com-

munity to become what we wish it to be over the next 20 

years.

a) Plan Monitoring Approach

2035 Plan Vision Statement - Refl ects Desired Plan Out-
comes:

 >  Global center of advanced manufacturing and 

high-tech industries

 >  Premier regional service, education and retail 

center

 >  Aff ordable housing opportunities

 >  Vibrant neighborhoods

 >  Active, healthy lifestyles

 >  Safe community

Plan Guiding Policy Principles - Represent Key Areas to 
Measure Plan Performance: 

1.  Support an Innovative, Vibrant and Diverse Economy.

Hi-tech, advanced manufacturing and business start-up 

job-growth indicators

a) Center for Economic Development and Business Re-

search data:

• Bureau of Labor Statistics 

• County Business Patterns

• GDP data (total and per capita growth rates)

• Small Business Innovation Research Grants

• Small Business Technical Transformation Grants

b) Greater Wichita Economic Development Coalition data:

• Annual projects announcement report data

Regional service, education and retail job growth indicators

a) Center for Economic Development and Business Re-

search data:

• Bureau of Labor Statistics  

• County Business Patterns

b) GWEDC data:

• Annual projects announcement report data

c) American Community Survey data:

• Annual education attainment levels for Wichita and 

Sedgwick County

Economic opportunities & growth indicators

a) National Citizen Survey Benchmark Results for Wichita* 

- ‘Wichita average rating’ & ‘comparison to benchmark’ 

for the following survey questions:

• Employment opportunities

• Shopping opportunities

• Economic development services

• Educational opportunities

• Wichita as a place to work

b) American Community Survey data:

• Annual median income for Wichita and Sedgwick 

County

• Annual percentage change in the 25-40 age cohort for 

Wichita and Sedgwick County

• Wichita and Sedgwick County unemployment rates

2. Invest in the Quality of Our Community Life.

Quality of life indicators

a) National Citizen Survey Benchmark Results for Wichita*  

- ‘Wichita average rating’ & ‘comparison to benchmark’ 

for the following survey questions:

• Overall quality of life in Wichita

• Sense of community

• Your neighborhood as a place to live

• Wichita as a place to live

• Wichita as a place to raise kids

• Wichita as a place to retire

• Recommend living in Wichita

• Will remain in Wichita for the next fi ve years

• Opportunities to attend cultural activities

• Air quality

• Public safety – violent crimes

• Public safety – property crimes

*assumes continued future participation

161



Plan Implementation    Page 43

3. Take Better Care of What We Already Have.

Plan Element: Public Safety

Building Facility Condition Indicators

a) Wichita Public Works and Utilities Dept. (under devel-

opment)

• Building asset value ($ million)

• Building remaining service life (sq. footage yrs.)

• Buildings with no remaining service life (sq. footage)

b) Sedgwick County Information & Operations - Facilities 

Division

• Building roof useful life remaining

• Building HVAC useful life remaining

Plan Element: Transportation

Street and Bridge Infrastructure Condition Indicators 

a) Wichita Public Works and Utilities Dept. (under devel-

opment)

• Paved road network service value ($ million)

• Paved road network remaining service life (lane mile 

yrs.)

• Paved road lane miles with no remaining service life 

(lane miles)

• Bridge network service value ($ million)

• Bridge network remaining service life (lane mile yrs.)

• Bridge network remaining service life (lane miles)

b) Sedgwick County Public Works Division

• Percentage of paved lane miles receiving preventative 

maintenance

• Percentage of all lane miles with permanent pave-

ment

• Percentage of all lane miles with temporary pavement

• Bridge average suffi  ciency rating (scale of 0 to 100)

• Bridge percentage of inventory with suffi  ciency rating 

below 50

• Number of bridges requiring special inspections

c) National Citizen Survey Benchmark Results for Wichita* 

- ‘Wichita average rating’ & ‘comparison to benchmark’ 

for the following survey questions:

• County Business Patterns

• Street repair

• Sidewalk maintenance

• Ease of car travel

• Ease of bus travel

• Ease of bicycle travel

• Ease of walking

Plan Element: Water, Sewer, Stormwater

Water, Sewer and Stormwater Infrastructure Condition 

Indicators

a) Wichita Public Works and Utilities Dept. (under devel-

opment)

• Water, sewer, stormwater line and main network 

service value ($ million)

• Water, sewer, stormwater line and main network 

remaining service life (pipe inches/feet yrs.)

• Water, sewer, stormwater line and main network with 

no remaining service life (pipe inches/feet)

• Long-term water supply (mg/day/years)

• Water treatment plant asset value ($ million)

• Water treatment plant capacity (million gallons/day 

years)

• Wastewater treatment plant asset value ($ million)

• Wastewater treatment plant capacity (million gallons/

day years)

b) Sedgwick County Public Works Division 

• Number of homes and businesses in the 100 year 

fl oodplain

c) National Citizen Survey Benchmark Results for Wichita* 

- ‘Wichita average rating’ & ‘comparison to benchmark’ 

for the following survey questions:

• Sewer services

• Drinking water

• Storm drainage

Plan Element: Arts, Culture, Recreation

Building Facility Condition Indicators

a) Wichita Public Works and Utilities Dept. (under devel-

opment)

• Building asset value ($ million)

• Building remaining service life (sq. footage yrs.)

• Buildings with no remaining service life (sq. footage)

*assumes continued future participation

162



Page 44 Plan Implementation

b) County Appraiser’s Offi  ce 

• Annual number of net new dwelling units in Sedg-

wick County, Wichita and the Established Central 

Area

• Annual net new commercial square footage in Sedg-

wick County, Wichita and the Established Central 

Area

b) Plan Review & Amendment
• Prepare an annual plan monitoring report containing 

a summary of the key performance indicators data 

associated with the fi ve Plan Guiding Principles. Th e 

report would also document progress on the imple-

menting the Plan Element Goals and Strategies

• Review the annual monitoring report with City and 

County Department Heads, the Advance Plans Com-

mittee, the MAPC as well as the Wichita City Council 

and the Board of Sedgwick County Commissioners

• Prepare list of recommendations regarding any ap-

propriate Plan amendments

• Staff  initiative Plan amendments as appropriate for 

consideration by the MAPC

 

b) Sedgwick County Information & Operations - Facilities 

Division

• Building roof useful life remaining

• Building HVAC useful life remaining 

c) National Citizen Survey Benchmark Results for Wichita* 

- ‘Wichita average rating’ & ‘comparison to benchmark’ 

for the following survey questions:

• Recreation opportunities

• City park services

• City recreation center facilities

• Public library services

4. Make Strategic, Value-added Investment Decisions.

Key Value-added Investment Indicators

a) National Citizen Survey Benchmark Results for Wichita 

‘Wichita average rating’ & ‘comparison to benchmark’ 

for the following survey questions:

• Value of services for the taxes paid to Wichita

b) Metropolitan Area Planning Department (MAPD), 

Wichita and Sedgwick County Finance Departments

• An annual report prepared by MAPD with input 

from the City and County Finance Departments and 

a survey of the Metropolitan Area Planning Commis-

sion (MAPC) members that assesses the consistency 

level of capital projects funded in the city and county 

capital improvement programs with the investment 

decision-making framework components and criteria 

set forth in the Community Investments Plan.

5.  Provide for Balanced Growth but with Added Focus on 

Our Established Neighborhoods.

Key Resource Allocation Indicators

a) Wichita Finance Dept.

• % of total annual capital investments in infrastruc-

ture/facilities projects located within and/or ben-

efi ting Wichita’s Established Central Area and the 

Suburban Area

Key Growth Indicators

a) American Community Survey 

• Annual net population growth in Sedgwick County, 

Wichita and the Established Central Area

*assumes continued future participation

163



          Agenda Item No. IV-10 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:   Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structure 
   (Districts I and III) 
 
INITIATED BY:  Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department 
 
AGENDA:  New Business   
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: Close the public hearing, adopt the resolutions declaring the buildings to be 
dangerous and unsafe structures, and accept the Board of Building Code Standards and Appeals (BBCSA) 
recommended actions to proceed with condemnation, allowing 10 days to start demolition and 10 days to 
complete removal of the structures.   
 
Background: On August 25, 2015, a report was submitted with respect to the dangerous and unsafe 
conditions on the properties listed below.  The City Council adopted resolutions providing for a public 
hearing to be held on the condemnation actions at 9:30 a.m. or soon thereafter, on October 6, 2015.       
   
Analysis: On August 3, 2015, the BBCSA conducted a hearing on the properties listed below.   
 
 Property Address     Council District 
 a. 344 N. Piatt        I 
 b. 430 N. Bleckley (shared accessory structure)   I 
 c. 116 W. Zimmerly (parcel address 1352 S. Water)             III 
 d. 2671 S. Fees                  III 
      
Detailed information/analyses concerning the properties are included in the attachments. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Structures condemned as dangerous buildings are demolished with funds 
from the Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department (MABCD) Special Revenue Fund 
contractual services budget, as approved annually by the City Council.   This budget is supplemented by 
an annual allocation of Federal Community Development Block Grant funds for demolition of structures 
located within the designated Neighborhood Reinvestment Area. Expenditures for dangerous building 
condemnation and demolition activities are tracked to ensure that City Council Resolution No. R-95-560, 
which limits MABCD expenditures for non-revenue producing condemnation and housing code 
enforcement activities to twenty percent (20%) of MABCD's total annual budgeted Special Revenue Fund 
expenditures, is followed.  Owners of condemned structures demolished by the City are billed for the 
contractual costs of demolition, plus an additional five hundred dollar ($500) administrative fee.  If the 
property owner fails to pay, these charges are recorded as a special property tax assessment against the 
property, which may be collected upon subsequent sale or transfer of the property.   
 
Legal Considerations:  The resolutions and notices of hearing were reviewed and approved as to form by 
the Law Department. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

164



Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council close the public hearing, adopt the 
resolutions declaring the buildings to be dangerous and unsafe structures, and accept the BBCSA 
recommended actions to proceed with condemnation, allowing 10 days to start demolition and 10 days to 
complete removal of the structures.  Any extensions of time granted to repair any structures would be 
contingent on the following: (1) All taxes have been paid to date as of October 6, 2015; (2) the structures 
have been secured as of October 6, 2015, and will continue to be kept secured; and (3) the premises are 
mowed and free of debris as of October 6, 2015, and will be so maintained during renovation. 
 
If any of the above conditions are not met, the MABCD will proceed with demolition action and also 
instruct the City Clerk to have the resolutions published once in the official city paper and advise the 
owner of these findings. 
 
Attachments:  Case summary, CDM summary and follow-up history 
 
 
 

165



October 6, 2015
City Council

Removal of Dangerous Structure Case Summary 

Address Cncl. 
Dist.

Hsng. Case 
Age 

Cndm. Init. 
Date

BCSA Hearing Date & Recommendation Owner/ 
Rep. At 
BCSA ?

Open or 
Secure

Premise Cond. 
Status

Property         
Tax Status

Special                 
Assessments

344 N. Piatt I 4 yrs.
7 mos.

05/12/15 08/03/15 - 10/10 Yes Unsecure with 
an open south 
window.

Tall grass and 
weeds, tree 
waste and 
miscellaneous 
debris.

The 2011, 
2012, 2013 and 
2014 taxes are 
delinquent in 
the amount of 
$939.05, which 
includes 
interest.

There are 2015 
special assessments 
for board-up in the 
amount of $258.77 
and lot cleanup in 
the amount $833.69, 
both include 
interest.  

430 N. Bleckley 
(shared accessory structure)

I 7 mos. 05/12/15 08/03/15 - 10/10 No Unsecure Tall grass and 
weeds. 

Current None

116 W. Zimmerly 
(parcel address 1352 S. Water)

III 3 yrs.
2 mos.

05/12/15 08/03/15 - 10/10 Yes Secure Maintained Current There are 2015 
special assessments 
for board-up in the 
amount of $89.05 
and lot cleanup in 
the amount of 
$1,019.39, which 
includes interest.  

2671 S. Fees III 16 yrs.
11 mos.

05/12/15 08/03/15 - 10/10 No Unsecure with 
open doors

Bulky waste and 
tall grass and 
weeds.  

The 2012, 2013 
and 2014 taxes 
are delinquent 
in the amount 
of $1,355.42, 
which includes 
interest.  

There is a 2015 
special assessment 
for weed cutting in 
the amount of 
$143.86, which 
includes interest. 

1166



 

DATE: September 21, 2015 
 

         CDM SUMMARY 
 

         COUNCIL DISTRICT # I 
 
ADDRESS:  344 N. PIATT AVE 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  LOT 56 AND THE NORTH HALF LOT 58, BUTLER AND FISHER'S 
SUBDIVISION OF LOT 2, BUTLER AND FISHER'S ADDITION TO WICHITA, KANSAS, 
SEDGWICK COUNTY, KANSAS 
 
DESCRIPTION OF STRUCTURE:  A one story, frame dwelling about 53 x 28 feet in size.  Vacant 
and open, this structure has a badly shifting and cracking block foundation; rotted and missing 
composition siding; badly worn roof; badly deteriorated front porch; exposed, rotted framing 
members; and rotted soffit, fascia and wood trim. 
 
Description of dangerous or unsafe condition(s):  The property is found to be dangerous and unsafe 
because of the following conditions: 
 
A.  Those, which have been damaged by fire, wind, want of repair, or other causes so as to have 
become dangerous to life, safety, morals or the general health and welfare of the occupants or the 
people of the city. 
 
B.  The structure fails to provide the necessities to decent living, which makes it, unfit for human 
habitation. 
 
C.  Those open to unauthorized persons or those permitted to be attractive to loiterers, vagrants, or 
children. 
 
E.  Those whose use, equipment or want of good housekeeping constitutes a decided fire or safety 
hazard to the property itself or its occupants or which presents a decided fire or safety hazards to 
surrounding property or a menace to the public safety and general welfare. 
 
City Ordinance states that any one of the above categories is just cause to declare the building a public 
nuisance and shall be repaired or demolished. 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________                                ____________           
Director of Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department                                Date 
Enforcing Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 

167



 

DATE: September 21, 2015  
 
BCSA GROUP # 2 
 
ADDRESS:  344 N. PIATT AVE 
 
ACTIVE FIELD FILE STARTED: February 18, 2011 
 
NOTICE(S) ISSUED: Since February 18, 2011, a notice of improvement and several violation 
notices have been issued.  No violations have been corrected since May 2012.  It should be noted 
that on two occasions the Wichita Police Department has requested MABCD assistance with this 
property.  Uniform criminal complaints have been issued and it has been the subject of 
neighborhood court.  
 
PRE-CONDEMNATION LETTER:  October 16, 2014 
 
TAX INFORMATION:  The 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 taxes are delinquent in the amount of 
$939.05, which includes interest. 

 
MABCD COST ASSESSMENTS/DATES: There are 2015 special assessments for board-up in the 
amount of $258.77 and lot cleanup in the amount $833.69, both include interest.   
 
PREMISE CONDITIONS:  Tall grass and weeds, tree waste and miscellaneous debris. 
 
VACANT NEGLECTED BUILDING REPORT:  None 
 
MABCD NUISANCE & ABATEMENT REPORT: In May 2008, April 2011, May 2012 and 
January 2013, neighborhood nuisance enforcement cases were initiated resulting in owner 
compliance.  In July 2013, a neighborhood nuisance enforcement case was initiated resulting in 
court dismissal.  In July 2014, a neighborhood nuisance enforcement case was initiated resulting in 
City of Wichita contractor abatement in the amount of $731.22.   On November 5, 2014, MABCD 
staff completed an emergency board-up in the amount of $251.83.  In August 2015, a neighborhood 
nuisance case was started and remains open.  
 
POLICE REPORT:  In the past five years there have been twelve reported police incidents at this 
location including battery domestic violence, aggravated child endangerment, unlawful possession 
of marijuana, other miscellaneous offenses, lost miscellaneous property, miscellaneous officers, 
miscellaneous report (4) and fighting domestic violence (2). 
 
FORMAL CONDEMNATION ACTION INITIATED: May 12, 2015  
 
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS:   No repairs have been made and the structure is unsecure with an 
open south window.   
 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION REPORT:  No impact 
 
OWNER'S PAST CDM HISTORY:  None 
  
BOARD OF B. C.S. &A. RECOMMENDATION:  At the August 3, 2015, BCSA hearing, the owner 
of the property, Ricky Adams, was present. 

168



 

Approximately 53 x 28 feet in size, this is one-story, frame dwelling.  Vacant and open, this 
structure has a badly shifting and cracking block foundation; rotted and missing composition 
siding; badly worn roof; badly deteriorated front porch; exposed, rotted framing members; and 
rotted soffit, fascia and wood trim. 
 
In agreement with staff recommendation, Board Member Harder made a motion to submit the 
property to the City Council for condemnation, with ten days to begin wrecking the structure and 
ten days to complete the demolition.  Board Member Crotts seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed (8-0). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/REMARKS:  Adopt the recommendation of the Board of Building 
Code Standards and Appeals.  However, any extensions to repairs would be providing that all provisions 
of City Council Policy 33 are complied with.  If any of these conditions are not met, staff is directed to 
proceed to let for bids to demolish the structure. 
 

169



 

 

DATE: September 21, 2015 
 

         CDM SUMMARY 
 

         COUNCIL DISTRICT # I 
 
ADDRESS:  430 N. BLECKLEY DR (shared accessory structure) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  THE SOUTH 20.5 FEET OF LOT 9, AND ALL OF LOT 11, BLOCK 2, 
EAST BOULEVARD ADDITION TO WICHITA, SEDGWICK COUNTY, KANSAS 
 
DESCRIPTION OF STRUCTURE:  A one story, frame (shared) accessory garage about 21x18 feet 
in size.  It has rotted and missing siding; missing garage doors; exposed, rotted framing members; 
and rotted wood trim. 
 
Description of dangerous or unsafe condition(s):  The property is found to be dangerous and unsafe 
because of the following conditions: 
 
A.  Those, which have been damaged by fire, wind, want of repair, or other causes so as to have 
become dangerous to life, safety, morals or the general health and welfare of the occupants or the 
people of the city. 
 
B.  Those open to unauthorized persons or those permitted to be attractive to loiterers, vagrants, or 
children. 
 
 
City Ordinance states that any one of the above categories is just cause to declare the building a public 
nuisance and shall be repaired or demolished. 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________                                ____________           
Director of Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department                                Date 
Enforcing Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

170



 

 

DATE: September 21, 2015  
 
BCSA GROUP # 2 
 
ADDRESS:  430 N. BLECKLEY DR (shared accessory structure) 
 
ACTIVE FIELD FILE STARTED: March 6, 2015 
 
NOTICE(S) ISSUED: None    
 
PRE-CONDEMNATION LETTER:  May 5, 2015 
 
TAX INFORMATION:  Current   

 
MABCD COST ASSESSMENTS/DATES:  None  
 
PREMISE CONDITIONS:  Tall grass and weeds. 
 
VACANT NEGLECTED BUILDING REPORT:  None 
 
MABCD NUISANCE & ABATEMENT REPORT: In March 2015, a neighborhood nuisance case 
was initiated.  The case was closed per Neighborhood Inspection Administrator.   
 
POLICE REPORT:  In the past five years there have been eighteen reported police incidents at this 
location including battery domestic violence, simple assault, intimidation, purchase or consumption 
by a minor, false police report, other destruction of property,  curfew law violation, other 
miscellaneous offenses, mental cases, suspicious character other, runaway (2), miscellaneous report 
(4) and larceny B from building (2).     
 
FORMAL CONDEMNATION ACTION INITIATED: May 12, 2015  
 
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS:  A wrecking permit was issued on April 21, 2015.  No repairs or 
demolition has occurred and the structure is unsecure.    
 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION REPORT:  No impact 
 
OWNER'S PAST CDM HISTORY:  None 
 
BOARD OF B. C.S. &A. RECOMMENDATION:  At the August 3, 2015, BCSA hearing, there was 
no one present to represent this property. 
 
A one-story, frame (shared) accessory garage, this building is about 21x18 feet in size.  It has rotted 
and missing siding; missing garage doors; exposed, rotted framing members; and rotted wood trim. 
 
As recommended by the staff report, Board Member Harder made a motion to refer the property 
to the City Council for condemnation, with ten days to begin razing the structure and ten days to 
complete the removal.  Board Member Crotts seconded the motion.  The motion carried (8-0). 
 
 

171



 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/REMARKS:  Adopt the recommendation of the Board of Building 
Code Standards and Appeals.  However, any extensions to repairs would be providing that all provisions 
of City Council Policy 33 are complied with.  If any of these conditions are not met, staff is directed to 
proceed to let for bids to demolish the structure. 
 

172



 

 

DATE: September 21, 2015 
 

         CDM SUMMARY 
 

         COUNCIL DISTRICT # III 
 
ADDRESS:  116 W. ZIMMERLY (parcel address 1352 S. Water St) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  LOTS 94 AND 96, AND THE NORTH 4.07 FEET OF LOT 98, ON 
WATER STREET, FEGTLY'S ADDITION TO WICHITA, SEDGWICK COUNTY, KANSAS 
 
DESCRIPTION OF STRUCTURE:  A one story frame dwelling about 31 x 30 feet in size.  Vacant 
for at least 11 months, this structure has been damaged by fire.  It has shifting and cracking 
basement walls; fire damaged siding; fire damaged composition roof; deteriorated concrete front 
porches; fire damaged rear porch; and fire damaged wood trim and framing members. 
 
Description of dangerous or unsafe condition(s):  The property is found to be dangerous and unsafe 
because of the following conditions: 
 
A.  Those, which have been damaged by fire, wind, want of repair, or other causes so as to have 
become dangerous to life, safety, morals or the general health and welfare of the occupants or the 
people of the city. 
 
B.  The structure fails to provide the necessities to decent living, which makes it, unfit for human 
habitation. 
 
C.  Those whose use, equipment or want of good housekeeping constitutes a decided fire or safety 
hazard to the property itself or its occupants or which presents a decided fire or safety hazards to 
surrounding property or a menace to the public safety and general welfare. 
 
City Ordinance states that any one of the above categories is just cause to declare the building a public 
nuisance and shall be repaired or demolished. 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________                                ____________           
Director of Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department                                Date 
Enforcing Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

173



 

 

DATE: September 21, 2015  
 
BCSA GROUP # 2 
 
ADDRESS:  116 W. ZIMMERLY (parcel address 1352 S. Water St) 
 
ACTIVE FIELD FILE STARTED: July 13, 2012 
 
NOTICE(S) ISSUED: Since July 13, 2012, a notice of improvement and numerous violation notices 
have been issued.  No violations have been corrected since July 2012.   
 
PRE-CONDEMNATION LETTER:  September 10, 2014 
 
TAX INFORMATION:  Current 

 
MABCD COST ASSESSMENTS/DATES:  There are 2015 special assessments for board-up in the 
amount of $89.05 and lot cleanup in the amount of $1,019.39, which includes interest.   
 
PREMISE CONDITIONS: Maintained   
 
VACANT NEGLECTED BUILDING REPORT:  None 
 
MABCD NUISANCE & ABATEMENT REPORT:  In June 2009, July 2012 and April 2013 
neighborhood nuisance cases were initiated resulting in owner compliance.  In June 2014, a 
neighborhood nuisance case was initiated and nolle processed through court.  On March 20, 2015, 
MABCD staff completed an emergency board-up at a cost of $86.66.  In June 2015, a tall grass and 
weeds case was initiated resulting in owner compliance.    
 
POLICE REPORT:  In the past five years there have been ten reported police incidents at this 
location including miscellaneous report, suspicious character other, battery, battery domestic 
violence, intimidation domestic violence, parking violation other, trespass, attempt to locate vehicles 
and miscellaneous report (2).   
 
FORMAL CONDEMNATION ACTION INITIATED: May 12, 2015  
 
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS:  No repairs have been made and the structure is secure.  
 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION REPORT: No impact 
 
OWNER'S PAST CDM HISTORY:  None 
 
BOARD OF B. C.S. &A. RECOMMENDATION:  At the August 3, 2015, BCSA hearing, Michael 
Ackerman, representing the property on behalf of HUD, attended the hearing. 
 
Approximately 31 x 30 feet in size, this one-story frame dwelling has been vacant for at least eleven 
months.  This structure has been damaged by fire.  It has shifting and cracking basement walls; fire 
damaged siding; fire damaged composition roof; deteriorated concrete front porches; fire damaged 
rear porch; and fire damaged wood trim and framing members. 
 

174



 

 

As recommended by staff, Board Member Harder made a motion to refer the property to the City 
Council for condemnation, with ten days to begin demolition and ten days to complete removal of 
the structure.  Board Member Willenberg seconded the motion.  The motion carried (8-0). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/REMARKS:  Adopt the recommendation of the Board of Building 
Code Standards and Appeals.  However, any extensions to repairs would be providing that all provisions 
of City Council Policy 33 are complied with.  If any of these conditions are not met, staff is directed to 
proceed to let for bids to demolish the structure. 

175



 

 

DATE: September 21, 2015 
 

         CDM SUMMARY 
 

         COUNCIL DISTRICT # III 
 
ADDRESS:  2671 S. FEES ST 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  LOT 12, BLOCK O, PLANEVIEW SUBDIVISION NUMBER 1, IN 
SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 28 SOUTH, RANGE 1 EAST OF THE 6TH P.M., SEDGWICK 
COUNTY, KANSAS 
 
DESCRIPTION OF STRUCTURE:  A one story frame tri-plex about 25 x 90 feet in size.  Vacant 
for at least 2 years, this structure has deteriorated wood pier foundation; broken and missing 
transite siding; badly deteriorated concrete porches and steps; rotted wood trim;  and the 8 X 7 foot 
accessory shed is open. 
 
Description of dangerous or unsafe condition(s):  The property is found to be dangerous and unsafe 
because of the following conditions: 
 
A.  Those, which have been damaged by fire, wind, want of repair, or other causes so as to have 
become dangerous to life, safety, morals or the general health and welfare of the occupants or the 
people of the city. 
 
B.  The structure fails to provide the necessities to decent living, which makes it, unfit for human 
habitation. 
 
C.  Those whose use, equipment or want of good housekeeping constitutes a decided fire or safety 
hazard to the property itself or its occupants or which presents a decided fire or safety hazards to 
surrounding property or a menace to the public safety and general welfare. 
 
City Ordinance states that any one of the above categories is just cause to declare the building a public 
nuisance and shall be repaired or demolished. 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________                                ____________           
Director of Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department                                Date 
Enforcing Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

176



 

 

DATE: September 21, 2015  
 
BCSA GROUP # 2 
 
ADDRESS:  2671 S. FEES ST 
 
ACTIVE FIELD FILE STARTED: October 21, 1998 
 
NOTICE(S) ISSUED: Since October 21, 1998, numerous notice of improvements and violation 
notices have been issued.  It should be noted that a uniform criminal complaint had been issued and 
it has been the subject of neighborhood court.  No violations have been corrected since May 2012.   
 
PRE-CONDEMNATION LETTER:  August 8, 2014 
 
TAX INFORMATION:  The 2012, 2013 and 2014 taxes are delinquent in the amount of $1,355.42, 
which includes interest.   

 
MABCD COST ASSESSMENTS/DATES: There is a 2015 special assessment for weed cutting in 
the amount of $143.86, which includes interest.  
 
PREMISE CONDITIONS: Bulky waste and tall grass and weeds.   
 
VACANT NEGLECTED BUILDING REPORT:  None 
 
MABCD NUISANCE & ABATEMENT REPORT:  In October 2009, November 2011 and May 
2012, neighborhood nuisance enforcement cases were initiated resulting in owner compliance.  In 
July 2013 and October 2013, tall grass and weeds cases were initiated resulting owner compliance.  
In June 2014, a tall grass and weeds case was initiated resulting in City of Wichita contractor 
abatement in the amount of $140.00  
 
POLICE REPORT:  In the past five years there has been no reported police incidents at this 
location.   
 
FORMAL CONDEMNATION ACTION INITIATED: May 12, 2015  
 
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS:  No repairs have been made and it is unsecure with open doors.      
 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION REPORT: No impact 
 
OWNER'S PAST CDM HISTORY:  None 
 
BOARD OF B. C.S. &A. RECOMMENDATION:  At the August 3, 2015, BCSA hearing, no one 
was present on behalf of this property. 
 
This one-story frame tri-plex is about 25 x 90 feet in size.  Vacant for at least two years, this 
structure has deteriorated wood pier foundation; broken and missing transite siding; badly 
deteriorated concrete porches and steps; rotted wood trim;  and the 8 X 7 foot accessory shed is 
open. 
 

177



 

 

Concurring with the staff recommendation, Board Member Crotts made a motion to refer the 
property to the City Council with a recommendation of condemnation, with ten days to begin 
wrecking the structure and ten days to remove it.  Board Member Harder seconded the motion.  
The motion carried (8-0). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/REMARKS:  Adopt the recommendation of the Board of Building 
Code Standards and Appeals.  However, any extensions to repairs would be providing that all provisions 
of City Council Policy 33 are complied with.  If any of these conditions are not met, staff is directed to 
proceed to let for bids to demolish the structure. 
 

178



          Agenda Report No. V- 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:     Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:  ZON2015-00026 – City Zone Change from SF-5 Single-Family Residential to TF-3 

Two-Family Residential on Lots 19 – 39 in the Siena Lakes Subdivision Generally 
Located on the South Side of West 37th Street North, One-Half Mile West of Hoover 
Road.  (District V) 

 
INITIATED BY:  Metropolitan Area Planning Department 
 
AGENDA:  Planning (Non-Consent) 
 
MAPC Recommendation:  The MAPC recommended approval of the request (11-0). 
 
DAB Recommendation:  District Advisory Board V recommended approval (9-0). 
 
MAPD Staff Recommendation:  Metropolitan Area Planning Department staff recommended approval of the 
request. 
 
 

179



BACKGROUND:  The applicant is requesting a zone change from Single-Family Residential (SF-5) to Two-
Family Residential (TF-3) zoning on approximately 5.81 acres of Siena Lakes Addition to Wichita, Sedgwick 
County, Kansas.  The current location map includes lots 40-44 the south end of the site. The applicant reduced the 
number of lots to include only lots 19 through 39 on which he proposes to build duplexes.    
 
West of the subject site is the undeveloped SF-5 zoned Siena Lake subdivision.  North of the subject site is a 2-
acre SF-5 zoned tract that is developed with a single-family house which was built in 2004.  Property east of the 
subject site is located in the county Single-Family (SF-20) residential.  South of the subject site is the Ridge Port 
Subdivision zoned SF-5, which is developed with single family residences.    
 
At the DAB V meeting on August 10, 2015, the developer (applicant) and the DAB V members negotiated items 
that are to be included in a private covenant for the Siena Lakes plat.  This is a private covenant between the 
developer and nearby property owners. The City has no enforcement power or responsibilities of the private 
covenant.              
   
Analysis:  On August 20, 2015, the MAPC reviewed the application.  Property owners in the notification area 
were present for comment to the MAPC.  Multiple speakers at the MAPC hearing requested that Lakeway Street 
between Ridge Port and Siena Lakes subdivisions be limited to emergency access only.  The applicant confirmed 
the details of the private covenant.  A protest letter representing less than 20 percent of the calculated protest area 
was received.    
 
The MAPC approved the application unanimously (11-0). 
 
Financial Considerations:  Approval of this request will not create any financial obligations for the City. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the ordinance as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council: 1) Concur with the findings of the MAPC 
and approve the zoning change subject to the conditions enumerated, and adopt the findings of the MAPC and 
instruct the Planning Department to forward the ordinance for first reading when the plat is recorded (requires 
simple majority of 4 votes); 2) ; Return the case to MAPC for further review (requires simple majority of 4 votes); 
or 3) Deny the zoning request by making alternative findings, and override the MAPC’s recommendation 
(requires a two-third majority of 5 votes to override the MAPC’s recommendation). 
 
Attachments:  MAPC minutes, Site Plan, DAB V memo, Protest Letter (e-mail copy) Ridge Port property 
owners, Ordinance and Protest Map.  
 
 

 

180



  
 

Page 1  
 

OCA 150004 
ORDINANCE NO. 50-090 

 
AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OR DISTRICTS OF CERTAIN LANDS 
LOCATED IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, UNDER THE AUTHORITY GRANTED BY THE 
WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY UNIFIED ZONING CODE, SECTION V-C, AS ADOPTED BY SECTION 
28.04.010, AS AMENDED. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY 

OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS. 
 

SECTION 1.  That having received a recommendation from the Planning Commission, and proper notice having 
been given and hearing held as provided by law and under authority and subject to the provisions of The Wichita-
Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code, Section V-C, as adopted by Section 28.04.010, as amended, the zoning 
classification or districts of the lands legally described hereby are changed as follows:   
 

Case No. ZON2015-00026  
 

City zone change from Single-Family Residential (SF-5) to Two-Family Residential (TF-3) zoning on 
approximately 5.81 acres of Siena Lakes Addition to Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas described as Lots 19 
through 39 subject to the development standards enumerated in the plat. 

SECTION 2.  That upon the taking effect of this ordinance, the above zoning changes shall be entered and shown 
on the "Official Zoning Map" previously adopted by reference, and said official zoning map is hereby 
reincorporated as a part of the Wichita -Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code as amended. 

 
SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its adoption and publication in 
the official City paper.   

 
 
 
___________________________ 
Jeff Longwell, Mayor     

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________  
Karen Sublett, City Clerk     
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Approved as to form:  ______________________________ 
Jennifer Magan᷉a, City Attorney and Director of Law 

181



Page 1 of 10 
 

EXCERPT MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 20, 2015 WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING 

 
Case No.:  ZON2015-00026 (Deferred from 7-23-2015) -   Siena Lakes LLC (owner) 
and Chris Bohm, Ruggles & Bohm (agent) request a City zone change request from SF-5 
Single-family Residential to TF-3 Two-family Residential on property described as: 
 
That part of the NW1/4 of the NE1/4 of Sec. 34, T26S, R1W of the 6th P.M., Sedgwick 
County, Kansas, described as commencing at the northeast corner of the NW1/4 of said 
NE1/4; thence S00°59'20"E along the east line of the NW1/4 of said NE1/4, 417.42 feet 
to the place of beginning; thence continuing S00°59'20"E along said east line, 900.93 feet 
to the southeast corner of the NW1/4 of said NE1/4; thence S88°52'18"W along the south 
line of the NW1/4 of said NE1/4, 466.63 feet to the east right of line of Lakeway Street as 
platted in Ridge Port North 4th Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas; thence 
N01°07'42"W, 11.33 feet to point of curvature of a curve to the right, said curve having a 
radius of 118.00 feet and a central angle of 26°33'46"; thence northeasterly along said 
curve, 148.54 feet to a point of reverse curve of a curve to the left, said curve having a 
radius of 150.00 feet and a central angle of 26°33'46"; thence northeasterly along said 
curve 66.19 feet; thence southeasterly along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius 
of 112.82 feet, an arc length of 80.35 feet, chord bearing of S70°48'47"E, 78.67 feet to a 
point of tangency; thence N88°47'05"E, 86.88 feet to a point of curvature of a curve to 
the right, said curve having a radius of 19.00 feet and a central angle 90°00'00"; thence 
southeasterly along said curve 29.85 feet to a point of tangency; thence S01°12'55"E, 
25.00 feet; thence N88°47'05"E, 32.00 feet; thence N01°12'55"W, 120.00 feet; thence 
S88°47'05"W, 32.00 feet; thence S01°12'55"E, 25.00 feet to a point of curvature of a 
curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 19.00 feet and a central angle 90°00'00"; 
thence southwesterly along said curve 29.85 feet to a point of tangency; thence 
S88°47'05"W, 86.88 feet to a point of curvature of a curve to the right, said curve having 
a radius of 80.82 feet and a central angle of 40°48'21"; thence northwesterly along said 
curve, 57.56 feet; thence northeasterly along a curve to the left, said curve having a radius 
of 150.00 feet, an arc length of 90.80 feet, chord bearing of N16°07'33"E, 89.42 feet to a 
point of tangency; thence N01°12'55"W, 111.00 feet to a point of curvature of a curve to 
the right, said curve having a radius of 19.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00"; thence 
northeasterly along said curve, 29.85 feet to a point of tangency; N88°47'05"E, 102.00 
feet to a point of curvature of a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 19.00 feet 
and a central angle 90°00'00"; thence southeasterly along said curve 29.85 feet to a point 
of tangency; thence S01°12'55"E, 25.00 feet; thence N88°47'05"E, 32.00 feet; thence 
N01°12'55"W, 120.00 feet; thence S88°47'05"W, 32.00 feet; thence S01°12'55"E, 25.00 
feet to a point of curvature of a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 19.00 feet 
and a central angle 90°00'00"; thence southwesterly along said curve 29.85 feet to a point 
of tangency; thence S88°47'05"W, 102.00 feet to a point of curvature of a curve to the 
right, said curve having a radius of 19.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00"; thence 
northwesterly along said curve, 29.85 feet to a point of tangency; thence N01°12'55"W, 
276.88 feet to a point of curvature of a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 
19.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00"; thence northeasterly along said curve, 29.85 
feet to a point of tangency; N88°47'05"E, 102.00 feet to a point of curvature of a curve to 
the right, said curve having a radius of 19.00 feet and a central angle 90°00'00"; thence 
southeasterly along said curve 29.85 feet to a point of tangency; thence S01°12'55"E, 
25.00 feet; thence N88°47'05"E, 32.00 feet; thence N01°12'55"W, 120.00 feet; thence  

182



Page 2 of 10 
 

S88°47'05"W, 32.00 feet; thence S01°12'55"E, 25.00 feet to a point of curvature of a 
curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 19.00 feet and a central angle 90°00'00"; 
thence southwesterly along said curve 29.85 feet to a point of tangency; thence 
S88°47'05"W, 102.01 feet to a point of curvature of a curve to the right, said curve 
having a radius of 19.00 feet and a central angle of 89°32'55"; thence northwesterly along 
said curve, 29.70 feet to a point of reverse curve of a curve to the left, said curve having a 
radius of 182.00 feet and a central angle of 35°47'06"; thence along said curve, 113.67 
feet; thence N88°47'05"E, 319.25 feet to the place of beginning.  

 
BACKGROUND:  The applicant is requesting a zone change from Single-Family Residential 
(SF-5) to Two-Family Residential (TF-3) zoning on approximately 5.81 acres of Siena Lakes 
Addition to Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas.  The applicant proposes to build 26 duplexes on 
the property.       
 
West of the subject site is the undeveloped SF-5 zoned Siena Lake subdivision.  North of the 
subject site is a 2-acre SF-5 zoned tract developed with a single-family house which was built in 
2004.  Property east of the subject site is located in the county Single-Family (SF-20) residential.  
South of the subject site is the Ridge Port Subdivision zoned SF-5, which is developed with 
single family residences.                
   
 CASE HISTORY:  The site is located within the City limits of Wichita and consists of 5.81 
acres on the south side of 37th Street North one-half mile west of North Hoover Road.  Staff has 
received no calls expressing concerns about the proposed zoning change.    
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USE: 
NORTH:  SF-5   Single-family residential, undeveloped (Siena Lakes) 
SOUTH:  SF-5   Single-family residential, Ridge Port Subdivision 
WEST: SF-5   Single-family residential, undeveloped (Siena Lakes) 
EAST: SF-5   Single-family (SF-20), unimproved farm land 
                                                           
PUBLIC SERVICES:  The site has access to local collector streets that access West 37th Street 
North, a two-lane arterial.  All utilities are available to the site.     
 
CONFORMANCE TO PLANS/POLICIES:  The 2030 Wichita Functional Land Use Guide 
map depicts the site as appropriate for “urban development growth” area.  The urban 
development growth area is projected population growth and City limit expansion that reflect the 
full diversity of residential development densities and types typically found in a large urban 
municipality.  Expansion of municipal services and infrastructure for subdivision development 
are important to encourage growth bases on Wichita population growth and current market 
trends.   As such, the TF-3 zoning within the Siena Lakes Subdivision conforms to the urban 
growth area.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  This request provides a residential development opportunity that is 
not uncommon for multiple (more than an acre) undeveloped lots of SF-5 zoned subdivisions 
located on the edges of the city.  Based upon information available prior to the public hearings, 
planning staff recommends that the request be APPROVED. 
 
This recommendation is based on the following findings: 
 

183



Page 3 of 10 
 

(1) The zoning, uses and character of the neighborhood:  The site is located in a 
predominately SF-5 zoned single-family residential neighborhood.   Single-family 
residences are located to the west and south of the newly platted Siena Lakes subdivision. 
  

(2) The suitability of the subject property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  
TF-3 zoning would allow single-family residences and duplexes to be built which is an 
appropriate use for urban residential development.           
 

(3) Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby 
property:  The requested TF-3 zoning allows duplexes as well as single-family 
residences by right.  There is TF-3 zoning within one mile of the subject site.              
 

(4) Relative gain to the public health, safety and welfare as compared to the loss in 
value or the hardship imposed upon the applicant:  Approval of the request would 
limit development by right to single-family residential, duplex, and some (but not limited 
to) institutional uses such as a parks, schools and churches.  
 

(5) Conformance of the requested change to the adopted or recognized Comprehensive 
Plan and policies:  The 2030 Wichita Functional Land Use Guide map depicts the site as 
appropriate for “urban development growth” area.  The urban development growth area is 
projected population growth and City limit expansion that reflect the full diversity of 
residential development densities and types typically found in a large urban municipality.  
Expansion of municipal services and infrastructure for subdivision development are 
important to encourage growth bases on Wichita population growth and current market 
trends.   As such, the TF-3 zoning within the Siena Lakes Subdivision conforms to the 
urban growth area.   
 

(6)  Impact of the proposed development on community facilities:  All services are in 
place and any increased demand on community facilities can be handled by current 
infrastructure. 
 

KATHY MORGAN, Planning Staff presented the Staff Report.  She said the DAB 
recommended that lots 40-44 be taken out of the zone change request and remain single-family 
residential so only lots 19-39 will be changed to TF-3 if the application is approved.  She noted 
that although the notification area was 350 feet; the actual valid protest area is 200 feet.   
 
MORGAN referred to a handout which was an Ordinance of Protective Overlay #299 that 
incorporated suggested conditions discussed at the DAB meeting.  She briefly reviewed the 
conditions including access into the subdivision along Lakeway for emergency access only; that 
the duplexes be 50% owner occupied so only one unit of the duplex could be leased.   She 
mentioned that it was requested that all vehicles be parked in garages and not on the street apron; 
that the homeowners association (HOA) would establish the maintenance standards and would 
maintain landscaping and that gates or bollards be installed at Lakeway for emergency access 
only. 
 
DENNIS asked who drew up the PO and at whose request. 
 
MORGAN responded that Senior Planning Staff instructed her to draft the Ordinance with the 
PO based on comments from the DAB meeting. 

184



Page 4 of 10 
 

 
DENNIS questioned how an Ordinance that all vehicles be parked in garages would be enforced.    
 
MORGAN deferred to Bill Longnecker, Senior Planning Staff.   
 
LONGNECKER said the PO is a reflection of the dialogue between the DAB and the applicant 
at the meeting.  He mentioned forming an HOA that would be responsible for maintenance and 
repair and rules governing the development.   He said the PO reflects what the applicant agreed 
to at that meeting including that cars be parked in garages and that half of the duplexes be owner 
occupied. 
 
SHARON DICKGRAFE, CHIEF DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY said the answer to whether 
the City can enforce items in the PO is “no”.  She commented that this is the first time she has 
seen the PO and added, that as a Law Department, the City does not get involved in HOA issues.  
She said if the Ordinance is passed someone is going to have to figure out how to enforce it and 
she thinks this sets up an expectation by the neighbors that the City will enforce the covenants; 
however, the City has no legal authority to do so. She said she believes the most the Ordinance 
could do is request that an HOA be established.     
 
DENNIS mentioned the plat and how the bollards would block the right-of-way.   
 
LONGNECKER commented that representatives from the Fire and Public Works Departments 
were at the meeting and agreed that a portion of the right-of-way could be vacated to 
accommodate that request.  He said emergency access could be dedicated at that time. 
 
DENNIS clarified that the Commission could forget the entire PO right now. 
 
LONGNECKER commented that the City Attorney said the City could require the applicant to 
establish an HOA.  
 
DICKGRAFE commented that some of the provisions included in the PO could be considered 
during the vacation process.   She said right now they are looking at conditions that haven’t been 
evaluated by the Subdivision Committee or the Planning Commission.  She said assuming the 
Commission wants the PO, items a. and b. are okay and just the first sentence of item c.  She said 
they do not want to get into a situation where they are alluding to anybody that the City would 
try to enforce any covenants. 
 
RAMESEY declared that he had ex parte communication on the application.  He said he does 
not understand the reasoning behind blocking off Lakeway because Ridge Port is not a gated 
community and Lakeway is obviously intended to be a through street.   
 
MORGAN referred the question to the agent.  She said she believes it was based on a request 
made by the neighbors at the DAB hearing.   
 

185



Page 5 of 10 
 

MILLER commented that the applicant was proposing rezoning; the neighbors to the south of 
the site were opposed to what they thought it would do to their area so the PO is a result of 
negotiations and the conversation between the applicant and the neighbors to the south.   He said  
staff is attempting to accommodate whatever will make the application work depending on 
whether what the applicant has proposed is suitable or not; and, obviously, the City Attorney has 
pointed out that some of the provisions in the PO are not appropriate.   He said vacating the street 
was suggested as a way to satisfy the concerns of the neighbors to the south.  He said whether 
staff is supportive is another question, but they thought they should at least present the 
suggestions to the Planning Commission for discussion.   
 
J. JOHNSON clarified that the HOA is responsible for the suggested limitations, not the City 
and any violations are settled through the courts.  
 
DICKGRAFE said that is correct.   She added that the City receives calls every month wanting 
them to enforce covenants.   She said if the provisions are put into an Ordinance as part of a PO 
which is enforceable through the UZC, it gives the impression that the City will be the 
enforcement authority.     
 
RICHARDSON said fundamentally one of his objections is seeing this for the first time at 
today’s hearing.   He said presenting this detailed and complicated overlay and asking the 
Commission to make a decision isn’t right.  He said the Commission needs to have this type of 
information ahead of time, not when they walk in the door.   
 
CHRIS BOHM, RUGGLES AND BOHM, AGENT FOR THE APPLICANT said the 
requested zone change was deferred until today because the applicant wanted to present it to the 
DAB first.  He said the ownership of Siena Lakes met with a group of neighbors to the south 
prior to the DAB hearing and the elements phrased in this PO are a result of that meeting.  He 
briefly reviewed the provisions which were deletion of the bottom five (5) lots to the south from 
the application so they would remain SF-5; maintain the tree line on the north border of Ridge 
Port (south border of Siena Lakes); that half the duplexes be owner occupied which the HOA 
was happy to put in the covenants.  He said the other issue was direct access to Lakeway Street 
through the Ridge Port neighborhood.  He said the applicant offered to vacate the street and 
dedicate a 20-foot access emergency roadway with bollards or a gate instead of keeping it as a 
city street.  He commented that they have spoken to both the City Fire Department and Traffic 
Engineering and they are both okay with that idea.   He said the PO was offered as a way to start 
the conversation and put into words what the neighbors requested.   He said the covenants for the 
area will be written that cars need to be parked in garages, but how enforceable that covenant is 
from a legal standpoint, he does not know.   
 
RICHARDSON clarified that 21 dwelling units will be eliminated if the five lots are withdrawn 
from the application.  He mentioned the length of the hammerhead / cul-de-sac and also 
requested clarification that the Fire Department was okay with the vacation of the street right-of-
way and installation of a private street for Fire access, which would have to be presented to the 
Subdivision Committee for review and approval.     
 
BOHM responded yes, he understood the applicant would have to apply for a vacation of the 
right-of-way.   
 

186



Page 6 of 10 
 

WARREN said speaking from experience parking restrictions are a nightmare and he thinks that 
is a terrible mistake.  He asked how are you going to monitor ownership and what happens if the 
owner gets transferred on his job.   He asked how are they going to force someone into a 
situation where they have to sell their half of the unit when the only way it makes economic 
sense is to rent it.  He said he can’t understand why they would even ask anyone to do that.  He 
said the streets belong to the City.  He said he would be opposed to blocking off the street.  He 
suggested getting rid of the gate and opening the street as it was originally designed.   He said he 
would not support any kind of Ordinance that restricts parking.   
 
GOOLSBY asked if the applicant was okay with no PO.   
 
BOHM said they are presenting what they promised to present at the DAB hearing because they 
are a result of negotiations with the homeowners to the south of the site in order for them not to 
protest this proposed rezoning.  He said they can agree to remove lots 40-44 from the zone 
change request.  He said he doesn’t know about the status of the trees along the south property 
line and if that can be included in a PO.  He said they realize after discussion with staff that they 
need to forward a vacation request on the right-of-way; however, if the Planning Commission as 
a body was choosing not to support the vacation that may change.   
 
RAMSEY asked what would be gained by blocking off the street.  He said it appears that there 
are already constricting points that reduce the street down to one lane now.  He said he lives in 
Ridge Port north and he doesn’t know if they can put bollards up to keep people from using the 
lake.  He said blocking the street makes no sense to him. 
 
BOHM said the neighbors to the south were concerned with traffic movement. 
 
JAY RUSSELL, APPLICANT clarified that he didn’t realize until today that putting vehicles 
in garages was going to be part of the PO.  He said his attorneys have informed him that 
provision is unenforceable.  He suggested striking that provision if the PO is used.  He 
commented about meeting with the neighbors to discuss issues that were important to both sides.  
He explained that these will not be typical duplex units because they are investor owned and will 
be controlled by an HOA.  He referred to the “Cloisters” development where all exterior 
maintenance is taken care of by the HOA.  He said it was his suggestion that at least one side of 
the unit be owner occupied, but that wasn’t a big issue with him.   He said he also agreed that 
they wouldn’t tear up trees along the south lots.  He said emergency access was an important 
issue and the Fire Department didn’t have problem with it.  He mentioned that the areas to the 
south and west have been there for three (3) years.  He said there are three (3) different entrances 
and exits from the subdivision out onto 37th Street, Ridge Road and another one to the south.  He 
said he believes Siena Lakes will be more of a retirement neighborhood and once the K-96 and 
Hoover Interchange is completed, this could become a short cut racetrack for people to come 
through the area.  He said he believes more in a walkable neighborhood than a drivable one, and 
the bollards would allow people to go from one side to the other without having to deal with 
traffic.  He said he would let the homeowners speak for themselves. 
 
NATE BUYER, 3510 NORTH LAKEWAY STREET said he moved into this neighborhood 
ten (10) years ago and this has never been a thru street.  He said putting in a street would change 
things tremendously in their neighborhood.  He said the neighbors also felt keeping the trees plus 

187



Page 7 of 10 
 

some kind of divider would keep the neighborhoods separate because the houses that are being 
built are a lot different than the houses currently in the area.  He said they currently have single-
family regular homes with large lots and if the street goes through they will have smaller slab on 
grade homes with smaller lots on the same street.  He said they are concerned about property 
values.  He said the idea was to have the walkability without having a racetrack through the 
neighborhood.   
 
RAMSEY asked the speaker to explain the tremendous change. 
 
BUYER commented that right now there are five (5) homes in the cul-de-sac.  He said if 
Lakeway is opened up, all the traffic from Hoover Road and 37th Street will be coming down the 
street.  He said today there is no traffic in the neighborhood.  He said they did not know the street 
was not going to be a cul-de-sac when they purchased their home because that was what was on 
the plat map that they showed the DAB, even though it was called something else.   
 
JOHN MACDONALD, 3758 NORTH RIDGE PORT COURT mentioned that a lot of work 
and effort went into development of the PO as a result of discussions between the developers and 
the neighbors to the south of the site.  He mentioned that it was disclosed at the DAB hearing 
that the HOA would be responsible for the exterior maintenance on the twin homes. He said right 
now it indicates that the HOA would just be responsible for “setting standards” and there is quite 
a difference from between that and being responsible for maintenance.   He said he thinks the 
correct reflection of the DAB discussion is that the HOA will be responsible for exterior 
maintenance of the duplex homes.   
 
CHRIS BROWN, 3511 NORTH LAKEWAY STREET said she has lived in her home for12 
years.   She commented that the only people who need access to Lakeway are the people who 
live south of them and they are fine with not having access.  She said the neighborhood has been 
in existence for twelve years and has never had access at this point.  She said there are currently 
two ways out of the neighborhood.  She said it doesn’t seem like there needs to be another access 
point for ingress and egress.   She said this allows neighborhood kids to ride their bikes and walk 
between the neighborhoods.  She commented that the developer has made a valid effort to work 
with the neighborhood because they have some real concerns about the duplexes.  She said they 
understand that urban growth requires multi-family homes and no one wants that in their 
neighborhood.  She concluded by saying she has 20 signed petitions ready to file after the 
meeting, but she does not want to do that.  She said speaking for herself, she would just like 
something in the Ordinance that says an HOA needs to be established in the area.   
 
TERRY SIEBERT, 3507 NORTH LAKEWAY STREET said he owns one of five (5) homes 
on Lakeway.  He commented that property values are just now starting to come back.  He said 
the high density homes the developer wants to plan north of them is not congruent with what is 
currently in the neighborhood.  He said they would like a little bit of separation to protect the 
largest investment they’ll probably ever make in their lives.  He said Lakeway Street has been 
used as a cul-de-sac and there are already a couple of cul-de-sacs on the north side of the 
subdivision and they don’t think one more would hurt.  He said almost 100% of homes affected 
by this rezoning have filed protests.  He said in their protest letter, they gathered over 100 
signatures of people who said they do not care if Lakeway Street goes through.   He said people  

188



Page 8 of 10 
 

can exit and enter the neighborhood just fine.  He said they have neighborhood block parties, fire 
pits and game playing, and Lakeway has been used as a dead end street for the last 12 years.  He 
said if the Fire Department, developer and all of the neighbors who will be affected don’t have 
any issue, he doesn’t know why anyone here would have an issue.  He commented that Mr. 
Russell has been very kind during this process.  He concluded by saying they want the lawns to 
be maintained and to look nice, since they will be able to see the development from their homes.  
He said they want to see the same standards they are held to in an attempt to keep their property 
values as high as possible. 
 
RICHARDSON clarified that the neighbors would like to block the street, but still tell the 
developer how to develop the area to the north even though they don’t have access to it.   
 
SEIBERT said over 30 homes back up to the area so they will be directly affected.  He 
mentioned a potential buyer’s perception when they look out the back door and see the high 
density development to the north.  He said in his mind the property appraisals are going to start 
going down.  He said they are trying to keep the area congruent with what they already have.  
Responding to a question from Commissioner Ramsey, he said when they bought their home the 
plat clearly shows the street as a cul-de-sac. 
 
RAMSEY said clearly it is not a cul-de-sac because there is no way to turn around. 
 
B. JOHNSON asked if the neighborhood would be opposed to dedicating additional right-of-
way for a cul-de-sac if the road was closed.   
 
SIEBERT said he believed that was going above and beyond and that would be a lot more 
difficult in his opinion.  He commented that the Fire Department said they don’t want to come 
through Ridge Port to get to Siena Lakes.   
 
RUSSELL said City Staff requested a list of where the bollards and emergency access has been 
done before.  He said there are 15 different places in the City where there are similar situations 
and gave several examples of locations.  He said generally they are approved when neighbors are 
concerned about a traffic problem and speed.  He said this is eliminating a problem before it 
becomes a problem.  He said he is very much in favor of it.   He said on the plat this is drawn in 
as temporary cul-de-sac.  He commented that neither the Fire Department nor City Engineering 
have a problem with an emergency access point with bollards and/or a gate.  He said the Fire 
Department wanted this as an alternative way in just in case the main entrance to Siena Lakes is 
blocked.   He mentioned child safety and the fact that this will probably be a retirement 
neighborhood and said he feels this is a better design.  He commented that all the buildings and 
landscaping in Siena Lake will be maintained by an HOA.    
 
MCKAY asked if he agreed that half of the unit has to be owner occupied.   
 
RUSSELL said he didn’t have a problem with it.  He said it doesn’t make any difference one 
way or the other. 
 
MCKAY asked staff if the homeowners to the south would have to agree to this by petition. 
 

189



Page 9 of 10 
 

MILLER said the stub that is connected to the plat that has already been filed would need to be 
vacated.  He said the neighbors to the south would get notice, but obviously they are in favor of 
it.  
 
J. JOHNSON asked what the Commission was being asked to approve today, does something 
have to be restructured.  
 
MILLER replied that the Commission is being asked to approve the zoning.  He said they can 
approve the application subject to the PO minus the items legal counsel indicated should not be 
included.  
 
RICHARDSON said he could support the requested zoning minus the five lots.  He said if the 
street is going to be vacated he does not believe neighbors to south should have any interest in 
how the properties are maintained.  He said he does not believe the Commission should support a 
PO.    
 
MCKAY asked about the trees on the south portion of the property. 
 
RICHARDSON said he did not believe the trees to the south were part of a zoning change, that 
is between the developer and the neighbors.   
 

MOTION:  To approve subject to Staff recommendation, deletion of the five lots 
on the south (Lots 40-44) from the application and subject to the applicant 
applying for a vacation of the street. 
 
RICHARDSON moved, J. JOHNSON seconded the motion.   

 
FOSTER said he doesn’t see how this case has jurisdiction on vacation of the street. 
 
MILLER said that is correct and said the vacation request will have to go through the regular 
process.  He said all this is saying is that the developer has to file it. 
 
FOSTER asked staff for more information on how the Fire Department and Traffic Engineering 
got on board with the idea of losing this street connection. 
 
LONGNECKER said that was negotiated at the DAB hearing.   He said Fire and Traffic were 
asked to entertain that idea at that time, but it could have been previous to that.  He said there 
were e-mails exchanged regarding obtaining a minor street permit and Traffic Engineering 
indicated they would rather have the street vacated.  He said any vacation request would need to 
be presented to both the Subdivision Committee and the Planning Commission.   
 
MCKAY said he thought this was a good lesson for everyone that the developer and people got 
together and tried to work out a solution.  He said most of the items in the PO can be taken care 
of with restrictive covenants. 
 
MORGAN indicated that the applicant requested that the Ordinance be presented to the 
Commission.   
 

190



Page 10 of 10 
 

RICHARDSON said the decision making body (Planning Commission) got this when they 
walked in the door and he does not find that acceptable.   
 
DENNIS requested that the motion be called. 
 
The MOTION carried (11-0). 
 -------------------------------------------- 
 
 

191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



                    Agenda Item No.  
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 

TO:   Wichita Housing Authority Board Members 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing – 2016 Annual Agency Plan 
 
INITIATED BY: Housing and Community Services Department 
 
AGENDA:  Wichita Housing Authority Board (Non-Consent) 
 
              
 
Recommendation: Conduct the public hearing, close the hearing, approve the Wichita Housing Authority 
2016 Annual Agency Plan, and authorize the necessary signatures to certify the Plan for submission to the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
 
Background: On October 21, 1998, the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act of 1998 
(QHWRA) was signed into law as a part of the FY 1999 Appropriations Bill. One provision of the Act is 
the mandate for public housing authorities to prepare an annual operating plan. The annual plan governs 
the Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher programs and must include at a minimum: information 
on the housing needs of the locality; population served; method of rent determination; general operating 
policies and procedures; capital improvements; unmet housing needs of families with incomes less than 
30 percent of median income; and efforts to coordinate programs. 
 
The Wichita Housing Authority (WHA) is required to obtain input into the plan from the Tenant 
Advisory Board and to hold a public hearing. In the event the Housing Authority Board receives written 
or oral comments from the public that are deemed significant enough to amend the Plan, the Housing 
Authority Board may amend the plan and certify the plan as amended. After the Housing Authority Board 
considers comments submitted at the hearing and approves the WHA 2016 Annual Plan as prepared or 
with amendments, WHA staff will transmit the Annual Plan using the required electronic submission 
template. 
 
Analysis: The proposed WHA 2016 Annual Plan has one modification from the existing 2015 Annual 
Plan. Staff removed the Public Housing preference for working families and those unable to work due to 
age or disability. Staff do not believe removing this preference will make applicants who qualify as one of 
these groups wait any longer for a housing offer. The WHA Public Housing program draws applicants 
from a central waiting list according to the time and date of their application. Once applicants are 
screened and determined to be eligible for Public Housing they are offered a unit that is an appropriate 
size for their family. The Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program removed all its preferences for 
applicant selection effective for the 2015 Annual Plan. The Tenant Advisory Board approved the 
proposed Plan on September 9, 2015.  
 
Financial Considerations: General Funds totaling $78,317 have been made available in the 2016 budget 
to the WHA to support the inspection component of the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program.  

Legal Considerations: The certification of the 2016 Annual Plan will bring the WHA into compliance 
with the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act of 1998. The Law Department has reviewed and 
approved the certifications as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Action: It is recommended that the Wichita Housing Authority Board conduct the 
public hearing, close the hearing, approve the Wichita Housing Authority 2016 Annual Agency Plan, and 

207



authorize the necessary signatures to certify the Plan for submission to the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development. 
 
Attachments: 
2016 Annual Agency Plan 
2016 Agency Plan Elements 
Wichita Housing Authority Board Certification 
Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace 
Certification of Payments to Influence Federal Transactions 
Disclosure of Lobbying Activities 
Civil Rights Certification 
Tenant Advisory Board Comments 
Challenged Elements 
Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan 

208



  Previous edition is obsolete form HUD 50071 (01/14) 
ref. Handbooks 7417.1, 7475.13, 7485.1, & 7485.3 

 

OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (Exp. 01/31/2017) 

Certification of Payments 
to Influence Federal Transactions 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of Public and Indian Housing  

Applicant Name 

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:  

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 

paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 

an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec-

tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any 

Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into 

of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, 

renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, 

grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have 

been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 

attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a 

Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 

employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the 

undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, 

Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its 

instructions. 

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this 

certification be included in the award documents for all subawards 

at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts 

under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all 

sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which 

reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered 

into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 

or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 

31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 

certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 

$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. 
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 
1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802) 

 

Name of Authorized Official Title 

Signature Date (mm/dd/yyyy) 

209



Previous version is obsolete Page 1 of 2 form HUD-50077 (4/2008)

PHA Certifications of Compliance
with PHA Plans and Related
R e g u l a t i o n s

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 08/30/2011

PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Regulations:
Board Resolution to Accompany the PHA 5-Year and Annual PHA Plan

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairman or other
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the___ 5-Year and/or___ Annual PHA
Plan for the PHA fiscal year beginning, hereinafter referred to as” the Plan”, of which this document is a part and
make the following certifications and agreements with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in connection with
the submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:

1. The Plan is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating such
strategy) for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located.

2. The Plan contains a certification by the appropriate State or local officials that the Plan is consistent with the applicable
Consolidated Plan, which includes a certification that requires the preparation of an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing
Choice, for the PHA's jurisdiction and a description of the manner in which the PHA Plan is consistent with the applicable
Consolidated Plan.

3. The PHA certifies that there has been no change, significant or otherwise, to the Capital Fund Program (and Capital Fund
Program/Replacement Housing Factor) Annual Statement(s), since submission of its last approved Annual Plan. The Capital
Fund Program Annual Statement/Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report must be submitted annually even if
there is no change.

4. The PHA has established a Resident Advisory Board or Boards, the membership of which represents the residents assisted by
the PHA, consulted with this Board or Boards in developing the Plan, and considered the recommendations of the Board or
Boards (24 CFR 903.13). The PHA has included in the Plan submission a copy of the recommendations made by the
Resident Advisory Board or Boards and a description of the manner in which the Plan addresses these recommendations.

5. The PHA made the proposed Plan and all information relevant to the public hearing available for public inspection at least 45
days before the hearing, published a notice that a hearing would be held and conducted a hearing to discuss the Plan and
invited public comment.

6. The PHA certifies that it will carry out the Plan in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing
Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

7. The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing by examining their programs or proposed programs, identify any
impediments to fair housing choice within those programs, address those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the
resources available and work with local jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction's initiatives to affirmatively further
fair housing that require the PHA's involvement and maintain records reflecting these analyses and actions.

8. For PHA Plan that includes a policy for site based waiting lists:
 The PHA regularly submits required data to HUD's 50058 PIC/IMS Module in an accurate, complete and timely manner

(as specified in PIH Notice 2006-24);
 The system of site-based waiting lists provides for full disclosure to each applicant in the selection of the development in

which to reside, including basic information about available sites; and an estimate of the period of time the applicant
would likely have to wait to be admitted to units of different sizes and types at each site;

 Adoption of site-based waiting list would not violate any court order or settlement agreement or be inconsistent with a
pending complaint brought by HUD;

 The PHA shall take reasonable measures to assure that such waiting list is consistent with affirmatively furthering fair
housing;

 The PHA provides for review of its site-based waiting list policy to determine if it is consistent with civil rights laws and
certifications, as specified in 24 CFR part 903.7(c)(1).

9. The PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975.

10. The PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and Procedures for the
Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped.

11. The PHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, Employment
Opportunities for Low-or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 135.

12. The PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable.

210



Previous version is obsolete Page 2 of 2 form HUD-50077 (4/2008)

13. The PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises under 24
CFR 5.105(a).

14. The PHA will provide the responsible entity or HUD any documentation that the responsible entity or HUD needs to carry
out its review under the National Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance with 24 CFR Part 58
or Part 50, respectively.

15. With respect to public housing the PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD determined wage rate requirements under
Section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

16. The PHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an effective audit to determine compliance with
program requirements.

17. The PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992, and 24 CFR Part 35.

18. The PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of OMB Circular No. A-87 (Cost Principles for State,
Local and Indian Tribal Governments), 2 CFR Part 225, and 24 CFR Part 85 (Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Cooperative Agreements to State, Local and Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments).

19. The PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner consistent with its Plan and will utilize
covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the regulations and included in its Plan.

20. All attachments to the Plan have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the PHA Plan is
available for public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public inspection along with
the Plan and additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all other times and locations identified
by the PHA in its PHA Plan and will continue to be made available at least at the primary business office of the PHA.

21. The PHA provides assurance as part of this certification that:
(i) The Resident Advisory Board had an opportunity to review and comment on the changes to the policies and programs

before implementation by the PHA;
(ii) The changes were duly approved by the PHA Board of Directors (or similar governing body); and
(iii) The revised policies and programs are available for review and inspection, at the principal office of the PHA during

normal business hours.
22. The PHA certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable Federal statutory and regulatory requirements.

PHA Name PHA Number/HA Code

5-Year PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 20 - 20

Annual PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 20 - 20

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Warning: HUD will
prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official Title

Signature Date

211



form HUD-50077-CR (1/2009)

OMB Approval No. 2577-0226

Civil Rights Certification U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Expires 08/30/2011

Civil Rights Certification

Annual Certification and Board Resolution

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairman or other

authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioner, I approve the submission of the Plan for the PHA of which this

document is a part and make the following certification and agreement with the Department of Housing and Urban Development

(HUD) in connection with the submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:

The PHA certifies that it will carry out the public housing program of the agency in conformity with title VI of

the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and title II of

the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and will affirmatively further fair housing.

PHA Name PHA Number/HA Code

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Warning: HUD will
prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official

Signature

Title

Date

212



213



214



DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES Approved by OMB 

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352  0348-0046 

(See reverse for public burden disclosure.) 
1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of Federal Action: 3. Report Type: 

a. contract  a. bid/offer/application  a. initial filing 
b. grant  b. initial award  b. material change 
c. cooperative agreement  c. post-award  For Material Change Only: 
d. loan  year _________ quarter _________ 
e. loan guarantee  date of last report ______________ 
f. loan insurance 

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity: 5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name 
and Address of Prime: 

Tier ______, if known : 

Congressional District, if known :  Congressional District, if known : 
6. Federal Department/Agency: 7. Federal Program Name/Description: 

CFDA Number, if applicable: _____________ 

8. Federal Action Number, if known : 9. Award Amount, if known : 

$ 

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if 
( if individual, last name, first name, MI): different from No. 10a ) 

(last name, first name, MI ): 

11. Signature: 

Print Name: 

Title: 

Telephone No.: _______________________ 

Authorized for Local Reproduction 

Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97) 

Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section 
1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact 
upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made 
or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This 
information will be available for public inspection. 
required disclosure shall be subject to a 
not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

Prime Subawardee 

Federal Use Only: 

Date: 

who fails to file the Any person 
$10,000 and than civil penalty of not less 

215



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES


This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal 
action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make 
payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employeeof any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employeeof 
Congress, or an employeeof a Member of Congress in connectionwith a coveredFederalaction. Completeall items that apply for both the initial filing and material 
change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information. 

1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action. 

2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action. 

3. Identify the appropriateclassification of this report. If this is a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter 
the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal 
action. 

4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include CongressionalDistrict, if known. Check the appropriateclassification 
of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee,e.g., the first subawardee 
of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants. 

5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee," then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal 

recipient. Include Congressional District, if known. 

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizationallevel below agency name, if known. For 

example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard. 

7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 

(CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments. 

8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number; 
Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number 
assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001." 

9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan 

commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5. 

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting 
entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action. 

(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and 
Middle Initial (MI). 

11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number. 

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB Control 
Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is 
estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data 
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of 
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, 
DC 20503. 

216



form HUD-50070 (3/98)
ref. Handbooks 7417.1, 7475.13, 7485.1 & .3

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

Certification for
a Drug-Free Workplace

Applicant Name

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding

I certify that the above named Applicant will or will continue
to provide a drug-free workplace by:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the un-
lawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use
of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Applicant's work-
place and specifying the actions that will be taken against
employees for violation of such prohibition.

b. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to
inform employees ---

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free
workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and
employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees
for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

c. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged
in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement
required by paragraph a.;

d. Notifying the employee in the statement required by para-
graph a. that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the
employee will ---

Acting on behalf of the above named Applicant as its Authorized Official, I make the following certifications and agreements to
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the sites listed below:

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her convic-
tion for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the
workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

e. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days
after receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2) from an em-
ployee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, includ-
ing position title, to every grant officer or other designee on
whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federalagency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices.  Notice shall include the identification
number(s) of each affected grant;

f. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar
days of receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2), with respect
to any employee who is so convicted ---

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an
employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the
requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfacto-
rily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program ap-
proved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-
free workplace through implementation of paragraphs a. thru f.

2. Sites for Work Performance.  The Applicant shall list (on separate pages) the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the
HUD funding of the program/activity shown above:  Place of Performance shall include the street address, city, county, State, and zip code.
Identify each sheet with the Applicant name and address and the program/activity receiving grant funding.)

Check here  if there are workplaces on file that are not identified on the attached sheets.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning:  HUD will prosecute false claims and statements.  Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012;   31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official Title

Signature Date

X

217



218



219



220



221



222



223



1 
 

         Agenda Item No. II-4a 
      

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: Revised Petitions for Improvements to Bellechase Third Addition (District II) 
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities  
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
  
Recommendation: Approve the revised petitions and revised budgets, and adopt the amending 
resolutions. 

Background: On January 8, 2013, the City Council approved petitions for water and paving 
improvements to serve Bellechase Third Addition. The developer has submitted new petitions with 
smaller improvement districts to allow for reduced project phases. The signatures on the petitions 
represent 100% of the improvement district and the petitions are valid per Kansas Statute 12-6a01. 

Analysis: The projects will provide water and paving improvements required for a new residential 
development located north of Harry, east of 127th Street East.  

Financial Considerations: The original petition totals were $156,000 for water and $990,000 for paving. 
The revised petition totals are $37,000 for water and $147,000 for paving. The funding source for both 
projects is special assessments. 

Legal Considerations: The Law Department has reviewed and approved the revised petitions and 
amending resolutions as to form. 

Recommendations/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council approve the revised petitions and 
revised budgets, adopt the amending resolutions, and authorize the necessary signatures. 

Attachments: Map, budget sheets, petitions, and amending resolutions. 

224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



1 
 

766347 
 

(Published in the Wichita Eagle, on October 9, 2015) 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-327 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 
CERTAIN INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS (PAVING 
IMPROVEMENTS – BELLECHASE THIRD ADDITION-PHASE 2/NORTH OF 
HARRY, EAST OF 127TH STREET EAST) (472-85079). 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wichita, Kansas (the “City”) is a municipal corporation, duly created, 
organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “Governing Body”) has heretofore by Resolution 
No. 13-003 of the City (the “Prior Resolution) authorizing certain internal improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the scope of the improvements authorized by the Prior Resolution has changed;  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the receipt of a new petition (the “Petition”), it is necessary to authorize the 
improvements requested therein by the adoption of a new resolution of the City and repeal the Prior 
Resolution; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Petition was filed with the City Clerk proposing certain internal improvements; and 
said Petition sets forth:  (a) the general nature of the proposed improvements; (b) the estimated or probable 
cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent of the proposed improvement district to be assessed for the 
cost of the proposed improvements; (d) the proposed method of assessment; (e) the proposed apportionment 
of the cost between the improvement district and the City at large; and (f) a request that such improvements 
be made without notice and hearing as required by K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq., (the "Act"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines that said Petition was signed by the 
owners of record of more than one-half of the area liable for assessment for the proposed improvements, 
and is therefore sufficient in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS: 
 
 
 

Section 1.  Repealer.  The Prior Resolution is hereby repealed. 
 
 Section 2.  Findings of Advisability.  The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that: 
 
 (a) It is advisable to make the following improvements: 
 
  Construction of pavement on Sierra Hills from Bellechase to the North lot line of Lot 
10, Block 3, with drainage to be installed where necessary (the "Improvements"). 
 
 (b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is One Hundred Forty-Seven 
Thousand Dollars ($147,000), exclusive of interest on financing and administrative and financing costs; 
said estimated amount to be increased at the pro rata rate of 1 percent per month from and after the date of 
submission of the Petition to the City.  If expenses have been incurred for the Improvements and construction 
has not started within two years of the initial design contract, the Improvements will be deemed abandoned 

237



2 
 

and expenses incurred to date will be assessed against property in the Improvement District defined below in 
accordance with the provisions thereof. 
 
 (c) The extent of the improvement district (the "Improvement District") to be assessed for the 
cost of the Improvements is: 
 

BELLECHASE THIRD ADDITION-PHASE 2 
Lots 1 through 7, Block 2 
Lots 4 through 10, Block 3 

 
 
 (d) The method of assessment is:  equally per lot (14 lots).   
 
In the event that the driveway approaches and curb cuts are not included within the scope of the Improvements 
and the estimated cost thereof as set forth in subsection (b) above, the costs of such driveway approaches and 
curb cuts so constructed shall be directly assessed to the property benefitted thereby in addition to the 
assessments levied for the Improvements. In the event all or part of the lots or parcels in the proposed 
Improvement District are reconfigured before or after assessments have been levied, the assessments against 
the replatted area shall be recalculated on a square foot basis or per the terms of a respreads agreement 
submitted to the City if Wichita. 
 
 (e) The apportionment of the cost of the Improvements, between the Improvement District and 
the City at large, is:  100% to be assessed against the Improvement District and 0% to be paid by the City-at-
large. 
 
 (f) The payment of assessments to be imposed hereunder may be indefinitely deferred against 
those property owners eligible for deferral pursuant to the City’s Special Assessment Deferral Program. 
 
 Section 3.  Authorization of Improvements.  The Improvements are hereby authorized and ordered 
to be made in accordance with the findings of the Governing Body as set forth in Section 2 of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 4.  Plans and Specifications.  The City Engineer shall prepare plans and specifications for 
said Improvements and a preliminary estimate of cost therefore, which plans, specifications and estimate shall 
be presented to the Governing Body for its approval. 
 
 Section 5.  Bond Authority; Reimbursement.  The Act provides for the Improvements to be paid 
by the issuance of general obligation bonds or special obligation bonds of the City (the "Bonds").  The Bonds 
may be issued to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date which is 60 days before the date of adoption 
of the Prior Resolution, all pursuant to Treasury Regulation § 1.150-2. 
 
 Section 6.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  This Resolution shall 
be published one time in the official City newspaper, and shall also be filed of record in the office of the 
Register of Deeds of Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 
 
 
 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

238



3 
 

      
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Jennifer Magaña, City Attorney and Director of Law  

239



1 
 

735536 
 

(Published in the Wichita Eagle, on October 9, 2015) 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-328 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 
CERTAIN INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS (WATER 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM – BELLECHASE THIRD ADDITION-PHASE 2/NORTH 
OF HARRY, EAST OF 127TH STREET EAST) (448-90577). 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wichita, Kansas (the “City”) is a municipal corporation, duly created, 
organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “Governing Body”) has heretofore by Resolution 
No. 13-005 of the City (the “Prior Resolution) authorizing certain internal improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the scope of the improvements authorized by the Prior Resolution has changed;  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the receipt of a new petition (the “Petition”), it is necessary to authorize the 
improvements requested therein by the adoption of a new resolution of the City and repeal the Prior 
Resolution; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Petition was filed with the City Clerk proposing certain internal improvements; and 
said Petition sets forth:  (a) the general nature of the proposed improvements; (b) the estimated or probable 
cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent of the proposed improvement district to be assessed for the 
cost of the proposed improvements; (d) the proposed method of assessment; (e) the proposed apportionment 
of the cost between the improvement district and the City at large; and (f) a request that such improvements 
be made without notice and hearing as required by K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq., (the "Act"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines that said Petition was signed by the 
owners of record of more than one-half of the area liable for assessment for the proposed improvements, 
and is therefore sufficient in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS: 
 
 
  
  

240



2 
 

Section 1.  Repealer.  The Prior Resolution is hereby repealed. 
 
 Section 2.  Findings of Advisability.  The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that: 
 
 (a) It is advisable to make the following improvements: 
 
  Construction of a water distribution system, including necessary water mains, pipes, 
valves, hydrants, and appurtenances to serve the Improvement District defined below (the 
"Improvements"). 
 
 (b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is Thirty-Seven Thousand Dollars 
($37,000) , exclusive of interest on financing and administrative and financing costs; said estimated amount 
to be increased at the pro rata rate of 1 percent per month from and after the date of submission of the Petition 
to the City. If expenses have been incurred for the Improvements and construction has not started within two 
years of the initial design contract, the Improvements will be deemed abandoned and expenses incurred to 
date will be assessed against property in the Improvement District defined below in accordance with the 
provisions thereof. 
 
 (c) The extent of the improvement district (the "Improvement District") to be assessed for the 
cost of the Improvements is: 
 

BELLECHASE THIRD ADDITION-PHASE 2 
Lots 1 through 7, Block 2 
Lots 4 through 10, Block 3 

 
 (d) The method of assessment is:  equally per lot (14 lots).   
 
In the event all or part of the lots or parcels in the proposed Improvement District are reconfigured before or 
after assessments have been levied, the assessments against the replatted area shall be recalculated on a square 
foot basis or per the terms of a respreads agreement submitted to the City of Wichita. 
  
 (e) The apportionment of the cost of the Improvements, between the Improvement District and 
the City at large, is:  100% to be assessed against the Improvement District and 0% to be paid by the City-at-
large. 
 
 (f) The payment of assessments to be imposed hereunder may be indefinitely deferred against 
those property owners eligible for deferral pursuant to the City’s Special Assessment Deferral Program. 
 
 (g) The undersigned acknowledge that property within the proposed Improvement District is 
subject to benefit fees to be imposed as a result of previously constructed water main improvements that 
benefit the property within the proposed Improvement District.  Such benefit fees shall be imposed pursuant 
to K.S.A. 12-6a19, in the following manner:  $3972 assessed equally among all property equally per lot 
(14 lots). 
 
 Section 3.  Authorization of Improvements.  The Improvements are hereby authorized and ordered 
to be made in accordance with the findings of the Governing Body as set forth in Section 2 of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 4.  Plans and Specifications.  The City Engineer shall prepare plans and specifications for 
said Improvements and a preliminary estimate of cost therefore, which plans, specifications and estimate shall 
be presented to the Governing Body for its approval. 
 
 Section 5.  Bond Authority; Reimbursement.  The Act provides for the Improvements to be paid 
by the issuance of general obligation bonds or special obligation bonds of the City (the "Bonds").  The Bonds 
may be issued to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date which is 60 days before the date of adoption 
of the Prior Resolution, all pursuant to Treasury Regulation § 1.150-2. 
 

241



3 
 

 Section 6.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  This Resolution shall 
be published one time in the official City newspaper, and shall also be filed of record in the office of the 
Register of Deeds of Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 
 
 
 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Jennifer Magaña, City Attorney and Director of Law  

242



          Agenda Item No. II-5a 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 

 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
  
SUBJECT:  Community Events – Prairie Fire Half Marathon (All Districts)  
  
INITIATED BY: Division of Arts & Cultural Services 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the request for temporary street closures. 
 
Background:  In accordance with the Community Events procedure, the event promoter Bob Hanson, 
Greater Wichita Area Sports Commission, is coordinating the Prairie Fire Half Marathon Run with City 
of Wichita staff, subject to final approval by the City Council. 
 
Analysis:  The following street closure request has been submitted: 
 
Prairie Fire Half Marathon October 11, 2015 12:00 am – 5:00 pm 
 Lewis/Waterman Street, Main Street to McLean Boulevard  
 McLean Boulevard, Lincoln Street to Douglas Avenue 
 Douglas Avenue, McLean Boulevard to Clifton Avenue 
 Clifton Avenue, Douglas Avenue to Waterman Street 
 Waterman Street, Clifton Street to Circle Drive 
 Circle Drive, Waterman Street to Bluff Street 
 Bluff Street, Circle Drive to Lewis Street  
 Lewis Street, Bluff Street to Glendale Street 
 Glendale Street, Lewis Street to Waterman Street 
 Waterman Street, Glendale Street to Edgemoor Street 
 Edgemoor Street, Waterman Street to South Lexington Road 
 South Lexington Road, Edgemoor Street to South Ridgecrest Street 
 South Ridgecrest Street, South Lexington Street to Douglas Avenue 
 Douglas Avenue, South Ridgecrest Street to Dellrose Street 
 Dellrose Street, Douglas to Second Street 
 Second Street, Dellrose Street to Emporia Street 
 Emporia Street, Second Street to Pine Street 
 Pine Street, Emporia Street to Santa Fe Avenue  
 Santa Fe Avenue, Pine Street to Murdock Street 
 Murdock Street, Santa Fe Avenue to Main Street  
 Main Street, Murdock Street to 2nd Street 
 Second Street/Central Avenue, Main Street to Seneca Street   
 Seneca Street, Central Avenue to McLean Boulevard 
 McLean Boulevard, Seneca Street to Lewis Street  

243



The event promoter will arrange to remove the barricades as necessary to allow emergency vehicle access 
during the entire designated time period.  The barricades will be removed immediately upon completion 
of the event. 
 
Financial Consideration: The event promoter is responsible for all costs associated with the special 
event.   
 
Legal Consideration: This action complies with the ordinance on street closures for community events. 
 
Recommendation/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council approve the request subject to: 1) 
Hiring of off-duty certified law enforcement officers as required; 2) Obtaining barricades to close the 
streets in accordance with requirements of the Police, Fire and Public Works and Utilities Departments; 
and 3) Securing Certificate of Liability Insurance on file with the Community Events Coordinator. 
 

244



          Agenda Item No.  II-5b 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 

 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
  
SUBJECT:  Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon and Fun Run (All Districts)  
  
INITIATED BY: Division of Arts & Cultural Service  
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the request for temporary street closures. 
 
Background:  In accordance with the Community Events procedure, the event promoter Bob Hanson, 
Greater Wichita Area Sports Commission, is coordinating the Prairie Fire Marathon and Fun Run with 
City of Wichita staff, subject to final approval by the City Council. 
 
Analysis:  The following street closure request has been submitted: 
 
Prairie Fire Marathon and Fun Run October 11, 2015 12:00 am – 5:00 pm 
 Lewis/Waterman Street, Main Street to McLean Boulevard  
 McLean Boulevard, Lincoln Street to Douglas Avenue 
 Douglas Avenue, McLean Boulevard to Clifton Avenue 
 Clifton Avenue, Douglas Avenue to Waterman Street 
 Waterman Street, Clifton Street to Circle Drive 
 Circle Drive, Waterman Street to Bluff Street 
 Bluff Street, Circle Drive to Lewis Street  
 Lewis Street, Bluff Street to Glendale Street 
 Glendale Street, Lewis Street to Waterman Street 
 Waterman Street, Glendale Street to Edgemoor Street 
 Edgemoor Street, Waterman Street to South Lexington Road 
 South Lexington Road, Edgemoor Street to South Ridgecrest Street 
 South Ridgecrest Street, South Lexington Street to Lynwood Street 
 Lynwood Street, South Ridgecrest Street to Hampton Street 
 Hampton Street, Lynwood Street to walking path 
 Lakeside Boulevard, Willowbrook Road to South Mission Road 
 South Mission Road, Lakeside Boulevard to Douglas Avenue  
 Douglas Avenue, South Mission Road to Rutland Street 
 Rutland Street, Douglas Avenue to Armour Avenue 
 Armour Avenue, Rutland Street to Central Avenue 
 Central Avenue, Armour Avenue to Broadmoor Avenue 
 Broadmoor Avenue, Central Avenue to Doreen Street 
 Doreen Street, Killarney Street to Donegal Street 
 Donegal Street, Doreen Street to Rock Road 

245



 Rock Road, Donegal Street to Polo Drive 
 Polo Drive, Rock Road to South Magill Street 
 Broadmoor Street, Polo Drive to Magill Street 
 Magill Street, Broadmoor Street to Doreen Street          
 Doreen Street, Magill Street to Oneida Street 
 Oneida Street, Doreen Street to Post Oak Road 
 Post Oak Road, Oneida Street to path 
 Talleyrand Street/Tenth Street, path to Gretchen Lane 
 Gretchen Lane, Tenth Street to Magill Street 
 Magill Street, Gretchen Lane to Woodlawn Street 
 Patricia Street, Woodlawn Street to Ninth Street 
 Ninth Street, Patricia Street to Edgemoor Street 
 Edgemoor Street, Ninth Street to Douglas Avenue  
 Douglas Avenue, Edgemoor Street to Dellrose Street  
 Dellrose Street, Douglas Avenue to Second Street  
 Second Street, Dellrose Street to Emporia Street 
 Emporia Street, Second Street to Pine Street 
 Pine Street, Emporia Street to Santa Fe Avenue  
 Santa Fe Avenue, Pine Street to Murdock Street 
 Murdock Street, Santa Fe Avenue to Main Street  
 Main Street, Murdock Street to Eighth Street 
 Eighth Street, Main Street to Back Bay Boulevard 
 Back Bay Boulevard, Eighth Street to Ninth Street  
 Ninth Street, Back Bay Boulevard to Oak Park Drive 
 Oak Park Drive, Ninth Street to Forest Avenue 
 Forest Avenue, Oak Park Drive to 12th Street 
 Oak Park Drive, 12th to 11th Street 
 11th Street, Oak Park Drive to West River Boulevard  
 West River Boulevard, 11th Street to Murdock Street   
 Stackman Drive, Murdock Street to Sim Park Drive 
 Sim Park Drive, Stackman Drive to Murdock Street  
 Murdock Street, Sim Park Drive to Amidon Avenue  
 Amidon Avenue, Murdock Street to 12th Street  
 12th Street, Amidon Avenue to Perry Street 
 Perry Street, 12th Street to 13th Street  
 13th Street, Perry Street to McLean Boulevard 
 McLean Boulevard, 13th Street to Douglas Avenue  

 
The event promoter will arrange to remove the barricades as necessary to allow emergency vehicle access 
during the entire designated time period.  The barricades will be removed immediately upon completion 
of the event. 
 
Financial Consideration: The event promoter is responsible for all costs associated with the special 
event.   
 
Legal Consideration: This action complies with the ordinance on street closures for community events. 
 
Recommendation/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council approve the request subject to: 1) 
Hiring of off-duty certified law enforcement officers as required; 2) Obtaining barricades to close the 
streets in accordance with requirements of the Police, Fire and Public Works and Utilities Departments; 
and 3) Securing Certificate of Liability Insurance on file with the Community Events Coordinator. 

246



          Agenda Item No.  II-5c 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 

 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
  
SUBJECT:  Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon 5K (Districts I and VI)  
  
INITIATED BY: Division of Arts & Cultural Services 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the request for temporary street closures. 
 
Background:  In accordance with the Community Events procedure, the event promoter Bob Hanson, 
Greater Wichita Area Sports Commission, is coordinating the Prairie Fire Marathon 5K with City of 
Wichita staff, subject to final approval by the City Council. 
 
Analysis:  The following street closure request has been submitted: 
 
Prairie Fire Marathon 5K October 11, 2015 12:00 am – 5:00 pm 
 Lewis/Waterman Street, Main Street to McLean Boulevard  
 McLean Boulevard, Lewis/Waterman Street to Seneca Street 
 Seneca Street, McLean Boulevard to Museum Boulevard 
 Museum Boulevard, Seneca Street to Greenway Boulevard 
 Greenway Boulevard, Second Street to Water Street 
 Water Street, Second Street to Douglas Avenue 
 Main Street, Second Street to Douglas Avenue 
 Douglas Avenue, Main Street to McLean Boulevard 

 
The event promoter will arrange to remove the barricades as necessary to allow emergency vehicle access 
during the entire designated time period.  The barricades will be removed immediately upon completion 
of the event. 
 
Financial Consideration: The event promoter is responsible for all costs associated with the special 
event.   
 
Legal Consideration: This action complies with the ordinance on street closures for community events. 
 
Recommendation/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council approve the request subject to: 1) 
Hiring of off-duty certified law enforcement officers as required; 2) Obtaining barricades to close the 
streets in accordance with requirements of the Police, Fire and Public Works and Utilities Departments; 
and 3) Securing Certificate of Liability Insurance on file with the Community Events Coordinator. 
 

247



         Agenda Item No.  II-5d 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 

 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
  
SUBJECT:  Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon Set-up (District I)  
  
INITIATED BY: Division of Arts & Cultural Services 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the request for temporary street closures. 
 
Background:  In accordance with the Community Events procedure, the event promoter Bob Hanson, 
Greater Wichita Area Sports Commission, is coordinating the Prairie Fire Marathon, Half Marathon, 5K 
and Fun Run with City of Wichita staff, subject to final approval by the City Council. 
 
Analysis:  The following street closure request has been submitted: 
 
Prairie Fire Marathon Set-up October 10, 2015 10:00 am – October 11, 2015 5:00 pm 
 Lewis/Waterman, Wichita Street to Water Street 

 
The event promoter will arrange to remove the barricades as necessary to allow emergency vehicle access 
during the entire designated time period.  The barricades will be removed immediately upon completion 
of the event. 
 
Financial Consideration: The event promoter is responsible for all costs associated with the special 
event.   
 
Legal Consideration: This action complies with the ordinance on street closures for community events. 
 
Recommendation/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council approve the request subject to: 1) 
Hiring of off-duty certified law enforcement officers as required; 2) Obtaining barricades to close the 
streets in accordance with requirements of the Police, Fire and Public Works and Utilities Departments; 
and 3) Securing Certificate of Liability Insurance on file with the Community Events Coordinator. 
 

248



Agenda Item No. II-6a 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 

TO:    Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Design-Build Agreement for Cowskin Creek, Sewage Treatment Plant No. 3 

Rehabilitation (District V) 
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve the design-build agreement. 
 
Background: In May 2014, the City performed a condition assessment report to evaluate the 
infrastructure assets at Cowskin Creek, Sewage Treatment Plant No. 3. The report was performed to meet 
the Second Amendment Schedule of Compliance for the Consent Order, Case No. 13-E-1-BOW. 
Risk assessments were performed to determine the relative possibility of failure among the assets. The 
results of the assessments identified three areas at Cowskin Creek, Sewage Treatment Plant No. 3 that 
have a high risk of infrastructure asset failure. The three areas identified are: significant head works 
corrosion on the influent screen channels and grit removal equipment, failure of the air diffusers and 
inadequate mixing in the solids treatment basins, and failure of reuse water pumps. On June 16, 2015, the 
City Council approved the project as a design-build, and authorized staff to proceed with the request for 
proposals. 
 
Analysis: On August 20, 2015, a staff screening and selection committee interviewed four vendors that 
responded to the request for proposals for the facility improvements. The committee selected Burns & 
McDonnell for the design portion and CAS Constructors for construction. The selections were based on 
the approach demonstrated by both companies regarding timing and necessary process improvements, as 
well as past experience working with the Kansas Department of Health Environment (KDHE) on 
regulatory issues.  
 
The proposed agreement between the City and Burns & McDonnell and CAS Constructors provides for 
plans and specification up to the 30% design stage (Phase 1) of the project in order to determine a 
guaranteed maximum price (GMP) for consideration to proceed to the Phase 2 portion of the project.  
Phase 2 will include design completion services, acquisition of equipment, construction services, and 
start-up and commissioning of the plant improvements. This work involves the Schedule of Compliance 
with a regulatory deadline of June 30, 2016, for project completion. The Phase 2 portion of the project 
will be presented for approval after the plans, specifications and the GMP have been deemed to be 
acceptable. 
 
Financial Considerations: The design fee for Phase 1 is $24,500. Funding is available within the 
existing $2,355,000 budget, approved by the City Council on June 16, 2015, and is funded by future 
revenue bonds or water utility cash reserves.  
 
Legal Considerations: The agreement has been reviewed and approved as to form by the Law 
Department. 
 
Recommendation/Action: It is recommended that the City Council approve the 30% design-build 
agreement and authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachment: Design-Build Agreement. 

249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



1 
 

Agenda Item No. II-6b 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: 2015 Biennial Bridge Inspections (All Districts) 
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA: Consent 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation: Approve the agreement and budget and adopt the resolution.  
 
Background: The Federal Highway Administration and the Kansas Department of Transportation require 
the structural inventory and appraisal of all bridges maintained by the City of Wichita. The City’s last 
inspection report was submitted in 2013. The inspections are required on a biennial basis to maintain 
eligibility for federal funding for bridge repair and replacement projects. The bridge inspection reports 
also aid in the prioritization of projects for maintenance and replacement programs.  
  
Analysis: On August 6, 2015, and August 14, 2015, the Staff Screening and Selection Committee 
interviewed three consultants that responded to the City’s Request for Proposals. TranSystems was 
selected to provide the bridge inspection services for 2015 and 2016 based on its considerable expertise in 
bridge inspections, proposed documentation and final reporting, and the availability of qualified staff. 
 
Significant bridge maintenance issues may be encountered during inspections. Identification and 
coordination of these repairs requires City staff to be involved with TranSystems throughout the course of 
the bridge inspections. It was anticipated that new federal and state regulations would require a more 
intensive and costly type of inspection. The regulations have not yet been put in place, but are still 
anticipated and may be required in subsequent inspection cycles.  
 
Financial Considerations: Payment to TranSystems for the bridge inspections and reports will be on a 
lump sum basis of $80,000. The Adopted 2015-2024 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) includes 
$200,000 in general obligation (GO) bond funding in 2015 for these inspections. Of the $200,000 
available in the 2015-2024 CIP, staff recommends initiating $125,000 now, to allow for payment of the 
agreement, anticipated additional inspections, and for City staff administration and oversight costs.  
 
Legal Considerations: The Law Department has reviewed and approved the agreement and resolution as 
to form. 
 
Recommendation/Action: It is recommended that the City Council approve the agreement and budget, 
adopt the resolution, and authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments: Agreement, resolution, and budget sheet. 
 

261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



1 
 

 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-329 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 
BONDS OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS TO PAY THE COSTS OF 
CERTAIN PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wichita, Kansas (the “City”) is a municipal corporation, duly created, 
organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body is authorized, pursuant to K.S.A. 13-1024c, as amended by 
Charter Ordinance No. 156 of the City (the “Act”) to issue general obligation bonds of the City without an 
election for the purpose of paying for the construction, purchase or improvement of any public 
improvement, including the land necessary therefore, and for the purpose of rebuilding, adding to or 
extending the same as the necessities of the City may require and for the purpose of paying for certain 
personal property therefore; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines that it is necessary and advisable 
to make certain public improvements described as follows: 
 

2015 Biennial Bridge Inspections (472-85233) 
 
(the “Project”) and to provide for the payment of all or a portion of the costs thereof by the issuance of 
general obligation bonds of the City pursuant to the Act. 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  Project Authorization.   It is hereby authorized, ordered and directed that the Project 
be acquired and/or constructed at an estimated cost of One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars 
$125,000 in accordance with plans and specifications therefor prepared under the direction of the City 
Engineer and approved by the Governing Body; said plans and specifications to be placed on file in the 
office of the City Engineer. 
 
 Section 2.  Project Financing.  All or a portion of the costs of the Project, interest on financing 
and administrative and financing costs shall be financed with the proceeds of general obligation bonds of 
the City (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds may be issued to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date 
which is 60 days before  the date of adoption of this Resolution, to the extent of the increased authorization 
contained herein, all pursuant to Treasury Regulation §1.150-2.  
 
 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
adoption by the Governing Body. 
 
 
 
 
 

275



2 
 

 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Jennifer Magaña, City Attorney and Director of Law  
 

276



1 
 

         Agenda Item No. II-6c 
 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

  October 6, 2015 
 
TO:     Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:     KDHE Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy  
   Grant Application (All Districts) 

INITIATED BY:  Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:   Consent 
 
 

Recommendations:  Approve acceptance of the grant award for year three of the three-year grant cycle 
for the Wichita Clean Streams, Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategies (WRAPS) grant. 
 
Background:    Reducing pollution in the Arkansas River has been a priority for the City of Wichita for 
many years.  Over the last several years, the Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) has 
established a program for the development of Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS), 
and is making grant funding available to continue those efforts. On April 5, 2005, the City Council 
approved an environmental services grant application for a KDHE WRAPS grant. The City has 
subsequently applied for each of the three WRAPS phases. 
 
Phase 1, known as the Development Phase, was approved by the City Council in May 2007. This Phase 
included a $50,000 grant award and a $33,333 City match. This Phase led to the identification and 
assembly of volunteer stakeholders from within the community, and the hiring of a consultant to analyze 
water pollution conditions in the Lower Arkansas River watershed. The locally formed stakeholders 
group became the RiverCity WRAPS. 
 
Phase 2, known as the Assessment and Planning Phase, was approved by Council in November 2010, and 
included a $110,000 grant award and a $75,000 City match. This Phase provided for the selection of 
targeted strategies for pollution reduction within the watershed. It also quantified the amount of pollution 
reduction that could be attained by the selection and location of each strategy. 
 
Phase 3, known as the Implementation Phase, was applied for and subsequently awarded by KDHE to the 
City on June 11, 2013. The one-year KDHE grant award was in the amount of $20,000, expired June 30, 
2014, and covered the first year of a three-year grant program. 
 
Year two of Phase 3 was accepted in October 2014 as part of a three-year grant cycle. The grant allowed 
the RiverCity WRAPS group, renamed Wichita Clean Streams, to hire a consultant to complete a design 
in a local watershed to reduce pollutants caused by stormwater runoff.  
 
Analysis:  If approved, this action will allow Wichita Clean Streams to address issues through analysis 
and design of pollution reduction projects within the Arkansas River watershed and the City of Wichita 
through completion of the Phase 3 WRAPS grant.  
 
Design will include stream channel stabilization, grass buffer strips and public education. These specific 
water quality improvement strategies were identified in the three previous phases. The City is the 
designated sponsor agency for the Wichita Clean Streams stakeholder leadership team.  
 
 
 

277



2 
 

Financial Considerations:  This award is for $20,000 through an Environmental Protection Agency 
Section 319 Grant administered by the KDHE Bureau of Water. A required local match in the amount of 
$13,333 will be in the form of in-kind services (demonstrations, meeting support, facilities, equipment, 
materials, etc.) and is available in the Stormwater Utility’s annual operating budget. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the agreement as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Action:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the grant award and 
authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments:  Watershed Management General Grant Conditions, Grant Award Letter from KDHE and 
KDHE Non-Point Source Financial Assistance Agreement. 

278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



1 
 

        Agenda Item No. II-7a 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Change Order No. 4 for K-96 and Hoover Interchange (Districts V and VI) 
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation: Approve Change Order No. 4. 
 
Background: On March 3, 2015, the City Council approved a contract for $2,398,648 with Cornejo & 
Sons, LLC for construction of the K-96 and Hoover Interchange. On June 2, 2015, the City Council 
approved increasing the change order limit to 8% of the contract, or $191,892. The following change 
orders have been processed to date: 
 

Number Date Provided Cost
Original March 3, 2015 Original construction contract $2,398,648
No. 1 March 18, 2015 Cleared the right-of-way line along 

37th Street and along Hoover road 
to accommodate a new fence. 
Portions of existing fence were 
within the project construction 
limits and were removed with the 
project.  

$15,748

No. 2 May 19, 2015 Removed chain link access control 
fence for Brooks Landfill and 
future Crystal Prairie Park along 
the westbound exit ramp and 
replaced with the Kansas 
Department of Health and 
Environment approved chain link 
fence. 

$48,750

No. 3 July 7, 2015 Replaced chain link access control 
fence and entrance on 37th Street 
North to secure the adjacent 
property from trespassing. 

$28,270

  Total change orders to date $92,768
  Contract total to date $2,491,416

 
 
Analysis: Ongoing site development and drainage design of the adjacent platted development has 
changed since bidding, requiring modifications to the K-96 drainage plan, including a drainage ditch 
being added along 37th Street. Additional structures, pipe, and grading work are necessary with the 
modified plan.  
 

320



2 
 

Additionally, the Kansas Department of Transportation completed pavement rehabilitation work on K-96 
after project letting.  As a result, grading, additional crushed rock base, thickened edge concrete and saw 
cuts are needed to match new pavement elevations along K-96. 
 
Financial Consideration: The cost of the proposed change order is $194,768, which brings the total 
contract amount to $2,686,184. Funding is available within the existing budget of $6,900,000, which was 
approved by the City Council on February 3, 2015, and is funded by general obligation at-large bonds and 
local sales tax funds.  
 
Legal Considerations: The Law Department has reviewed and approved Change Order No. 4 as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Action: It is recommended that the City Council approve Change Order No. 4 and 
authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachment: Change Order No. 4. 

321



322



323



         Agenda Item No. II-9 
City of Wichita 

City Council Meeting 
October 6, 2015 

 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT:  Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structure 
   (District III) 
    
INITIATED BY: Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations:  Adopt resolution scheduling a public hearing to consider condemnation of structure 
deemed dangerous and unsafe per Kansas State Statutes. 
 
Background:   On June 1, 2015, the Board of Building Code Standards and Appeals (BBCSA) conducted 
a hearing on the property listed below.  The building on the property is considered a dangerous and unsafe 
structure per State Statutes and local ordinances, and is being presented in order to schedule a 
condemnation hearing before the City Council.  The BBCSA has recommended that the City Council 
proceed with condemnation, demolition and removal of the dangerous building on this property. 
 
This property was originally on the September 15, 2015, New Business Agenda.  It was removed from 
that agenda requiring the establishment of a new hearing date.   
 
Analysis: Minimum Housing Code violation notices have been issued on the structure; however, 
compliance has not been achieved.  Pre-condemnation and formal condemnation letters have also been 
issued, and the time granted for repair or removal has expired.  No actions have been taken by the 
property owners and/or other interested parties to complete required building repairs or to remove the 
dangerous building. 
 
Property Address     Council District 
a. 3881 E. Roseberry      III 
 
Financial Considerations:  Structures condemned as dangerous buildings are demolished with funds 
from the Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department (MABCD) Special Revenue Fund 
contractual services budget, as approved annually by the City Council.   This budget is supplemented by 
an annual allocation of Federal Community Development Block Grant funds for demolition of structures 
located within the designated Neighborhood Reinvestment Area. Expenditures for dangerous building 
condemnation and demolition activities are tracked to ensure that City Council Resolution No. R-95-560, 
which limits MABCD expenditures for non-revenue producing condemnation and housing code 
enforcement activities to twenty percent (20%) of MABCD's total annual budgeted Special Revenue Fund 
expenditures, is followed.  Owners of condemned structures demolished by the City are billed for the 
contractual costs of demolition, plus an additional five hundred dollar ($500) administrative fee.  If the 
property owner fails to pay, these charges are recorded as a special property tax assessment against the 
property. 
 
Legal Considerations: The Law Department has reviewed and approved the resolution as to form.  
 
Recommendations/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council adopt the attached resolution to 
schedule a public hearing before the City Council on November 17, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. or soon thereafter, 
to consider condemnation of structure deemed dangerous and unsafe per Kansas State Statutes and local 
ordinances. 
 

324



Attachments:  Letter to Council, summary, and resolution.   

325



TO:  The Mayor and City Council 
          Wichita, Kansas 
 
RE:   Statement of Dangerous or Unsafe Structure  
 
The following described structure is in a dangerous or unsafe condition: 
 
(a)  Description of Structure: A one-story frame duplex about 65 x 24 feet in size.  This structure has extensive fire 
damage to the east unit; collapsing, badly rotted roof structure with large holes; badly decayed exterior walls with 
holes; rotted, collapsing and missing framing members; rotted hardboard siding; and rotted and missing wood 
trim.    
 
(b)  Street Address: 3881 E. ROSEBERRY  
 
(c) Owners:   
Travis Cunningham 
250 N. Terrace 
Wichita, KS 67208 

 
(d)  Resident Agent: None 

 
(e) Occupant: None 
 
(f)  Lienholders of Record: None 
 
(g) Mortgage Holder(s): None 
 
(h) Interested Parties: None 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

326



DATE: September 17, 2015  
 

         CDM SUMMARY 
 

         COUNCIL DISTRICT # III 
 
ADDRESS:  3881 E. ROSEBERRY 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot 4, except beginning at the Southeast corner of Lot 4; thence Southwesterly along the 
South line of said Lot 4 to the Southwest corner of said Lot 4; thence Northwesterly along the Westerly line of said 
Lot 4 a distance of 70 feet; thence Northeasterly to a point on the Easterly line of said Lot 4, said point being 65.29 
fee Northwesterly of the Southeast corner of said Lot 4; thence Southeasterly along the Easterly line of said Lot 4 
to the point of beginning, Block F, Planeview Subdivision No. 1, being a Subdivision in Section 2, Township 28 
South Range 1 East of the 6th P.M. Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
  
DESCRIPTION OF STRUCTURE: A one-story frame duplex about 65x24 feet in size.  This structure has 
extensive fire damage to the east unit; collapsing, badly rotted roof structure with large holes; badly decayed 
exterior walls with holes; rotted, collapsing and missing framing members; rotted hardboard siding; and rotted 
and missing wood trim.    
 
Description of dangerous or unsafe condition(s):  The property is found to be dangerous and unsafe because of the 
following conditions: 
 
A.  Those, which have been damaged by fire, wind, want of repair, or other causes so as to have become dangerous 
to life, safety, morals or the general health and welfare of the occupants or the people of the city. 
 
B.  The structure fails to provide the necessities to decent living, which makes it, unfit for human habitation. 
 
C.  The building has parts, which are so attached that they may fall and injure other property or the public. 
 
D.  Those whose use, equipment or want of good housekeeping constitutes a decided fire or safety hazard to the 
property itself or its occupants or which presents a decided fire or safety hazards to surrounding property or a 
menace to the public safety and general welfare. 
 
City Ordinance states that any one of the above categories is just cause to declare the building a public nuisance and shall 
be repaired or demolished. 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________                              ____________  
Director of Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department                                Date 
Enforcing Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

327



OCA: 230200 
 

_______________PUBLISHED IN THE WICHITA EAGLE ON_______________ 
RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 
A RESOLUTION FIXING A TIME AND PLACE AND PROVIDING FOR NOTICE OF A HEARING BEFORE THE 
GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, AT WHICH THE OWNER, HIS AGENT, 
LIENHOLDERS OF RECORD AND OCCUPANTS OF PROPERTY LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS: LOT 4, EXCEPT 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE 
SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 4 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 4; THENCE 
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 4 A DISTANCE OF 70 FEET; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 4, SAID POINT BEING 65.29 
FEE NORTHWESTERLY OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 4; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 
ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 4 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, BLOCK F, PLANEVIEW 
SUBDIVISION NO. 1, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 28 SOUTH RANGE 1 EAST OF 
THE 6TH P.M. SEDGWICK COUNTY, KANSAS. COMMONLY KNOWN AS 3881 E. ROSEBERRY MAY 
APPEAR AND SHOW CAUSE WHY SUCH STRUCTURE SHOULD NOT BE CONDEMNED AND ORDERED 
REPAIRED OR DEMOLISHED AS A DANGEROUS STRUCTURE. 
 
WHEREAS, the enforcing officer of the City of Wichita, Kansas, did on the 6th day of October 2015, file with the 
governing body of said city, a statement in writing that certain structure(s), hereinafter described, is unsafe or dangerous. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it Resolved by the Governing Body of the City of Wichita. 
That a hearing will be held on the 17th day of November 2015, before the governing body of the city at 9:30 A.M., or 
thereafter in the council chambers, City Hall at which time the owner, his agent, any lienholders of record or any occupant 
of property, legally described at Lot 4, except beginning at the Southeast corner of Lot 4; thence Southwesterly along the 
South line of said Lot 4 to the Southwest corner of said Lot 4; thence Northwesterly along the Westerly line of said Lot 4 
a distance of 70 feet; thence Northeasterly to a point on the Easterly line of said Lot 4, said point being 65.29 fee 
Northwesterly of the Southeast corner of said Lot 4; thence Southeasterly along the Easterly line of said Lot 4 to the point 
of beginning, Block F, Planeview Subdivision No. 1, being a Subdivision in Section 2, Township 28 South Range 1 East 
of the 6th P.M. Sedgwick County, Kansas., commonly known as: 3881 E. ROSEBERRY, may appear and show cause 
why such structure should not be condemned as an unsafe or dangerous structure ordered repaired or demolished.  The 
structure is A one-story frame duplex about 65 x 24 feet in size.  This structure has extensive fire damage to the east unit; 
collapsing, badly rotted roof structure with large holes; badly decayed exterior walls with holes; rotted, collapsing and 
missing framing members; rotted hardboard siding; and rotted and missing wood trim. 
 
Be it further resolved that the City Clerk shall cause this Resolution to be published and shall give notice of the aforesaid 
hearing in the manner provided by K.S.A. 12-1752. 
 
Adopted this 6th day of October 2015.   
 

__________________________________ 
Jeff Longwell, Mayor 

 
(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST:_______________________ 
                   Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form:  
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Jennifer L. Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law  

328



OCA: 230200 
 

PUBLISHED IN THE WICHITA EAGLE ON OCTOBER 9th AND 16th 2015 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-330 

 
A RESOLUTION FIXING A TIME AND PLACE AND PROVIDING FOR NOTICE OF A HEARING BEFORE THE 
GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, AT WHICH THE OWNER, HIS AGENT, 
LIENHOLDERS OF RECORD AND OCCUPANTS OF PROPERTY LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS: LOT 4, EXCEPT 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE 
SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 4 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 4; THENCE 
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 4 A DISTANCE OF 70 FEET; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 4, SAID POINT BEING 65.29 
FEE NORTHWESTERLY OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 4; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 
ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 4 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, BLOCK F, PLANEVIEW 
SUBDIVISION NO. 1, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 28 SOUTH RANGE 1 EAST OF 
THE 6TH P.M. SEDGWICK COUNTY, KANSAS. COMMONLY KNOWN AS 3881 E. ROSEBERRY MAY 
APPEAR AND SHOW CAUSE WHY SUCH STRUCTURE SHOULD NOT BE CONDEMNED AND ORDERED 
REPAIRED OR DEMOLISHED AS A DANGEROUS STRUCTURE. 
 
WHEREAS, the enforcing officer of the City of Wichita, Kansas, did on the 6th day of October 2015, file with the 
governing body of said city, a statement in writing that certain structure(s), hereinafter described, is unsafe or dangerous. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it Resolved by the Governing Body of the City of Wichita. 
That a hearing will be held on the 17th day of November 2015, before the governing body of the city at 9:30 A.M., or 
thereafter in the council chambers, City Hall at which time the owner, his agent, any lienholders of record or any occupant 
of property, legally described at Lot 4, except beginning at the Southeast corner of Lot 4; thence Southwesterly along the 
South line of said Lot 4 to the Southwest corner of said Lot 4; thence Northwesterly along the Westerly line of said Lot 4 
a distance of 70 feet; thence Northeasterly to a point on the Easterly line of said Lot 4, said point being 65.29 fee 
Northwesterly of the Southeast corner of said Lot 4; thence Southeasterly along the Easterly line of said Lot 4 to the point 
of beginning, Block F, Planeview Subdivision No. 1, being a Subdivision in Section 2, Township 28 South Range 1 East 
of the 6th P.M. Sedgwick County, Kansas., commonly known as: 3881 E. ROSEBERRY, may appear and show cause 
why such structure should not be condemned as an unsafe or dangerous structure ordered repaired or demolished.  The 
structure is A one-story frame duplex about 65 x 24 feet in size.  This structure has extensive fire damage to the east unit; 
collapsing, badly rotted roof structure with large holes; badly decayed exterior walls with holes; rotted, collapsing and 
missing framing members; rotted hardboard siding; and rotted and missing wood trim. 
 
Be it further resolved that the City Clerk shall cause this Resolution to be published and shall give notice of the aforesaid 
hearing in the manner provided by K.S.A. 12-1752. 
 
Adopted this 6th day of October 2015.   
 

__________________________________ 
Jeff Longwell, Mayor 

 
(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST:_______________________ 
                   Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form:  
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Jennifer L. Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law  

329



Agenda Item No. II-10 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: Lease of City-owned Property at 2220 E. 21st Street (District I) 
  
INITIATED BY: Office of Property Management 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the lease and the budget adjustment. 
   
Background:  In 1996, the City and Cessna entered into a development agreement and lease to construct 
two buildings located at 2130 and 2220 E. 21st Street. The building at 2220 E. 21st was developed as a life  
skill training facility and day care.  The facility is a 19,798 square foot (per Sedgwick County), single- 
story facility on an 115,852 square foot site.  The site is zoned limited commercial.  Approximately 59%  
of the space is built out as office space.  The remaining space is assembly area/open space.    
 
Cessna operated the training program for several years until the program was relocated to its main facility  
when business slowed due to the recession.  The lease between the City and Cessna was canceled in  
April 2015.  On June 16, 2015 the facility was declared surplus to the City’s needs and approved for sale 
or lease.  The property was marketed on the internet and by mailers.  Several offers were received with 
the subject lease being the most advantageous to the City. 
 
Analysis:  The City has received an offer to lease the building for $56,850 ($2.87 per square foot) per 
year for three years.   Per the lease, the tenant is responsible for the maintenance of the interior of the 
building including all systems, all landscaping and parking.  The tenant will also pay all insurance, 
utilities and property taxes.  The City is responsible for maintaining the exterior of the building and roof.  
When the lease with Cessna was terminated and the building was returned to the City, the HVAC units 
had been vandalized.  The lease termination payment made by Cessna included funds to replace the 
HVAC units.  The lease calls for the City to replace the HVAC units and the hot water heaters.  The 
tenant is responsible for all interior repair and renovation required for occupancy including electrical 
work, bathroom fixtures, repair of walls, floors, and ceilings, lighting, etc.   
 
Financial Considerations:  The cost to replace the HVAC units and water heaters is estimated at 
$125,000.  Additionally, while the roof has been patched, it is over 20 years old.  If the patching does not 
solve existing leakage, the lease obligates the City to replace the roof.  If required, it is estimated that roof 
replacement would require approximately $125,000.  Property Management operations are funded within 
the Economic Development Fund.  The annual lease payments totaling $56,850 will be credited to this 
fund.  Additionally, the lease of this property to a private party will relieve the City of the majority of the 
cost to maintain the property.  Staff recommends shifting up to $250,000 in budget authority from 
contingency to allow expenditures for the HVAC, water heater and roof repairs, as needed.   
     
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed the lease as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Action:  It is recommended that the City Council 1) approve the Lease Agreement; 2) 
approve the necessary budget adjustments; and 3) authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments:  Lease agreement and aerial.  
 

330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



2220 East 21st North

1,836

306.0

1:

Feet306.00

Legend

152.98

This information is not an official record, and cannot be used as such. The user should rely only upon official records available from 
the custodian of records in the appropriate City and/or County department. Some data provided here and used for the preparation 
of these maps has been obtained from public records not created or maintained by the City of Wichita.

Map Created On: 9/23/15 2:58 PM

Parcels

341



 Agenda Item No. II-11 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:    Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:   Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bond and Refunding Revenue Bond Sale 
    
INITIATED BY:  Department of Finance 
 
AGENDA:   Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt the resolution.  
 
Background:  The City is planning to offer for sale one series of Water and Sewer Utility Revenue 
Bonds (Series 2015C) in an amount not to exceed $26,500,000 and one series of Water and Sewer Utility 
Refunding Revenue Bonds (Series 2015D) in an amount not to exceed $26,500,000.   
 
As capital projects of the Water and Sewer Utilities (“Utilities”) have been initiated, the City Council has 
adopted resolutions authorizing the improvements and the issuance of revenue bonds.  Additionally, 
notices of the City’s intent to carry out the improvements and issue revenue bonds have been published in 
the City’s official newspaper.  The Series 2015C Bonds are being issued on a reimbursement basis to 
finance project costs previously incurred. 
 
Staff has investigated the savings potential from the refunding and has determined that savings in debt 
service costs can be obtained.  The Series 2015D Refunding Bonds will refund Series 2008A dated April 
1, 2008 in the original principal amount of $29,460,000 (of which $23,255,000 is to be refunded).  
 
Analysis: In anticipation of the issuance of revenue bonds, the Utilities have been drawing down cash 
reserves to fund the costs of authorized improvement projects.  The Utilities wish to proceed with the 
issuance and sale of Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2015C in the approximate principal 
amount of $25,900,000 to permanently finance and reimburse a portion of project costs incurred to date, 
and to provide funding of bond reserve requirements as well as financing costs.   
 
The Series 2008A Bonds are not yet callable and can only be refunded with “advance refunding” bonds.  
Additionally, tax-exempt bonds originally issued after the effective date of the 1986 Tax Reform Act can 
only be advance refunded once.   
 
Notice of up to sixty days regarding the City’s intent to call the outstanding bonds prior to their stated 
maturities must be provided to all bond holders and Material Event Notices must be filed with the 
Electronic Municipal Market Access facility for municipal securities disclosure of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board.  
 
The resolution authorizes the City to proceed with the sale of bonds and related activities, including the 
preparation and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and Notice of Sale.  In addition, the 
resolution authorizes the City Manager or his designee to award the sale of the bonds subject to the 
parameters established in the resolution. Bids will be accepted electronically through PARITY Electronic 
Bid Submission System on October 14, 2015 and the City Manager or his designee will award the sale of 
bonds to the bidders whose proposed interest rates result in the lowest overall cost to the City.  
 
 
The City has established a minimum 3% threshold as an appropriate level of savings in connection with a 

342



Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bond and Refunding Revenue Bond Sale  
October 6, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
bond refunding. In the event the actual bids on the Series 2015D Refunding Bonds do not produce the 
minimum level of savings, the acceptance of the bids on the refunding bonds will not be recommended. 
At the next scheduled meeting, the City Council will ratify the award of the bids and approve ordinances 
and resolutions authorizing the issuance of the bonds.  
 
Financial Considerations:   The City of Wichita awards the sale of bonds to the bidder with the lowest 
true interest cost, or “TIC”. The TIC is the rate that will discount all future cash payments so that the sum 
of the present value will equal the bond proceeds. Further, using the TIC calculation can potentially result 
in the City saving money because the TIC does not ignore the timing of interest payments. 
 
The proceeds from the Series 2015C Bonds will be used to reimburse and pay project expenses, provide 
funding of the bond reserve, and other financing costs.  The debt service payments associated with the 
bonds will be funded entirely from net revenues derived from operations of the Utilities.  The Series 
2015C Bonds are being financed over 15 and 20 years, with principal maturities structured to produce 
level annual payments of principal and interest.  The bonds maturing October 1, 2026, and thereafter, may 
be called for redemption and payment prior to their respective maturities on and after October 1, 2025, at 
par.  
 
The Series 2015D Refunding Bonds will mature over the next seventeen years (2016-2032) without 
extending principal maturities beyond the original maturity schedule of the Series 2008A Bonds. Based 
on current market conditions, the Series 2015D Refunding Bonds will generate an estimated net present 
value savings of approximately $1.8 million. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The resolution (as prepared by the City’s Bond Counsel) authorizing the sale of 
the bonds and directing the publication and distribution of the Official Notice of Sale has been reviewed 
and approved as to form by the Law Department. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended the City adopt the resolution: 1) authorizing the Water 
and Sewer Utility Revenue Bond and Refunding Revenue Bond sale; 2) authorizing preparation of the 
Notice of Bond Sale and Preliminary Official Statement in connection with the bond sale; 3) approving 
the distribution to prospective bidders of the Preliminary Official Statement; 4) authorizing distribution of 
the Notice of Sale; 5) authorizing the City Manager or his designee  to award the bids subject to the 
parameters of the resolution; and 6) authorizing City staff, in consultation with Bond Counsel and the 
financial advisor, to take such further action as is reasonably required to implement the resolution.    
  
 
Attachments:   Sale Resolution 
 Official Notice of Sale 

343



JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV SALE RES (09-24-15) 

 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
09/24/2015 

 
EXCERPT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 

HELD ON OCTOBER 6, 2015 
 
 The governing body met in regular session at the usual meeting place in the City, at 9:00 a.m., the 
following members being present and participating, to-wit: 

 
 
 

 Absent:   
 
 The Mayor declared that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

(Other Proceedings) 
 
 The matter of providing for the offering for sale of Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bonds came 
on for consideration and was discussed. 
 
 [_______________] moved the adoption of a Resolution entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE OFFERING FOR SALE OF WATER AND 
SEWER UTILITY REVENUE BONDS AND WATER AND SEWER UTILITY 
REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS. 

 
 [_______________] seconded the motion to adopt the Resolution.  Thereupon, the Resolution 
was read and considered, and, the question being put to a roll call vote, the vote thereon was as follows: 
 
 Aye:           . 
 
 Nay:           . 
 
 The Mayor declared the Resolution duly adopted; the Clerk designating the same Resolution 
No. 15-[___]. 

 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 
(Other Proceedings) 

 
[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

344



 

JLN\600809.70386\ WWS REV SALE RES 
  

(Signature Page to Excerpt of Minutes) 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing Excerpt of Minutes is a true and correct excerpt of the 
proceedings of the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, held on the date stated therein, and that 
the official minutes of such proceedings are on file in my office. 
 
 
(SEAL)              

        Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 

345



 

JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV SALE RES (09-24-15) 

 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
09/24/2015 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-331 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE OFFERING FOR SALE OF WATER AND 
SEWER UTILITY REVENUE BONDS AND WATER AND SEWER UTILITY 
REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wichita, Kansas (the “City”) owns and operates the combined Water and 
Sewer Utility System (the “Utility”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City is authorized under the 
provisions of K.S.A. 10-1201 et seq., as amended by Charter Ordinance No. 211 (the “Act”) to issue and 
sell revenue bonds for the purpose of paying all or part of the cost of the acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction, alteration, repair, improvement, extension or enlargement of the Utility, provided that the 
principal of and interest on such revenue bonds shall be payable solely from the Net Revenues derived 
from the operation of the Utility; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has heretofore, pursuant to the Act, taken action to authorize 
financing the costs of constructing, reconstructing, altering, repairing, improving, extending or enlarging 
the Utility (collectively, the “Projects”); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has heretofore issued several series of such revenue bonds to make 
improvements to the Utility and to refund and refinance all or portions of such revenue bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, due to the current interest rate environment, the City has the opportunity to issue its 
refunding revenue bonds in order to achieve an interest cost savings on all or a portion of the debt 
represented by the following described bonds (collectively, the “Refunded Bonds”): 
 

Description Series Dated Date Years Amount 
Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bonds 2008A 04/01/2008 2016-2032 $23,255,000 

 
;and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City hereby selects the firm of Springsted Incorporated (“Financial Advisor”), as 
financial advisor for one or more series of revenue bonds of the City to be issued in order to provide funds 
to finance the Projects and refund the Refunded Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to authorize the Director of Finance and other City staff, the Law 
Department, the Financial Advisor and Gilmore & Bell, P.C., as bond counsel (“Bond Counsel”) to 
proceed with the offering for sale of Utility revenue bonds and related activities in order to finance the 
Projects and refund the Refunded Bonds, including the preparation and distribution of a preliminary 
official statement and notice of bond sale; and 
 
 WHEREAS, due to the volatile nature of the municipal bond market and the desire of the City to 
achieve maximum benefit of timing of the sale of said Utility revenue bonds, the Governing Body desires 
to authorize the City Manager or designee to confirm the sale of such Utility revenue bonds, if necessary, 
prior to the next meeting of the Governing Body to adopt the necessary ordinance and resolution 
providing for the issuance thereof. 

346



 

JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV SALE RES (09-24-15) 

2 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF WICHITA, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Director of Finance is hereby authorized to offer at competitive public sale the 
Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2015C of the City (the “Series 2015C Bonds”) and Water 
and Sewer Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015D of the City (the “Series 2015D Bonds,” and 
together with the Series 2015 C Bonds, the “Series 2015 Bonds”), the proceeds of which shall be applied 
to finance the Projects, refund the Refunded Bonds, fund necessary reserves and pay associated costs of 
issuance.  The timing of offering for sale of the Series 2015 Bonds, the final structuring and repayment 
terms of the Series 2015 Bonds shall be determined by the Director of Finance, in consultation with the 
City Manager or designee, Bond Counsel and the Financial Advisor. 
 
 Section 2.  The Director of Finance, in conjunction with Bond Counsel and the Financial Advisor, 
is hereby authorized and directed to cause to be prepared a Notice of Bond Sale and Preliminary Official 
Statement and to use such document in connection with the sale of the Series 2015 Bonds. 
 
 Section 3.  The Director of Finance, in conjunction with Bond Counsel and the Financial Advisor, 
is hereby authorized and directed to give notice of said sale by distributing copies of the Notice of Bond 
Sale and Preliminary Official Statement to prospective purchasers of the Series 2015 Bonds.  Proposals 
for the purchase of the Series 2015 Bonds shall be submitted upon the terms and conditions set forth in 
said Notice of Bond Sale, will be reviewed by the City Manager or designee and the Director of Finance 
and acted upon by the City Manager or designee, who shall have the authority to award the sale of the 
Series 2015 Bonds, subject to the following parameters:   (a) the principal amount of the Series 2015C 
Bonds shall not exceed $26,500,000; (b) the true interest cost (“TIC”) of Series 2015C Bonds shall not 
exceed 4% ; (c) the principal amount of the Series 2015D Bonds shall not exceed $26,500,000; and (d) 
present value savings associated with refunding the Refunded Bonds shall be not less than 3% of the 
outstanding principal of the Refunded Bonds.  The City Manager or designee also has the authority to 
reject certain or all proposals.  At its next scheduled meeting the Governing Body shall ratify the actions 
of the City Manager or designee and approve an ordinance and resolution authorizing the issuance of the 
Series 2015 Bonds. 
 
 Section 4.  For the purpose of enabling the purchaser of the Series 2015 Bonds (the “Purchaser”) 
to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Rule”), 
the Mayor and the Director of Finance or appropriate officers of the City are hereby authorized to:  (a) 
approve the form of said Preliminary Official Statement, and to execute the “Certificate Deeming 
Preliminary Official Statement Final” in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A as approval 
of the Preliminary Official Statement, such officials’ signature thereon being conclusive evidence of such 
officials’ and the City's approval thereof; (b) covenant to provide continuous secondary market disclosure 
by annually transmitting certain financial information and operating data and other information necessary 
to comply with the Rule to certain national repositories and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, 
as applicable; and (c) take such other actions or execute such other documents as such officers in their 
reasonable judgment deem necessary; to enable the Purchaser to comply with the requirement of the Rule.  
The City agrees to provide to the Purchaser within seven business days of the date of the sale of Series 
2015 Bonds or within sufficient time to accompany any confirmation that requests payment from any 
customer of the Purchaser, whichever is earlier, sufficient copies of the final Official Statement to enable 
the Purchaser to comply with the requirements of the Rule and with the requirements of Rule G-32 of the 
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
 Section 5.  The Mayor, Director of Finance, Clerk, the City Attorney and the other officers and 
representatives of the City, the Financial Advisor and Bond Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to 

347



 

JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV SALE RES (09-24-15) 

3 

take such other action as may be necessary to carry out the sale of the Series 2015 Bonds, including 
selecting certain other qualified professional firms necessary to complete the issuance of the Series 2015 
Bonds, subscribing for or purchasing the United States Treasury Securities to be deposited in the escrow 
for the Refunded Bonds and to provide for notice of redemption of the Refunded Bonds. 
 
 Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

348



 

JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV SALE RES  

(Signature page to Sale Resolution) 

 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      

Jennifer Magaña, Director of Law and 
City Attorney 

 
 

349



 

JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV SALE RES (09-24-15) 

 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
09/24/2015 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
CERTIFICATE DEEMING 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT FINAL 
 
 

October __, 2015 
 
 
To: [Series 2015C Purchaser]     [Series 2015D Purchaser] 
 [Series 2015C City, State]     [Series 2015D City, State] 
 
 
 Re: City of Wichita, Kansas:  Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2015C (the 

“Series 2015C Bonds”) and Water and Sewer Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 
2015D of the City (the “Series 2015D Bonds,” and together with the Series 2015C 
Bonds, the “Series 2015 Bonds”) 

 
 
 The undersigned are the duly authorized and acting Mayor and Director of Finance of the City of 
Wichita, Kansas (the “City”), and are authorized to deliver this Certificate to the addressees (collectively, 
the “Purchaser”) on behalf of the City.  The City has heretofore caused to be delivered to the Purchaser 
copies of the Preliminary Official Statement (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) relating to the Series 
2015 Bonds. 
 
 For the purpose of enabling the Purchaser to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12(b)(1) 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”), the City hereby deems the information 
regarding the City contained in the Preliminary Official Statement to be final as of its date, except for the 
omission of such information as is permitted by the Rule, such as offering prices, interest rates, selling 
compensation, aggregate principal amount, principal per maturity, delivery dates, ratings, identity of the 
underwriters and other terms of the Series 2015 Bonds depending on such matters. 
 
      CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 
 
 
      By:         
       Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
 
 
      By:         
       Shawn Henning, Director of Finance 
 

350



 

JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV SALE RES (09-24-15) 

CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
Department of Finance 
12th Floor, City Hall 

455 North Main 
Wichita, Kansas  67202-1679 

 
October 6, 2015 

 
Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
100 N. Main, Suite 800 
Wichita, Kansas  67202 
 
 Re: Subscription for Purchase of United States Treasury Time Deposit Securities – State and 

Local Government Series 
 
Issuer: City of Wichita, Kansas 
 
Tax I.D. No: 48-6000653 
 
Bonds: Water and Sewer Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015D (the “Series 

2015D Bonds”) 
 
Financial Advisor: Springsted Incorporated, St. Paul, Minnesota 
 
Escrow Agent: Security Bank of Kansas City, Wichita, Kansas - ABA No. 1010-0092-5 
 
Bond Counsel: Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Wichita, Kansas 
 
 In connection with the issuance of the Series 2015D Bonds, the Issuer authorizes Bond Counsel 
to submit an initial subscription on its behalf for the purchase of United States Treasury Time Deposit 
Securities - State and Local Government Series (the “SLGS”), to be issued as entries on the books of the 
Bureau of the Public Debt, Department of the Treasury.  The total amount of the subscription and the 
issue date will be determined at a later date.  The Issuer certifies that the SLGS will be purchased solely 
from proceeds of the Series 2015D Bonds, and not from any amounts received from either:  (a) the sale or 
redemption before maturity of any marketable security, or (b) the redemption before maturity of a time 
deposit SLGS (other than a zero-interest SLG). 
 
 The Issuer agrees that the final subscription and payment for the SLGS will be submitted to the 
U.S. Treasury on or before the issue date.  The Issuer further authorizes Bond Counsel, Escrow Agent, 
and Financial Advisor to file the final subscription for SLGS, to amend or cancel such subscription, and 
to re-subscribe for SLGS, all on behalf of the Issuer.  The Issuer understands that, if it fails to settle on the 
subscription for the SLGS or makes an untimely or unauthorized change to the subscription, the Bureau 
of Public Debt may bar the Issuer from subscribing for SLGS for six months beginning on the earlier of 
(a) the date the subscription is withdrawn, or (b) the proposed issue date of the SLGS. 
 
      CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 
 
 
      By:         
      Name:  Shawn Henning, Director of Finance 

351



JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV NOTICE OF SALE (09-24-15) 

1 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
09/24/2015 

 
 

CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND SALE 
 
 
 

$25,490,000* $25,135,000* 
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY 

REVENUE BONDS 
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS 
SERIES 2015C SERIES 2015D 

 
 Bids.  Separate Electronic bids for the purchase of the above-referenced bonds (the “Series 
2015C Bonds,” the “Series 2015D Bonds,” or collectively the “Bonds”) of the City of Wichita, Kansas 
(the “City”) herein described will be received by the Director of Finance of the City via PARITY® until 
10:00 a.m., Central Daylight Time (the “Submittal Hour”), on 
 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2015 
 
(the “Sale Date”).  All bids will be publicly evaluated at said time and place and the award of each series 
of the Bonds to the successful bidders (collectively, the “Successful Bidder”) will be acted upon 
immediately thereafter by the City Manager or designee and subsequently ratified by the City Council 
(the “Governing Body”) of the City at its next regular meeting.  No oral, auction, facsimile or other 
written bids will be considered and no bid for less than the entire principal amount of each series of the 
Bonds will be considered.  Other capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Notice of Bond Sale (the 
“Notice”) shall have the meanings set forth in the hereinafter referenced Preliminary Official Statement 
relating to the Bonds. 
 

Each series of Bonds shall be sold separately, and bidders may bid on either series of Bonds. 
 
Terms of the Bonds 
 

General.  The Bonds will consist of fully registered bonds in the denomination of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof (the “Authorized Denomination”).  The Bonds will be dated November 1, 2015 
(the “Dated Date”) and will become due as hereinafter set forth.  The Bonds will bear interest from the 
Dated Date at rates to be determined when the Bonds are sold as hereinafter provided, payable 
semiannually on April 1 and October 1, beginning on April 1, 2016 (collectively, the “Interest Payment 
Dates”).   

 
Series 2015C Bonds.  The Series 2015C Bonds will become due in principal installments as 

follows: 
 

Payment Date 
(October 1) 

Principal 
Amount* 

Payment Date 
(October 1) 

Principal 
Amount* 

2016 $1,275,000 2026 $1,480,000 
2017 1,220,000 2027 1,530,000 
2018 1,235,000 2028 1,575,000 
2019 1,250,000 2029 1,635,000 

352



JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV NOTICE OF SALE (09-24-15) 

2 

2020 1,270,000 2030 1,690,000 
2021 1,300,000 2031 835,000 
2022 1,330,000 2032 865,000 
2023 1,365,000 2033 900,000 
2024 1,395,000 2034 935,000 
2025 1,435,000 2035 970,000 

 
Series 2015D Bonds.  The Series 2015D Bonds will become due in principal installments as 

follows: 
 

Payment Date 
(October 1) 

Principal 
Amount* 

Payment Date 
(October 1) 

Principal 
Amount* 

2016 $1,315,000 2025 $1,485,000 
2017 1,275,000 2026 1,515,000 
2018 1,295,000 2027 1,545,000 
2019 1,315,000 2028 1,590,000 
2020 1,335,000 2029 1,635,000 
2021 1,360,000 2030 1,685,000 
2022 1,390,000 2031 1,735,000 
2023 1,425,000 2032 1,785,000 
2024 1,450,000   

 
 *Principal Amount Subject to Change.  The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the 
total principal amount of either or both series of the Bonds and the principal amount of any maturity, 
depending on the purchase price bid by the Successful Bidder, the amounts necessary to finance the 
improvements to be financed by the Series 2015C Bonds and the amount necessary to properly size the 
escrow fund created for the bonds to be refunded with the proceeds of the Series 2015D Bonds and other 
City funds, subject to minimum Authorized Denominations.  If there is an adjustment in the final 
aggregate principal amount of any series of the Bonds or the principal amount of any maturity as 
described above, the City will notify the Successful Bidder by means of telephone or facsimile 
transmission, subsequently confirmed in writing, no later than 2:00 p.m., Central Daylight Time, on the 
Sale Date.  Any adjustment in principal amount will maintain the Successful Bidder’s compensation set 
forth on the original bid form as a percentage of the total principal amount of such series of Bonds.  At the 
request of the City, the Successful Bidder agrees to execute a revised bid form or repayment schedule 
reflecting the adjusted principal amounts and purchase price.  The Successful Bidder may not withdraw 
its bid or change the interest rates bid as a result of any changes made to the principal amount of the series 
of Bonds or the schedule of principal payments as described herein. 
 
Place of Payment and Registration 
 

Payment.  The principal of and interest on the Bonds will be payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America by check or draft of the Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas (the 
“Paying Agent” and “Bond Registrar”).  The principal of each Bond will be payable at maturity or earlier 
redemption to the owners thereof whose names are on the registration books (the “Register”) of the Bond 
Registrar (the “Registered Owner”) upon presentation and surrender at the principal office of the Paying 
Agent.  Interest on each Bond will be payable to the Registered Owner of such Bond as of the fifteenth 
day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next preceding each Interest Payment Date (the 
“Record Date”):  (a) mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of such Registered Owner as shown on 
the Register or at such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such Registered 
Owner; or (b) in the case of an interest payment to Cede & Co., by wire transfer to such Registered 
Owner upon written notice given to the Paying Agent by such Registered Owner, not less than 15 days 

353



JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV NOTICE OF SALE (09-24-15) 

3 

prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the wire transfer address to which such Registered 
Owner wishes to have such wire directed. 
 

Registration.  The Bonds will be registered pursuant to a plan of registration approved by the 
City and the Attorney General of the State of Kansas.  The City will pay for the fees of the Bond Registrar 
for registration and transfer of the Bonds and will also pay for printing a reasonable supply of registered 
blanks.  Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other than fees of the 
Bond Registrar, will be the responsibility of the Registered Owners. 
 
Book-Entry-Only System 
 

The Bonds shall be initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC and no 
beneficial owner will receive certificates representing their interests in the Bonds.  During the term of the 
Bonds, so long as the book-entry-only system is continued, the City will make payments of principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to DTC or its nominee as the Registered Owner of the Bonds, 
DTC will make book-entry-only transfers among its participants and receive and transmit payment of 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to its participants who shall be responsible for 
transmitting payments to beneficial owners of the Bonds in accordance with agreements between such 
participants and the beneficial owners.  The City will not be responsible for maintaining, supervising or 
reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its participants or persons acting through such participants.  In 
the event that:  (a) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the Bonds, or (b) the 
City determines that continuation of the book-entry-only form of evidence and transfer of ownership of 
the Bonds would adversely affect the interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, the City will 
discontinue the book-entry-only form of registration with DTC.  If the City fails to identify another 
qualified securities depository to replace DTC, the City will cause to be authenticated and delivered to the 
beneficial owners replacement Bonds in the form of fully registered certificates.  Reference is made to the 
Preliminary Official Statement for further information regarding the book-entry-only system of 
registration of the Bonds and DTC. 
 
Redemption Provisions 
 
 General.  Whenever the City is to select Bonds for the purpose of redemption, it will, in the case 
of Bonds in denominations greater than the minimum Authorized Denomination, if less than all of the 
Bonds then outstanding are to be called for redemption, treat each minimum Authorized Denomination of 
face value of each such fully registered Bond as though it were a separate Bond in the minimum 
Authorized Denomination. 
 
 Optional Redemption.  At the option of the City, the Bonds maturing in the years 2026 and 
thereafter will be subject to redemption and payment prior to maturity on October 1, 2025, and thereafter, 
as a whole or in part (selection of the amount of Bonds to be redeemed to be determined by the City in 
such equitable manner as it may determine) at any time, at a redemption price of 100% (expressed as 
percentage of the principal amount), plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption. 
 
 Mandatory Redemption.  A bidder may elect to have all or a portion of either series of Bonds 
scheduled to mature in consecutive years issued as term bonds (the “Term Bonds”) and subject to 
mandatory redemption requirements consistent with the schedule of serial maturities set forth above, 
subject to the following conditions:  (a) not less than all Bonds of the same serial maturity shall be 
converted to Term Bonds with mandatory redemption requirements; (b) callable and noncallable serial 
maturities of the Bonds may not be combined in the same Term Bond maturity; and (c) a bidder shall 
make such an election by completing the applicable information on PARITY®. 
 

354



JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV NOTICE OF SALE (09-24-15) 

4 

 Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption.  Unless waived by any owner of Bonds to be 
redeemed, if the City shall call any Bonds for redemption and payment prior to the maturity thereof, the 
City shall give written notice of its intention to call and pay said Bonds to the Bond Registrar and the 
Successful Bidder.  In addition, the City shall cause the Bond Registrar to give written notice of 
redemption to the registered owners of said Bonds.  Each of said written notices shall be deposited in 
United States first class mail not less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption.  All notices of 
redemption shall state the date of redemption, the redemption price, the Bonds to be redeemed, the place 
of surrender of Bonds so called for redemption and a statement of the effect of the redemption.  The City 
shall also give such additional notice as may be required by Kansas law or regulation of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission in effect as of the date of such notice.  If any Bond be called for redemption and 
payment as aforesaid, all interest on such Bond shall cease from and after the date for which such call is 
made, provided funds are available for its payment at the price hereinbefore specified. 
 
Authority, Purpose and Security 
 

General.  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Constitution and statutes of the State of 
Kansas, including K.S.A. 10-116a. K.S.A. 10-1201 et seq., as amended by Charter Ordinance No. 211 of 
the City.  The Series 2015C Bonds are being issued to finance the costs of constructing, reconstructing, 
altering, repairing, improving, extending or enlarging the City’s Water and Sewer Utility (the “Utility”).  
The Series 2015D Bonds are being issued to refund a prior series of revenue bonds (the “Refunded 
Bonds”) issued to finance improvements to the Utility. 
 

Security.  The Bonds and the interest thereon will constitute special obligations of the City, 
payable solely from, and secured as to the payment of principal and interest by a pledge of, the net 
revenues of the Utility (the “Net Revenues”) as prescribed by the Act on a parity with the Parity Bonds.  
The taxing power of the City is not pledged to the payment of the Bonds either as to principal or interest.  
The Bonds shall not be or constitute a general obligation of the City, nor shall they constitute an 
indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any constitutional, statutory or charter provision, 
limitation or restriction.  Reference is made to the provisions of the Preliminary Official Statement for a 
more detailed discussion relating to security for the Bonds. 

 
Submission of Bids 
 

Separate bids shall be submitted for each series of the Bonds, which shall be sold separately.  
Bidders may bid on any or all series of the Bonds.  All bids shall be submitted electronically via 
PARITY® and must be submitted in accordance with its Rules of Participation, as well as the provisions 
of this Notice.  If provisions of this Notice conflict with those of PARITY®, this Notice shall control.  
Bids must be received prior to the Submittal Hour on the Sale Date accompanied by the Deposit (as 
hereinafter defined), which shall be submitted separately.  The City shall not be responsible for any 
failure, misdirection or error in the means of transmission selected by any bidder.  Information about the 
electronic bidding services of PARITY® may be obtained from Ipreo at 1359 Broadway, 2nd Floor, New 
York, New York  10018, Phone No. (212) 849-5023. 
 
Conditions of Bids 
 

Separate proposals will be received on the Bonds bearing such rate or rates of interest as may be 
specified by the bidders, subject to the following conditions:  (a) the same rate shall apply to all Bonds of 
such series of the same maturity year; (b) no interest rate may exceed a rate equal to the daily yield for the 
10-year Treasury Bond published by THE BOND BUYER, in New York, New York, on the Monday next 
preceding the day on which the Bonds are sold, plus 6%; (c) no supplemental interest payments will be 
considered and (d) each interest rate specified shall be a multiple of 1/8 or 1/100 of 1%.  No bid for less 
than 100% of the principal amount of each series of Bonds and accrued interest thereon to the date of 

355



JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV NOTICE OF SALE (09-24-15) 

5 

delivery will be considered.  The initial price to the public for each maturity must be 98.0% or greater.  
Each bid shall specify:  (a) the total interest cost (expressed in dollars) during the term of the Bonds on 
the basis of such bid; (b) the purchase price offered by the bidder; (c) the net interest cost (expressed in 
dollars) on the basis of such bid; and (d) an estimate of the TIC (as hereinafter defined) on the basis of 
such bid.  Each bidder shall certify to the City the correctness of the information contained on the bid 
form; the City will be entitled to rely on such certifications.  Each bidder agrees that, if it is awarded a 
series of Bonds, it will provide the certification as to initial offering prices described under the caption 
“Certification as to Offering Price” in this Notice. 
 
Good Faith Deposit 
 

General.  Each bid shall be accompanied by a good faith deposit (the Deposit”) in an amount 
equal to 2% of the principal amount of each series of the Bonds as stated on the initial page of this 
Notice, payable to the order of the City to secure the City from any loss resulting from the failure of the 
Successful Bidder to comply with the terms of its bid.  The Deposit must be in the form of:  (a) a certified 
or cashier's check drawn on a bank located in the United States of America, payable to the order of the 
City; or (b) a wire of Federal Reserve funds (as described below), immediately available for use by the 
City.  Deposits submitted in the form of a certified or cashier's check must be received by the City prior to 
9:30 a.m. Central Daylight Time on the Sale Date.  Deposits submitted by wire transfer are only required 
from the Successful Bidder and must be received by 2:00 p.m. Central Daylight Time on the Sale Date.  
If a bid is accepted, the Deposit, or the proceeds thereof, will be held by the City until the Successful 
Bidder has complied with all of the terms and conditions of this Notice at which time the amount of said 
Deposit shall be returned to the Successful Bidder or deducted from the purchase price, at the option of 
the City.  If a bid is accepted, but the City fails to deliver the Bonds to the Successful Bidder in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Notice, said Deposit, or the proceeds thereof, will be 
returned to the Successful Bidder.  If a bid is accepted but the Successful Bidder defaults in the 
performance of any of the terms and conditions of this Notice, the proceeds of such Deposit will be 
retained by the City as and for liquidated damages.  No interest on any Deposit shall be paid by the City. 
 

Deposit Submission Details. 
 

 (a) Certified or Cashier's Check.   Certified or cashier’s checks must be delivered to 
the Debt Coordinator at the address set forth on the last page of this Notice. 
 
 (b) Wire Transfer.  Any wire transfer shall be submitted to a financial institution 
designated by the City, and wire transfer instructions may be obtained from the Debt Coordinator 
at the address set forth on the last page of this Notice.  Each wire transfer Deposit must 
reference “City of Wichita, Kansas, Good Faith Deposit, Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2015C 
or Series 2015D.”  Contemporaneously with the submission of a wire transfer Deposit, such 
bidder shall send an email to the Director of Finance or Debt Coordinator at the email address set 
forth on the last page of this Notice, including the following information:  (i) notification that a 
wire transfer has been made; (ii) the amount of the wire transfer; (iii) the wire transfer federal 
reference number; (iv) the name of the bidder for which the wire transfer is to be credited as a 
Deposit, (v) if the name of the bidder as shown on PARITY does not match the name shown as the 
beneficiary on the wire instructions, the email will also state that the bidder is identified by the 
beneficiary’s name on the wire instructions; and (vi) return wire transfer instructions in the event 
such bid is unsuccessful. 

 
Deposit Return Details.  Good Faith checks submitted by unsuccessful bidders will be returned 

promptly via United States first class mail; wire transfer Deposits submitted by unsuccessful bidders will 
not be accepted or shall be returned in the same manner received not later than the next business day 

356



JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV NOTICE OF SALE (09-24-15) 

6 

following the Sale Date, and the City reserves the right to withhold reasonable charges for any fees or 
expenses incurred in returning a wire transfer Deposit. 
 
Basis of Award 
 
 General.  Each series of the Bonds shall be sold separately.  The City reserves the right to reject 
any and/or all bids and to waive any irregularities in a submitted bid.  Any disputes arising hereunder 
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Kansas, and any party submitting a bid agrees to be subject 
to jurisdiction and venue of the federal and state courts within Kansas with regard to such dispute.  Any 
bid received after the Submittal Hour on the Sale Date will be rejected or returned to the bidder. 
 

Award.  Subject to the timely receipt of the Deposit set forth above, the award of each series of 
Bonds will be made on the basis of the lowest true interest cost (“TIC”), which will be determined as 
follows:  the TIC is the discount rate (expressed as a per annum percentage rate) which, when used in 
computing the present value of all payments of principal and interest to be paid on the series of Bonds, 
from the payment dates to the Dated Date, produces an amount equal to the price bid, including any 
adjustments for premium or discount, if any.  Present value will be computed on the basis of semiannual 
compounding and a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.  Bidders are requested to provide a 
calculation of the TIC for the Bonds on the bid form, computed as specified herein on the basis of their 
respective bids, which shall be considered as informative only and not binding on either the City or the 
bidder.  The City will verify the TIC based on such bids.  If there is any discrepancy between the TIC 
specified and the bid price and interest rates specified, the specified bid price and interest rates shall 
govern and the TIC specified in the bid shall be adjusted accordingly.  If two or more proper bids 
providing for identical amounts for the lowest TIC are received for any series, the City Manager or 
designee, will determine which bid, if any, will be accepted, and such determination is final.  The award 
of the Series 2015D Bonds is predicated upon the City achieving a certain level of savings in 
conjunction with refunding the Refunded Bonds, such amount to be solely determined by the City 
Manager, or designee. 
 
Ratings 
 

The City’s outstanding Utility revenue bonds are rated “AA-” by Standard & Poor’s, a division of 
McGraw Hill Financial Inc (“S&P”).  The City has applied to S&P for a rating on the Bonds.  Additional 
information regarding such application and ratings are further described in the Preliminary Official 
Statement, as hereinafter described.  Any explanations of the significance of such ratings (as well as any 
positive or negative outlooks thereon or potential changes to any rating in the near future) should be 
obtained from S&P. 
 
Bond Insurance 
 

The City has not applied for any policy of municipal bond insurance with respect to the Bonds, 
and will not pay the premium in connection with any policy of municipal bond insurance desired by any 
Successful Bidder.  In the event a bidder desires to purchase and pay all costs associated with the issuance 
of a policy of municipal bond insurance in connection with the Bonds, such indication and the name of 
the desired insurer must be set forth on the bidder's bid form and the bid must be accompanied by a 
commitment from the selected insurer and shall specify all terms and conditions to which the City will be 
required to agree in connection with the issuance of such insurance policy.  The City specifically reserves 
the right to reject any bid specifying municipal bond insurance, even though such bid may result in the 
lowest TIC to the City. 
 

357



JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV NOTICE OF SALE (09-24-15) 

7 

CUSIP Numbers 
 

The CUSIP Service Bureau will be requested to assign CUSIP identification numbers to the 
Bonds, and such numbers shall be printed on the Bonds; however, neither the failure to assign any such 
number to or print any such number on any Bond, nor any error with respect thereto, shall constitute 
cause for the failure or refusal by the Successful Bidder to accept delivery of and to make payment for the 
Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Notice and of its bid.  All expenses in relation to the printing 
of the CUSIP numbers and the expenses of the CUSIP Service Bureau for the assignment thereof shall be 
the responsibility of and shall be paid for by the City. 
 
Delivery and Payment 
 

The City will pay for printing the Bonds and will deliver the Bonds properly prepared, executed 
and registered without cost on or about NOVEMBER 12, 2015 (the “Closing Date”), at DTC for the 
account of the Successful Bidder.  Each Successful Bidder will be furnished with a certified transcript of 
the proceedings in CD-ROM format evidencing the authorization and issuance of the Bonds and the usual 
closing documents, including a certificate that there is no litigation pending or threatened at the time of 
delivery of the Bonds affecting their validity and a certificate regarding the completeness and accuracy of 
the Official Statement.  Payment for the Bonds shall be received by 12:00 noon, Central Daylight Time, 
on the Closing Date, in Federal Reserve funds immediately available for use by the City.  The City will 
deliver a single Bond for each maturity of Bonds registered in the nominee name of DTC. 
 
Reoffering Prices 
 

The Successful Bidder will be required to complete, execute and deliver to the City prior to the 
delivery of the Bonds, a written certification (the “Issue Price Certificate”) containing the following:  (a) 
the initial offering price and interest rate for each maturity of the Bonds; (b) that all of the Bonds were 
offered to the public in a bona fide public offering at the initial offering prices on the Sale Date; and (c) 
on the Sale Date the Successful Bidder reasonably expected that at least 10% of each maturity of the 
Bonds would be sold to the “public” at prices not higher than the initial offering prices.  For purposes of 
the preceding sentence “public” means persons other than bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or 
organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers.  However, such Issue Price Certificate 
may indicate that the Successful Bidder has purchased the Bonds for its own account in a capacity other 
than as an underwriter or wholesaler, and currently has no intent to reoffer the Bonds for sale to the 
public.  Such initial offering prices to the public must also be included in the Official Bid Form 
submitted for the Bonds. 
 
 At the request of the City, the Successful Bidder will provide information explaining the factual 
basis for the Successful Bidder’s Issue Price Certificate.  This agreement by the Successful Bidder to 
provide such information will continue to apply after the Closing Time if:  (a) the City requests the 
information in connection with an audit or inquiry by the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) or the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”); or (b) the information is required to be retained by the 
City pursuant to future regulation or similar guidance from the IRS, the SEC or other federal or state 
regulatory authority. 
 

358



JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV NOTICE OF SALE (09-24-15) 

8 

Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement 
 

On October 6, 2015, the Governing Body authorized and directed the preparation of a Preliminary 
Official Statement “deemed final” by the City except for the omission of certain information as provided 
in Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12, copies of which may be obtained by contacting 
the Department of Finance at the address set forth on the last page of this Notice or by visiting 
www.onlinemuni.com.  Authorization is hereby given to redistribute this Notice and the Preliminary 
Official Statement, but this entire Notice and the entire Preliminary Official Statement, and not portions 
thereof, must be redistributed.  Upon the sale of the Bonds, the City will prepare the final Official 
Statement and will furnish the Successful Bidder, without cost, within seven business days of the 
acceptance of the Successful Bidder's proposal, with a sufficient number of copies thereof, which may be 
in electronic format, in order to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12(3) and (4) of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission and Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (collectively 
the “Rules”).  The City's acceptance, including electronic acceptance through PARITY®, of the Successful 
Bidder's proposal for the purchase of the Bonds in accordance with this Notice shall constitute a contract 
between the City and the Successful Bidder for purposes of the Rules.  The City designates the senior 
managing underwriter of any syndicate of the Successful Bidder as agent for purposes of distributing 
copies of the final Official Statement to each participating underwriter.  Any bidder submitting a bid for 
the purchase of the Bonds agrees thereby that if such bid is accepted:  (a) it shall accept such designation, 
and (b) it shall enter into a contractual relationship with all participating underwriters of the Bonds for 
purposes of assuring the receipt by each such participating underwriter of the final Official Statement.  
Additional copies may be ordered by the Successful Bidder at its expense. 
 
Continuing Disclosure 
 

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) has promulgated amendments to its Rule 
15c2-12 (the “Rule”) requiring continuous secondary market disclosure for certain issues.  In the 
resolutions authorizing the Bonds, the City has covenanted to enter into an undertaking (the 
"Undertaking") for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds to send to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board (the "MSRB") through the Electronic Municipal Market Access facility, or other applicable entity 
as required or permitted under the Rule, certain financial information and operating data annually and to 
provide notice to the MSRB of certain events, pursuant to the requirements of the Rule.  For further 
information regarding the Undertaking, reference is made to the caption “CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE” in the Preliminary Official Statement. 
 
Legal Opinion 
 

The Bonds will be sold subject to the approving legal opinion of GILMORE & BELL, P.C., 
WICHITA, KANSAS, Bond Counsel, which opinion will be furnished and paid for by the City, will be 
printed on the Bonds, if the Bonds are printed, and will be delivered to the Successful Bidder when the 
Bonds are delivered.  Said opinion will also include the opinion of Bond Counsel relating to the interest 
on the Bonds being excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and exempt from 
income taxation by the State of Kansas.  Reference is made to the Preliminary Official Statement for 
further discussion of federal and Kansas income tax matters relating to the interest on the Bonds. 
 

359



JLN\600809.70405\WWS REV NOTICE OF SALE (09-24-15) 

9 

Additional Information 
 

Additional information regarding the Bonds, the delivery of the Deposit and notification 
regarding the same may be obtained from the Department of Finance, 12th Floor, City Hall, 455 North 
Main, Wichita, Kansas  67202-1679, or by contacting: 
 
  Ms. Shawn Henning    Ms. Cheryl Busada 
  Director of Finance    Debt Coordinator 
  Phone:  (316) 268-4300    Phone:  (316) 268-4143 
  Fax:  (316) 219-6244    Fax:  (316) 219-6216 
  Email:  shenning@wichita.gov   cbusada@wichita.gov. 
 

BY ORDER OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, ON 
OCTOBER 6, 2015. 

 By:  /s/ Jeff Longwell  
(Seal)       Jeff Longwell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
By:  /s/ Karen Sublett, City Clerk  
  Karen Sublett, City Clerk 

360



 

         Agenda Item No.  II-12 
      

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: Buffalo Park Improvements (District V) 
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Park and Recreation  
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
  
Recommendation:  Accept the grant, increase the project budget, adopt the amended bonding resolution, 
accept the recommended bid above the engineer’s estimate, and authorize all necessary signatures.  
 
Background:   On April 8, 2014, the City Council approved a grant application for $250,000 in grant 
funds from the Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF), through the Kansas Department of Wildlife, 
Parks and Tourism (KDWPT).  This application required a $250,000 City match. On February 3, 2015, 
the City Council approved $1 million in CIP funding for Buffalo Park improvements.      
 
Analysis:  On September 9, 2015 the Park & Recreation Department (P&R) was notified of the 
successful grant award of $250,000 from the Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) for the Buffalo 
Park improvements.   
 
Staff developed a plan for park improvements including a restroom/shelter building, spray park, improved 
parking and “neighborhood green.”  Stakeholders within the community were included in the design 
process and charrettes, and their ideas and direction were developed into a prairie-themed design 
representing native grasses and buffalo along with several distinctive features and components.  
 
During the procurement process, a bid package was prepared that included base components, along with 
add alternates to provide additional security, durability and the most flexibility in meeting public 
expectations. However, all responsive base bids greatly exceeded the Engineer’s Estimate, as well as the 
total funding available for this project.   Accepting the lowest responsive bid will allow the project to 
proceed without requiring it to be re-bid, thus eliminating a potential increase in the cost and delay in 
construction of the improvements. In accordance with Charter Ordinance No. 222, staff recommends the 
City Council approve acceptance of the lowest bid based on the best interest of the City. 
 
Financial Considerations:  The existing project budget for Buffalo Park is $1,000,000, funded with 
General Obligation (GO) at-large bonds.  An additional $250,000 is now available with the award of the 
Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks and Tourism grant.  The required match for this grant of $250,000 
is included in this project budget. To allow acceptance of the lowest responsive bid, staff recommends an 
additional $400,000 in GO at-large bond funding, resulting in a revised project budget of $1,650,000.  
Staff recommends shifting $400,000 allocated in the Adopted 2015-2024 CIP for 2016 Park facility 
improvements to the Buffalo Park project to provide adequate budget for improvements.   

Legal Considerations: The amending resolution and LWCF grant award has been reviewed and 
approved as to form by the Law Department. 
 

361



 

Recommendations/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council: 1) accept the grant; 2) authorize 
the increased project budget; 3) adopt the amended bonding resolution; 4) approve acceptance of the 
lowest bid with approved add alternates exceeding the Engineer’s Estimate; and 5) authorize the 
necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments: Site Plan, grant award, amending resolution, and bid summary. 

 

362



 

 
 

Buffalo Park 
Site Plan 

363



 
397-225/785116 
 
                                                                                                     

 
 

First Published in the Wichita Eagle on October 9, 2015 
                                                 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-332 
 
 

 A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 15-036, AND AUTHORIZING 
THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS BY THE CITY OF WICHITA AT LARGE FOR BUFFALO 
PARK IMPROVEMENTS. 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; 
 

 SECTION  1:  That the description of Project Authorization identified in Section 1 of Resolution           
No. 15-036, adopted February 3, 2015, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
           It is hereby authorized, ordered and directed that the Project be completed at an estimated cost of 
$1,650,000. 
 

 

 SECTION  2:  That Section 2 of Resolution No. 15-036  is hereby amended to provide the cost of 
said public improvements shall be paid by the issuance and sale of general obligation bonds by the City of 
Wichita at large, in the manner provided by law and under the authority of City of Wichita Charter 
Ordinance No. 156.  The total cost is estimated at $1,650,000, exclusive of the costs on borrowed money 
with $250,000 expected to be paid from grant funds from the Land & Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) 
and $1,400,000 paid by the City. Said City share, when ascertained, shall be borne by the City of Wichita 
at large by the issuance of General Obligation Bonds. 
 

 SECTION  3:  That the advisability of said improvements is established as authorized by City of 
Wichita Charter Ordinance No. 156. 
 

 SECTION  4:  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and 
publication once in the official city paper. 
 

ADOPTED at Wichita, Kansas, this 6th day of October, 2015. 
 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
        JEFF LONGWELL, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
KAREN SUBLETT, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
  
JENNIFER MAGANA, DIRECTOR OF LAW 

364



Buffalo Park 
Proposed Improvements 

365



 

366



             Agenda Item No. II-13 
 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Mobility Management Services (All Districts) 
   
INITIATED BY:  Wichita Transit 
 
AGENDA:  Consent  
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the contract for Mobility Management Services.  
 
Background:  Wichita Transit operates an in-house fleet of 24 paratransit vans and contracts with five 
agencies to provide paratransit services in the Wichita city limits. Wichita Transit is responsible for 
providing transportation services in a coordinated and cost effective manner and to ensure compliance with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  In 2013, a review of the agencies was completed by RLS and 
Associates.  The review recommended actions to improve coordination of services consistent with the 
Coordinated Public Transportation-Human Services Plan.  The review also found agencies to be out of 
compliance with Federal Transit Administration (FTA) regulations.  Issues of coordination and compliance 
have continued.   In June of this year, RLS & Associates conducted a mini audit of the five agencies. All 
agencies continue to be out of compliance with FTA regulations. In addition, the review revealed that the 
agencies had not been selected through an FTA compliant procurement. 
 
Analysis:  Wichita Transit is seeking mobility management services to assist in improving coordination 
and in resolving compliance issues. The contractor will assist in a competitive procurement for purchased 
rides.  The mobility management services will include:   
 

 Analyze all ADA eligibility criteria and recertify clients  
 Determine the trip load for ADA eligible rides  
 Prepare a proper procurement for purchased ADA rides 
 Centralize scheduling and dispatching of rides 
 Update operating policies and procedures 

 
Wichita Transit received three proposals for Mobility Management Services.  RLS & Associates was the 
top ranked proposer by the selection committee.   
 
Financial Consideration:  RLS & Associates proposed a cost of $174,140.90 for its services. During 
negotiations the cost was reduced to $160,000 by reducing the scope.  The original proposal was for 18 
months with one week of onsite work a month. The hours included for oversight and technical assistance 
in months 16-18 were reduced lowering the cost to $160,000.  New Freedom funding awarded through 
WAMPO for $115,000 will be used for the contract.  New Freedom funding is 100% Federal funding.  The 
remaining $45,000 will be paid with FTA Section 5307 planning funds ($36,000 Federal portion and $9,000 
local match). 
 
Legal Consideration:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved this contract as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the selection of RLS & 
Associates for Mobility Management Services. 
 

367



Attachment(s):  Contract with RLS & Associates 

368



 
CONTRACT 

For 

Mobility Management Services 
 
 THIS CONTRACT entered into this 6th day of October, 2015, by and between the 
CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called "CITY", and 
RLS and Associates, hereinafter called "CONSULTANT". 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY has solicited a proposal for Mobility Management Services 
(Formal Proposal – FP540043); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has submitted the proposal most beneficial to 
the CITY and is ready, willing, and able to provide the commodities and/or services 
required by the CITY. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 1.    Scope of Services. CONSULTANT shall provide to the CITY all those 
commodities and/or services specified in its response to Formal Proposal Number – 
FP540043, as negotiated in this contract per Exhibit B.  The proposal package, 
including all specifications, plans, FTA Clauses, and addenda, provided by the CITY as 
part of the proposal letting process for Formal Proposal – FP540043, shall be 
considered a part of this contract and is incorporated by reference herein. 
 
 2. Compensation. CITY agrees to pay to CONSULTANT the total cost of 
$160,000, for Mobility Management Services for specifications and plans as negotiated 
in Exhibit B. Consultant will adhere to FTA Clauses and addenda in CONSULTANT’s 
proposal of August 18, 2015, as attached as Exhibit C. 
 
 3.  Term. CONSULTANT further agrees that the work under this contract shall 
be completed to the full satisfaction of the City Purchasing Manager of the CITY. To be 
completed by March 30, 2017, unless otherwise amended during the contract 
period.  Working days shall be as defined in the Standard Specifications of the CITY. 
This contract is subject to cancellation by the CITY, at its discretion at any time within 
the original contract term or within any successive renewal, upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to CONSULTANT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

369



 2

 4. Indemnification and Insurance. 
 
  a. CONSULTANT shall save and hold the CITY harmless against all suits, 
claims, damages and losses for injuries to persons or property or other liability loss 
arising from or caused by errors, omissions or negligent acts of CONSULTANT, its 
officers, agents, servants, or employees, occurring in the performance of its services 
under this contract, or arising from any defect in the materials or workmanship of any 
product provided in the performance of this contract. 
       
  b. CONSULTANT will carry insurance coverage during the term of this 
contract and any extensions thereof in the amounts and manner provided as follows: 
 
  1.  Comprehensive General Liability covering premises—operations, 

Product/Completed operations, Broad Form Property Damage, and Contractual 
Liability with minimum limits as follows: 

 
  Bodily Injury Liability   $1,000,000 each occurrence 
        $1,000,000 each aggregate 
   
  Property Damage Liability   $1,000,000 each occurrence 
        $1,000,000 each aggregate 
  Or 
 
  Bodily Injury and Property Damage $1,000,000 each occurrence 
  Liability (Combined Single Limit)  $1,000,000 each aggregate 
 

  2.  Comprehensive Automobile Liability including all owned, non-owned 
and hired vehicles with minimum limits for: 

 
  Bodily Injury Liability   $500,000 each accident 
  Property Damage Liability   $500,000 each accident 
  
  Or 
 
  Bodily Injury and Property Damage  
  Liability (Combined Single Limit)  $500,000 each accident 
 

  3.  Workers’ Compensation  Statutory 

 

  Employers Liability    $100,000 each accident 
        $500,000 aggregate 
        $100,000 occupational disease 
 
 
 
 The Insurance Certificate must contain the following: 

370



 3

 
 A. Statement that the Contractual Liability includes the Liability of the  

CITY assumed by the CONSULTANT in the contract documents. 
 
 B. Cancellation – should any of the above policies be canceled before the 

expiration date thereof the issuing company will provide the certificate 
holder equal notice as the primary insured. 

 
 5. Independent CONSULTANT. The relationship of the CONSULTANT to 
the CITY will be that of an independent contractor.  No employee or agent of the 
CONSULTANT shall be considered an employee of the CITY. 
 
 6. Compliance with Laws. CONSULTANT shall comply with all laws, 
statutes and ordinances which may pertain to the providing of services under this 
Contract. 
 
 7. No Assignment. The services to be provided by the CONSULTANT 
under this Contract are personal and cannot be assigned, sublet or transferred without 
the specific written consent of the CITY. 
 
 8. Non-Discrimination.  CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable 
requirements of the CITY Revised Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment 
/Affirmative Action Program Requirements Statement for Contracts or Agreements 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 9. Third Party Rights.  It is specifically agreed between the parties that it is 
not intended by any of the provisions of any part of this Contract to create the public or 
any member thereof a third-party beneficiary hereunder, or to authorize anyone not a 
party to this Contract to maintain a suit for damages pursuant to the terms or provisions 
of this Contract. 
 
 10. No Arbitration.  The CONSULTANT and the CITY shall not be obligated 
to resolve any claim or dispute related to the Contract by arbitration.  Any reference to 
arbitration in bid or proposal documents is deemed void. 
 
 11. Governing Law.  This contract shall be interpreted according to the laws 
of the State of Kansas. The parties agree that this contract has been created in Kansas. 
 
 12. Representative’s Authority to Contract.  By signing this contract, the 
representative of the CONSULTANT represents that he or she is duly authorized by the 
CONSULTANT to execute this contract, and that the governing board of the 
CONSULTANT has agreed to be bound by all its provisions. 
 
 
 
 
 

371



 4

 
 
 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands the day and year first 
above written. 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
Karen Sublett  Jeff Longwell 
City Clerk    Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   CONSULTANT 
        
 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
Jennifer Magana     Signature 

Director of Law 
       _______________________________ 
       Print Name 

 
       _______________________________  
       Title (President or Corporate Officer) 

372



 5

EXHIBIT A 
 

REVISED NON-DISCRIMINATION AND 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENTS STATEMENT FOR CONTRACTS OR AGREEMENTS 
 
 
During the term of this contract, the contractor or subcontractor, Contractor or supplier 
of the City, by whatever term identified herein, shall comply with the following 
Non-Discrimination--Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action Program 
Requirements: 
 
A. During the performance of this contract, the contractor, subcontractor, Contractor 

or supplier of the City, or any of its agencies, shall comply with all the provisions 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended:  The Equal Employment Opportunity 
Act of 1972; Presidential Executive Orders 11246, 11375, 11131; Part 60 of Title 
41 of the Code of Federal Regulations; the Age Discrimination in Employment 
Act of 1967; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and laws, regulations or 
amendments as may be promulgated thereunder. 

 
B. Requirements of the State of Kansas: 
 

1. The contractor shall observe the provisions of the Kansas Act against 
Discrimination (Kansas Statutes Annotated 44-1001, et seq.) and shall not 
discriminate against any person in the performance of work under the 
present contract because of race, religion, color, sex, disability, and age 
except where age is a bona fide occupational qualification, national origin 
or ancestry; 

 
2. In all solicitations or advertisements for employees, the contractor shall 

include the phrase, "Equal Opportunity Employer", or a similar phrase to 
be approved by the "Kansas Human Rights Commission"; 

 
3. If the contractor fails to comply with the manner in which the contractor 

reports to the "Kansas Human Rights Commission" in accordance with the 
provisions of K.S.A. 1976 Supp. 44-1031, as amended, the contractor 
shall be deemed to have breached this contract and it may be canceled, 
terminated or suspended in whole or in part by the contracting agency; 

 
4. If the contractor is found guilty of a violation of the Kansas Act against 

Discrimination under a decision or order of the "Kansas Human Rights 
Commission" which has become final, the contractor shall be deemed to 
have breached the present contract, and it may be canceled, terminated 
or suspended in whole or in part by the contracting agency; 

 

373



 6

5. The contractor shall include the provisions of Paragraphs 1 through 4 
inclusive, of this Subsection B, in every subcontract or purchase so that 
such provisions will be binding upon such subcontractor or Contractor. 

 
C. Requirements of the City of Wichita, Kansas, relating to Non-Discrimination -- 

Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action Program Requirements: 
 

1. The Contractor, supplier, contractor or subcontractor shall practice Non-
Discrimination -- Equal Employment Opportunity in all employment 
relations, including but not limited to employment, upgrading, demotion or 
transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  The contractor, supplier, contractor or subcontractor shall 
submit an Equal Employment Opportunity or Affirmative Action Program, 
when required, to the Department of Finance of the City of Wichita, 
Kansas, in accordance with the guidelines established for review and 
evaluation; 

 
2. The Contractor, supplier, contractor or subcontractor will, in all solicitations 

or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, 
supplier, contractor or subcontractor, state that all qualified applicants will 
receive consideration for employment without regard to race, religion, 
color, sex, "disability, and age except where age is a bona fide 
occupational qualification", national origin or ancestry.  In all solicitations 
or advertisements for employees the Contractor, supplier, contractor or 
subcontractor shall include the phrase, "Equal Opportunity Employer", or a 
similar phrase; 

 
3. The Contractor, supplier, contractor or subcontractor will furnish all 

information and reports required by the Department of Finance of said City 
for the purpose of investigation to ascertain compliance with 
Non-Discrimination -- Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements.  If 
the Contractor, supplier, contractor, or subcontractor fails to comply with 
the manner in which he/she or it reports to the City in accordance with the 
provisions hereof, the Contractor, supplier, contractor or subcontractor 
shall be deemed to have breached the present contract, purchase order or 
agreement and it may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or 
in part by the City or its agency; and further Civil Rights complaints, or 
investigations may be referred to the State; 

  
4. The Contractor, supplier, contractor or subcontractor shall include the 

provisions of Subsections 1 through 3 inclusive, of this present section in 
every subcontract, subpurchase order or subagreement so that such 
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor, subcontractor or 
subsupplier. 

 
 

374



 7

5.  If the contractor fails to comply with the manner in which the contractor 
reports to the Department of Finance as stated above, the contractor shall 
be deemed to have breached this contract and it may be canceled, 
terminated or suspended in whole or in part by the contracting agency; 

 
 
D. Exempted from these requirements are:   
 

1. Those contractors, subcontractors, Contractors or suppliers who have less 
than four (4) employees, whose contracts, purchase orders or agreements 
cumulatively total less than five thousand dollars ($5,000) during the fiscal 
year of said City are exempt from any further Equal Employment Oppor-
tunity or Affirmative Action Program submittal. 

 
2. Those Contractors, suppliers, contractors or subcontractors who have 

already complied with the provisions set forth in this section by reason of 
holding a contract with the Federal government or contract involving 
Federal funds; provided that such contractor, subcontractor, Contractor or 
supplier provides written notification of a compliance review and 
determination of an acceptable compliance posture within a preceding 
forty-five (45) day period from the Federal agency involved. 

375



 8

EXHIBIT B 
 

Proposed Timeline, Scope and Costs 
 
 

Notice to Proceed – October 6, 2015 
 
Task 1: Develop Understanding of Current Environment (October 2015 – January 2016) 

 Project Initiation/Background – Review past studies and meet with Wichita 
Transit 

 Develop Understanding of current operations 
 Develop a vision for future service structure 
 Gather Existing policies, procedures and manuals 
 Analyze current provider contracts 
 Define ADA complementary paratransit service parameters 

 
Task 2: Develop RFP (October 2015 – January 2016) 

 Provide example RFPs with various approaches 
 Prepare a list of potential vendors 
 Work with WT to develop RFP, timeline, responsibilities, reporting, oversight, 

data collection, insurance requirements etc. 
 Assist with dissemination of RFP 
 Develop scoring criteria 
 Insure FTA procurement compliance	 
 Assistance in development of interview questions and evaluation tool 
 Participate in Contractor Interviews/Communications with Vendors. 

 
Task 3: Paratransit Contract Management (January – May 2016) 

 Data accuracy 
 Federal and State compliance 
 Contract compliance 
 Spot checks on service delivery, operations, training and maintenance 
 Outreach to riders –surveys, community meetings, paratransit committee 
 Train WT employees to manage contract(s) 

 
Task 4: ADA Paratransit Eligibility Process (January – May 2016) 

 Review and modify existing eligibility documents	 
 Review process of determining eligibility –including temporary, visitor, and 

permanent eligibility 
 Identify method of moving appropriate riders to fixed route 
 Develop a mechanism for keeping eligibility list current 
 Review existing marketing of ADA paratransit service 
 Oversee phased re-certification process 

 
Task 5: Provide Transition and Technical Assistance (June – September 2016) 

 Refine/Develop policies and procedures  

376



 9

 Evaluate service area  
 Review marketing 
 Finance monitoring of ADA service 

 
Task 6: Provide On-going Technical Assistance and Training (October 2016 – March 
2017) 

 Provider oversight	 
 On-going technical assistance 
 Train scheduling and dispatch staff 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

377



 10

EXHIBIT C 
 

 
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 
FTA Required Clauses for Professional Services  
 
1. Fly America Requirements 
2. Energy Conservation Requirements 
3. Clean Water Requirements 
4. Lobbying 
5. Access to Records and Reports 
6. Federal Changes 
7. Clean Air 
8. No Government Obligation to Third Parties 
9. Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements and Related Acts 
10. Termination 
11. Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement) 
12. Civil Rights Requirements 
13. Breaches and Dispute Resolution 
14. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) 
15. Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms 
 
 
 
 

378



 11

1. FLY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS 
49 U.S.C. § 40118 

41 CFR Part 301-10 
 

 
Fly America Requirements  
The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the “Fly America” Act) in accordance 
with the General Services Administration’s regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, which provide 
that recipients and subrecipients of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. 
Flag air carriers for U.S Government-financed international air travel and transportation of their 
personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air 
carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act.  The Contractor shall submit, 
if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately 
explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not available or why it was necessary to use 
a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly 
America requirements.  The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all 
subcontracts that may involve international air transportation. 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

2.  ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS  
42 U.S.C. 6321 et seq.  

49 CFR Part 18 
 
Energy Conservation - The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies 
relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in 
compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.  
 

 
 

3.  CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS 
33 U.S.C. 1251 

 
Clean Water - (1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or 
regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 
1251 et seq.  The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the Purchaser and understands and 
agrees that the Purchaser will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to 
FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office. 
 
(2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding 
$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. 
   

 
 
 

4.  LOBBYING 

379



 12

31 U.S.C. 1352 
49 CFR Part 19 
49 CFR Part 20 

 
 
Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure 
Act of 1995, P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.] - Contractors who apply or 
bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR part 20, 
"New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not 
used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting 
to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal 
contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352.  Each tier shall also disclose the 
name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying 
contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or 
award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352.  Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the 
recipient. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The undersigned [Contractor] certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

380



 13

 
(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any 
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
 
(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for making lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned 
shall complete and submit Standard Form--LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in 
accordance with its instructions [as amended by "Government wide Guidance for New 
Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96).  Note: Language in paragraph (2) 
herein has been modified in accordance with Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 
(P.L. 104-65, to be codified at 2 U.S.C. 1601, et seq.)] 
 
(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 
 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the 
Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995).  Any person who fails to file the required certification shall 
be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
failure. 
 

[Note: Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 1352(c)(1)-(2)(A), any person who makes a prohibited 
expenditure or fails to file or amend a required certification or disclosure form shall be subject to  
a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such expenditure or 
failure.] 
The Contractor, ___________________, certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of 
each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any.  In addition, the Contractor understands 
and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. A 3801, et seq., apply to this certification and 
disclosure, if any. 
__________________________ Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
__________________________ Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
___________________________ Date 
 

 
 

5.  ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS  

381



 14

49 U.S.C. 5325  
18 CFR 18.36 (i)  
49 CFR 633.17 

 
Access to Records - The following access to records requirements apply to this Contract: 
 
1.  Where the Purchaser is not a State but a local government and is the FTA Recipient or a 
subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 18.36(i), the Contractor agrees to 
provide the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or 
any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the 
Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 C.F.R. 633.17 
to provide the FTA Administrator or his authorized representatives including any PMO 
Contractor access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital 
project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through 
the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311. 
2.  Where the Purchaser is a State and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient 
in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 633.17, Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, the FTA 
Administrator or his authorized representatives, including any PMO Contractor, access to the 
Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 
U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described 
at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311.  By definition, a major capital project excludes contracts of 
less than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at $100,000. 
 
3.  Where the Purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for other than a small purchase or under 
the simplified acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education, a hospital or other 
non-profit organization and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in 
accordance with 49 C.F.R. 19.48, Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, FTA 
Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized 
representatives with access to any books, documents, papers and record of the Contractor which 
are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts 
and transcriptions. 
 
4.  Where any Purchaser which is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in 
accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project or improvement 
(defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1) through other than competitive bidding, the Contractor shall 
make available records related to the contract to the Purchaser, the Secretary of Transportation 
and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the 
purposes of conducting an audit and inspection. 
 
5.  The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means 
whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 
 
6.  The Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this 
contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this 
contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of 
this contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same until the Purchaser, the FTA 

382



 15

Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have 
disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.  Reference 49 CFR 
18.39(i)(11). 
 
7.  FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.  

 

383



 16

Requirements for Access to Records and Reports by Types of Contract 
  

Contract 
Characteristics 

  Operational 
Service 
Contract 

Turnkey Construction Architectural 
Engineering 

Acquisition of 
Rolling Stock 

Professional 
Services 

I State Grantees  
 
a. Contracts 
below SAT 
($100,000)  
  
b. Contracts 
above 
$100,000/Capital 
Projects 

    
None 
  
  
None 
unless1 non-
competitive 
award 

  
Those imposed 
on state pass 
thru to 
Contractor 
  

  
None 
  
  
Yes, if non-
competitive 
award or if 
funded thru2 
5307/5309/53
11 

  
None 
   
  
None unless 
non-
competitive 
award 

  
None 
   
  
None unless 
non-
competitive 
award 

  
None 
   
  
None unless 
non-
competitive 
award 

II Non State 
Grantees  
 
a. Contracts 
below SAT 
($100,000)  
b. Contracts 
above 
$100,000/Capital 
Projects  

    
 
Yes3 
  
Yes3 

 
Those imposed 
on non-state 
Grantee pass 
thru to 
Contractor 
  

  
 
Yes 
  
Yes 

  
 
Yes 
  
Yes 

  
 
Yes 
  
Yes 

  
 
Yes 
  
Yes 

 

Sources of Authority: 
1 49 USC 5325 (a) 
2 49 CFR 633.17 
3 18 CFR 18.36 (i) 
 
 

 
6.  FEDERAL CHANGES  

49 CFR Part 18 
 
Federal Changes - Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, 
policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by 
reference in the Master Agreement between Purchaser and FTA, as they may be amended or 
promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor's failure to so comply 
shall constitute a material breach of this contract. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

384



 17

7.  CLEAN AIR  
42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq 

40 CFR 15.61  
49 CFR Part 18  

 
Clean Air - (1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or 
regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq.  The 
Contractor agrees to report each violation to the Purchaser and understands and agrees that the  
Purchaser will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the 
appropriate EPA Regional Office. 
 
(2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding 
$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. 
 

 
 

8.  NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES  
 
 
No Obligation by the Federal Government. 
 
(1) The Purchaser and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence 
by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, 
absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a 
party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Purchaser, 
Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter 
resulting from the underlying contract. 
 
 
(2) The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in 
part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.  It is further agreed that the clause shall not be 
modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 
 
 

9.  PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS  
AND RELATED ACTS  
31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.  

49 CFR Part 31 18 U.S.C. 1001  
49 U.S.C. 5307  

 
Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts.  
 
(1) The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act 
of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil 
Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project.  Upon execution of 
the underlying contract, the Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any 
statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying 

385



 18

contract or the FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed.  In addition 
to other penalties that may be applicable, the Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or 
causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, 
the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil  
Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal Government deems 
appropriate. 
 
(2) The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or 
fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a 
contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance 
originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves 
the right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on the 
Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. 
 
 
(3) The Contractor agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole 
or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.  It is further agreed that the clauses shall not 
be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions. 
 

 
10.  TERMINATION  

49 U.S.C. Part 18  
FTA Circular 4220.1E  

 
a. Termination for Convenience (General Provision) the City of Wichita may terminate this 
contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it is in the 
Government's best interest.  The Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out 
costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination.  The Contractor shall 
promptly submit its termination claim to the City of Wichita to be paid the Contractor.  If the 
Contractor has any property in its possession belonging to the City of Wichita, the Contractor 
will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner the City of Wichita directs. 
 
b. Termination for Default [Breach or Cause] (General Provision) If the Contractor does not 
deliver supplies in accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or, if the contract is for 
services, the Contractor fails to perform in the manner called for in the contract, or if the 
Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the City of Wichita may 
terminate this contract for default.  Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on the contractor setting forth the manner in which the Contractor is in default.  The 
contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services 
performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in the contract. 

386



 19

If it is later determined by the City of Wichita that the Contractor had an excusable reason for 
not performing, such as a strike, fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of the Contractor, the City of Wichita, after setting up a new delivery of performance 
schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination 
for convenience. 
 
c. Opportunity to Cure (General Provision) the City of Wichita in its sole discretion may, in 
the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor [an appropriately short 
period of time] in which to cure the defect.  In such case, the notice of termination will state the 
time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions 
 
If Contractor fails to remedy to the City of Wichita's satisfaction the breach or default of any of 
the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within [ten (10) days] after receipt by 
Contractor of written notice from the City of Wichita setting forth the nature of said breach or 
default, the City of Wichita shall have the right to terminate the Contract without any further 
obligation to Contractor.  Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to 
preclude the City of Wichita from also pursuing all available remedies against Contractor and its 
sureties for said breach or default. 
 
d. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach In the event that the City of Wichita elects to waive its 
remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this Contract, such 
waiver by the City of Wichita shall not limit the City of Wichita's remedies for any succeeding 
breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract. 
 
e. Termination for Convenience (Professional or Transit Service Contracts) the City of 
Wichita, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the 
Government's interest.  If this contract is terminated, the City of Wichita shall be liable only for 
payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective 
date of termination. 
 
 
 
 
11. GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT) 
 
Suspension and Debarment 
 

This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29.  As such, 
the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals, as 
defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded 
or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945.   
 
The contractor is required to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and must include 
the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered 
transaction it enters into. 
By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as 
follows: 
 

387



 20

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by 
The City of Wichita.  If it is later determined that the bidder or proposer 
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available 
to The City of Wichita, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, 
including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.  The bidder or proposer 
agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer 
is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer.  
The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such 
compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.   

 
 
 

12.  CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS  
29 U.S.C. § 623, 42 U.S.C. § 2000  

42 U.S.C. § 6102, 42 U.S.C. § 12112  
42 U.S.C. § 12132, 49 U.S.C. § 5332  

29 CFR Part 1630, 41 CFR Parts 60 et seq.  
 
Civil Rights - The following requirements apply to the underlying contract: 
 
(1) Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 
U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 
6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and 
Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, 
age, or disability.  In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with applicable Federal 
implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.  
 
(2) Equal Employment Opportunity - The following equal employment opportunity requirements 
apply to the underlying contract: 
 
(a) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights 
Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor 
agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. 
Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance 
Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., 
(which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended 
by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal 
Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, 
executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect construction 
activities undertaken in the course of the Project.  The Contractor agrees to take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age.  Such action 
shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, 
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  In addition, the Contractor 
agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

388



 21

 
(b) Age - In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as 
amended, 29 U.S.C. § § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to 
refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age.  In 
addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue. 
 
(c) Disabilities - In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of 
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal 
Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining 
to employment of persons with disabilities.  In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with 
any implementing requirements FTA may issue. 
 
(3) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed in 
whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to identify 
the affected parties. 
 

 
 

13.  BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION  
49 CFR Part 18 

FTA Circular 4220.1E  
 
Disputes - Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract which are not resolved by 
agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the authorized representative of the City 
of Wichita’s Contract Compliance Officer.  This decision shall be final and conclusive unless 
within [ten (10)] days from the date of receipt of its copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise 
furnishes a written appeal to the Contract Compliance Officer.  In connection with any such 
appeal, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in 
support of its position.  The decision of the Contract Compliance Officer shall be binding upon 
the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide by the decision. 
 
Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by the City of Wichita, Contractor 
shall continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved. 
 
Claims for Damages - Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or 
property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others 
for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefor shall be made in writing to such 
other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury of damage. 
 
Remedies - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other 
matters in question between the City of Wichita and the Contractor arising out of or relating to 
this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a 
court of competent jurisdiction within the state of Kansas in which the City of Wichita is located. 
 
Rights and Remedies - The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the 
rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, 
obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.  No action or failure to 

389



 22

act by the City of Wichita, (Architect) or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty 
afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an 
approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in 
writing. 

 
 

14.  DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 
49 CFR Part 26 

 
 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises  
a. This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, 
Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation 
Financial Assistance Programs.  The national goal for participation of Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises (DBE) is 10%.  The agency’s overall goal for DBE participation is .68 %.  
b. The contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the 
performance of this contract.  The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR 
Part 26 in the award and administration of this DOT-assisted contract.  Failure by the contractor 
to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the 
termination of this contract or such other remedy as City of Wichita deems appropriate.  Each 
subcontract the contractor signs with a subcontractor must include the assurance in this 
paragraph (see 49 CFR 26.13(b)).  
 
The successful bidder/offeror will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through 
race-neutral means throughout the period of performance.  
 
c. The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for 
satisfactory performance of that work no later than 30 days after the contractor’s receipt of 
payment for that work from the City of Wichita. In addition, the contractor may not hold 
retainage from its subcontractors.  
d. The contractor must promptly notify The City of Wichita, whenever a DBE subcontractor 
performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must 
make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same 
amount of work.  The contractor may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that 
work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of The City of 
Wichita. 
  
 

 
15.  INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS 

FTA Circular 4220.1E 
 
Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms - The preceding provisions 
include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not 
expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions.  All contractual provisions required by 
DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1E, are hereby incorporated by reference.  Anything to 
the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the 

390



 23

event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement.  The Contractor shall not 
perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any City of Wichita requests 
which would cause the City of Wichita to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions. 
 
 
 

391



Agenda Item No. II-14 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: Surplus of City-owned Property at 1352 N. Minneapolis (District I) 
  
INITIATED BY: Office of Property Management 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the sale. 
   
Background:  The City has completed a project to widen East 13th Street North between Hydraulic and 
Oliver.  The improvements included adding a center turn lane, relocating the sidewalks away from the 
back of the curb, improving the storm sewer system and landscaping.  The project required the acquisition 
of all or part of 78 tracts.  At the completion of construction, 24 parcels were identified as being 
potentially marketable.  On July 7, 2015, City Council declared the 24 parcels available as surplus.  The 
parcel at 1352 N. Minneapolis, located at the southeast corner of 13th and Minneapolis, is one of the 24 
surplus parcels.  The improvements were razed and the remnant site is currently vacant land.   
 
Analysis:  Prior to the road improvement project, the property at 1352 N. Minneapolis was comprised of 
Lots 86-89, Rosenthal’s 2nd Addition to Wichita.  All of Lot 86 and the north 20 feet of Lot 87 will be 
retained by the City as road right-of-way.  The remainder of that site is defined as the remnant parcel.  
The Beacon of Hope Missionary Church (Beacon) is currently constructing a new church across the street 
from the remnant parcel at the southwest corner of 13th and Minneapolis.  Beacon made an offer in the 
amount of $2,000 for the remnant.  The remnant property will be developed to allow for additional church 
parking or as part of a future expansion of the Beacon of Hope Missionary Baptist Church.   
 
Financial Considerations:  The City will receive cash consideration for the sale of the properties.  The 
proceeds from the sale, net fees and operating expenses, will be deposited to the General Fund or as 
directed.  Additionally, the sale of this property to a private party will place additional value into the tax 
base and relieve the City of the cost to maintain the property. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has approved the real estate agreement as to form.  
 
Recommendation/Action:  It is recommended that the City Council 1) approve the sale; 2) approve the 
real estate agreement; and 3) authorize any necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments:  Real estate agreement, warranty deed, and aerial map. 
 

392



393



394



395



396



397



1 
 

Agenda Item No. II-15 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

 October 6, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT:   Amending Preliminary Estimate for Improvements to Serve Southfork Addition 

(District III) 
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA: Consent 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve the amended preliminary estimate.  
 
Background: On July 14, 2015, the City Council approved a preliminary estimate for improvements to 
serve Southfork Addition. A review of the preliminary estimate revealed a technical error that should be 
corrected. 
 
Analysis: The original preliminary estimate listed project numbers as 470148 and 448-90558, and the 
organizational cost account as 735475. An amending preliminary estimate has been prepared to correct 
the project numbers as 490297 and 472-85050, and the organizational cost account as 766279. 
 
Financial Considerations: The budget remains $2,808,000, as previously approved on July 14, 2015. 
 
Legal Considerations: The Law Department has reviewed and approved this item as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Action: It is recommended that the City Council approve the amended preliminary 
estimate and authorize the necessary signatures.  
 
Attachment: Amended preliminary estimate.  

398



399



400



401



402



Agenda Item No. II-16 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 

SUBJECT:  Contract for Indigent Defense Services 

INITIATED BY: Municipal Court 

AGENDA:  Consent 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the contract and authorize the necessary signatures.  
  
Background:  For over 50 years, the U.S. Supreme Court has interpreted the U.S. Constitution as 
requiring prosecuting municipalities to provide legal defense services to indigent persons accused of a 
jailable offense.   Pursuant to Section 1.04.210 of the City Code, Municipal Court contracts with attorneys 
to provide legal defense services to indigent persons. In 2014, indigent defense services were provided to 
approximately 5,800 defendants. 
 
Analysis: Municipal Court requested proposals from attorneys interested in representing indigent 
defendants.  Four responses to the proposal were received.  In accordance with Administrative Regulation 
1.2, a staff screening and selection committee was formed to evaluate responses and to select a qualified 
vendor to provide legal defense services to indigent clients appearing in Municipal Court.  The screening 
committee selected the Law Office of Lautz, Mueller & Osburn to provide these services.  
 
Lautz, Mueller & Osburn attorneys have over 35 combined years of public defender experience.  The 
proposal submitted by Lautz, Mueller & Osburn meets the requirements of the request for proposals and 
demonstrates a thorough understanding of project objectives.    Lautz, Mueller & Osburn will assign three 
defense attorneys to Municipal Court dockets each day.  Additionally, Lautz, Mueller & Osburn will 
provide a dedicated phone line to Municipal Court appointed clients and offer office hours for client 
consultations at an office located outside City Hall.  Defense attorneys, a paralegal, and office staff will 
be available to answer questions and assist clients appointed legal representation pursuant to this contract. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Lautz, Mueller & Osburn will receive $350,000 annually during the term of 
this contract.  To offset the costs of providing public defender services, a public defender fee is included 
in court costs for each case convicted in Municipal Court.  Additional collections are generated through a 
co-pay paid by indigent defendants upon conviction in Municipal Court.   Collections from public 
defender fees and co-pays are projected to total $400,000 in 2015. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The contract has been approved as to form by the Law Department. 
  
Recommendation/Action:  It is recommended the City Council approve the contract and authorize the 
necessary signatures.   
 
Attachments: Indigent Defense Services Contract  
             
 
 

403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



 Agenda Report No.  II-17 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:  Abatement of Dangerous and Unsafe Structures (Districts I, III, IV and V)  
 
INITIATED BY: Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the assessments and place the ordinances on first reading. 
 
Background:  The Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department (MABCD) supports 
neighborhood maintenance and improvement through abatement of public nuisances under Titles 18 and 
20 of the City Code.  State law and local ordinances allow the City to demolish or board-up and secure 
private property that is in violation of housing and/or building code standards after proper notification of 
the responsible party/parties.  A private contractor or City staff performs the work and the MABCD bills 
the cost to the property owner. 
  
Analysis:  State law and City ordinance allow placement of the demolition and board-up costs as a 
special property tax assessment if the property owner does not pay.  Payment has not been received for 
the demolition and board-up abatements in question and the MABCD is requesting permission for the 
Department of Finance to process the necessary special assessments. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Statements of Charges will be mailed to the property owners on October 16, 
2015.  The property owners have 30 days from the date of the statement to pay the assessment and avoid 
paying interest.  If unpaid, the principal and interest will then be spread for one year and placed on the 
2016 tax roll. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The ordinances have been reviewed and approved as to form by the Law 
Department. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the proposed assessments 
and place the ordinances on first reading. 
 
Attachments:  Property List for Special Assessments and Ordinances 
 
 
 
  

411



 
PIN # Geo Code# Location Amount District # 

00121987 B 03253 541 N Ohio Demolition $7,134.69 I 

00137252 C 01522001A 2047 N Minnesota Demolition $6,744.53 I 

00159065 C 13389 2519 E Shadybrook Demolition $5,486.00 I 

00159078 C 13406 2513 E Shadybrook Demolition $5,338.00 I 

00205536 D 05373 1448 S Handley Demolition $6,330.05 IV 

00240851 D 38600 330 S Shefford Swimming pool removal  $3,900.00 IV 

Total $34,933.27
 

00106652 A 06366 1449 S Waco Ave Board Up $172.38 III 

00121240 B 02578 357 N Pennsylvania  Board Up $248.67 I 

00126793 B 07222 627 S Laura Ave Board Up $127.34 I 

00127149 B 07533 1130 S Ida Ave Board Up $122.37 I 

00135165 C 003270001 301 N Spruce St Board Up $97.38 1 

00138475 C 02580 637 N Estelle Ave Board Up $87.16 I 

00160239 C 143230001 1353 N Pershing Ave Board Up $192.37 I 

00168043 C 22528 2512 S Twin Oaks Rd Board Up $202.09 III 

00168953 C 23400 2142 S Pershing Ave Board Up $170.10 III 

00213508 D 12324 1621 W Crawford St Board Up $113.16 IV 

00223016 D 22075 201 S Ridge Rd Board Up $171.97 IV 

00245440 D 42578 11703 W Hickory St Board Up $75.44 V 

Total $1,780.43 
 

412



 
230200     6 Affidavits 
6733 A86441 1616 
 

 Published in the Wichita Eagle on October 16, 2015  
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 50-091 
 

AN ORDINANCE MAKING A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT TO PAY FOR 
THE REMOVAL OF CERTAIN STRUCTURES, BEING DANGEROUS AND 
UNSAFE BUILDINGS WHICH HAVE BEEN DECLARED A NUISANCE 
(BUILDING CONDEMNATION-DEMOLITION ) UNDER THE 
PROVISION OF SECTIONS 18.16.010 TO 18.16.090 OF THE CODE OF THE 
CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS: 

 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the sum set opposite the following lots, herein specified, be and the 
same is hereby levied to pay the cost of removal of certain structures, being dangerous and 
unsafe buildings which have been declared a nuisance under the provisions of Sections 
18.16.010 to 18.16.090 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, located and situated upon the 
following described property: 
 
Legal of Parcel in Benefit District Assessment 

LOTS 35-37-39 CARPENTER'S ADD. 7,134.69

LOTS 57-59 MINNESOTA AVE. PARKVIEW ADD. 6,744.53

LOT 1 BLOCK 10 SHADYBROOK ADD 5,486.00

LOT 18 BLOCK 10 SHADYBROOK ADD 5,338.00

LOTS 17-18-19 EXC E 2 1/2 FT FOR ALLEY BLOCK 15 FRANKLIN YIKE ADD. 6,330.05

LOT 4 BLOCK 5 WEST MILLBROOK 2ND. ADD. 3,900.00

 
 SECTION 2.  The sum so assessed and apportioned against the lots herein before 
set out and not paid within 30 days from date of notice sent out by the Debt Management Office 
of the Department of Finance as provided by law, shall be collected by special assessment upon 
the property liable therefore in one installment and placed upon the tax roll for the year 2016 and 
shall be certified to the County Clerk and shall be levied and collected in the same manner as 
other taxes, and the Debt Management Office of the Department of Finance is hereby directed to 
give written notice to property owner(s) owning property assessed herein, as required by law. 
 
 SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 
publication once in the official City paper. 
 
 ADOPTED, at Wichita, Kansas, this 13th day of October, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
                                                        

413



 Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
                                                               
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Jennifer Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law 
 

414



230200    6 Affidavits 
6742 A86991 1616 
   Published in the Wichita Eagle on October 16, 2015 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  50-092 
 

AN ORDINANCE MAKING A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT TO PAY FOR 
THE BOARDING-UP SECURING OF CERTAIN STRUCTURES, BEING 
DANGEROUS AND UNSAFE BUILDINGS WHICH HAVE BEEN 
DECLARED A NUISANCE (BUILDING EMERGENCY BOARD-UP) 
UNDER THE PROVISION OF SECTIONS 18.16.010 TO 18.16.090 OF THE 
CODE OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS: 
 

 SECTION 1.  That the sum set opposite the following lots, herein specified, be and the 
same is hereby levied to pay the cost of boarding-up and securing certain structures, being 
dangerous and unsafe buildings which have been declared a nuisance under the provisions of 
Sections 18.16.010 to 18.16.090 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, located and situated 
upon the following described property: 
 
Legal of Parcel in Benefit District Assessment 

S 1/2 LOT 38-ALL LOT 40 WACO AVE. FITZGERALD'S 2ND. ADD. 172.38

LOT 48 PENNSYLVANIA AVE. MATHEWSON'S 4TH. ADD. 248.67

LOTS 34-36 LAURA AVE. WOLLMAN'S ADD. 127.34

LOTS 5-7 IDA AVE. MILTNER'S 2ND. ADD. 122.37

PT LOTS 22-24 BEG 32 FT E NW COR LOT 22 E 20 FT S 36 FT SELY 11.15 FT 
TO PT 4 FT N & 77 FT W SE COR LOT 22 E 77 FT S TO N LI 2ND. ST. W 87 FT 
N TO PT 46 FT S OF N LI LOT 22 W 15 FT N 46 FT TO BEG BUSCH'S SUB 

97.38

LOTS 65-67 MABEL NOW ESTELLE AVE. MOSSMAN'S 2ND. ADD. 87.16

LOTS 3-4 BLOCK 3 COUNTRY CLUB HEIGHTS ADD. 192.37

LOT 6 REPLAT OF PT OF BLOCK 3 PAWNEE RANCH ADDITION 202.09

LOT 38 PERSHING AVE. EDGETOWN PARK ADD. 170.10

LOT 2 BLOCK B REPLAT OF SOWERS GARDENS 113.16

LOT 11 BLOCK C WESTVIEW ADD. 171.97

LOT 8 BLOCK 4 GOLDEN HILLS 5TH. ADD. 75.44

 
 SECTION 2.  The sum so assessed and apportioned against the lots herein before set 
out and not paid within 30 days from date of notice sent out by the Debt Management Office of 
the Department of Finance as provided by law, shall be collected by special assessment upon the 
property liable therefore in one installment and placed upon the tax roll for the year 2016 and 
shall be certified to the County Clerk and shall be levied and collected in the same manner as 
other taxes, and the Debt Management Office of the Department of Finance is hereby directed to 
give written notice to property owner(s) owning property assessed herein, as required by law. 
 
 SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 
publication once in the official City paper. 

415



 
 ADOPTED, at Wichita, Kansas, this 13th day of October, 2015. 
 
 
 
                                                        
 Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
                                                               
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Jennifer Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law 
 

416



         Agenda Item No. II-18 
City of Wichita 

City Council Meeting 
October 6, 2015 

 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT:  Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department Budget Adjustment 
   (All Districts) 
    
INITIATED BY: Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Recommendations:  Approve the budget adjustment. 
 
Background:   Weed mowing and nuisance abatement activity is financed from the General Fund.  
Nuisance abatement activity has increased 130 percent over 2014, year to date, and with the more 
temperate and rainy weather experienced this year, contractor weed mowing has increased by 36 percent.  
Staff estimate that Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department (MABCD) budgeted 
contractual funds for weed mowing and nuisance abatement will be exhausted around the end of 
September. 
 
Analysis:  Current projections anticipate that MABCD will need an additional $25,000 in the nuisance 
abatement budget and $16,000 in the weed mowing budget (a total of $41,000) to address nuisance and 
tall weeds complaints through the end of the year.  MABCD currently has General Fund under 
expenditures in other line items, most significantly salaries.   
 
Financial Considerations:  Expenditure savings in other lines items of the MABCD General Fund 
budget are anticipated to offset the $41,000 requested budget increase for the nuisance abatement and 
weed mowing contractual budgets.  
 
Legal Considerations: City Council approval is required for budget transfers in excess of $25,000.  
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the budget adjustment of 
$41,000 to the MABCD Nuisance Abatement and Weed Mowing budgets. 
 

417



             Agenda Item No. II-19 
 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 

SUBJECT: Resolutions Authorizing Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) grants 
from the Federal Transit Administration (All Districts) 

   

INITIATED BY:  Wichita Transit 
 

AGENDA:  Consent  
 

 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt the resolutions authorizing filing of grant applications and pledging sufficient 
matching funds. 
 

Background:  The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grant application process requires a resolution 
by the governing body authorizing staff to file grant applications to receive funds and administer the 
grant’s program.  The purpose of the resolution is to authorize staff to file for eligible Federal funds for 
the support of the Westside Service Improvements project and a Bus Purchase in 2016. Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds are Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) funds that are 
transferred to FTA for use for transit services.  The funds are 80% Federal funds and 20% local matching 
funds. A second resolution for each grant is required by the Kansas Department of Transportation 
(KDOT) to pledge sufficient matching funds and approve the transfer of funds from FHWA to FTA. A 
bonding resolution is required for the bus purchase project. 
 
Analysis:    The Westside Service Improvements grant is for $1,092,000. The route structures for the new 
West Maple, West Central and neighborhood feeder service are in place and entering the third year of 
service.  CMAQ funding is eligible for three years.  This is the third and final year of operating support 
for the Westside service improvements. The bus purchase grant is for $1,509,861 and will cover the cost 
of approximately three buses. Funding sources already in place will allow for a total of six buses to be 
ordered. A public meeting was held on September 30, 2015 with no adverse comments. 
 
The proposed resolutions authorize the filing of applications for the following funding: 
 
Westside Service Improvements: 
 Federal Portion - $873,600 
 Local Portion - $218,400 
 Total - $1,092,000 
 
Bus Purchase: 
 Federal Portion - $1,207,889 
 General Obligation Bonds - $301,972 
 Total - $1,509,861 
 
The Transportation Policy Body, which develops and approves transportation plans for the Wichita Area 
Metropolitan Planning Organization, awarded the Federal portion of the grants to Wichita Transit on 
September 8, 2015.  

 
 
 

418



Financial Considerations:  The Federal share for Westside Service Improvements is $873,600 and the 
local match is $218,400 and will be funded by the Transit Fund. The Federal share for Bus Purchase is 
$1,207,889 and the local match will be financed through the issuance of general obligation bonds.  The 
local match for the bus purchase is programmed in the Adopted 2015-2024 CIP. 
 

Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the resolutions authorizing 
filing of the grants as to form. 
 

Recommendation/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt the resolutions and authorize 
the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments:   
1. WT Resolution Authorizing 2016 CMAQ Westside Service Improvements 
2. KDOT 1312 Form Resolution for 2016 CMAQ Westside Service Improvements 
3. WT Resolution Authorizing 2016 CMAQ Bus Purchase 
4. KDOT 1312 Form Resolution for 2016 CMAQ Bus Purchase 
5. WT Bonding Resolution Authorizing Bonds for the Bus Purchase Local Match 

419



420



421



 -1-

RESOLUTION NO. 15-333 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION 

WITH THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION, 
AN OPERATING ADMINISTRATION OF THE 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, 
FOR FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE  

AUTHORIZED BY 49 U.S.C., 
AND OTHER FEDERAL STATUTES ADMINISTERED BY THE 

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 
TO SUPPORT FY 2016 CONGESTION MITIGATION AND AIR  

QUALITY (CMAQ) PROJECTS  
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Federal Transportation Administrator has been delegated authority to award 
federal financial assistance for transportation projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the grant or cooperative agreement for federal financial assistance will impose 
certain obligations upon the City of Wichita and may require the City to provide the local share of the 
project cost; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wichita has or will provide all annual certifications and assurances to the 
Federal Transit Administration required for the project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wichita desires financial assistance for support of the following projects:  
Pursuant to CMAQ – Bus Purchase.   
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF WICHITA, KANSAS: 
 

1. The City Manager or designee is authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the 
City of Wichita, Kansas, with the Federal Transit Administration for Federal assistance under           
49 U.S.C., United States Code, or other federal statutes authorizing a project administered by 
the Federal Transit Administration to aid in financing 49 U.S.C. 

 
2. That the City Manager or designee is authorized to execute and file with its application the 

annual certifications and assurances and other documents the Federal Transit Administration 
requires before awarding a federal assistance grant or cooperative agreement. 

 
3. That the City Manager or designee is authorized to execute the grant and cooperative 

agreements with the Federal Transit Administration on behalf of the City of Wichita. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

422



 -2-

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2015. 
 
                                                                        THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS  
 
 
                                                                        ______________________________ 

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jennifer Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 The undersigned duly qualified Mayor, acting on behalf of the City of Wichita, which is the 
Designated Recipient of Urbanized Area Formula Program assistance under the provisions of 49 U.S.C. 
§5307, certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a legally-convened 
meeting of the City of Wichita. 
 
 ADOPTED at Wichita, Kansas on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               
       Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
 
 

 

423



 -1-

RESOLUTION NO. 15-334 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION 

WITH THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION, 
AN OPERATING ADMINISTRATION OF THE 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, 
FOR FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE  

AUTHORIZED BY 49 U.S.C., 
AND OTHER FEDERAL STATUTES ADMINISTERED BY THE 

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 
TO SUPPORT FY 2016 CONGESTION MITIGATION AND AIR  

QUALITY (CMAQ) PROJECTS  
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Federal Transportation Administrator has been delegated authority to award 
federal financial assistance for transportation projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the grant or cooperative agreement for federal financial assistance will impose 
certain obligations upon the City of Wichita and may require the City to provide the local share of the 
project cost; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wichita has or will provide all annual certifications and assurances to the 
Federal Transit Administration required for the project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wichita desires financial assistance for support of the following projects:  
Pursuant to CMAQ – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality: Westside Service Improvements.   
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF WICHITA, KANSAS: 
 

1. The City Manager or designee is authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the 
City of Wichita, Kansas, with the Federal Transit Administration for Federal assistance under           
49 U.S.C., United States Code, or other federal statutes authorizing a project administered by 
the Federal Transit Administration to aid in financing 49 U.S.C. 

 
2. That the City Manager or designee is authorized to execute and file with its application the 

annual certifications and assurances and other documents the Federal Transit Administration 
requires before awarding a federal assistance grant or cooperative agreement. 

 
3. That the City Manager or designee is authorized to execute the grant and cooperative 

agreements with the Federal Transit Administration on behalf of the City of Wichita. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

424



 -2-

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2015. 
 
                                                                        THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS  
 
 
                                                                        ______________________________ 

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jennifer Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 The undersigned duly qualified Mayor, acting on behalf of the City of Wichita, which is the 
Designated Recipient of Urbanized Area Formula Program assistance under the provisions of 49 U.S.C. 
§5307, certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a legally-convened 
meeting of the City of Wichita. 
 
 ADOPTED at Wichita, Kansas on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               
       Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
 
 

 

425



JLN\600809.053\DOCUMENT MASTER FORMS\MISC PROJECT AUTH –CH ORD 156 (10-09-13) 

 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
10/09/2013 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-335 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS TO PAY THE 
COSTS OF CERTAIN PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wichita, Kansas (the “City”) is a municipal corporation, duly created, 
organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body is authorized, , pursuant to K.S.A. 13-1024c, as amended by 
Charter Ordinance No. 156 of the City (the “Act”) to issue general obligation bonds of the City without 
an election for the purpose of paying for the construction, purchase or improvement of any public 
improvement, including the land necessary therefore, and for the purpose of rebuilding, adding to or 
extending the same as the necessities of the City may require and for the purpose of paying for certain 
personal property therefore; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines that it is necessary and advisable 
to make certain public improvements described as follows: 
 
 

Wichita Transit Bus Purchase: KS-95-X013-01 
 
 
(the “Project”) and to provide for the payment of all or a portion of the costs thereof by the issuance of 
general obligation bonds of the City pursuant to the Act. 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 
KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  Project Authorization.   It is hereby authorized, ordered and directed that the Project 
be acquired and/or constructed at an estimated cost of $1,509,861 in accordance with plans and 
specifications therefor prepared under the direction of the Transit Director and approved by the 
Governing Body; said plans and specifications to be placed on file in the Transit offices. 
 
 Section 2.  Project Financing.  All or a portion of the costs of the Project, interest on financing 
and administrative and financing costs shall be financed with the proceeds of general obligation bonds of 
the City (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds may be issued to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date 
which is 60 days before the date of adoption of this Resolution, pursuant to Treasury Regulation §1.150-2. 
 
 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
adoption by the Governing Body. 
 
 
 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on October 6,2015. 
 
 
 

426



JLN\600809.053\DOCUMENT MASTER FORMS\MISC PROJECT AUTH –CH ORD 156 (10-09-13) 

 

(SEAL)              
Jeff Longwell, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Jennifer Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law 

 
 

427



Second Reading Ordinances for October 6, 2015 (first read on September 22,  2015) 

 

A. SUB2014-00043 – Plat of Lange 3rd Addition Located South of MacArthur Road, on the 
East Sid eof West Street. (District IV) 

                  ORDINANCE NO. 50-087 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OR DISTRICTS OF 
CERTAIN LANDS LOCATED IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, UNDER THE 
AUTHORITY GRANTED BY THE WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY UNIFIED ZONING 
CODE, SECTION V-C, AS ADOPTED BY SECTION 28.04.010, AS AMENDED. 

428



         Agenda Report No. II-21 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: SUB2014-00036 -- Plat of Campbell’s Greenhouse Addition Located East of 

Broadway, North of MacArthur Road (District III) 
 
INITIATED BY: Metropolitan Area Planning Department 
 
AGENDA:  Planning (Consent) 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approve the plat.   
 
MAPC Recommendation:  Approve the plat.  (10-0)   
 

  
 
Background:  The site consists of one lot on 6.6 acres.  A zone change (ZON2013-00028) has been 
approved from Single-Family Residential (SF-5) to General Commercial (GC).    
 
Analysis:  Water services are available to serve the site.  The applicant has submitted a No Protest 
Agreement for Future Sewer Extension.   
 
The plat has been reviewed and approved by the Metropolitan Area Planning Commission subject to 
conditions.    
 
Publication of the Ordinance should be withheld until the plat is recorded with the Register of Deeds.  
 
Financial Considerations:  There are no financial considerations associated with the plat. 
  

429



 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the No Protest Agreement for 
Future Sewer Extension as to form and the document will be recorded with the Register of Deeds.  
 
The Law Department has reviewed and approved the Ordinance as to form. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the document and plat, 
authorize the necessary signatures and place the Ordinance on first reading.  Publication of the Ordinance 
should be withheld until the plat is recorded with the Register of Deeds.  
 
Attachments: No Protest Agreement for Future Sewer Extension  
 Ordinance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUB2014-00036  
Wichita City Council – October 6, 2015 Page 2

430



 
 

431



 (OCA150004)   
 

Published in The Wichita Eagle on October 16, 2015 
                  ORDINANCE NO. 50-093 

 
AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OR DISTRICTS OF CERTAIN 
LANDS LOCATED IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, UNDER THE AUTHORITY GRANTED 
BY THE WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY UNIFIED ZONING CODE, SECTION V-C, AS ADOPTED 
BY SECTION 28.04.010, AS AMENDED. 
 

             BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY 
          OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS. 

 
 SECTION 1.  That having received a recommendation from the Planning Commission, and proper 
notice having been given and hearing held as provided by law and under authority and subject to the 
provisions of The Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code, Section V-C, as adopted by Section 
28.04.010, as amended, the zoning classification or districts of the lands legally described hereby are 
changed as follows:  
                      Case No. ZON2013-00028 

 
Zone change request from Single-Family Residential (SF-5) to General Commercial (GC) on property 
described as:  

 
Campbell’s Greenhouse Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 

Generally located East of Broadway, North of MacArthur Road.   
 
 SECTION 2.  That upon the taking effect of this Ordinance, the above zoning changes shall be 
entered and shown on the "Official Zoning Map" previously adopted by reference, and said official zoning 
map is hereby reincorporated as a part of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code as amended. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its adoption 
and publication in the official City paper.   
 
 ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2015. 
 
ATTEST: 
           
 
 
______________________                                                   __________________________ 
 Karen Sublett, City Clerk                                      Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Jennifer Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law 

432



433



434



          
 

         Agenda Report No. II-22 
 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 

       
TO: Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: DED2015-00007 – Dedication of Access and Utility Easement Located on the 

East Side of Greenwich, North of K-96 Highway (District II) 
 
INITIATED BY:  Metropolitan Area Planning Department 
 
AGENDA:  Planning (Consent) 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approve the Dedication.   
 

 
 
Background:  The Dedication is associated with Lot Split Case No. LSP2015-00014 (Wichita 
Destination Development Addition).  
 
Analysis:  The Dedication DED2015-00007 is for the purpose of construction and maintenance of 
utilities in addition to vehicular and pedestrian access.  
 
Financial Considerations:  There are no financial considerations associated with the Dedication.  
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has approved the Dedication as to form and the document 
will be recorded with the Register of Deeds.  
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council accept the Dedication.  
 
Attachments:  Dedication of Access and Utility Easement.  

435



436



437



438



439



          
 

         Agenda Report No. II-23 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: SUB2015-00016 -- Plat of Monarch Landing Commercial Addition Located on 

the Northwest Corner of 21st Street North and 159th Street East (District II) 
 
INITIATED BY: Metropolitan Area Planning Department 
 
AGENDA:  Planning (Consent) 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approve the plat.   
 
MAPC Recommendation:  Approve the plat.  (11-0)   
 

  
 
Background:  The site consists of three lots on 18.12 acres.  A zone change (ZON2006-00045) has been 
approved from Single-Family Residential (SF-5) to Limited Commercial (LC).  The site is subject to the 
Monarch Landing Community Unit Plan (CUP2006-00046, DP-303).       
 
Analysis:  Water and sewer services are available to serve the site.  The applicant has submitted a 100 
percent Petition and a Certificate of Petition for traffic improvements.  The applicant has submitted a 
Notice of Community Unit Plan (CUP) identifying the approved CUP and special conditions for 
development.  The applicant has submitted a Declaration of Cross Lot Access and Easement to assure 
internal vehicular movement between the lots.  The applicant has submitted a Sidewalk Certificate for 
construction of a sidewalk along Flutter Lane.   
 
 

440



The plat has been reviewed and approved by the Metropolitan Area Planning Commission subject to 
conditions.    
 
Publication of the Ordinance should be withheld until the plat is recorded with the Register of Deeds.  
 
Financial Considerations:  There are no financial considerations associated with the plat. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the Certificate of Petition, 
Notice of CUP, Declaration of Cross Lot Access and Easement, Sidewalk Certificate and Resolution as to 
form and the documents will be recorded with the Register of Deeds.  
 
The Law Department has reviewed and approved the Ordinance as to form. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the documents and plat, 
authorize the necessary signatures, adopt the Resolution and place the Ordinance on first reading.  
Publication of the Ordinance should be withheld until the plat is recorded with the Register of Deeds.  
 
Attachments: Certificate of Petition  
  Notice of CUP 
  Declaration of Cross Lot Access and Easement 
  Sidewalk Certificate  
  Ordinance 
  Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUB2015-00016  
Wichita City Council – October 6, 2015 Page 2

 

441



 

442



443

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY

kwilson
Typewritten Text
Monarch Landing Commercial ADD -support docs -SUB2015 16				Page 1 of 8

kwilson
Typewritten Text
x



444

kwilson
Typewritten Text
Monarch Landing Commercial ADD -support docs -SUB2015 16				Page 2 of 8

kwilson
Typewritten Text
x



445

kwilson
Typewritten Text
Monarch Landing Commercial ADD -support docs -SUB2015 16				Page 3 of 8

kwilson
Typewritten Text
x



446

kwilson
Typewritten Text
Monarch Landing Commercial ADD -support docs -SUB2015 16				Page 4 of 8

kwilson
Typewritten Text
x



447

kwilson
Typewritten Text
Monarch Landing Commercial ADD -support docs -SUB2015 16				Page 5 of 8

kwilson
Typewritten Text
x



448

kwilson
Typewritten Text
Monarch Landing Commercial ADD -support docs -SUB2015 16				Page 6 of 8

kwilson
Typewritten Text
x



449

kwilson
Typewritten Text
Monarch Landing Commercial ADD -support docs -SUB2015 16				Page 7 of 8

kwilson
Typewritten Text
x



450

kwilson
Typewritten Text
Monarch Landing Commercial ADD -support docs -SUB2015 16				Page 8 of 8

kwilson
Typewritten Text
x



 (OCA150004)   
 

Published in The Wichita Eagle on October 16, 2015 
 

                  ORDINANCE NO. 50-094 
 
AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OR DISTRICTS OF CERTAIN 
LANDS LOCATED IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, UNDER THE AUTHORITY GRANTED 
BY THE WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY UNIFIED ZONING CODE, SECTION V-C, AS ADOPTED 
BY SECTION 28.04.010, AS AMENDED. 
 

             BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY 
          OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS. 

 
 SECTION 1.  That having received a recommendation from the Planning Commission, and proper 
notice having been given and hearing held as provided by law and under authority and subject to the 
provisions of The Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code, Section V-C, as adopted by Section 
28.04.010, as amended, the zoning classification or districts of the lands legally described hereby are 
changed as follows:  

                     Case No. ZON2006-00045 
 

Zone change request from Single-Family Residential (SF-5) to Limited Commercial (LC) on property 
described as:  
 

Monarch Landing, an Addition to Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 

Generally located on the Northwest corner of 21st Street North and 159th Street East.   
 

 SECTION 2.  That upon the taking effect of this Ordinance, the above zoning changes shall be 
entered and shown on the "Official Zoning Map" previously adopted by reference, and said official zoning 
map is hereby reincorporated as a part of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code as amended. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its adoption 
and publication in the official City paper.   
 
 ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2015. 
 
ATTEST: 
           
 
 
______________________                                                   __________________________ 
 Karen Sublett, City Clerk                                      Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Jennifer Magaña, City Attorney and Director of Law 
 

451



 

Monarch Landing Commercial –Resolutions –SUB2015 16     Page 1 of 4 

(Published in the Wichita Eagle, on October 9, 2015) 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-336 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 
CERTAIN INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS (LATERAL 3, 
MAIN 23, FOUR MILE CREEK – MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL/NORTH 
OF 21ST STREET NORTH, WEST OF 159TH STREET EAST) (468-85079). 
 

 WHEREAS, a petition (the “Petition”) was filed with the City Clerk of the City of Wichita, Kansas 
(the "City") proposing certain internal improvements; and said Petition sets forth:  (a) the general nature of 
the proposed improvements; (b) the estimated or probable cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent 
of the proposed improvement district to be assessed for the cost of the proposed improvements; (d) the 
proposed method of assessment; (e) the proposed apportionment of the cost between the improvement district 
and the City at large; and (f) a request that such improvements be made without notice and hearing as required 
by K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq., (the "Act"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City hereby finds and determines that 
said Petition was signed by owners of record of more than one-half of the area liable for assessment for 
the proposed improvements, and is therefore sufficient in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS: 
 
 Section 1.  Findings of Advisability.  The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that: 
 
 (a) It is advisable to make the following improvements: 
 
  Construction of a lateral sanitary sewer (Lateral 3, Main 23, Four Mile Creek), 
including necessary sewer mains and appurtenances to serve the Improvement District defined below 
(the "Improvements"). 
 
 (b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is Thirty-Four Thousand Dollars 
($34,000), exclusive of interest on financing and administrative and financing costs; said estimated amount 
to be increased at the pro rata rate of 1 percent per month from and after the date of submission of the Petition 
to the City. If expenses have been incurred for the Improvements and construction has not started within two 
years of the initial design contract, the Improvements will be deemed abandoned and expenses incurred to 
date will be assessed against property in the Improvement District defined below in accordance with the 
provisions thereof 
 
 (c) The extent of the improvement district (the "Improvement District") to be assessed for the 
cost of the Improvements is: 
 

MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL 
Lot 3, Block A 

 
 

452



 

Monarch Landing Commercial –Resolutions –SUB2015 16     Page 2 of 4 

 (d) The method of assessment is:  Lot 3, Block A, MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL 
shall pay 100 percent of the total cost of the improvements.   
  
In the event all or part of the lots or parcels in the proposed Improvement District are reconfigured before or 
after assessments have been levied, the assessments against the replatted area shall be recalculated on a square 
foot basis.  
 
 (e) The apportionment of the cost of the Improvements, between the Improvement District and 
the City at large, is:  100% to be assessed against the Improvement District and 0% to be paid by the City-
at-large. 
 
 (f) The payment of assessments to be imposed hereunder may be indefinitely deferred against 
those property owners eligible for deferral pursuant to the City’s Special Assessment Deferral Program. 
 
 Section 2.  Authorization of Improvements.  The Improvements are hereby authorized and ordered 
to be made in accordance with the findings of the Governing Body as set forth in Section 1 of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 3.  Plans and Specifications.  The City Engineer shall prepare plans and specifications for 
said Improvements and a preliminary estimate of cost therefore, which plans, specifications and estimate shall 
be presented to the Governing Body for its approval. 
 
 Section 4.  Bond Authority; Reimbursement.  The Act provides for the Improvements to be paid 
by the issuance of general obligation bonds or special obligation bonds of the City (the "Bonds").  The Bonds 
may be issued to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date which is 60 days before the date of this 
Resolution, pursuant to Treasury Regulation § 1.150-2. 
 
 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  This Resolution shall 
be published one time in the official City newspaper, and shall also be filed of record in the office of the 
Register of Deeds of Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 
 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on October 6, 2015. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Jennifer Magaña, City Attorney and Director of Law  

 
 
 

453



 

Monarch Landing Commercial –Resolutions –SUB2015 16     Page 3 of 4 

(Published in the Wichita Eagle, on _________________________) 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 
CERTAIN INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS (DECEL LANE 
IMPROVEMENTS – MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL/NORTH OF 21ST 
STREET NORTH, WEST OF 159TH STREET EAST) (472-85246). 
 

 WHEREAS, a petition (the “Petition”) was filed with the City Clerk of the City of Wichita, Kansas 
(the "City") proposing certain internal improvements; and said Petition sets forth:  (a) the general nature of 
the proposed improvements; (b) the estimated or probable cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent 
of the proposed improvement district to be assessed for the cost of the proposed improvements; (d) the 
proposed method of assessment; (e) the proposed apportionment of the cost between the improvement district 
and the City at large; and (f) a request that such improvements be made without notice and hearing as required 
by K.S.A. 12-6a01 et seq., (the "Act"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City hereby finds and determines that 
said Petition was signed by owners of record of more than one-half of the area liable for assessment for 
the proposed improvements, and is therefore sufficient in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS: 
 
 Section 1.  Findings of Advisability.  The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that: 
 
 (a) It is advisable to make the following improvements: 
 
  Construction of decel lane improvements on the west side of 159th Street East to serve 
the major entrances to Lots 2 and 3, Block A, Monarch Landing Commercial with plans and 
specifications to be furnished by the City Engineer of the City of Wichita, Kansas.  Drainage to be 
installed where necessary (the "Improvements"). 
 
 (b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is One Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($100,000), exclusive of interest on financing and administrative and financing costs; said estimated amount 
to be increased at the pro rata rate of 1 percent per month from and after the date of submission of the Petition 
to the City. If expenses have been incurred for the Improvements and construction has not started within two 
years of the initial design contract, the Improvements will be deemed abandoned and expenses incurred to 
date will be assessed against property in the Improvement District defined below in accordance with the 
provisions thereof. 
 
 (c) The extent of the improvement district (the "Improvement District") to be assessed for the 
cost of the Improvements is: 

MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL 
Lots 2 and 3, Block A 

 
 (d) The method of assessment is:  on a fractional basis as described below.   

 

454



 

Monarch Landing Commercial –Resolutions –SUB2015 16     Page 4 of 4 

The fractional shares provided for herein have been determined on the basis of equal shares 
being assessed to lots or parcels of substantially comparable size and/or value: Lot 2, Block 
A, MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL shall pay 2/3 of the total cost of the 
improvements and Lot 3, Block A, MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL shall pay 1/3 
of the total cost of the improvements.   
 

In the event that the driveway approaches and curb cuts are not included within the scope of the 
Improvements and the estimated cost thereof as set forth in subsection (b) above, the costs of such driveway 
approaches and curb cuts so constructed shall be directly assessed to the property benefitted thereby in 
addition to the assessments levied for the Improvements. In the event all or part of the lots or parcels in the 
proposed Improvement District are reconfigured before or after assessments have been levied, the assessments 
against the replatted area shall be recalculated on a square foot basis.  
 
 (e) The apportionment of the cost of the Improvements, between the Improvement District and 
the City at large, is:  100% to be assessed against the Improvement District and 0% to be paid by the City-
at-large. 
 
 (f) The payment of assessments to be imposed hereunder may be indefinitely deferred against 
those property owners eligible for deferral pursuant to the City’s Special Assessment Deferral Program. 
 
 Section 2.  Authorization of Improvements.  The Improvements are hereby authorized and ordered 
to be made in accordance with the findings of the Governing Body as set forth in Section 1 of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 3.  Plans and Specifications.  The City Engineer shall prepare plans and specifications for 
said Improvements and a preliminary estimate of cost therefore, which plans, specifications and estimate shall 
be presented to the Governing Body for its approval. 
 
 Section 4.  Bond Authority; Reimbursement.  The Act provides for the Improvements to be paid 
by the issuance of general obligation bonds or special obligation bonds of the City (the "Bonds").  The Bonds 
may be issued to reimburse expenditures made on or after the date which is 60 days before the date of this 
Resolution, pursuant to Treasury Regulation § 1.150-2. 
 
 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  This Resolution shall 
be published one time in the official City newspaper, and shall also be filed of record in the office of the 
Register of Deeds of Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 
 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on ___________________. 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Jeff Longwell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Jennifer Magaña, City Attorney and Director of Law  

455



             Agenda Report No. II-24 
 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 
 
TO:     Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:   ZON2015-00031 – City Zone Change from Single-Family Residential to 

Neighborhood Retail with a Protective Overlay on Property Located West of 
Ridge Road on the Northwest Corner of Maple and Brunswick Streets.     
(District V)   

 
INITIATED BY:  Metropolitan Area Planning Department 
 
AGENDA:   Planning (Consent)  
 
 
MAPC Recommendation:  The MAPC recommended approval of the request (11-0). 
 
DAB Recommendation:  District Advisory Board V recommended approval of the request (9-0).  
 
MAPD Staff Recommendation:  The Metropolitan Area Planning Department staff recommended 
approval of the request. 
 

 
 

456



Background:  The applicant is requesting a zone change from SF-5 Single-Family Residential (“SF-5”) 
to Neighborhood Retail (“NR”) on the platted 160-foot (x) 187-foot (0.70-acres) site; the south 160 feet 
of Lot 9, Block D, Westview Addition.  The site is a corner lot located one-block west of Ridge Road on 
the northwest corner of Brunswick and Maple Streets.  The site’s one-story, brick, ranch style house’s 
(built 1948) front yard faces Maple Street, a paved four-lane arterial, with two center-turn lanes at this 
location.  The site has large mature deciduous trees located throughout it, including a hedge-like line of 
mature trees running parallel to its west property line.    
 
SF-5 zoned neighborhoods abut the north and west sides of the SF-5 zoned site. The west abutting SF-5 
zoned single-family residences (built in the early 1990s) are separated from the subject site by the noted 
hedge-like line of mature trees and a six-foot brick wall.  None of the houses located west of the site have 
front yards facing Maple Street. A similar landscape buffer does not separate the north abutting SF-5 
zoned single-family residences (built late 1970s) from the subject site.  A Limited Commercial (“LC”) 
zoned small Horton’s carpet store (built 1996), a small commercial strip with gas pumps (built 1983) and 
an Outback full-service restaurant (built 1999) are located east of the site, across Brunswick Street; 
zoning cases Z-2337, Z-3162, and Z-3237.  If the zoning is approved, the 0.68-acre carpet store and 0.70-
acre commercial strip site present a similar scale of commercial development that could occur on the 
0.70-acre subject site.  South of the site, across Maple Street, are the LC and GC General Commercial 
zoned big box, 17.71-acre Lowes home improvement store (built 1998) and the LC zoned big box, 15.72-
acre Target department store (built 2004); zoning cases Z-3306/DP-37 and Z-3326, ZON2003-00055/DP-
270.  Lowes and Target are the two largest commercial developments located along the Ridge Road – 
Maple Street intersection, which includes full service restaurants, casual dining restaurants, furniture 
stores, commercial and strip buildings.  Based on the built dates (as shown on the Sedgwick County 
Appraiser’s information) the subject site’s one-story, brick, ranch style house (built 1948) is one of the 
oldest, if not the oldest building in the area.  The site’s house was built prior to the adoption of the 
Unified Zoning Code (UZC) and prior to the 1958 Sedgwick County zoning of county land located within 
a three mile-ring of the Wichita city limits.     
 
Analysis:  On August 20, 2015, the Metropolitan Area Planning Commission (MAPC) considered and 
approved (11-0) the request, with the following provisions of a protective overlay: 

(1) Permitted uses are an automated teller machine, a bank or financial institution, general office, 
personal care services, general retail, personal improvement services and medical offices. 

(2) The hedge like line of mature trees running parallel to the site’s west property line shall be 
maintained or improved as needed to provide a solid landscape buffer.  A line of six-foot tall (at 
the time of planting) evergreens shall be planted on 12-foot centers along the north property line.  
An eight-foot tall solid fence shall be installed south of the line of evergreens.  The rest of the 
required landscaping shall be per the Landscape Ordinance.  

(3) Compatibility setback, height and light standards and all applicable Unified Zoning Code 
standards will apply to the development of the site.  A drainage plan must be approved by the 
Public Works.  

(4) No parking or lighting within the rear and interior side yard setbacks.  
 
There were no protesters at the MAPC meeting.   
 
On September 14, 2015, District Advisory Board V (DAB V) considered the request.  DAB V voted 9-0 
to approve the request for the NR zoning with the above provisions of a protective overlay.  There were 
no protesters at the DAB V meeting.  Planning staff has received no valid protests to the request. 
   
Financial Considerations:  Approval of this request will not create any financial obligations for the City. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the ordinance as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council concur with the findings of the 
MAPC and approve the zoning with the provisions of Protective Overlay 300 and place the ordinance on 
first reading (simple majority of four votes required). 
 
 

457



Attachments:   
 MAPC minutes 
 DAB memo 
 Ordinance 

458



OCA 150004 
ORDINANCE NO. 50-095 

 
AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OR DISTRICTS OF CERTAIN 
LANDS LOCATED IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, UNDER THE AUTHORITY 
GRANTED BY THE WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY UNIFIED ZONING CODE, SECTION V-C, 
AS ADOPTED BY SECTION 28.04.010, AS AMENDED. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY 

OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS. 
 

SECTION 1.  That having received a recommendation from the Planning Commission, and proper 
notice having been given and hearing held as provided by law and under authority and subject to the 
provisions of The Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code, Section V-C, as adopted by Section 
28.04.010, as amended, the zoning classification or districts of the lands legally described hereby are 
changed as follows:   
 

Case No. ZON2015-00031 
Zone change from SF-5 Single-Family Residential (“SF-5”) to NR Neighborhood Retail (“NR”), subject 
to the provisions of a Protective Overlay (“PO”) on an approximately 0.70-acre property described as: 
 
The south 160 feet of Lot 9, Block D, Westview Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas, 
generally located east of Ridge Road on the northwest corner of Maple and Brunswick Streets.  
 
Provisions of PO #300: 

(1) Permitted uses are an automated teller machine, a bank or financial institution, general office, 
personal care services, general retail, personal improvement services and medical offices. 

(2) The hedge like line of mature trees running parallel to the site’s west property line shall be 
maintained or improved as needed to provide a solid landscape buffer.  A line of six-foot tall (at 
the time of planting) evergreens shall be planted on 12-foot centers along the north property line.  
An eight-foot tall solid fence shall be installed south of the line of evergreens.  The rest of the 
required landscaping shall be per the Landscape Ordinance.  

(3) Compatibility setback, height and light standards and all applicable Unified Zoning Code 
standards will apply to the development of the site.  A drainage plan must be approved by the 
Public Works.  

(4) No parking or lighting within the rear and interior side yard setbacks.  
 
SECTION 2.  That upon the taking effect of this ordinance, the above zoning changes shall be entered 
and shown on the "Official Zoning Map" previously adopted by reference, and said official zoning map 
is hereby reincorporated as a part of the Wichita -Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code as amended. 
 
SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its adoption and 
publication in the official City paper.   
 
 

     ___________________________ 
   Jeff Longwell, Mayor     

 
 
 

459



ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  
Karen Sublett, City Clerk     
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Approved as to form:  ______________________________ 
Jennifer Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law 
 
 
 

460



Page 1 of 6 
 

EXCERPT MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 20, 2015 WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING 

 
Case No.:  ZON2015-00031 - Esther M. Wallace (owner) and Baughman Company, 
P.A., c/o Russ Ewy (agent) request a City zone change request from SF-5 Single-family 
Residential to NR Neighborhood Retail on property described as: 

 
The South 160 feet of lot 9, Block D, Westview Addition to Wichita, Sedgwick County, 
Kansas. 

 
BACKGROUND:  The applicant is requesting a zone change from SF-5 Single-Family 
Residential to GO General Office on the platted 160 foot (x) 187 foot (0.70-acres) site. The site 
is a corner lot located one-block west of Ridge Road on the northwest corner of Brunswick and 
Maple Streets.  The site’s one story, brick, ranch style house’s (built 1948) front yard faces 
Maple Street, a paved four-lane arterial, with two center-turn lanes at this location.  The site has 
large mature deciduous trees located throughout it, including a hedge like line of mature trees 
running parallel to its west property line.    
 
SF-5 zoned neighborhoods abut the north and west sides of the SF-5 site. The west abutting SF-5 
zoned single-family residences (built in the early 1990s) are separated from the subject site by 
the noted hedge like line of mature trees and their subdivision’s six-foot brick wall.  None of the 
houses located west of the site have front yards facing Maple Street. A similar landscape buffer 
does not separate the north abutting SF-5 zoned single-family residences (built late 1970s) from 
the subject site.  A LC Limited Commercial zoned small Horton’s carpet store (built 1996), small 
commercial strip with gas pumps (built 1983) and an Outback full service restaurant (built 1999) 
are located east of the site, across Brunswick Street; Z-2337, Z-3162, and Z-3237.  The 0.68-acre 
carpet store and 0.70-acre commercial strip sites present a similar scale of commercial 
development that could occur on the 0.70-acre subject site, if the zoning is approved.  South of 
the site, across Maple Street, are the LC and GC General Commercial zoned big box, 17.71-acre 
Lowes home improvement store (built 1998) and the LC zoned big box, 15.72-acre Target 
department store (built 2004); Z-3306/DP-37 and Z-3326, ZON2003-00055/DP-270.  Lowes and 
Target are the two largest commercial developments located along the Ridge Road – Maple 
Street intersection, which includes full service restaurants, casual dining restaurants, furniture 
stores, commercial and strip buildings.  Based on the built dates (as shown on the Sedgwick 
County Appraiser’s information) the subject site’s one story, brick, ranch style house (built 
1948) is one of the oldest, if not the oldest building in the area; pre Unified Zoning Code (UZC), 
pre 1958 County zoning within a three mile-ring of the city.                      
 
CASE HISTORY:  The site is described as the South 160 feet of Lot 9, Block D, Westview 
Addition.  The Westview Addition was recorded with the Register of Deeds on February 11, 
1953.  The site was annexed into the city between 1961 and 1970.   
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USE: 
NORTH:  SF-5 Single-family residences  
SOUTH:  LC, GC  Big box home improvement, big box retail             
EAST:  LC   Carpet sales, small commercial strip, convenience store, restaurant  
WEST: SF-5  Single-family residences  
 

461



Page 2 of 6 
 

PUBLIC SERVICES:  The site is served by all normally supplied municipal services.  The site 
has access/a drive onto Brunswick Street, a paved two-lane local street which intersects with 
Maple Avenue, a paved four-lane arterial, with two center-turn lanes at this location.  The site 
also access/a drive onto Maple Avenue.       
 
CONFORMANCE TO PLANS/POLICIES:  The 2030 Wichita Functional Land Use Guide 
map depicts the site as appropriate for “urban residential” uses.  The urban residential category 
encompasses areas that reflect the full diversity of residential development densities and types 
typically found in a large urban municipality.  The range of housing types found includes single 
detached homes, semi-detached homes, zero lot line units, patio homes, duplexes, townhouses, 
apartments and multi-family units, condominiums, mobile home parks, and special residential 
accommodations for the elderly.  Elementary and middle school facilities, churches, 
playgrounds, parks and other similar residential-serving uses may also be found in this category.  
The site’s current SF-5 zoning allows single-family residences, schools, churches, and parks and 
is appropriate for the urban residential category.  The site’s one story, brick, ranch style house’s 
front yard faces Maple Street, a paved four-lane arterial, with two center-turn lanes at this 
location; this orientation lessens the appeal of the site’s single-family residence.      
 
The NR zoning district is generally compatible with the "local commercial" or “urban 
development mix” designations of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan.  The 
urban development mix category has uses that are predominately found in the urban residential 
category, such as single-family residential, duplexes, apartments, schools, parks, churches and 
similar residential-serving uses.  The urban development mix category also could be developed 
with local commercial uses, major institutional uses and park and open spaces.  The urban 
development mix category contains land that is likely to be developed or redeveloped within the 
next 30-years.  The Maple Street – Ridge Road intersection (and south of Ridge to Kellogg) has 
experience redevelopment from single-family residential to commercial during the last, at least, 
two and a half decades.   
 
The NR zoning district also allows very-low intensity retail and office development and other 
complementary land uses that serve and are generally appropriate near residential 
neighborhoods.  
   
RECOMMENDATION:  Approving the zoning request moves commercial zoning further 
west, across Brunswick Street, a paved two-lane local street.  If approved, commercial zoning 
would abut SF-5 zoned single-family residences/neighborhoods.  Future commercial zoning 
requests in the immediate area could be on the north abutting property, leading to a possible 
expansion of the subject site, further encroaching into the SF-5 zoned neighborhood; staff would 
not support a future request to expand commercial zoning to the north or the west.   
 
The site’s one story, brick, ranch style house’s front yard faces Maple Street, a paved four-lane 
arterial, with two center-turn lanes at this location; this orientation may lessen the appeal of the 
site’s single-family residence. The subject site’s one story, brick, ranch style house, built 1948, is 
one of the oldest, if not the oldest building in the area.  The site’s single-family residence is pre-
1958 County zoning within a three mile-ring of the city (which shows all of this discussed area 
as suitable for suburban residential), pre-1961-1970 annexation into the city and pre- Unified 
Zoning Code (UZC).  The site, with its Maple Street frontage, is located one-block 
(approximately 330 feet) west of Ridge Road.  Commercial development is now the dominate 
feature of the Maple Street – Ridge Road intersection.    

462



Page 3 of 6 
 

 
The requested NR zoning is more restrictive then the adjacent east (across Brunswick Street) and 
south (across the arterial Maple Avenue) LC and GC zoned commercial developments.  If 
today’s request is approved, commercial development on the 0.70-acre site would be of a similar 
scale as the east adjacent LC zoned 0.68-acre carpet store and 0.70-acre commercial strip sites.   
Compatibility setback, height and light standards will apply to the development of the site.  The 
provisions of a protective overlay could limit the uses permitted by right in the NR zoning 
district.   
 
Based upon the information available prior to the public hearings, planning staff recommends 
that the request for NR zoning be APPROVED, subject to the following provisions of a 
protective overlay: 
 

(1) Permitted uses are automated teller machine, bank or financial institution, general office, 
personal care service general retail, personal improvement service, a medical office, and 
a 2,000-sqaure foot full service restaurants (no drive through windows or curb side 
service) 

(2) The hedge like line of mature trees running parallel to the site’s west property line shall 
be maintained or improved as needed to provide a solid landscape buffer.   A line of six-
foot tall (at the time of planting) evergreens shall be planted on 12-foot centers along the 
north property line.  An eight-foot tall solid fence shall be installed south of the line of 
evergreens.  The rest of the required landscaping shall be per the Landscape Ordinance.  

(3) Compatibility setback, height and light standards and all applicable USC standards will 
apply to the development of the site.  A drainage plan must be approved by the Public 
Works.  

(4) No parking or lighting within the rear and interior side yard setbacks.  
             

This recommendation is based on the following findings:   
 

(1)The zoning, uses and character of the neighborhood:  SF-5 zoned neighborhoods abut 
the north and west sides of the SF-5 site. The west abutting SF-5 zoned single-family 
residences (built in the early 1990s) are separated from the subject site by the noted 
hedge like line of mature trees and their subdivision’s six-foot brick wall.  None of the 
houses located west of the site have front yards facing Maple Street. A similar landscape 
buffer does not separate the north abutting SF-5 zoned single-family residences (built late 
1970s) from the subject site.  A LC Limited Commercial zoned small Horton’s carpet 
store (built 1996), small commercial strip with gas pumps (built 1983) and an Outback 
full service restaurant (built 1999) are located east of the site, across Brunswick Street; Z-
2337, Z-3162, and Z-3237.  The 0.68-acre carpet store and 0.70-acre commercial strip 
sites present a similar scale of commercial development that could occur on the 0.70-acre 
subject site, if the zoning is approved.  South of the site, across Maple Street, are the LC 
and GC General Commercial zoned big box, 17.71-acre Lowes home improvement store 
(built 1998) and the LC zoned big box, 15.72-acre Target department store (built 2004); 
Z-3306/DP-37 and Z-3326, ZON2003-00055/DP-270.  Lowes and Target are the two 
largest commercial developments located along the Ridge Road – Maple Street 

463



Page 4 of 6 
 

intersection, which includes full service restaurants, casual dining restaurants, furniture 
stores, commercial and strip buildings.  Based on the built dates (as shown on the 
Sedgwick County Appraiser’s information) the subject site’s one story, brick, ranch style 
house (built 1948) is one of the oldest, if not the oldest building in the area; pre Unified 
Zoning Code (UZC), pre 1958 County zoning within a three mile-ring of the city. 
  

 (2) The suitability of the subject property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The 
site’s current SF-5 zoning allows single-family residences, schools, churches, and parks 
by right.  The site’s one story, brick, ranch style house’s front yard faces Maple Street, a 
paved four-lane arterial, with two center-turn lanes at this location. South of the site, 
across Maple Street, are the LC and GC General Commercial zoned big box, 17.71-acre 
Lowes home improvement store (built 1998) and the LC zoned big box, 15.72-acre 
Target department store (built 2004); Z-3306/DP-37 and Z-3326, ZON2003-00055/DP-
270.  Lowes and Target are the two largest commercial developments located along the 
Ridge Road – Maple Street intersection.  The site’s orientation towards Lowes and Target 
lessens the appeal of the site’s single-family residence.       

 
(3) Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  
Approving the zoning request moves commercial zoning further west, across Brunswick 
Street, a paved two-lane local street.  If approved, commercial zoning would abut SF-5 
zoned single-family residences/neighborhoods.  Future commercial zoning requests in the 
immediate area could be on the north abutting property, leading to a possible expansion 
of the subject site, further encroaching into the SF-5 zoned neighborhood. The requested 
NR zoning is more  
restrictive then the adjacent east (across Brunswick Street) and south (across the arterial 
Maple Avenue) LC and GC zoned commercial developments.  If today’s request is 
approved, commercial development on the 0.70-acre site would be of a similar scale as 
the east adjacent LC zoned 0.68-acre carpet store and 0.70-acre commercial strip sites.  
Compatibility setback, height and light standards will apply to the development of the 
site.  The provisions of a protective overlay could limit the uses permitted by right in the 
NR zoning district.   

   
(4) Conformance of the requested change to the adopted or recognized Comprehensive 
Plan and policies:  The “2030 Wichita Functional Land Use Guide Map” depicts the site 
as appropriate for “urban residential” uses.  The urban residential category encompasses 
areas that reflect the full diversity of residential development densities and types typically 
found in a large urban municipality.  The range of housing types found includes single 
detached homes, semi-detached homes, zero lot line units, patio homes, duplexes, 
townhouses, apartments and multi-family units, condominiums, mobile home parks, and 
special residential accommodations for the elderly.  Elementary and middle school 
facilities, churches, playgrounds, parks and other similar residential-serving uses may 
also be found in this category.  The site’s current SF-5 zoning allows single-family 
residences, schools, churches, and parks and is appropriate for the urban residential 
category.  The site’s one story, brick, ranch style house’s front yard faces Maple Street, a 
paved four-lane arterial, with two center-turn lanes at this location; this orientation 
lessens the appeal of the site’s single-family residence.      

 

464



Page 5 of 6 
 

The NR zoning district is generally compatible with the "local commercial" or “urban 
development mix” designations of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan.  
The urban development mix category has uses that are predominately found in the urban 
residential category, such as single-family residential, duplexes, apartments, schools, 
parks, churches and similar residential-serving uses.  The urban development mix 
category also could be developed with local commercial uses, major institutional uses 
and park and open spaces.  The urban development mix category contains land that is 
likely to be developed or redeveloped within the next 30-years.  The Maple Street – 
Ridge Road intersection (and south of Ridge to Kellogg) has experience redevelopment 
from single-family residential to commercial during the last, at least, two and a half 
decades.   

 
The NR zoning district also allows very-low intensity retail and office development and 
other complementary land uses that serve and are generally appropriate near residential 
neighborhoods.      
  
(5) Impact of the proposed development on community facilities: There will be minimal 
impact on community facilities. 

  
BILL LONGNECKER, Planning Staff presented the Staff Report. 
 
RUSS EWY, BAUGHMAN COMPANY, 315 ELLIS, AGENT FOR THE APPLICANT 
said he would stand for questions.  He said he believed one resident in the area has comments on 
the application. 
 
RICHARDSON asked the agent about approving the request minus the restaurant. 
 
EWY said he doesn’t see a problem removing restaurant from the list of permitted uses. 
 
JARED GISH, 227 SOUTH BRUNSWICK said he was present for the restaurant question.  He 
indicated that he lived two houses from the site and he maintains his property pretty well.  He 
said he would like to see the applicant provide a six (6) foot block wall along the north side of 
the property and exit only onto Maple Street from the site, not down Brunswick.  He said this 
area is the first Addition of Ashley Park.   
 
J. JOHNSON asked about access onto Maple Street.  
 
EWY commented that they had received an e-mail from one of the neighbors saying they were 
fine with the proposal but did have concerns about the specific location of a drive.  He referred to 
a schematic with an el shaped parking area with openings onto both Brunswick and Maple.  He 
said they will meet with Traffic Engineering prior to the DAB hearing to see if a single point of 
access would be preferable.  He said the neighbors also expressed a preference that the building 
be kept in the northwest quadrant of the property with parking in the front.   He said staff 
requested that they maintain existing vegetation which would be fine with a wood screening 
fence, which is what is required by Code.  He said it will be a bit trickier to maintain the 
vegetation with a masonry wall.   He said they would like to meet the screening requirements as 
recommended by staff, which was wood screening in addition to the trees.   
 
J. JOHNSON asked about any restriction about exiting onto Brunswick. 

465



Page 6 of 6 
 

 
RICHARDSON suggested they let Traffic Engineering address that issue.  He said he believes 
the traffic issue is people using Brunswick to avoid the intersection and this location probably 
won’t generate enough traffic to affect that. 
 

MOTION:  To approve subject to staff recommendation with elimination of any 
restaurant use on the site.     
 
RICHARDSON moved, DENNIS seconded the motion, and it carried (11-0).  

 

466



  
 
INTEROFFICE  
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: City Council  

FROM: Martha Sanchez, Community Liaison, District VI 

SUBJECT:  ZON2015-00031 

DATE: September 14, 2015 

 
On Monday, September 14, 2015, the District V Advisory Board considered a request from 
applicant Esther M. Wallace (Owner) Baughman Company, P.A., c/o Russ Ewy (Agent) for a 
zoning change to NR Neighborhood Retail. The current zoning of proposed site is SF-5 Single-
Family Residents and is located at 7324 W. Maple Street.    
 
The DAB Members were provided with the MAPD staff report with a recommendation to 
approve the zoning request, subject to the following provisions of a protective overlay listed in 
the staff report.  
 
The DAB members voted (9-0) to recommend approval for zoning change with (1) member 
abstaining from the vote.  
 
Please review this information when ZON2015-00031 is considered. 
 

467



 Agenda Item No. II-25 
 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

October 6, 2015 
 

 
TO:   Wichita Airport Authority 
 
SUBJECT: Playtime, LLC Agreement 
 Wichita Dwight D. Eisenhower National Airport 
   
INITIATED BY: Department of Airports 
 
AGENDA:  Wichita Airport Authority (Consent) 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the agreement.   
 
Background:  Requests for Proposals (RFP) for a Children’s Indoor Play Area from qualified and 
experienced vendors to design, produce, construct, deliver, and install indoor play equipment in the 
new terminal were sought this summer.  The RFP was sent to parties that had expressed interest and 
was listed on the City’s procurement website.  One proposal from Playtime, LLC (Playtime) was 
received. 
 
Analysis:  Playtime is highly qualified to provide this unique equipment.  Founded in 1998, Playtime, 
which is headquartered in the Denver area, is a global provider of interactive custom soft-sculpted 
indoor playground equipment.  Playtime designs, manufactures and installs play areas in many 
different market segments.  There are thousands of installation locations worldwide, with play areas 
at a number of airports around the United States.  Construction and installation of the play area is 
expected to take several months following notice to proceed. 
   
Financial Considerations:  The all-inclusive turnkey installation price from Playtime is $85,000, which 
is funded from the approved Air Capital Terminal 3 (ACT 3) budget.   

Legal Considerations:  The agreement has been reviewed and approved as to form by the Law 
Department.   
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the Wichita Airport Authority approve the 
agreement and authorize necessary signatures. 
 
Attachment:  Agreement. 

468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



         Agenda Item No. II-26 
       
 

 
City of Wichita 

City Council Meeting 
 October 6, 2015 

 
 
TO:   Wichita Airport Authority 
 
SUBJECT:  Tolling Agreement for Mediation  
 
INITIATED BY: Law Department 
 
AGENDA:  Airport Authority-Consent  
 
____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Recommendation:  Approve tolling agreement. 

Background:  Crossland Construction, LLC and the Wichita Airport Authority entered into a construction 
contract on January 8, 2013 for the Parking Structure, Rental Car Facility and Surface Parking Lot Project at 
Eisenhower National Airport. The construction of the garage is now complete. Due to the complexity of the 
contract, in order to conclude the contractual relationship, it is necessary for the parties to mediate final payment 
obligations.   

Analysis:  A mediation has been scheduled between the City of Wichita and a construction contractor.  A tolling 
agreement allows both parties to enter the mediation process without waiving any contractual performance or 
payment deadlines. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None. 

Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved this agreement as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Action:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the Tolling Agreement and 
authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 
Attachment:  Tolling and Standstill Agreement. 

489



{1431314;} 

TOLLING AND STANDSTILL AGREEMENT 

This Tolling and Standstill Agreement is entered with an effective date of  July 10, 2015 (the 
“Effective Date”) by and between Crossland Construction Company, Inc. (“CROSSLAND”) and the 
Wichita Airport Authority (“AUTHORITY.”)  

WHEREAS, a dispute currently exists between CROSSLAND and AUTHORITY and  

WHEREAS, CROSSLAND and AUTHORITY are contract parties to a Construction 
Contract Agreement dated January 8, 2013 for the Parking Structure, Rental Car Facility and Surface 
Parking Lot Project;  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual agreements of CROSSLAND 
and AUTHORITY as recited herein, CROSSLAND and AUTHORITY each agrees as follows: 

1. As used herein, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

a. AUTHORITY means the Wichita Airport Authority. 

b. CROSSLAND means Crossland Construction Company, Inc. 

c. EFFECTIVE DATE means July 10, 2015. 

d. TERMINATION DATE means November 1, 2015, unless extended by a written 
agreement signed by CROSSLAND and AUTHORITY. 

e. TIMING DEFENSE means any defense based in whole or in part upon any statute of 
limitations, repose period, laches, or any other failure to institute or commence 
litigation or other proceedings within a specified period, before a specified date, or 
before the happening of a specified event. 

f. TOLLED CLAIMS means all legal and equitable claims, actions, causes of action, 
demands, rights, damages, expenses and compensation whatsoever which could be 
asserted by AUTHORITY against CROSSLAND or by CROSSLAND against 
AUTHORITY, whether in tort, contract or equity, under state or federal law, 
statutory, common or otherwise. 

2. CROSSLAND and AUTHORITY expressly agree and covenant not to sue each other from 
the Effective Date through and including the TERMINATION DATE concerning any TOLLED 
CLAIMS.  This prohibition does not prevent an action to enforce this Tolling and Standstill 
Agreement. 

3. CROSSLAND and AUTHORITY agree they each shall not assert any TIMING DEFENSE 
based in whole or in part on the time period from the EFFECTIVE DATE through and including 
the TERMINATION DATE. 

490



{1431314;} 2

4. CROSSLAND and AUTHORITY each hereby agrees that any TIMING DEFENSE that may 
be applicable to any claim or cause of action that CROSSLAND or AUTHORITY may have 
against the other, whether in tort, contract or equity, under state or federal law, statutory, 
common or otherwise, is hereby tolled as of the EFFECTIVE DATE and the running thereof is 
stayed until TERMINATION DATE so that any calculation of the applicable period of time 
under any such doctrine would be the sum of the applicable period of time plus the period 
between the EFFECTIVE DATE and the TERMINATION DATE.  The calculation of any 
applicable period of time does not include the first date, but does include the last date.   

5. CROSSLAND and AUTHORITY each hereby agree to toll the time for asserting any 
TOLLED CLAIMS as of the EFFECTIVE DATE and the time for asserting any TOLLED 
CLAIMS is stayed until TERMINATION DATE so that any calculation of the applicable period 
of time under any such claim would not include the applicable period of time between the 
EFFECTIVE DATE and the TERMINATION DATE.  The calculation of any applicable period 
of time includes the first date and the last date.  

6. The parties’ agreement to suspend and toll as set forth in paragraphs 2 - 4 above, is good and 
sufficient consideration for the performance and enforcement of this Tolling and Standstill 
Agreement. 

7. Execution of this Tolling and Standstill Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver by 
either party of any claim or defense it may have against the other, except as herein provided, or 
as an admission of any kind by either party. 

8. This Tolling and Standstill Agreement does not excuse performance of any contractual 
obligation under the Construction Contract Agreement except as specifically referenced herein. 

9. Each party represents and warrants that their execution of this document is binding upon 
their successors and assigns.  

10. This Tolling and Standstill Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed 
by the laws of the State of Kansas, without regard to its principles of conflict of laws. 

11. This Tolling and Standstill Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which together 
shall constitute an agreement binding on the parties hereto, notwithstanding that all such parties 
are not signatories to the original or same counterpart. 

12. This Tolling and Standstill Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
concerning Timing Defenses and agreement not to institute suit.  It supersedes any previous 
agreements or understandings.  There are no agreements, covenants, conditions, or limitations of 
this Tolling and Standstill Agreement that are not expressly stated herein. 

13. This Tolling and Standstill Agreement may not be modified except by an instrument in 
writing signed by the parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of this ___ day of 
September 2015. 

491



{1431314;} 3

 

CROSSLAND CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. 

 
_____________________________________ 
Bennie Crossland 
 
 
 

WICHITA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
By: Karen Sublett, City Clerk    By: Mayor Jeff Longwell 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Jennifer Magana 
City Attorney and Director of Law 

492


	Agenda
	III-1. Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structures 6048 S. Hydraulic.  (District III)

	Agenda Report No. III-1

	IV-1. Authorization of the Second, Five-Year Tax Exemption, C & C Development, LLC.  (District IV)
	Agenda Report No. IV-1

	IV-2. Substantial Amendment to the 2015-2016 Second Program Year Action Plan.
	Agenda Report No. IV-2
	Substantial Amendment Spreadsheet
	Substantial Amendment Detail-REVISED100115

	IV-3. Ordinance Amendment Repealing Section 2.12.1026 of the Code of the City of Wichita and Creating Chapter 3.70 regarding Cemeteries.
	Agenda Report No. IV-3
	Ordinance No. 50-088

	IV-4. Memorandum of Understanding and Supplemental Agreement No. 1 for New Central Library Architectural Services. (District VI)
	Agenda Report No IV-4
	City Library MOU Wallace Foundation APPVD AS TO FORM FINAL
	GLMV Supp  Agreement No  1 APPROVED AS TO FORM

	IV-5. McAdams Field Improvements.  (District I)
	Agenda Report No. IV-5 and Map
	Resolution No. 15-319

	IV-6. Improvements for Meridian Avenue, North of 29th Street North.  (District VI)
	Agenda Report No. IV-6
	Supporting Documents
	Resolution No. 15-320

	IV-7. Design Concept for Improvements to 13th Street, between 119th and 135th Streets West.  (District V)
	Agenda Report No. IV-7

	IV-8. Water Line and Sewer Extensions to Serve Sheridan Avenue.  (District IV)
	Agenda Report No. IV-8
	Supporting Documents
	Resolution No. 15-321
	Resolution No. 15-322

	IV-9. DER2015-00001- Community Investments Plan 2015-2035.
	Agenda Report No. IV-9
	Ordinance No. 50-089
	DAB Summary DER 2015-01
	DER2015-00001  8-20-15 MAPC MIN EXCERPT
	Plan Doc-MAPC Approved

	IV-10. Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structure. (Districts I and III)

Property Address					                           Council District
a. 344 N. Piatt						 	                        I
b. 430 N. Bleckley (shared accessory structure)			I
c. 116 W. Zimmerly (parcel address 1352 S. Water)	       III
d. 2671 S. Fees						                               III


	Agenda Report No. IV-10
	Summary Table Spreadsheet
	Writeups

	V-1. ZON2015-00026 – City Zone Change from SF-5 Single-Family Residential to TF-3 Two-Family Residential on Lots 19 – 39 in the Siena Lakes Subdivision Generally Located on the South Side of West 37th Street North, One-Half Mile West of Hoover Road.  (District V)
	Agenda Report No. V-1
	Ordinance No. 50-090
	ZON2015-00026   8-20-15 MAPC MIN EXCERPT
	Background Information

	VI-1. Public Hearing – 2016 Annual Agency Plan.
	Agenda Report No. VI-1
	HUD Payments to Influence
	HUD Compliance with the PHA Plans
	HUD Civil Rights
	Consistency with the Consolidated Plan
	HUD 50077-SL Certification of PHA Plans Consistency with the Consolidated Plan
	Disclosure of Lobbying Activities
	HUD Cert of Drug Free Workplace

	II-3. Preliminary Estimates.
	Agenda Report No. II-3

	II-4a. Revised Petitions for Improvements to Bellechase Third Addition.  (District II)
	Agenda Report No. II-4a
	Supporting Documents
	Resolution No. 15-327
	Resolution No. 15-328

	II-5a. Community Events – Prairie Fire Half Marathon.
	Agenda Report No. II-5a

	II-5b. Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon and Fun Run.
	Agenda Report No. II-5b

	II-5c. Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon 5K.  (Districts I and VI)
	Agenda Report No. II-5c

	II-5d. Community Events – Prairie Fire Marathon Set-up.  (District I)
	Agenda Report No. II-5d

	II-6a. Design-Build Agreement for Cowskin Creek, Sewage Treatment Plant No. 3 Rehabilitation.  (District V)
	Agenda Report No. II-6a
	DBA Agreement

	II-6b. 2015 Biennial Bridge Inspections.
	Agenda Report No. II-6b
	Supporting Documents
	Resolution No. 15-329

	II-6c. KDHE Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy Grant Application.
	Agenda Report No. II-6c
	Agreement

	II-7a. Change Order No. 4 for K-96 and Hoover Interchange.  (Districts V and VI)
	Agenda Report No. II-7a
	Supporting Documents

	II-9. Repair or Removal of Dangerous and Unsafe Structure. (District III)

Property Address					Council District
a. 3881 E. Roseberry						III



	Agenda Report No. II-9
	Supporting Documents
	Resolution Nos 15-330

	II-10. Lease of City-owned Property at 2220 E. 21st Street.  (District I)
	Agenda Report No. II-10
	Supporting Documents
	Supporting Documents

	II-11. Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Bond and Refunding Revenue Bond Sale.
	Agenda Report II-11
	Resolution 15-331
	Notice of Sale

	II-12. Buffalo Park Improvements.  (District V)
	Agenda Report No. II-12
	Resolution No. 15-332
	Buffalo Park Aerial Map
	Buffalo Park Amenity Rendering

	II-13. Mobility Management Services.
	Agenda Report No. II-13
	Contract Mobility Management Services

	II-14. Surplus of City-Owned Property at 1352 N. Minneapolis.  (District I)
	Agenda Report No. II-14
	Supporting Documents

	II-15. Amending Preliminary Estimate for Improvements to Serve Southfork Addition. (District III)
	Agenda Report No. II-15
	Amended NTBA

	II-16. Contract for Indigent Defense Services.
	Agenda Report No. II-16
	Contract for Indigent Defense Services

	II-17. Abatement of Dangerous and Unsafe Structures.  (Districts I, III, IV and V)
	Agenda Report No. II-17 and Ordinances 50-091 and 50-092

	II-18. Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department Budget Adjustment.
	Agenda Report No. II-18

	II-19. Resolutions Authorizing Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) grants from the Federal Transit Administration.
	Agenda Report No. II-19
	CMAQ Bus Purchase
	CMAQ West Side Bus Imp
	Resolution No. 15-333
	Resolution No. 15-334
	Resolution No. 15-335

	II-20. Second Reading Ordinances.
	Agenda Report No. II-20

	II-21. *SUB2014-00036 -- Plat of Campbell's Greenhouse Addition Located East of Broadway, North of MacArthur Road. (District III)
	Agenda Report No. II-21
	Ordinance No. 50-093
	Support Docs -SUB2014 36

	II-22. *DED2015-00007 - Dedication of Access and Utility Easement Located on the East Side of Greenwich, North of K-96 Highway. (District II)
	Agenda Report No. II-22
	Supporting Documents

	II-23. *SUB2015-00016 -- Plat of Monarch Landing Commercial Addition Located on the Northwest Corner of 21st Street North and 159th Street East. (District II)
	Agenda Report No. II-23
	Monarch Landing Commercial -support docs -SUB2015 16
	Ordinance No. 50-094
	Resolution No. 15-336

	II-24. *ZON2015-00031 - City Zone Change from Single-Family Residential to Neighborhood Retail with a Protective Overlay on Property Located West of Ridge Road on the Northwest Corner of Maple and Brunswick Streets.  (District V)
	Agenda Report No. II-24
	Ordinance No. 50-095
	ZON2015-00031   8-20-15 MAPC MIN EXCERPT
	Memo ZON2015-00031

	II-25. *Playtime, LLC Agreement - Wichita Dwight D. Eisenhower National Airport.
	Agenda Report No. II-25
	PlayTime Agreement and Proposal

	II-26. *Tolling Agreement for Mediation.
	Agenda Report No. II-26
	Airport Tolling and Standstill Agreement


